
 

 
 

Notice of meeting of  
 

Planning Committee 
 
To: Councillors R Watson (Chair), Ayre, Boyce, D'Agorne, 

Firth, Funnell, Galvin, Horton, Hyman, Merrett (Vice-
Chair), Moore, Morley, Reid, Simpson-Laing, B Watson 
and Wiseman 
 

Date: Thursday, 24 March 2011 
 

Time: 4.30 pm 
 

Venue: The Guildhall, York 
 
 

Please note that no site visits have been scheduled for this meeting. 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

 
1. Declarations of Interest   

 

At this point, members are asked to declare any personal or 
prejudicial interests they may have in the business on this agenda. 
 

2. Minutes  (Pages 3 - 14) 
 

To approve and sign the minutes of the last meeting of the 
Planning Committee held on 17 February 2011. 
 

3. Public Participation   
 

It is at this point in the meeting that members of the public who 
have registered their wish to speak can do so. The deadline for 
registering is by 5.00pm on Wednesday 23 March 2011. Members 
of the public can speak on specific planning applications or on 
other agenda items or matters within the remit of the committee. 
  
To register please contact the Democracy Officer for the meeting, 
on the details at the foot of this agenda. 
 



 
4. Plans List   

 

This item invites Members to determine the following planning 
applications: 
 

a) 6 - 18, Hull Road, York (11/00050/OUTM)  (Pages 15 - 30) 
 

Demolition of existing dairy distribution facility and development of 
student accommodation comprising 123 unit clusters (329 bed 
spaces) in 5 no. blocks plus ancillary office and warden studio with 
associated access and parking [Fishergate Ward]. 
 

b) Beetle Bank Farm, Moor Lane, Murton, York YO19 5XD 
(11/00002/FULM)  (Pages 31 - 44) 
 

Change of use of land to visitor attraction comprising open farm 
and wildlife sanctuary with associated barn, two storey amenity 
building and car park [Osbaldwick Ward]. 
 

c) Hungate Development Site, Hungate, York (10/02527/OUTM)  
(Pages 45 - 64) 
 

Variation of Condition 3 of planning approval 08/00737/FUL for 
mixed use redevelopment to amend the approved plans and 
documents to allow revisions to the phase 2 building and to the 
siting of the focal building and variations of Condition 6 to allow an 
increase in height of the phase 2 building [Guildhall Ward]. 
 

d) Hungate Development Site, Hungate, York (10/02534/REMM)  
(Pages 65 - 82) 
 

Variation of Conditions 1, 6 and 8 of planning approval 
07/01901/REMM for the erection of part 5, part 6 storey residential 
building with ground floor commercial units to allow revisions to the 
elevations, an increase in height, an increase in the number of 
residential units from 154 to 175 and reduction in the amount of 
commercial floorspace [Guildhall Ward]. 
 

5. Three Conservation Area Appraisals for Strensall, Strensall 
Railway Buildings and Towthorpe Village Conservation Areas: 
Results of Consultation and Final Drafts for Approval. 
 (Pages 83 - 178) 
 

This report presents the results of a public consultation exercise on 
the three separate draft Conservation Area Character Appraisals 



 
for the neighbouring conservation areas of Strensall, Strensall 
Railway Buildings and Towthorpe Village. The report recommends 
that, following minor revisions to the appraisals, they are approved 
as supporting documents to existing City of York Council 
conservation policies.  
 

6. Any other business, which the Chair considers urgent under 
the Local Government Act 1972.   
 

Democracy Officer: 
 
Name: Jill Pickering 
Contact Details: 

• Telephone – (01904) 552061 
• E-mail – jill.pickering@york.gov.uk 
 
 
 

For more information about any of the following please contact the 
Democracy Officer responsible for servicing this meeting: 
 

• Registering to speak 
• Business of the meeting 
• Any special arrangements 
• Copies of reports 

 
Contact details are set out above.  

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



About City of York Council Meetings 
 

Would you like to speak at this meeting? 
If you would, you will need to: 

• register by contacting the Democracy Officer (whose name and contact 
details can be found on the agenda for the meeting) no later than 5.00 
pm on the last working day before the meeting; 

• ensure that what you want to say speak relates to an item of business on 
the agenda or an issue which the committee has power to consider (speak 
to the Democracy Officer for advice on this); 

• find out about the rules for public speaking from the Democracy Officer. 
A leaflet on public participation is available on the Council’s website or 
from Democratic Services by telephoning York (01904) 551088 
 
Further information about what’s being discussed at this meeting 
All the reports which Members will be considering are available for viewing 
online on the Council’s website.  Alternatively, copies of individual reports or the 
full agenda are available from Democratic Services.  Contact the Democracy 
Officer whose name and contact details are given on the agenda for the 
meeting. Please note a small charge may be made for full copies of the 
agenda requested to cover administration costs. 
 
Access Arrangements 
We will make every effort to make the meeting accessible to you.  The meeting 
will usually be held in a wheelchair accessible venue with an induction hearing 
loop.  We can provide the agenda or reports in large print, electronically 
(computer disk or by email), in Braille or on audio tape.  Some formats will take 
longer than others so please give as much notice as possible (at least 48 hours 
for Braille or audio tape).   
 
If you have any further access requirements such as parking close-by or a sign 
language interpreter then please let us know.  Contact the Democracy Officer 
whose name and contact details are given on the order of business for the 
meeting. 
 
Every effort will also be made to make information available in another 
language, either by providing translated information or an interpreter providing 
sufficient advance notice is given.  Telephone York (01904) 551550 for this 
service. 

 

Agenda AnnexPage 1



 
Holding the Executive to Account 
The majority of councillors are not appointed to the Executive (40 out of 47).  
Any 3 non-Executive councillors can ‘call-in’ an item of business from a 
published Executive (or Executive Member Decision Session) agenda. The 
Executive will still discuss the ‘called in’ business on the published date and will 
set out its views for consideration by a specially convened Scrutiny 
Management Committee (SMC).  That SMC meeting will then make its 
recommendations to the next scheduled Executive meeting in the following 
week, where a final decision on the ‘called-in’ business will be made.  
 
Scrutiny Committees 
The purpose of all scrutiny and ad-hoc scrutiny committees appointed by the 
Council is to:  

• Monitor the performance and effectiveness of services; 
• Review existing policies and assist in the development of new ones, as 

necessary; and 
• Monitor best value continuous service improvement plans 

 
Who Gets Agenda and Reports for our Meetings?  

• Councillors get copies of all agenda and reports for the committees to 
which they are appointed by the Council; 

• Relevant Council Officers get copies of relevant agenda and reports for 
the committees which they report to;  

• Public libraries get copies of all public agenda/reports.  
 

Page 2



����������	
�����
��� ������������������

�������� �������������������

����� ����� !"�!��#$���

�!�%���� ��"������!%�!�&��%���'�(��!)*� ����*�
�+���!��*���!�(*��"�����*�(�!���*�(����*�
��!!����',���-�(��!)*����!�*���!���*�
!���*�%���%��-�����*� �&��%��*��!!����
'%" ���!����!���!�)*�������%�'%" ���!����!�
&�%����)�����("�%���'%" ���!����!�
���,��)�

��������%� ��"������!%���!�*����,�������&�%�����

�
�

���� ����	
������
����	���
�

%���� !�.������	�,����� ���/�	�������0�0�
�	�1���0�"��2�	������.�1���
����3� ��4��������0��.���
.�0���4��.��*��56��	��
�
!�.0�.�0�(����!�.0*���	
�
'�$7$#56�7�"��*�
�$7$#5857!����.�0�
�$7$#�967!���)��

�����./������/�	�����2��4�
�:������*�1	�1���0�.

����.�0�
�.�0�
.1��3����	��.���������:��
�;�����3�
.�1���/���0��3�<�

���	��!�&.����*�
�+�3�	��*�(�	���*�
��		���*����	�*�
��	���*�!��0�.�0� �
&.������

��	
�������	���.���	�*�
�;:�/������%=�.	�*���	
��
'�$7�867�"�*��$7$#�8>7����
.�0��$7$#?�?7� �)�

���2��4�����/@�
������	�
��2�0�
.�0������./������/�	�����
2��4��:�������.�0�.

�������
	��.��������.0@.
����/���0��3��
����:������	.����	��
�����	2.������	�.�.�0��	�.�
����	
:����3�
.����1�	�.�
�<��

���	��!�&.����*�
�+�3�	��*���	�:*�
�������*�(�	���*�
��		���*����	�*�
��	���*�!��0�.�0� �
&.������

�
�

���� �	
�����������
����	�	����
�
���/�	��4�	����2���0����0�
�.	�*�.���:���1���������:��������3*�.���1�	���.��
�	�1	�@�0�
�.������	������:�����3:��:.2������:��/������������:��.3��0.<�
�
����
����	���	����0�
�.	�0�.�1�	���.������1	�@�0�
�.������	�������	��.��������
��.��� ������ 60*� 6�� .�0� 6�� '�	�1���0�"��2�	����� �.�1��� ����3�  ��4����
����0� �.��� .�0� ��4� �.��*� �56� �	��
� !�.0� .�0� (���� !�.0*� ��	
�
�$7$#56�7�"��*��$7$#5857!����.�0��$7$#�967!���)�.�0��3��0.������
>� '�:�� "��2�	����� ��� ��	
� �	.2��� ��.�� A� #$�$-�>)� .�� .� ���/�	� ��� �:��
(�����3�����.���������������	��<�
�
����
����	���		����0�
�.	�0�.�1�	���.������1	�@�0�
�.������	�������	��.��������
��.��� ����� 60� '�	�1���0� "��2�	����� �.�1��� ����3�  ��4���� ����0� �.���
.�0���4��.��*��56��	��
�!�.0�.�0�(����!�.0*���	
��$7$#56�7�"��)�.��

Agenda Item 2Page 3



:���0.�3:��	�4.��.����/�	�����:����	
������ .�:�����/�.�0�.�	�3��.	����	�
�����
.���4�����3�1����<�
�

���� �����	���
�
!�%��,��B� �:.���:��������������:���.���������3�����:������������

:��0����#$�C.��.	��#$���/��.11	�2�0�.�0���3��0�/��
�:���:.�	�.��.�
�		�
��	�
�	0<�

�
���� �����
������
���������

�
��� 4.�� 	�1�	��0� �:.�� �:�	�� :.0� /���� ��� 	�3���	.������ ��� �1�.
� .�� �:��
������3���0�	��:������
��D����/��
��.	��
�1.�����%
:���<�
�

���� ������������
�
���/�	�� 
����0�	�0� �:�� 	�1�	�� ��� �:�� ������.��� ��	�
��	� '��.����3� .�0�
%���.��./�����2���1����)� 	��.���3� ��� �:�� �����4��3� 1�.����3� .11��
.�����*�
��������3� �:�� 1	�1��.��� .�0� 	���2.��� 1�.����3� 
����0�	.������ .�0� ������3�
�����:��2��4������:��
����������.�0�����
�	�<�
�

���� �����
�� �����!�""#� $�	%&�'����(��)*��#$��������+�,	-�
.+/0/,�1�0
��2��
�
���/�	��4�	��.02���0��:.���:�������.11��
.����*���	��:�����1�	.	�������3����
.� >9�� :�3:� �/��	2.����� &:���� .�0� 1�	�.����� �.�0�
.1��3� 4�	
��
�����4��3�0��������������:��:������������:��	�.	�����:����	
�������	���.���	�*�
�;:�/������ %=�.	�*� :.0� /���� 4��:0	.4�� /�� �:�� .11��
.��*� �	� ��
:.���
&��04.	0*�1	��	�����:��������3<�
�

��'� �����
�� �����!�""#� $�	%&�'����(��)*��#��������+�,	-�
.+/0/,�1�0
�
2��
�
���/�	�� 4�	�� .02���0� �:.�� �:�� �����	2.����� �	�.� �������*� ��	� �:��
0��������������:���;�����3�:������������:��	�.	�����:����	
�������	���.���	�*�
�;:�/������ %=�.	�*� ��� .���
�.����� 4��:� �:�� ���1�	.	�� �����3� ��� �:��
�/��	2.����� &:���� .�0� 1�	�.����� �.�0�
.1��3� 4�	
�*� :.0� /����
4��:0	.4��/���:��.11��
.��*��	���
:.���&��04.	0*�1	��	�����:��������3<�
�

��3� �����
�� �����!�""#� $�	%&�'����(��)*��#$��������+�,	-�
.+/0/,�+�0��
2��
�
���/�	��4�	��.02���0��:.���:�������0� ���0��3��������*���	��:��0����������
������3������	���.00�����������:����0������:����	
�������	���.���	�*��;:�/������
%=�.	�*� ��3��:�	�4��:� .���	.������ ��� �:�� /���0.	��4.���� .�0� 	.����3�*� :.0�
/���� 4��:0	.4�� /�� �:�� .11��
.��*� �	� ��
:.��� &��04.	0*� 1	��	� ��� �:��
������3<�
�

��4� ���5�6#4��(�7#�6�� �
�85*6�� �(9��#�:##(�
�#"4���(#��(4���:�
��(#$�������*(�����4��(4�;*""����4$������.+/0/,��+0
���2��
�
���/�	�� 
����0�	�0� .� �.@�	� ����� 1�.����3� .11��
.����*� ��/�����0� /�� �:��
"��2�	����� ��� ��	
*� ��	� �:�� 
����	�
����� ��� .� �4�����3� 1���� /���0��3�4��:�

Page 4



:�.��:�.�0� �������� �.
��������1�������0��	� �1�	���1��
:���.�0�
.	�1.	
�4��:�
.���
�.��0���3:���3�.�0����
��3<�
�
����
�	���10.��0����/�	�� ���	��.���������:�������4��3��������.�0�1�.������
�:�� (�����3���� �.��� �.���	1�.�� ��	� �:�� %1�	��� ������	� 0��.����3� �:��
E�.�0�
.1�0�!����D*� �4�����3�1���� ����� 1�.�� .�0�1:�������.3���4�	��

�	
��.��0B�

•� ���� ��� �:�� 
�	
��.��0� 1�.��� �:�4�0� �:�� 0	.��� �.���	1�.�� ��� �:��

.�1���.�0�.�0	.����.�������	��:���1�	���2���.3�<��:���������F������/.���
1��
:� :.0� /���� �:�4�� 	��.��0� 8$G� �	��� �:.�� �:�4�� ��� �:��
.11��
.����� 0	.4��3�<� ��� 4.�� 
����	��0� �:.�� �:��� ����	�0� /����	�
�
	�����3�.���3��:���.���	��/���0.	�*��.
��3��:���56*�.�0�1	�2�0�0�
.�/����	�������3���	��:��	�3:�����4.��4��:��:��	�������������:���;�����3�
:�03�<� ��� 4.�� 	�1�	��0� �:.�� �:�� .11��
.��� :.0� ��4� .3	��0� ��� �:��
	��	����.���������:������/.���1��
:�.�0�.���
�.��0��.�0�
.1��3�4:�
:�
4���0�/���.0��.�
��0���������.���.11	�2.�<�

•� ��� 1.	�� ��� �:�� .11��
.����� ��	� �:�� ��	�:�	�� ��	2�
�� 	�.0� '�:�� ��;��
.11��
.����� ��� /�� 
����0�	�0� .�� �:�� ������3)� .� ��3�.�-
���	����0�
1�0���	�.�7
�
��� 	�����4���0� /�� 1	�2�0�0� ��0�	� �#�?*� .
	����(����
!�.0� '�	.������0������9)<�(�4�2�	*� �:�� ���
�4.�� 	�=��	�0� ��� ��	2��
�:�� �1�	��� 2���.3�� .�0� ����
�	�� ����� �:.�� �:�� 
��0������ �:���0� ��	��
.11	�1	�.�����/��.��.
:�0�����:��
���������	��:���4�����3�1���<�

•� ���4.��1�����0������:.�����������:��0	.���
��0�������	�=��	�0�0��.����
��� /�� ��/�����0� 1	��	� ��� 
�����
������ ��� 0�2���1����� �	� 4��:���
�:	�������:�� ��� �:�� 0.������ .11	�2.�<��:��.11��
.��� :.0� �:�	���	��
.�
�0��:.���:���������1�	��0��/��3���	.�����;���0�0�0�������:�������
����� ��� �:�� ���0�	� .�0� 1	�-
����	�
����� ��.3��<� ��� 4.�� �:�	���	��
	�
�����0�0��:.���:��1�	��0���	�
��1��.�
��/��.���0�0����4��:���
�:	�������:�����
�����
���������0�2���1����<�

•� �.	.3	.1:�6<#5�����:��	�1�	��	���		�0�����:����������.���.
��	����:.��
����
�	�� 4��:�0� ��� 	��.��<� �:�� .11��
.���� :.0� �;.����0� �:�� �	����
1����/���	���������/����4��3�����:��	�1	������3�����:.��1.	������:�������
��� 
	�.��� �:�� 1�.���3� 1��
:��� �:��� :.0� ���� /���� 1����/��<� ����
�	��
�:�	���	��	�
�����0�0��:����0���
.��������0	.������0������8����	���	�
��� �	��� �
	�����3�.�0� �:�� ��
������� ��� ������.��	�� �1�
�����*� .��
.11	�1	�.��<�

•� �:�����0��	� 1��
:��� ��
��0�0� ����0� ��3:���3� .�0� ��� �	0�	� ��� ����	��
�:.�� �:�� ��2������ ��3:���3�0�0�����	������ ���.��� ��������.������� ���4.��
	�
�����0�0� �:.�� 0��.���� ��� �.;����� ��2���� �:���0� /�� ��
��0�0�
4��:��:��	�2������������0������#��.�0�.��.00�����.��
��0�����<�

•� ���4.��1�����0������:.��.���:��0�2���1�����4.������1�	��.�������:��
��������
������� ��	� �:��
.�1��� �:.�� ���4.������/���0�/�� �:�� �	.2���
1�.�<� ����
�	�� �:�	���	�� 1	�1���0� .�� .00�����.�� 
��0������ 	�=��	��3�
�:��0�2���1��������.0:�	������:����	�������:��.3	��0��	.2���1�.�<�

�
����
�	��.����
�	
��.��0�.���������0	.���	�2���0�
��0������*�4:�
:�
�2�	�0��:��
�����4��3� 1������ '.� 
�1�� ��� �:�� 
��1����� ����*� 4��:� 
:.�3��� :�3:��3:��0� ���
��.��
�*�:.��/����.��.
:�0�.��.��.���;�����:���������.3��0.)B�

•� "10.��0�1�.�������<�
•� !�=��	��������	��.�1����.���	��1.���<�
•� �11	�2.��.�0��.�1�������.����;��	��	��.��	�.���	�=��	�0<�
•� �	.��.3��0��.�������/��.3	��0<�

Page 5



•� ���.���������.��	��������1	�2��1�0���	�.����2������	�=��	�0<�
•� %�/�������� ��� 1	�-0���3�� .�0� 1���� 
����	�
�����  !�����

.����������<�
•� %�/�����������0��.�������0������	.���:�4��:��.11��
.���4����1	�2�0��

�	���	���4./������	
����$H�����:��/���0��3�����.�����	3��0��.�0*�
����.�0�4��:����:��
���	�������:��.11��
.��<��

•� �.�0�
.1��3�.�0��
	�����3�1	�1��.��<�
•� ���.���� 	�=��	�0� ��� 	�����7	�
�
���3� �.
�������*� �;��	�.�� ��.���3*�

��.��	��3	.1:�
��.�0����	.�
��
.��1�<�
•� ���.���� ��� 
.	� 1.	
��3� /.		��	�*� �:�4�	�*� 
:.�3��3� �.
�������� .�0�

��

�	��.�0�.���
:.�3�������:��1�/��
�	�3:�����4.��
	�����3��:������<�
•� ���.�������1	�1���0��	.��1�	�����
������:���1�	���2���.3�<�
•� %�	�.
��3����2�:�
��.	�.	�.�<�
•� �.��������
.	�.�0�
�
���1.	
��3<�
•� ���0�������������	�������0�����:��:�3:4.��0�	��3�
����	�
����<�
•� �0:�	��
������:�������	�
�������2�	������.���.�.3��������.�<�
•� ������3���	.�����.�0�������	��3����1	���
��������

�1.���<�
•� %����
���.���.����<��
•� %���0���2������	�1�.���.�0��=��1������������<�
•� ���������������	��:�����0��	��1�	���1��
:���
•� ����	��� ��� ��3:�� ���������� �	��� ����0��3:���3� ��� �:�� ���0��	� �1�	���

1��
:��<�
•� ����������3:���3�0��.���<�
•� �3	����������.		.�3���������	�1�/��
�.

��������:���4�����3�1����

.�0���:�	��1�	����.
�������<�
•� �0:�	��
������:��.11	�2�0��	.2�����.�<�
•� �	����.���������:���������F���1�	���1��
:���	�=��	�0<�
•� �	.��1�	�� ���
�� ���/��
����	�
��0�.�0� ����1�	.�����1	��	� ����1����3�

����:��%1�	���,���.3�<�
�
!�1	�����.������ �����11�	��4�	��	�
��2�0� �	����:��.11��
.��D��.3����4:��
�;1�.���0� ��� ��	�� 0��.��� �:�� 1	�1��.��� ��	� �:�� �1�	��� 2���.3�� .�0� 4�	
�
��0�	�.
��� ��� 0.��<� (�� 1�����0� ���� �:.�� �:�� �4�����3� 1���� 4.�� .� @�����
2����	��4��:�8$H���� �:���1����3�:��	��/���3�����.��0�� ��	�1�/��
����<���
0	.���.3	���������	���������:�����0��	�1��
:���:.0�.����/����1	�1.	�0�4��:�
4�	
� 
�����
��3� ��� �.�� #$��<� �����	�.����� 4.�� .���� 3�2��� ��� �:��
1	�1���0��	����.���������:������/.���1��
:����.���4���	�/����	��.�0�
.1��3����
�:������<�
�
���/�	�� 	�=�����0� 
�.	���
.����� .�0� =��������0� .� ���/�	� ��� .�1�
��� ���
�:��0�2���1�������
��0��3B�

•� ��2�	�0�
�
���1.	
��3�A�
����	�.������:.���:��0��.����4���0���
��0��

�2�	�0�
�
���1.	
��3<�

•� ��3:���3� ������3� ��� 	�3��.������ =��	��0� 0��.���� ��� .� ����� 	�	.��
��
.����<� �����	�.����� �:.�� ��� 3��0.�
�� 	��.��0� ��� 0����	��3�
��2�	���������������4:�
:�
�2�	�0�.������	�	.����
.����<�

•� %������2�������	��1�
������:��	��	����.���������:������/.���1��
:<�
•� ���/�	����0��./��0�
:.�3��3�	����7��������.�0������3<�
•� %����3����0��./��0�
.	�1.	
��3��1.
������	��.��������1�������	.�
�<�
•� &�	0��3�������0������#9����	��1�
�����1�/��
�.

���<�
•� ���/�	�.�0���1�������

�	�<�

Page 6



•� %�.���3� ���/�	�� ��� 1�����0�7�1�
�.��	� .	�.�� ��	� �4�����3�
3.�.�7
��1��������<� �����	��0� �:.�� ���/�	�� :.0� /���� .3	��0�
�:	��3:�%1�	�����3�.�0�.�0��:�������%���	��3��	��1<�

�
�����4��3���	�:�	����3�:��0��
����������4.��

�
!�%��,��B����� �:.�� �:�� .11��
.����� /�� .11	�2�0� ��/@�
�� ��� ����
�	��

��0�	�.
��3� ��	�:�	� 0��
��������4��:� �:�� .11��
.���� ���
	��.���������:��	���
.���������:��0��./��0�1.	
��3�.�0����
�:����1������������:��
��0������������0�����:��	�1�	��.�0�
�:�������4��3�.���0�0�.�0�.00�����.��
��0������B�

�
�8#(4#4� 
�(4����(� +B� �:�� 0�2���1����� :�	�/�� 1�	�����0� �:.��� /��

.		��0���������� ���.

�	0.�
��4��:� �:�� �����4��3�1�.��B��'$$)�I�$$��
	�2�>*��'$$)����$$�	�2�#$*��'$$)���$$8�	�2��#*��'$$)���$$��	�2�>*�
�'$$)��%$$6� 	�2� $8*� $�$#-5$-%J�-$�� 	�2� �*� �'$$)���$$9� 	�2� $�*�
�'$$)���$$6�	�2��*��'$$)���$$>�	�2�5�.�0��'$$)���$$5�	�2�9<�
�
�8#(4#4�
�(4����(�,B����.�1���1.��������:���.���	�����/�����0����
�:���/���0��3��:.���/���	�
��0�����:�������.�0��:.��� ������	.����:��
����	*�
��;��	�*� /��0��3� .�0� ��	�.	� �	�.������ ��� /�� ���0*� .�0� �:.��� /��
.11	�2�0����4	����3�/���:����
.����.����3����:�	����4��:����:	�������:��
���
�����
���������0�2���1����<���:���1.�����:.���/��	��.���0�������.�
�����������#��=�.	�����	������4.�������:��.11	�2�0�0�2���1�����:.��
/����
��1����0����.

�	0.�
��4��:��:��.11	�2�0��.�1��<�

�
�8#(4#4� 
�(4����(� �B� &��:��� �:	��� ����:�� ��� 
�����
������ ���
0�2���1����� 0��.���� ��� ��.��	��� ��� ��1	�2�� 1�0���	�.�� ��2������
/��4�����:��1�/��
�1�.F.��:�4������:��.11	�2�0�1�.���.�0��:���.�0����
�:������:7����:-�.������ �:��.11��
.���������� �:.��� /����/�����0� ��*�.�0�
.11	�2�0����4	����3�/�*��:����
.����.����3����:�	���<���:��0�2���1�����
�:.���/��
.		��0��������.

�	0.�
��4��:��:��.11	�2�0�0��.���<��

�
�8#(4#4� 
�(4����(� �B� "������ ��:�	4���� .3	��0� ��� 4	����3� 4��:� �:��
��
.�� ��.����3� ���:�	���*� 4��:��� �:	��� ����:�� ��� 
�����
������ ���
0�2���1������:��0�2���1�	��:.�����/���� ���4	����3�.�0�/��.11	�2�0�/��
�:�� ��
.��1�.����3�.��:�	����.� ��	�.��1	�-0���3�� !�����.����������
��	� �:�� 0���3�� .�0� 1	�
�	������ ��.3��� ��� �:�� 0�2���1����<� � �:��
0�2���1�	� �:.��� ��/���� .� ��	�:�	�  !����� .���������� .���	�

����	�
����*� .�� .� ����� ��� /�� .3	��0� ��� 4	����3� /�� �:�� ��
.�� ��.����3�
���:�	���<���:��0�2���1�	��:.�����/����.�
��1�������.�����������4:���
�����0�/���:�� !�<������.������������:.���
����	���:����������+,�	��
���0+� 	.���3� .���
�1.��0� ��� �:�� 1	������.	��  !����� .����������
��/�����0�4��:��:��.11��
.�����

�
��8#(4#4� 
�(4����(� �B� &��:��� �:	��� ����:�� ��� 
�����
������ ���
0�2���1����� 0��.���� �:.��� /�� ��/�����0� ���.�0�.11	�2�0� ���4	����3� /��
�:�� ��
.�� 1�.����3� .��:�	���*� ��� 0������	.��� :�4� �:�� .11��
.��� 4����
1	�2�0�*� �	��� 	���4./��� ���	
��*� �$H� ��� �:�� /���0��3+�� ���.�� ���	3��
0��.�0���� �.�0�4��:��� �:��
���	������ �:��.11��
.��<� ��:��0�2���1�����
�:.��� ���� /�� �

�1��0� ������ �:���� 4�	
�� :.2�� /���� 
.		��0� ���� ���
.

�	0.�
�� 4��:� �:�� ��/�����0� 0��.���� ������� ��:�	4���� .3	��0� ���
4	����3�/���:����
.����.����3����:�	����'.��1.	�����.�����	3����	.��3����	�

Page 7



�:�� (�����3���� �.��� 
.�1��)<� � ���� �.��	� �:.�� �#� ����:�� .���	� �:��
/���0��3�:.�� ��	���/����/	��3:�� ��������*� �:��.11��
.����:.��� ��/����.��
���	3�� %�.������� ��� �:�� ��
.�� ��.����3� ���:�	���*� 4:�
:� 0��.���� �:��
1�	
���.3������:��/���0��3�����	3��
�����1������:.��:.��/����0�	�2�0�
�	��� 	���4./��� ���	
��<� �:�	�.���	� �:�� ���	3�� %�.������� �:.��� /��
��/�����0����.��.���.��/.�������������:�	4����.3	��0� ���4	����3�4��:�
�:����
.����.����3����:�	���<��

�
�������44����(�"� 
�(4����(� 1B� &��:��� �:	��� ����:�� ��� 
�����
������ ���

0�2���1����� 0��.���0� �.�0�
.1��37�
	�����3� 1	�1��.��� '4:�
:� �:.���
��
��0�� 6� ��<� ����-�.��	�� �.
� �	���)� �:.��� /�� ��/�����0� ��� �:�� ��
.��
1�.����3�.��:�	����.�0�.11	�2�0� ���4	����3<� � ��:���
:���*�4:�
:��:.���
�:�4��:�����/�	*��1�
���*�:��3:��.�0�1������������	����.�0��:	�/���:.���
/�� ��1�������0�4��:���.�1�	��0������;�����:������:��
��1�����������:��
0�2���1����<� ����� �	�����	�1�.����4:�
:�4��:���.�1�	��0���� ��2�� ��.	��
�	��� �:�� 
��1���������� �:�� 0�2���1�����0��*� .	�� 	���2�0��	� /�
����
��	�������0.�.3�0��	�0���.��0*��:.���/�� 	�1�.
�0� ��� �:����;��1�.����3�
��.����4��:���:�	�����.������.	���F��.�0��1�
���*��������.���	�.��2���.	��
.3	��0����4	����3�/���:����
.����.����3����:�	���<���

�
�8#(4#4� 
�(4����(� +/B� &��:��� �:	��� ����:�� ��� 
�����
������ ���
0�2���1����� 0��.���� ��� �:�� �����4��3� ��.��	��� �:.��� /�� ��/�����0� ���
.�0� .11	�2�0� ��� 4	����3� /�� �:�� ��
.�� ��.����3� ���:�	���<� � �:��4�	
��
�:.���/��
.		��0��������.

�	0.�
��4��:��:����/�����0�0��.���B�
'�)�!�����7	�
�
���3��.
����������
��0��3��
	�����3��
'#)��;��	�.����.���3�
'9)���.��	��3	.1:�
��
'6)����	.�
��
.��1��

�
�8#(4#4� 
�(4����(� ++B� &��:��� �:	��� ����:�� ��� 
�����
������ ���
0�2���1����� 0��.���� ��� �:�� �����4��3� ��.��	��� �:.��� /�� ��/�����0� ���
.�0� .11	�2�0� ��� 4	����3� /�� �:�� ��
.�� ��.����3� ���:�	���<� � �:��4�	
��
�:.���/��
.		��0��������.

�	0.�
��4��:��:����/�����0�0��.���B�
��
'�)� ���.��	��� ��� ����	�� �:�� 1	�1�	��.�.3������ ��� �:�� .11	�2�0� 
.	�
1.	
��3��.
����������
��0��3��:��	�/.		��	�
���	�����
:.�����<�
�
'��)���:�4�	�*�
:.�3��3��.
��������.�0���

�	����	���.���.		�2��3����4�	
�/��

�
��<�
�
'���)��.		.�3���������	���
�	��3�.�0�1	���
���3�
�
����/����3��3����/��:�
��.���.�0�2�����	�<�
�
'�2)� ��.��� 
:.�3��� ��� �:�� 1�/��
� 	�3:�� ��� 4.�� 
	�����3� �:�� ����*�
��
��0��3�
:.�3����������1	�����*�
����	�
�����.�0���	�.
��3<�
�
'2)� ��0��./��0�1.	
��3<�

�
�8#(4#4� 
�(4����(� +,B� �	��	� ��� ��	��� �1����3� ��� �:�� �1�	��� 2���.3��
:�	�/��.11	�2�0*��:�������4��3��	.��1�	�����
���:.���/��
����	�
��0�.�0�
/������1�	.��������.

�	0.�
��4��:��:��1�.���.��.11	�2�0�/���:����
.��
��.����3����:�	���B�
�

Page 8



'�)������	�2�:�
��*�1�0���	�.��.�0�
�
������
������:��
�		����.

����	�.0�
�	���(����!�.0���	2��3��:���	������� .	��.	
�.�0�!�0������<�
�
'��)����0���	�.�����
.3�������:���	.��1�	�� ����	
:.�3������:��(�����3����
�.����.�1��<�
�
'���)� � ��4� ��3�.�-
���	����0*� 1�0���	�.�� .�0� 
�
��� 
	�����3� �.
�������� .��
�:�� ����	��
����� ��� (���� !�.0� .�0� �:�� �	�������  .	� �.	
� .�0� !�0��
.

����	�.0<�
�
'�2)����0���	�.��.�0�
�
������
.3����	����:����4���3�.���0�
	�����3�����
(����!�.0�����:���;�����3��.
��������.���3�(����!�.0<��

�
�8#(4#4�
�(4����(�,/B��:�����0��	��1�	���1��
:����:.�������/���1���
��	����������0���:��:��	�����$?B$$����##B$$����.���0.�<�
�
�44����(�"� 
�(4����(B� "������ ��:�	4���� .11	�2�0� ��� 4	����3� /�� �:��
��
.�� 1�.����3� .��:�	���� ��3:�� ���������� �	��� �:�� ����0��3:���3� ��� �:��
���0��	� �1�	��� 1��
:��� �:.��� ���B� '�)� �;
��0� �:�� ��;� ��2���� �:�4�� ���
.11	�2�0� 0	.4��3� $�$#-5$-%J�-$�7$�� '/)� :.2�� .�� �14.	0� ��3:�� 	.����
�;
��0��3�#<>H�'
)�/������1�	.����������0���:��:��	�����$?B$$����##B$$�
���.���0.�<�
�
�8#(4#4� 
�(4����(� ,+B� �:�� .������� ��3:���3� ��	� �:�� �;��	�.�� .	�.��
���� 
��1	����3� �;��	�.�� �1�	��� 1��
:��� �:.��� 
��1��� 4��:� �:�� ��3:���3�
%�	.��3����	�(�����3�����.���
.�1���0.��0�8�C.��.	��#$$8����������	���
.3	��0����4	����3�4��:��:����
.����.����3����:�	���<���
�
�44����(�"�
�(4����(B� �:��0�2���1����� :�	�/��.11	�2�0� �:.��� .�� .���
������.0:�	�� ��� �:�� ��	������ �:��.11	�2�0� �	.2���1�.�� ��	� �:��
.�1���
������� ��:�	4���� 1	�2������� .3	��0� ���4	����3�4��:� �:�� ��
.�� ��.����3�
���:�	���<��
�
�44����(�"� 
�(4����(B� ���4��:��.�0��3� �:�� .11	�2�0� 1�.��*� 4��:���
�:	�������:�� ��� 
�����
������ ��� 0�2���1����� 0��.���� �:�4��3� �:��
�	����.����� ��� �:�� ����-��F�� �1�	��� 1��
:� �:.��� /�� ��/�����0� ��� .�0�
.11	�2�0� ���4	����3�/�� �:����
.����.����3����:�	���<��:��0�2���1�����
�:.��� /�� 
.		��0� ���� ��� .

�	0.�
�� 4��:� �:�� .11	�2�0� 1�.��� �������
��:�	4����.3	��0����4	����3�/���:����
.����.����3����:�	���<�
�
�44����(�"�
�(4����(B��	��	�����:���1����3�����:���1�	���2���.3��0��.����
���1	�1��.�����	�3	.��-���0��3��:��.	�.�/���0�0�/���.�34��:������3�*�
�:�� ��	�:�	�� ��	2�
�� 	�.0� .�0� �:�� .��3������ ��� �:�� ��2������ �1����
�:.��� /�� ��/�����0� ��� .�0� .11	�2�0� ��� 4	����3� /�� �:�� ��
.�� ��.����3�
���:�	���� .�0� ��1�������0� ��� .

�	0.�
�� 4��:� �:�� ��/�����0� 0��.����
���������:�	4����.3	��0����4	����3�/���:����
.����.����3����:�	���<�
�

�
!��%��B� ��� �:�� �1������ ��� �:�� ��
.����.����3����:�	���� �:�� 1	�1��.�*�

��/@�
������:��
��0������������0*�4���0�����
.������0���:.	��
��� ����	����� ��� .

��4��03�0� ��1�	�.�
�*� 4��:� 1.	��
��.	�
	���	��
������:��1	��
�1�������:�����*��
.���.�0�.11�.	.�
�����
�:�� /���0��3*� 	���4./��� ���	3�*� �.�0�
.1��3*� ���3:/��	�

Page 9



.������*� �	.��1�	�*� ����.��./�����*� 0	.��.3�*�/��-0�2�	�����.�0�
1	�2��������������	���.
�������<�������
:��:��1	�1��.��
��1�����
4��:�1���
������8*����*���6.*���>*���8*����>�*����*�����
.�0���.�����:������������	
���
.����.����1������	.��<�

�
��#� ���5�6#4��(�7#�6�� �
�85*6�� �(9��#�:##(�
�#"4���(#��(4���:�

��(#$�������*(�����4��(4�;*""����4$������.+/0/,�1�0�	��2��
�
�:�� ���������� 
����0�	�0� .� �.@�	� 	���	2�0� �.���	�� .11��
.����*�
��/�����0� /�� �:��"��2�	����� ��� ��	
*� ��	� �:�� 
����	�
����� ��� �:����	�:�	��
%�	2�
�� !�.0� '�.��)*� ��
������ ��� �:�� ��2������ %1���� '�.��)� .�0� (����
!�.0����
�!�.0�'%���:)�4��:�.���
�.��0�1�0���	�.��.�0�
�
���	�����<�
�
����
�	���10.��0�.�0�
�	
��.��0��:�������4��3B��

•� �:�������.3���:�4��3���0�
.��2��	���������:��(����!�.0����
�!�.0*�
2��4�0��	����:���56<�

•� ��.������:����	�:�	��%�	2�
��	�.0��:�4��3���2���<�
•� ���
�	���:.0�/����	.���0�	�3.	0��3��
	�����3�����:�����
�	�.0�.�0�

���4.���:�	���	��1	�1���0������
��0��.��.00�����.��
��0���������
�2�	�
�:��<� ��� 4.�� 
����	��0� �:.�� �:�� "��2�	����� :.0� .3	��0� ��� /	��3�
��	4.	0��:��	�1	�1��.�����	��.�0�
.1��37�	���1�.����3�����:���.	�.<�

•� !���2.�����1	�1���0����0������9�	��.���3�����:���#�?�.3	����������
1	�2�0�� ��3�.����0� 
	�����3� 1������ .�0� .���
�.��0� ����4.��7
�
���
1.�:��.�0�������
����������.11��
.�����	���	��
���$7$#56�7�"���'�:��
1	�2�����.11��
.�����
����0�	�0)<�

•� �����	�.������:.��0��
��������:.0�/����:��0�/��4��������
�	��.�0�
�:�� "��2�	����� ��� ����	�� �:.�� �:�� .	�.� /��4���� �.�34��:� �����3��
.�0� �:�� �1�	��� 2���.3�� 4���0� /�� ���0�0� .�� .�� ����	��� ��.��	�*�
1��0��3�	�
��1���������	��	���	2�0��.���	�.11��
.��������	��:������<�

�
!�1	�����.������4�	�� 	�
��2�0� �����11�	�� �	����:��.11��
.����.3���<�%:��
	���		�0�����:��
�	
��.��0�1�.���.�0�
����	��0��:.���:���4.���:����;����.3��
��� �:�� ���	.��	�
��	�� ��	� �:�� ����� 0��.����3� �:�� 2.	����� ��������� ��� �:��
.11��
.����<�%:��
����	��0��:����
���������	��:��	�.0�����2.��������1	�2����
�:�� ���0� ��� �;
.2.��� .� 1	�2����� �.�0� ����� ����<� %:��4���� ����� �������� �:��
�.�0�
.1��3� 1	�1��.��� ��	� �:�� 
.�1��*� 4:�
:� 4���0� 1	�2�0�� .� 1.	
�.�0�
������3<��
�
���/�	��4����������=��������.����/�	����0��.������
��0��3B�

•� �.�0�
.1��3� ������� .�� �:�� �.���	�� 
�	��	� ��� �:�� ����� =���������3�
0��.������������
.���*���1������.�����.�0�0�3	�������.��	��1�.����3<�

•� ��
��71�0���	�.��	�����.

��������1�	���2���.3�<�
•�  ����	�=���
�<������	�.������:.����3���.������4�	���������.
��3�1�.
��

4��:��1�	.��	�<�
•� %
	�����3�1	�1��.������.�����1	�2����0���	.
��������0	�2�	������56<�
•� ���.�������/.		��	�	���	�
���������1	�2������.��:�	���0�.

��������:��

��2�������1����	�.0<�
•� ����3������:.	�0�1�0���	�.�7
�
���.

����
	�����3�1����� �������	��

�:�� �.����� ��� ���	�<� �����	�.����� �:.�� 0��.���� 4�	�� ���� ��� 
����
��	4.	0� :�4�2�	� ����
�	�� 
����	��0� �:.�� 
��0������� 4���0� /��
��1���0��������	���:���.��������.������	�<�

•� ���.�������/���0	�1����71.	
��3�.	�.��.�0�/����:����	�<�

Page 10



•� �	�
������.�0������3�������	��/.		��	������:����	�:�	��%�	2�
��!�.0<��
�

�����4��3���	�:�	�0��
����������4.��
�
!�%��,��B� �:.�� �:�� .11��
.����� /�� .11	�2�0� ��/@�
�� ��� �:��


��0������� �����0� ��� �:�� 	�1�	�� .�0� �:�� �����4��3�
.���0�0�.�0�.00�����.��
��0������B�

�
�8#(4#4�
�(4����(�,B��:��0������������:��4�	0��E�	��	����
�����
������
��� .��� 4�	
�<<D� .�0� �:��	� 	�1�.
������ 4��:� E�	��	� ��� �:�� �1����3� ��� �:��
��	�:�	����	2�
��	�.0�KD<�
�
�#8�7�"��<�4��<��
�(4����(����
�
�44����(�"� 
�(4����(B� &��:��� �:	��� ����:�� ��� 
�����
������ ���
0�2���1����� 0��.���� ��� �.�0�
.1��37�
	�����3� ��� �:�� ��
����� ��� �:�� ���
�
	�.0�/��4����'.)��	������� .	��.	
�.�0�!�0�����������:����	�:�.�0�'/)��:��

.	�1.	
�����:��1	�1���0��1�	���2���.3������:������:*��:�4�����0	3<�9$$?$-
�-95�7�*��:.���/����/�����0�����:����
.����.����3����:�	����.�0�.11	�2�0�
���4	����3<��:���
:���*�4:�
:��:.����:�4��:�����/�	*��1�
���*�:��3:��.�0�
1������������	����.�0��:	�/���:.���/����1�������0�4��:�����;�����:������:��
�1����3� ��� �:�� ��	�:�	�� ��	2�
�� 	�.0<� ���� �	���� �	� 1�.����4:�
:�4��:��� .�
1�	��0� ��� ��2�� ��.	�� �	��� �:�� 
��1������� ��� �:�� 0�2���1����� 0��*� .	��
	���2�0��	�/�
������	�������0.�.3�0��	�0���.��0*��:.���/��	�1�.
�0� ���
�:����;��1�.����3���.����4��:���:�	�����.������.	���F��.�0��1�
���*��������
.���	�.��2���.	��.3	��0����4	����3�/���:����
.����.����3����:�	���<�
�
!��%��B� ��� �:�� �1������ ��� �:�� ��
.�� ��.����3� ���:�	���� �:��

1	�1��.�*� ��/@�
�� ��� �:�� 
��0������� �����0*� 4���0� ����

.���� ��0��� :.	�� ��� ����	����� ��� .

��4��03�0�
��1�	�.�
�*�4��:�1.	��
��.	� 	���	��
�����1	�2���������.�
��4� 
.�1��*� ����.��./�����*� 0���3�*� 0	.��.3�*�
�.�0�
.1�� .�0� �	.��1�	�� ������<� � �:�� .11��
.�����
�:�	���	�� 
��1����� 4��:� 1���
���� ���*� ��6.*� ��8*�
��8*� .�0� ���>.*� ��� �:�� ����� ��� ��	
� ��
.�� ��.��
��1������	.��<�

�
��<� ���5�6#4��(�7#�6�� �
�85*6�� �(9��#�:##(�
�#"4���(#��(4���:�

��(#$�������*(�����4��(4�;*""����4$������.+/0/,���0�	��2��
�
���/�	�� 
����0�	�0�.��.@�	� 	���	2�0��.���	�� .11��
.����*� ��/�����0� /��
�:�� "��2�	����� ��� ��	
7�2.��� �02���	�� ��0*� ��	� �:�� �	�
����� ��� ���0����
	���0��
��� ��� �$� ��<� /���0��3�� 4��:� .������7
������ 	���� /���0��3� .�0�
.���
�.��0�.

���*�
�
���1.	
��3�.�0��.�0�
.1��3�'�.�34��:������3�)<�
�
����
�	���10.��0��:���������������	��.����������3���3�0��
��������4��:��:��
"��2�	����� ��� 	��.����� ��� �:�� 1	�2������ ��� 
�
��� ���	��� 4��:� 3	���� 1�.���0�
	�����.�0����	�
��1�����.���0�0�1�.�������:�������
�<�
�
!�1	�����.������4�	���:���	�
��2�0��	����:��.11��
.��D��.3���� �����11�	��
����:��1	�1��.��<�%:���;1�.���0��:.���:���4.���:����	���1:.������������	�#����
�:��(�����3�����.���
.�1��<��.	������:����
������$5��/��3.�����:.0�/�������
1	�2�0�� ���0���� :�����3� 	��.��0� ��� �:�� ���/�	� ��� ���0����� .�0� ��� �:��

Page 11



������	��3� ��� ���0���� :�����3� 0��.�0� ��.	� ��� ��.	<� ���.���� ��� �:��
.

����0.����*� �	���1�.����3*�1�0���	�.��0����.��0�.	�.��.�0��.��	�.���
4�	��.����������0<�
�
�����4��3���	�:�	�0��
����������4.��
�
!�%��,��B� �:.�� �:�� .11��
.����� /�� .11	�2�0� ��/@�
�� ��� �:��


��0������� �����0� ��� �:�� 	�1�	�� .�0� ��� �:�� �����4��3�
.00�����.��
��0������B�

�
�8#(4#4� 
�(4����(� +B� �:�� 0�2���1����� :�	�/�� 1�	�����0� �:.��� /��

.		��0� ���� ����� ��� .

�	0.�
�� 4��:� �:�� .11	�2�0� 1�.��� ���/�	�0��
'$$)$$#*�'$$)$$6�!�2��*�'$$)$$>*�'$$)$$��!�2�(*�'$$)$$9�!�2� *�'#$)�$��
!�2� �*� '#$)�$#� !�2�  *� '#$)�$9� !�2�  *� '#$)#$�� !�2� �*� '#$)#$#� !�2�  *�
'#$)#$9�!�2� *� '#$)9$��!�2��*� '#$)9$#�!�2� *� '#$)9$9�!�2� *� '#$)6$��
!�2� �*� '#$)6$#�!�2�  *� '#$)6$9�!�2�  *� '#$)>$��!�2��*� '#$)>$#�!�2� �*�
'#$)>$9�!�2��*� '#$)>$6�!�2��*� '#$)>$>�!�2��*� '#$)>$5�!�2��*� '#$)?$��
!�2��*� '#$)�$��!�2��*� '#$)�$$��!�2��*� '#$)8$��!�2��*� '#$)5$��!�2��*�
'#$)5$#�!�2� *�'#$)��$��!�2� *�#6$?5'$$)$�$*�'#�)#$�*�'#�)#$#*�'#�)#$9*�
'#$)>$�*�'#$)>$#*�'#�)5$�*�'#$)��$#�!�2��*��$-9�9$$#�!�2���.�0��$-9�9-
!�$$9<�
�
�8#(4#4�
�(4����(��B��:��0������������:��4�	0��E���/���0��3�4�	
��:.���
�.
�� 1�.
�� ������ 0��.���� :.2�� /���� ��/�����0� ��<<D� .�0� �:��	� 	�1�.
������
4��:� E&��:��� �:	�������:�����
�����
���������0�2���1�����0��.�����:.���
/����/�����0����<<D�
�
!��%��B� ��� �:�� �1������ ��� �:�� ��
.�� ��.����3� ���:�	���� �:��

1	�1��.�*� ��/@�
�� ��� �:�� 
��0������� �����0*� 4���0� ����

.���� ��0��� :.	�� ��� ����	����� ��� .

��4��03�0�
��1�	�.�
�*�4��:�1.	��
��.	� 	���	��
�����1	�2���������.�

.�1��� .�� (�����3���� �.��*� 1	�2������ ��� ���0����
:�����3*� ����.��./�����*� 2���.�� ��1.
�*� ����0� 	��
*�
�.�0�
.1��3*� .�0� �	.��1�	�� ������<� � �:�� .11��
.�����
�:�	���	��
��1�����4��:�1���
�������*���6.*��6*���8*�
���$*���8�.�0����>.�����:������������	
���
.����.��
��1������	.��<�

�
�1�� �;	����=	�������
����>����=	�������?�,/+/?+���

�
���/�	�� 
����0�	�0� .� 	�1�	�� 4:�
:� ��	��0� �:�� 
�2�	� 0�
������ ��� �:��
%�1���/�	� #$�$� "��2�	����� ��� ��	
D�� �	.2��� ��.�<� �:�� ��.�� :.0� /����
1	�1.	�0� ��� .

����� ��	� 
:.�3��� ��� �:�� "��2�	����� �����4��3� �:��
���./���:����� ��� �:�� ��4� (�����3���� �.��� 
.�1��� .�0� ��1�	��0�0� �:��
1�.��1	�2�������.11	�2�0����#$$?<�
�
����
�	�� 
����	��0� �:.�� �:�� �	.2��� 1�.�� 4���0� ���0� ��� /�� 	��	��:�0�
�:	��3:����������2����.	�����<��:���4.������	0�	�����.������1�.����3�
��0�������
.���
�.��0� 4��:� �:�� �;1.������ ��� �:�� (�����3���� �.��� 
.�1��� .�0� ���
�.�.3�� �:�� 3	�4�:� ��� "��2�	����� 3���	.��0� �	.���
� ��2������� 4��:���
.

�1�./�����2���<��
�

Page 12



�����4��3� .� 1	�����.����� ��� �:�� �	.2��� ��.�� ��� ��.����3� ����������
���/�	�� ����5���
��/�	�#$�$�.�0�=��������� ��/��=������� 	.���0*� �:��
1�.�� :.0�/����.���0�0�.

�	0��3��<��00�����.�� 
�������� 	.���0�/�� �:��
(�����3����������������	���4�	��.����
����0�	�0*�0��.�������4:�
:�:.0�
/�������������������;� �����:��	�1�	�<�
�
�� ���/�	� ��� ���/�	�� �;1	����0� 
��
�	��� .�0� 	.���0� �:�� �����4��3�
������B�

•� ����
�	������	��.���������:���	.2���1�.��.�0����1.	��
��.	�����:��/.���
0.�.�4:�
:� 1	�2�0�0� ����	�.����� ��� 
.	� 1.	
��3�4:�
:� :.0� 
��.	���
����/����1	��	�����

�1.���������:����	���1:.��<�

•� ���1�.
������1.	
��3�A��:���	�3��.��1�.����3�.11��
.�����.���
�1.��0�
�.	�����1������.���������:��1�	�1:�	.��
.	�1.	
��3���	.��3�<����0����
1	���� ��	� �.	���	� ��1	�2������� /�� �:�� "��2�	����� ��� ����� 4��:�
.���	.�
���3�2������	���0�����/���:����.����3����1�
��	��0�
�����<�

•� %
���
�� �.	
� 	�=��	�0� 3	�.��	� �	.���
� 1����	.����� 4:�
:� /	�.
:�0�
�:��1	�1��.��<�

•� ���0� ��� ����	�� 
�
��� 	������ /��:� ��� .�0� ���� 
.�1��� 4�	��
.0�=�.��<� �����
��2���� 	�=��	�0� ��� �:�� 4���� �	��� &.��3.���
%�	.�7����������� 	�03��.�0�.�
	����
.�1���	���������:����	�:�4��:�
�.	�����1������.��������1	�2�0��.��.���.��	.
��2��
�
���	����<�

•� ���0� ��� ��
��	.3�� 
�
���3� 4��:� �:�� 
	�.����� ��� ����.��./��� 
�
���
	���������������4��:�
���	�/�������/���3����3:���	����:��"��2�	����<��

•� ����	�� �	.2��� 1�.�� ������	��3<� ���� ����� 1.	
��3� /��
���0����7��1�������	�=��	�0�������	��3<�

•� �.	
��3� ��	2���� 1	�2������� ��0�	�.
��� �:���0� :.2�� 	�=�����0�
��	�� ����	�.����� �<3<� ���0���� �	� 	���0���<� �����4� �1� ��	2���
	�=��	�0<�

•� !���	��
�������������/��������������.�0�
��
�	���:.��4:���.���������
4�	�� �

�1��0� �:�	�� 4���0� /�� �������
����� 1.	
��3� ��	� ��1�������
.�0�2�����	��.�0��:�	��4.�����4��:� ��� ��:�/��� �:����

������� �:����
/���������<�

•� ���0�����;1�.���"��2�	�����1.	
��3�1���
�������	���0����<�
•� ���
�	��� �:.�� 1	�1���0� �	.2��� 1�.��4.�� ��.0�=�.��� .�0� 	�=��	�0�

��	�:�	���3���.��������	��.���������:��./�2��������<�
�
!�%��,��B� �:.���:������������������:��
������������:��"��2�	�����

�	.2�����.����/@�
���������
�	�����
������.�����4��:��:���
��.����3� ���������� �:.�	� .�0� ,�
�� �:.�	� /���3�
0���3.��0� .��:�	���� ��� .3	��� ��	�:�	� .���0������ ���
�:��1�.�� ��� �����4��:����/�	�� 
��
�	��� 	.���0�.�� �:��
������3<��<�

�
!��%��B� �:��� 4���� ����	�� �:.�� �:�� �2�0��
�� 3�2��� .�0� �:��

��.��	��� 1	�1���0� /�� �:�� "��2�	����� .	�� ����./���
	�/�������.
:��2�� �:��.�����������0�.��1.	.3	.1:�#����
�:��	�1�	�<�

�
�
�����!�=��	�0��
�<�"�0�	�.
��0��
��������4��:��:.�	�.�0�,�
���:.�	<���
�
�

�
� *��%��

Page 13



�
�
�
�
�
�
�
!�&��%��*��:.�	�
L�:��������3���.	��0�.��6<9$�1��.�0������:�0�.��5<#$�1�M<�

Page 14



 

Application Reference Number: 11/00050/OUTM  Item No: 4a  
Page 1 of 14 

COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
Date: 24 March 2011 Ward: Fishergate 
Team: Major and Commercial 

Team 
Parish: Fishergate Planning Panel 

 
Reference: 11/00050/OUTM 
Application at: 6 - 18 Hull Road York    
For: Demolition of existing dairy distribution facility and development 

of student accommodation comprising 123 unit clusters (329 
bed spaces) in 5no. blocks plus ancillary office and warden 
studio with associated access and parking 

By: Uniliving Ltd 
Application Type: Major Outline Application (13 weeks) 
Target Date: 12 April 2011 
Recommendation: Approve 
 
1.0  PROPOSAL 
 
1.1 The proposal relates to the erection of student accommodation blocks on the 
site of the now defunct Hull Road Dairy. This lies on the south side of Hull Road in 
close proximity to the junction with Melrosegate and Green Dykes Lane. The 
proposal follows earlier schemes for 332 bed spaces considered by this Committee 
in June 2010 and refused on the grounds of over development and a further 
scheme for the construction of 282 bed spaces in 75 unit clusters approved by this 
Committee in October 2010. The new scheme follows further extensive negotiation 
and through the adoption of a new design approach incorporates additional bed 
spaces within the roof area of the main Hull Road elevation. 
 
1.2 The site is mainly bordered by residential development consisting of two storey 
town houses and flats with mainly flats in Nicholas Gardens. Further substantial 
residential development lies to the north of Hull Road. The existing dairy buildings 
are generally 1 to 2 storeys in height. The land levels rise by approximately 3.5 
metres from north to south across the site with the Hull Road frontage being lower 
than the rear. However the land rises at a steady rate of increase across the site 
and the levels are largely uniform between the site and adjacent houses. The main 
difference is with the adjacent buildings on Nicholas Gardens, which are 
approximately 1.5 metres lower than the application site. 
 
1.3 The current scheme envisages the erection of 123 clusters of student bed 
spaces arranged in five blocks giving 329 bed spaces in total. An on-site warden's 
flat and studio would be incorporated into the scheme and the range of 
accommodation would be divided between units suitable for postgraduate 
accommodation in lower rise units to the rear of the site with under graduate 
accommodation laid out in blocks facing Hull Road. The blocks as previously would 
be arranged around a central courtyard incorporating  landscaping and the standard 
parking and servicing activities accessed from Hull Road. Each accommodation 
block averages 4 1/2 storeys in height with smaller 2 1/2 storey blocks to the rear. 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 4aPage 15



 

Application Reference Number: 11/00050/OUTM  Item No: 4a 
Page 2 of 14 

1.4 In terms of previous site history an Outline planning application for residential 
development was submitted in 2007 but was withdrawn prior to determination. The 
site is allocated for housing in the Draft Local Plan. Two schemes have previously 
been submitted in respect of student housing. The initial scheme ref: 
10/00583/OUTM sought Outline Planning Permission for erection of 7 blocks 
comprising 332 bed spaces incorporating a warden's flat. The scheme was refused 
on the grounds of over-development and the impact of the proposal upon the 
residential amenity of neighbouring properties. The second scheme 
ref:10/01743/OUTM sought Outline Planning Permission for the erection of 282 bed 
spaces in 75 unit clusters in 5 blocks with associated landscaping and access 
works. Permission was given on 12th October 2010. 
 
2.0  POLICY CONTEXT 
 
2.1  Development Plan Allocation: 
 
Areas of Archaeological Interest GMS Constraints: City Centre Area 0006 
 
City Boundary GMS Constraints: York City Boundary 0001 
 
DC Area Teams GMS Constraints:  East Area (1) 0003 
 
2.2  Policies:  
  
CYED10 
Student Housing 
  
CYGP1 
Design 
  
CYGP4A 
Sustainability 
  
CYGP6 
Contaminated land 
  
CYH1 
Housing Allocations 
  
CYHE10 
Archaeology 
  
CYL1C 
Provision of New Open Space in Development 
  
CYT4 
Cycle parking standards 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 16



 

Application Reference Number: 11/00050/OUTM  Item No: 4a 
Page 3 of 14 

3.0  CONSULTATIONS 
 
INTERNAL:- 
 
3.1 Environmental Protection Unit raise no objection to the proposal subject to any 
permission being conditioned appropriately to deal with any land contamination, 
lighting and noise issues. 
 
3.2 Structures and Drainage Engineering Consultancy raise no objection to the 
proposal subject to the details of drainage being conditioned for further approval. 
 
3.3 City Development raise no objection to the proposal subject to any permission 
being conditioned to require retention of the development as student housing. 
 
3.4 Lifelong Learning and Culture raise no objection to the proposal subject to any 
permission being conditioned to require making of a payment in lieu of on-site open 
space provision. 
 
3.5 Highway Network Management raise no objection in principle to the proposal 
but express some concern with regard to the available space for cycle parking 
within the site. A number of conditions are recommended to deal with the issue. 
 
3.6 Design, Conservation and Sustainable Development raise no objection to the 
proposal on archaeological grounds providing any permission is conditioned to 
require the full implementation of the previously agreed mitigation measures.  No 
objections are raised from an ecological, sustainability or landscape perspective. In 
design terms the scheme is felt to be acceptable on balance providing any 
permission is conditioned to require prior submission and approval of large scale 
details of the elevations including typical cross sections of the elevations at 1:20. 
 
EXTERNAL:- 
 
3.7 The Environment Agency raise no objection to the proposal . 
 
3.8 Yorkshire Water Services Limited raise no objection to the proposal subject to 
any permission being conditioned to require the submission of a full surface water 
drainage scheme for further approval.  
 
3.9 Six letters of objection have been received in respect of the proposal. The 
following is a summary of their contents:- 
* Concern that inadequate space has been provided on site for cycle parking and 
that students will bring cars to park on nearby residential side roads; 
* Concern that the proposal remains out of scale and over dominant when viewed 
against its surroundings; 
* Concern that the revised proposals represent over development of a physically 
tight site; 
* Concern that the proposal will lead to significant increases in crime and anti-social 
behaviour in the locality; 
* Concern that the proposal would result in an adverse impact upon the residential 
amenity of neighbouring properties by virtue of increased noise, overlooking, loss of 
light and loss of privacy. 
 

Page 17



 

Application Reference Number: 11/00050/OUTM  Item No: 4a 
Page 4 of 14 

4.0  APPRAISAL 
 
KEY CONSIDERATIONS:- 
 
4.1 KEY CONSIDERATIONS INCLUDE:- 
* principle of the development; 
* affordable housing/occupancy; 
* impact upon the character and appearance of the area; 
* impact upon residential amenity; 
* living conditions of future occupants; 
* parking and highway issues; 
* open space issues; 
* archaeological significance of the site; 
* sustainability. 
 
PLANNING POLICY CONTEXT:- 
 
4.2 Central Government Planning Guidance outlined in PPS1(Delivering 
Sustainable Development), PPS3 (Housing) and PPS 5 (Planning for the Historic 
Environment) has been considered in relation to assessing the current proposal. 
 
4.3 Policy ED10(Student Housing) of the York Development Control Local Plan is of 
particular relevance in considering this application. This requires that planning 
applications for off-campus residential accommodation on windfall sites should 
meet a series of criteria. Applicants must demonstrate an identified need for the 
development and give consideration to accessibility to educational establishments 
by means other than the car, scale and amenity of nearby residents. Car parking 
must also be satisfactorily managed. 
 
4.4 Policy H1(Housing Allocations) of the York Development Control Local Plan is 
of particular relevance in considering this application. This allocates sites for 
housing developments within the City of York Council area. The site is allocated as 
housing site under this policy. 
 
4.5 Policy GP1(Design) of the York Development Control Local Plan is of particular 
relevance in considering this application. This is a general policy where proposals 
will be expected to respect or enhance the local environment and be of a density, 
layout, scale , mass and design that is compatible with neighbouring buildings, 
spaces and the character of the area. They should also avoid the loss of open 
spaces, respect/enhance existing urban spaces and public views, provide individual 
or communal amenity space, provide appropriate waste recycling and litter 
collection arrangements and ensure that residents are not unduly affected by noise, 
disturbance, overlooking, overshadowing or dominated by overbearing structures. 
 
4.6 Policy GP4a)(Sustainability) of the York Development Control Local Plan is of 
particular relevance in considering this application. The policy says that all 
development should have regard to the principles of sustainable development  as 
outlined in the criteria listed in the policy. Reference should also be made to the 
Council's IPS on Sustainable Design and Construction which requires 
developments such as this achieve a BREEAM rating of "very good" (the 
development is classed as a commercial development as opposed to residential) 

Page 18



 

Application Reference Number: 11/00050/OUTM  Item No: 4a 
Page 5 of 14 

and 10% of the expected energy demand should come from an on-site renewable 
source. 
 
4.7 Policy HE10 (Archaeology) of the York Development Control Local Plan is of 
particular relevance in considering this application. This requires that planning 
applications for development involving the disturbance of existing ground levels 
require a field evaluation to assess the extent and importance of any remains 
found. It must be demonstrated that less than 5% of any archaeological deposits 
will be disturbed or destroyed. 
 
4.8 Policy GP6 (Contaminated Land) of the York Development Control Local Plan is 
of particular relevance in considering this application. This requires that applications 
for development on land, which may have been contaminated by a previous use, 
should be accompanied by a desk study of the potential for contamination. Should 
this preliminary assessment indicate a potential for contamination, a more detailed 
site investigation should be submitted prior to determination, by the applicant 
 
4.9 Policy L1c) (Open Space Provision) of the York Development Control Local 
Plan is of particular relevance in considering this application. Developments for all 
housing sites or commercial proposals will require to make provision for the open 
space needs of future occupiers. 
 
PRINCIPLE OF THE DEVELOPMENT:- 
 
4.10 The development site is allocated for housing in the Draft Local Plan under 
Policy H1 and the continuing suitability of the site has been assessed through the 
Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment with particular reference to 
location, accessibility and conformity with other strategic policies. Given the nature 
of the proposal there would be no policy objection with regard to the principle of 
student development on the site subject to the criteria within Draft Local Plan Policy 
ED10 being complied with. 
 
4.11 A needs based assessment as required by Policy ED10 has been submitted 
by the applicant which clearly demonstrates a demand for student housing of the 
type suggested. The issue of student housing land supply is being examined in 
detail by City Development and initial findings are reflected in the conclusions 
drawn by the applicant in the submitted needs assessment here. By providing 
student accommodation in an actively managed environment and in a central, 
sustainable location, the proposal would reduce the pressure on private housing in 
established residential areas (such as Badger Hill), where significant numbers of 
dwellings have been purchased by landlords and rented to students reducing the 
supply of both first time buyer and family homes in those areas. 
 
AFFORDABLE HOUSING/OCCPANCY:- 
 
4.12 The accommodation proposed would be capable of being occupied by non-
students as single households subject to the appropriate consent being 
forthcoming. Such occupation on a site of this size would normally require the 
provision of affordable housing and as such future control over this will need to be 
exercised. Student accommodation in York forms an important element of the 
private rented market and competes directly with those on low incomes. Providing 
the occupancy is suitably controlled by condition, it is not considered that there is a 

Page 19



 

Application Reference Number: 11/00050/OUTM  Item No: 4a 
Page 6 of 14 

requirement for the provision of affordable housing in connection with this particular 
development. 
 
IMPACT UPON THE CHARACTER AND APPEARANCE OF THE AREA:- 
 
4.13 The application site lies to the east of the City Centre along Hull Road. It lies in 
a mixed use area with a predominance of residential accommodation either as flats 
or conventional dwelling houses. Properties to the rear of the site are generally of 
two or three storeys with more substantial structures along the Hull Road street 
frontage notably to the north and north west of the application site. The previous 
application envisaged the erection of 282 bed spaces in 75 unit clusters arranged in 
five blocks with the highest 3 1/2 storey blocks facing Hull Road and the lower 2 1/2 
storey blocks more suitable for post graduate accommodation  to the rear.  
 
4.14 The current proposal envisages the erection of two blocks of a conventional 
three and a half storeys but with further accommodation incorporated within the 
mansard roof above, framing a formal central entrance courtyard with landscaping. 
The roof form and the overall design philosophy of the scheme has altered 
significantly from that previously approved enabling the number of available units to 
increase substantially from 282 to 329. This has resulted in a more Modern 
contemporary look but without a materially detrimental increase in height or 
massing.  
 
4.15 The further revised scheme continues to broadly reflect the varied built form of 
adjoining properties along Hull Road/Lawrence Street and further detailed 
amendments have secured improvements in both scale and massing along the Hull 
Road frontage. In terms of landscaping, the site is densely developed in common 
with other flatted developments across Hull Road to the north. It is felt that sufficient 
scope exists within the submitted proposal to secure an appropriate landscape 
scheme at Determination of Reserved Matters stage. 
 
4.16 Officers are satisfied that the scheme as further amended continues to reflect 
the height, density and massing characteristics of the wider street scene and that 
the proposal in terms of Central Government Guidance outlined in PPS1 (Delivering 
Sustainable Development) is appropriate in its context. It is furthermore felt that the 
terms of Policies ED10 and GP1 of the Draft Local Plan have now been complied 
with in relation to the proposal. 
 
IMPACT UPON RESIDENTIAL AMENITY:- 
 
4.17 Clear concerns continue to be expressed by objectors in relation to loss of 
amenity through noise and disturbance as a result of the development, together 
with overlooking of private gardens and the overpowering and over-dominant  
nature of the development close to the site boundaries. Central Government 
guidance outlined in PPS3 "Housing" actively encourages the creation of mixed 
communities and the achievement of a mix of housing types and household types in 
any given area. It states that it is important to create mixed and inclusive 
communities which offer choice in housing and lifestyle. It does not accept that 
different types of housing and tenure necessarily make bad neighbours. The current 
proposal would be actively managed on site with a permanent on-site management 
presence which would significantly reduce issues of noise and anti-social 
behaviour. 

Page 20



 

Application Reference Number: 11/00050/OUTM  Item No: 4a 
Page 7 of 14 

4.18 In terms of overlooking and over dominance the massing and ridge height of 
the proposal, where it runs close to the boundary with residential development to 
the rear, matches that of the previous proposal. The additional units have been 
achieved by the provision of additional height within the proposed mansard roof of 
the blocks adjoining the Hull Road Street elevation. Separation distances with 
neighbouring residential properties to the rear remain well within those normally 
accepted in these circumstances. The previously approved scheme incorporated a 
significant degree of reinforcement of the rear site boundaries with what were 
referred to as "green walls". The current scheme does not include them, however in 
view of their significant contribution towards mitigating the overall impact of the 
scheme it is recommended that their inclusion be required as part of the proposed 
landscaping for the site. The scheme as  redesigned is considered not to have a 
materially greater impact than that previously approved, and is therefore 
acceptable. 
 
LIVING CONDITIONS OF FUTURE OCCUPANTS:- 
 
4.17 The scheme as resubmitted incorporates dedicated amenity space for each 
block of accommodation, with the two more substantial blocks at the street frontage 
intended for use by undergraduates having secluded areas to the rear some 14 
metres by 28 metres in area. The smaller blocks intended for occupation by post 
graduate students to the rear would have dedicated informal amenity space serving 
each unit. Lack of appropriate separation distances have previously been a cause 
for concern in respect of proposals at the site. The two blocks on the main Hull 
Road remain some 12.4 metres apart at the closest point with an average distance 
of 15.4 metres apart. Each block of postgraduate accommodation is some 12.4 
metres apart with a distance of 6 metres between the rear of blocks B and C at the 
closest point. The site layout and availability of amenity space are now considered 
acceptable in terms of the living conditions afforded the likely prospective student 
occupants. 
 
PARKING AND HIGHWAY ISSUES:- 
 
4.18 The site is in a highly sustainable location with good transport links to the City 
Centre and the nearby University Campus. It is also close to well defined and well 
used cycle and pedestrian links. Car parking remains restricted to 8 spaces all for 
disabled use, and is the appropriate amount for student accommodation of this 
number and type. Earlier concerns in respect of the layout and distribution of 
spaces have once again been satisfactorily addressed in respect of the current 
application. The operational management plan submitted with the application 
details indicates that tenancy agreements will be used as a means to prevent 
students bringing cars into the area other than to move in and out of the 
accommodation. 
 
4.19 In terms of cycle parking provision the level from the previously approved 
scheme would be maintained and which accords with the accepted University 
standard for student accommodation. Previous concerns in respect of the quality of 
cycle accommodation have now been resolved and each area of secure spaces 
has been successfully integrated into the open space for each block together with 
the bin stores. 
 
 

Page 21



 

Application Reference Number: 11/00050/OUTM  Item No: 4a 
Page 8 of 14 

OPEN SPACE PROVISION:- 
 
4.20 Policy L1c) of the York Development Control Local Plan sets down a firm 
policy requirement for the provision of a suitable range of open space or its 
securing off-site by means of a commuted payment secured through a Section 106 
Agreement in relation to new residential and employment related developments. 
The level of commuted sum is determined according to a formula contained in 
adopted interim supplementary guidance dating to April 2007. The need for a 
commuted sum in relation to the provision of informal open space and outdoor sport 
facilities was agreed in relation to the previously approved scheme by the applicant. 
In relation to the current scheme a substantial allowance has been calculated to 
allow for on-site informal open-space provision. Taking this into account a figure 
covering residual informal open space and provision of outdoor sport facilities is 
arrived at of £82,531. The applicant has indicated that he is in principle willing to 
meet the commuted sum providing it can be undertaken on a phased basis with 
specific end users identified through the vehicle of a unilateral undertaking. This is 
considered acceptable providing a satisfactory undertaking is received within a 
reasonable timescale on or before the 11th April. In the event of this not being 
possible then it is recommended that Officers be given delegated authority to refuse 
the application on that basis.  
 
ARCHAEOLOGICAL  SIGNIFICANCE OF THE SITE:- 
 
4.21 The application site lies within the Area of Archaeological Importance. The 
applicant has submitted a detailed desk-based assessment with the application and 
this identifies that the site has the potential to preserve significant archaeological 
features and deposits. The evaluation highlights the well preserved remains of a 
19th Century tannery within the site. The study of such sites elsewhere has been 
identified as a research priority as important information relating to construction, 
layout, development over time and technological innovation may be easily gleaned. 
Whilst the likely remains are significant they are not such as to warrant preservation 
in situ. The applicant has submitted a detailed evaluation report and has agreed 
that the associated mitigation strategy may be implemented. The terms of Policy 
HE10 of the York Development Control Local Plan together with the requirements 
of Central Government Planning Guidance as outlined in PPS5 "Planning for the 
Historic Environment" would thus be complied with. 
 
SUSTAINABILITY:- 
 
4.22 The application has been accompanied by a full sustainability statement, the 
content of which is acceptable. The applicant has furthermore committed to 
achieving a BREEAM rating of "very good", the use of a demolition protocol to 
maximise the re-use and recycling of existing materials, adherence to the 
Considerate Constructors Scheme and the provision of a minimum of 10% of the 
energy needs of the site from renewable sources. Providing any permission is 
conditioned to secure a BREEAM rating of "very good" together with the provision 
of a minimum of 10% of the energy need of the site from renewable sources then it 
is felt that the terms of Policy GP4a) of the Draft Local Plan together with the 
requirements of the Adopted Interim Policy Statement on Sustainable Construction 
will have been complied with. 
 
 

Page 22



 

Application Reference Number: 11/00050/OUTM  Item No: 4a 
Page 9 of 14 

5.0  CONCLUSION 
 
5.1 The former COOP Dairy Hull Road comprises a substantial former industrial site 
lying adjacent to one of the principal approaches into the City Centre. The 
surrounding area is predominantly residential and the site itself is allocated for 
residential use. A previous approval exists on the site for a 282 bed space scheme. 
The current scheme is for the construction of 329 bed spaces with additional 
accommodation within the proposed mansard roof along the Hull Road frontage 
only. To achieve the additional accommodation the design of the scheme has been 
amended to give a more modern contemporary appearance which is felt to be 
acceptable. In common with other similar residential type uses and the previously 
approved scheme a commuted sum is sought derived from adopted guidance 
related to Policy L1c) of the Draft Local Plan to cover open space and sports 
provision arising from the extra accommodation created. Provided satisfactory 
agreement is reached in respect of payment of this commuted sum then the 
development is considered to be acceptable. Taken as a whole it is felt that the 
scheme would not have a materially greater impact than that previously approved 
and approval is therefore recommended. 
 
6.0  RECOMMENDATION: Approve, subject to the submission of an acceptable 
Unilateral Undertaking under Section 106 of the 1990 Town and Country Planning 
Act on behalf of the applicant covering the payment of a commuted sum in respect 
of off-site open space provision on or before 11th April 2011. 
 
1  OUT1  Approval of Reserved Matters  
 
 2  Fully detailed drawings illustrating all of the following details shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the 
commencement of building works, and the development shall be carried out in 
accordance with such details: 
 
Details to be submitted:  landscaping. 
 
Reason:  In order that the Local Planning Authority may be satisfied as to the 
details of the development and to comply with the Town and Country Planning 
(General Development Procedure) (Amendment) (England) Order 2006. 
 
 3  The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with 
the following plans:- 
 
Drawing Refs:- 1043-02-01 ; 1043-50-02; 1043-05-04; 1043-05-03; 1043-05-01 Rev 
A; 1043-03-02; 1043-03-04; 1043-03-03; 1043-03-0G; 1043-02-02; 1043-03-01; 
1043-05-02 Rev A; 1043-04-01 Rev A;  
 
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that the development is carried 
out only as approved by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
4  VISQ8  Samples of exterior materials to be app  
 
5  VISQ4  Boundary details to be supplied  
 
6  DRAIN1  Drainage details to be agreed  

Page 23



 

Application Reference Number: 11/00050/OUTM  Item No: 4a 
Page 10 of 14 

 7  Notwithstanding the information contained on the approved plans, the height 
of the approved development shall not exceed 13.7 metres, as measured from 
existing ground level. Before any works commence on the site, a means of 
identifying the existing ground level on the site shall be agreed in writing, and any 
works required on site to mark that ground level accurately during the construction 
works shall be implemented prior to any disturbance of the existing ground level. 
Any such physical works or marker shall be retained at all times during the 
construction period. 
 
Reason: To establish existing ground level and therefore to avoid confusion in 
measuring the height of the approved development, and to ensure that the 
approved development does not have an adverse impact on the character of the 
surrounding area. 
 
8 Large scale details of the items listed below shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of 
the development and the works shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details: 
 
Typical sections through the principal elevations at scale 1:20. 
 
Reason: So that the Local Planning Authority may be satisfied with these details. 
 

 9  HWAY31  No mud on highway during construction  
 
10  HWAY40  Dilapidation survey  
 
11  HWAY18  Cycle parking details to be agreed  
 
12  HWAY22  Internal turning areas, details reqd  
 
13  HWAY14  Access to be approved, details reqd  
 
14  HWAY10  Vehicular areas surfaced, details reqd  
 
15  HWAY19  Car and cycle parking laid out  
 
16  HWAY36  Servicing within site, details reqd  
 
17  The development shall not be first occupied until all existing vehicular 
crossings not shown as being retained on the approved plans have been removed 
by reinstating the verge to match adjacent levels. 
 
Reason:  In the interests of good management of the highway and road safety. 
 
18  The development hereby approved shall be let to or hired by and occupied 
by either students engaged in full time further or higher education within the City of 
York administrative boundary or who are delegates attending part time courses or 
conferences within the City, the details of which shall be included within an 
occupancy management plan to be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority prior to the occupation of any part of the development. 
 

Page 24



 

Application Reference Number: 11/00050/OUTM  Item No: 4a 
Page 11 of 14 

Reason: In order to ensure that the Local Planning Authority retain control over the 
future occupancy of the development and to ensure that the proposal accords with 
the submitted needs assessment dated January 2011. 
 
19  No development shall commence until the applicant has secured the 
implementation of the document:- Old Dairy Mitigation Proposal, Mike Griffiths and 
Associates Ltd. February 2011 and submitted a written archaeological methods 
statement and these have been agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: This development will have an effect on locally and regionally significant 
archaeological deposits which are preserved within the site and must be preserved 
prior to development commencing. 
 
20  The development hereby approved shall be constructed to a BREEAM 
standard of "very good". A Post Construction assessment by a licensed BREEAM 
assessor shall be carried out and a copy of the certificate shall be submitted to the 
Local Planning Authority prior to occupation of the building. Should the 
development fail to achieve a "very good" BREEAM rating a report shall be 
submitted for the written approval of the Local Planning Authority demonstrating 
what remedial measures shall be undertaken to achieve a "very good" rating. The 
remedial measures shall then be undertaken within a timescale to be approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: In the interests of achieving sustainable development in accordance with 
the requirements of Policy GP4a) of the York Development Control Local Plan and 
the Adopted Interim Planning Statement "Sustainable Design and Construction." 
 
21  No building work shall take place until details have been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority to demonstrate how the 
development will provide, from on-site renewable energy 10% of the development's 
predicted energy demand. The development shall be carried out in strict 
accordance with the submitted details unless otherwise agreed in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The approved scheme shall be implemented before first 
occupation of the development. The site shall thereafter be maintained to at least 
the required level of generation. 
 
Reason: In the interests of achieving sustainable development in accordance with 
the requirements of Policy GP4a) of the City of York Development Control Local 
Plan and the Adopted Interim Planning Statement “Sustainable Design and 
Construction." 
 
22  Prior to any works commencing on site, a Construction Environmental 
Management Plan (CEMP) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The CEMP shall identify the steps and procedures that 
will be implemented to minimise the creation and impact of noise, vibration and dust 
resulting from the site preparation, groundwork and construction phases of the 
development. Once approved the CEMP shall be adhered to at all times, unless 
agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: To protect the amenity of occupants of adjacent properties during the 
development of the premises. 
 

Page 25



 

Application Reference Number: 11/00050/OUTM  Item No: 4a 
Page 12 of 14 

23  The hours of construction , loading or unloading on the site shall be confined 
to 08:00 to 18:00 Monday to Friday , 09:00 to 13:00 Saturday and no working on 
Sundays or public holidays. 
 
Reason: To protect the amenities of adjacent residents. 
 
24  Unless otherwise agreed by the Local Planning Authority, development other 
than that required to be carried out as part of an approved scheme of remediation 
must not commence until parts a to c of his condition have been complied with:- 
 
a) Site Characterisation:- An investigation and risk assessment, in addition to any 
assessment provided with the planning application, must be completed in 
accordance with a scheme to assess the nature and extent of any contamination on 
the site, whether or not it originates on the site. The contents of the scheme are 
subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority. The investigation 
and risk assessment must be undertaken by competent persons and a written 
report of the findings must be produced. The written report is subject to the 
approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority. The report of the findings must 
include:- 
i) a survey of the extent, scale and nature of contamination(including ground gases, 
where appropriate); 
ii) an assessment of the potential risks to: 
* human health; 
* property(existing or proposed) including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, 
woodland and service lines and pipes; 
* adjoining land; 
* ground waters and surface waters; 
* ecological systems; 
* archaeological sites and ancient monuments; 
* an appraisal of remedial options and proposal of the preferred options. 
 
This must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency's 
Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11. 
 
b) Submission of Remediation Scheme:- 
A detailed remediation scheme to bring the site to a condition suitable for the 
intended use by removing unacceptable risks to human health, buildings and other 
property and the natural and historic environment must be prepared, and is subject 
to the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority. The scheme must include 
all works to be undertaken, proposed remediation objectives and remediation 
criteria, timetable of works and site management procedures. The scheme must 
ensure that the site will not qualify as contaminated land under Part 11 A of the 
Environmental Protection Act 1990 in relation to the intended use of the land after 
remediation. 
 
c) Implementation of the Approved Remediation Scheme:- 
The approved remediation scheme must be carried out in accordance with its terms 
prior to the commencement of development other than that required to carry out 
remediation, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
The Local Planning Authority must be given two weeks written notification of the 
commencement of the remediation works. 
 

Page 26



 

Application Reference Number: 11/00050/OUTM  Item No: 4a 
Page 13 of 14 

Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme, a 
verification report that demonstrates the effectiveness of the remediation carried out 
must be produced, and is subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning 
Authority. 
 
Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land 
and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, 
property and ecological systems, and to ensure that development can be carried 
out safely without risks to workers, neighbours and other off site receptors. 
 
25  The development hereby authorised shall be undertaken and operated in 
strict accordance with the submitted Operational Management Statement Vs 2 
unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: To safeguard the residential amenity of neighbouring properties. 
 
26  A scheme of mitigation measures necessary to adequately protect the 
amenity of local residents from light intrusion shall be submitted in writing to the 
Local Planning Authority for approval prior to development. The approved mitigation 
measures must be fully installed prior to the use hereby permitted being 
commenced. The scheme shall include: 
i) A contour map showing illumination spill beyond the site boundary  measured in 
lux in the horizontal plane; 
ii) The main beam angle of each light source; 
iii) The uniformity ratio in respect of the lighting; 
iv) The level of illuminance measured in lux, in the vertical plane at the windows of 
the nearest residential properties facing the site; 
v) The height of any lighting stanchions. 
 
Reason: To protect the amenity of local residents 
 
27  A scheme of sound insulation must be submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority before construction commences. This should 
demonstrate that external noise can be controlled to the following:- 
* Less than 35 dB(A) 16 hour Leq in study bedrooms during the day time. 
* Less than 30 dB(A) 8 hour Leq in study bedrooms during the night time. 
* Less than 35 dB(A) 16 hour Leq in living rooms during the day time. 
* Less than 35 dB(A) 8 hour Leq in living rooms during the night time (23:00 to 
07:00). 
 
Reason: To protect the amenity of the occupiers of the proposed blocks of 
accommodation. 
 
28 The internal pedestrian routes within the development shall be constructed to 
have a minimum clear width of two metres, and thereafter be so maintained. 
 
Reason: In the interests of pedestrian safety. 
 
29. Two metre by two metre sight lines, free of all obstructions which exceed the 
height of the adjacent footway by more than 1.0 metre, shall be provided at the 
junction of pedestrian footpaths within the site and thereafter be so maintained. 
 

Page 27



 

Application Reference Number: 11/00050/OUTM  Item No: 4a 
Page 14 of 14 

Reason: In the interests of pedestrian safety. 
 
7.0  INFORMATIVES: 
Notes to Applicant 
 
 1. HIGHWAY WORKS:  
You are advised that prior to starting on site consent will be required from the 
Highway Authority for the works being proposed, under the Highways Act 1980 
(unless alternatively specified under the legislation or Regulations listed below).  
For further information please contact the officer named: 
 
Works in the highway - Section 171/Vehicle Crossing - Section 184 - Stuart 
Partington (01904) 551361 
 
 2. REASON FOR APPROVAL 
 
In the opinion of the Local Planning Authority the proposal, subject to the conditions 
listed above, would not cause undue harm to interests of acknowledged 
importance, with particular reference to the principle of development, affordable 
housing/occupancy, impact upon the character and appearance of the area, impact 
upon the living conditions of future occupants, parking and highway issues, open 
space issues, archaeological significance of the site and sustainability.  As such the 
proposal complies with Policies ED10, GP1, GP4a) GP6, H10, L1c) and T4 of the 
City of York Development Control Local Plan. 
 
 3. CONSTRUCTION AND DEMOLITION:- 
 
i) The work shall be carried out in such a manner so as to comply with the general 
recommendations of British Standards BS 5228:Part 1:1997, a code of practice for 
"Noise and Vibration Control on Construction and Open Sites" and in particular 
Section 10 of Part 1 of the Code entitled "Control of Noise and Vibration. 
 
ii) All plant and machinery to be operated, sited and maintained in order to minimise 
disturbance. All items of machinery powered by internal combustion engines must 
be properly silenced and/or fitted with effective and well maintained mufflers in 
accordance with manufacturers instructions. 
 
iii) The best practicable means as defined by Section 72 of the Control of Pollution 
Act 1974 shall be employed at all times in order to minimise noise emissions. 
 
iv) There shall be no bonfires on the site. 
 
v) Details of when piling works are to be carried out should be notified to local 
residents, giving the dates, times and duration. 
 
 
 
 
Contact details: 
Author: Erik Matthews Development Management Officer 
Tel No: 01904 551416 
 

Page 28



�

�

Produced using ESRI (UK)'s  MapExplorer 2.0 - http://www.esriuk.com

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with the permission
of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown
Copyright 2000.

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may
lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

SLA Number

Organisation

Department

Comments

Date

Scale :

Not set

6 - 18 Hull Road, York
11/00050/OUTM

City of York Council

Planning & Sustainable Development

14 March 2011

Application site

1:1250

Page 29



Page 30

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Application Reference Number: 11/00002/FULM  Item No: 4b 
Page 1 of 11 

COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
Date: 26 March 2011 Ward: Osbaldwick 
Team: Major and Commercial 

Team 
Parish: Murton Parish Council 

 
 
Reference: 11/00002/FULM 
Application at: Beetle Bank Farm Moor Lane Murton York YO19 5XD 
For: Change of use of land to visitor attraction comprising open farm 

and wildlife sanctuary with associated barn, two-storey amenity 
building and car park 

By: Ms Angela Serino 
Application Type: Major Full Application (13 weeks) 
Target Date: 18 April 2011 
Recommendation: Refuse 
 
1.0  PROPOSAL 
 
1.1 The application site is situated off Moor Lane to the north of Murton village in York 
Green Belt. It lies to the east of Red House on the opposite side of Moor Lane and to 
the west of Highfield House. The application site area is 7.9 hectares.  
 
1.2 It is proposed to change the use of land to a visitor attraction comprising an open 
farm and wildlife sanctuary with associated barn, two storey amenity building (with 
play areas, seating area, coffee shop, party rooms and other associated facilities) and 
car park. The proposed two storey amenity building would be a modern aluminium 
profile stand-alone structure. It would measure 391.8sq.m with an overall height of 
7.7m (eaves height of 5.5m). The amenity building would be situated in an open field 
approximately 115m away from the site entrance. An animal barn is proposed 
approximately 12.0m to the east of the amenity building. The barn would measure 
429sq.m with a ridge height of 4.6m and eaves height of 3.1m. It would also be a 
stand-alone structure.  
 
1.3 To the south of the amenity building and animal barn, before reaching the 
proposed site entrance, lies an area of land where the parking area is proposed. A 
detailed plan submitted with the application shows the parking area would be capable 
of accommodating 62 vehicles. The open farm and wildlife area would be situated to 
the north of the proposed amenity building and animal barn. Two wildlife ponds are 
proposed in the corner of the open farm and wildlife area. Further to the east on the 
opposite side of Piker Thorn beck lies an area of land where the 0.52ha ‘red squirrel 
wood’ is proposed. An area of land to the south of this would be used as a hay field. A 
second access is proposed from Moor Lane into this area of land.  
 
1.4 Between the hay field on the opposite side of Piker Thorn beck and the main 
attraction where the proposed buildings and car park would be situated lies a separate 
agricultural holding (outside the applicant’s ownership) known as Moor Lane Farm. 
Moor Lane Farm has, in recent years been subdivided; Beetle Bank Farm (the 
application site) was formed as the result.  
 

Agenda Item 4bPage 31



 

Application Reference Number: 11/00002/FULM  Item No: 4b  
Page 2 of 11 

1.5 The accompanying documentation indicates that the attraction is likely to employ 8 
full time staff and 4 part time members of staff. Visitor numbers are expected to reach 
120 per day.  
 
RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY  
 
1.6 3/88/89/OA: Otline application for the erection of a farmhouse. Permission 
approved in 1987 subject to an agricultural occupancy condition. 
 
1.7 3/88/89A/RM: Reserved Matters application for the erection of a farmhouse. 
Permission refused in 1989. 
 
1.8 3/88/89B/RM: Reserved Matters application for the erection of a farmhouse. 
Permission approved in 1990. 
 
1.9 09/01878/CLU: Application for certificate of lawfulness in respect of the erection of 
a residential dwelling and creation of domestic curtilage. It was contended by the 
applicant at the time of the application that the dwelling was not built in accordance 
with the approved plans, but that the house has been built and lived in for more than 4 
years and the associated residential curtilage has been in use in excess of 10 years 
from the date of the application. Certificate was granted in December 2009. 
 
2.0  POLICY CONTEXT 
 
2.1  Development Plan Allocation: 
 
City Boundary GMS Constraints: York City Boundary 0001 
 
DC Area Teams GMS Constraints:  East Area (1) 0003 
 
2.2  Policies:  
  
CYSP2 
The York Green Belt 
  
CYSP8 
Reducing dependence on the car 
  
CYGP1 
Design 
  
CYGP4A 
Sustainability 
  
CYGP4B 
Air Quality 
  
CYGP9 
Landscaping 
 

Page 32



 

Application Reference Number: 11/00002/FULM  Item No: 4b  
Page 3 of 11 

CYGP15 
Protection from flooding 
  
CYNE6 
Species protected by law 
  
CYNE7 
Habitat protection and creation 
  
CYGB1 
Development within the Green Belt 
  
CYGB11 
Employment devt outside settlement limits 
  
CYV1 
Criteria for visitor related devt 
 
3.0  CONSULTATIONS 
 
EXTERNAL 
 
3.1 Neighbours consulted and site notice posted – consultation expired on 14 
February 2011. 9 letters of objections received expressing the following concerns:  
 
- the existing roads are not suitable for heavy vehicles; 
- access into and out of the site is not adequate for the traffic volume as it is a narrow 
windy lane; 
- at peak times traffic at Hop Grove junction off A64 is already a problem despite the 
addition of new traffic lights. The proposal is likely to exacerbate traffic concerns; 
- the route through Murton village may struggle during peak times;  
- a traffic survey should have been submitted with the application; 
- due to weight restriction Murton Lane is unsuitable for coaches; 
- coaches meeting each other on the road will not be able to pass without further 
erosion of the verges; 
- there is a lack of public transport to the site; 
- there is no dedicated cycle route near to the site. As such the proposal would not 
provide a safe environment for the number of cyclists;  
- the road is already dangerous for horse riders and cyclists as it is badly maintained. 
The increase volume of traffic by virtue of the proposal is unacceptable.  
- a more suitable location should be investigated to provide a safe environment for 
employees, visitors and members of the local community; 
- the proposal would have a deleterious effect on the landscape and nearby buildings;  
- the projected visitor figures would appear to be optimistic and may not be sustainable 
in the medium term;  
- the proposal is very close to a farming museum which is already situated in the 
village;  
- existing businesses should have been consulted on this application; 
- given the size of the proposed play centre with three party rooms more than 2 part 
time staff is likely to be needed.  

Page 33



 

Application Reference Number: 11/00002/FULM  Item No: 4b  
Page 4 of 11 

- the soil removed from the lake should not be used to raise ground level due to 
flooding concerns;  
 
3.2 MURTON PARISH COUNCIL – response received on 14 February 2011: 
Objections and comments are summarised as follows: 
 
- the proposal would, due to its overall scale have a significant impact on the openness 
of the Green Belt;  
- it is unlikely that the proposal can be effectively absorbed into the existing 
surroundings without any adverse impact on the landscape; 
- traffic generated by the proposal would have a deleterious effect on the village and 
Moor Lane;  
- it is not considered that the site can be integrated within its surrounding transport 
context;  
-  is unlikely that there will be a substantial number of customers who will come by foot 
or cycle; 
- the effect of more heavy vehicles will have a detrimental effect on the condition of 
Moor Lane;  
- the entry of vehicles into and out of the site is a concern; 
- it is likely that the proposal would have a material effect on Osbaldwick beck;  
- the viability of the business insofar as what would happen if it does not come to 
expectation is a concern;  
- the information submitted in respect of the wildlife sanctuary is considered to be too 
vague for this application to be assessed;  
- it is unclear how the scheme could protect bats and red squirrels given the 
legislations surrounding their protection; 
- extensive planting of trees will be needed before the sanctuary can be populated; 
- red squirrel wood will need to be a lot more substantial  
- the woodland will need to be netted to preserve the red squirrels from an untimely 
and excruciating death;  
- it is unlikely that visitors will arrive on cycle;  
- the fields in the area are waterlogged in winter months making them totally unsuitable 
for wheelchair users and anyone with a pushchair;  
- it would be mainly used as a children’s play area rather than a sanctuary;  
- it is unclear what the 1st floor would be used for;  
- Yorkshire Museum of Farming, which is situated at the other end of the village 
provides many of the attractions that are proposed in this application.  
- the assertions made on emissions and travel distance is unfounded;  
- other similar attractions in the city offer much more extensive facilities;  
- It is not clear what would happen to the buildings, car park and other infrastructures 
should the business venture become unsuccessful;  
 
3.3 YORK NATURAL ENVIRONMENTAL PANEL – Response received on 3 February 
2011: 
 
- the scheme is considered to be an inappropriate development in a rural area; 
- the proposal would create grater traffic levels on a presently quiet, narrow road 
including a very tight bend; 
- the red squirrel woodland would not be viable;  
 

Page 34



 

Application Reference Number: 11/00002/FULM  Item No: 4b  
Page 5 of 11 

3.4 ENVIRONMENT AGENCY – Response received on 10 February 2011: 
 
- the proposed development will only be acceptable if the measures detailed in the 
Flood Risk Assessment submitted with this application are implemented and secured 
by conditions;  
- conditions and informatives recommended; 
 
3.5 FOSS INTERNAL DRAINAGE BOARD – response received on 10 February 2011: 
 
- no objections; 
- conditions and informatives relating to surface water drainage works, the use of 
Sustainable Drainage System, maintenance of watercourse and works which may 
affect the watercourse have been recommended;  
 
INTERNAL: 
 
3.6 HIGHWAY NETWORK MANAGEMENT – latest response received on 7 March 
2011: 
 
- In the absence of a transport impact assessment report which satisfactorily 
addresses highway issues this application should be refused on the grounds that the 
applicant has failed to demonstrate that the development can be undertaken without 
having a detrimental impact on highway safety in the vicinity of the site. 
 
3.7 DRAINAGE CONSULTANCY – response received on 22 February 2011: 
 
- The consultancy objects to the development proposals as insufficient information has 
been provided by the developers to determine the potential impact the proposals may 
have on the existing drainage system.  
 
3.8 CITY DEVELOPMENT UNIT – response received on 14 February 2011: 
 
- The principle of tourism related development may be considered acceptable in this 
location provided it meets the criteria set out in policies GB1 and V1.   
- it must be satisfied that the development will not detract from the open character of 
the area, or from views into the city, and that a sufficient proportion of the goods on 
sale are produced on site in order to meet the standards described above.   
- A condition should also be set so that the area of the café is always of a 
scale/proportion which is ancillary to the main function of the development. 
 
3.9 ENVIRONMENT AND CONSERVATION (COUNTRYSIDE) – response received 
on 2 March 2011: 
 
- The fields within which the proposed new buildings, car parking and ponds will be 
constructed are all ex-arable and have recently been re-sown.  
- The fields at present therefore have a fairly low ecological value. 
- The creation of a new native woodland would be beneficial within this area and would 
benefit a range of species, though details of planting has not yet at this stage been 
provided. 

Page 35



 

Application Reference Number: 11/00002/FULM  Item No: 4b  
Page 6 of 11 

- However, aspirations for this area include the creation of a Red Squirrel Sanctuary, 
which in this location would not be viable. The designated area is considered to be too 
small for this purpose, and access by the public would also not be possible in this case 
as the area would need to be enclosed. Furthermore, the planted trees will also take 
many years to establish and before any such proposals and intentions can be 
considered. 
- The creation of new ponds within the holding will be beneficial and will provide good 
habitat for a variety of species’ 
- Though there are no known records of Great Crested Newts within this area, there 
are a number of other ponds close by and the creation of these new ponds here would 
add to and strengthen this local pond network; 
- if approved further details of any planting should be submitted, 
 
3.10 ENVIRONMENT AND CONSERVATION (LANDSCAPE) – response received on 
3 March 2011: 
 
- By way of their sizeable physical presence the amenity building and animal barn 
impact on the openness of the existing field network. 
- the separation created by the car park draws attention to the commercial nature of 
the development and would look out of character, especially if lighting were 
introduced.  
- Diversification should not be discouraged, but the council needs to be satisfied that a 
convincing business case has been put forward. Otherwise the impact on the open 
character of the greenbelt does not outweigh the need, especially with regard to the 
car park and amenity building. 
- Other operations of a similar nature exist within close proximity to the site. 
 
3.11 ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION – response received on 4 Mach 2011: 
 
- No objections, informatives recommended  
 
3.12 VISIT YORK – Consultation expired on 12 February 2011, no response received. 
 
4.0  APPRAISAL 
 
4.1 The main issues to be considered are as follows: 
 
i. Impact on York Green Belt 
ii. Business viability 
iii. Highway considerations 
iv. Drainage and flood risk 
v. Nature conservation 
vi. Environmental considerations 
vii. Impact on other similar visitor attractions. 
viii. Farm diversification 
 
IMPACT ON YORK GREEN BELT 
 
4.2  National planning advice on developments in the Green Belt is contained within 
Planning Policy Guidance no.2 “Green Belts” (PPG2). Policy GB1 of the City of York 

Page 36



 

Application Reference Number: 11/00002/FULM  Item No: 4b  
Page 7 of 11 

Draft Local Plan reflects the requirements set out under PPG2. Paragraphs 3.1 and 
3.2 of PPG2 state, inter alia, that there is a general presumption against inappropriate 
development in the green belt. Inappropriate development is, by definition, harmful to 
the green belt. It is for the applicant to show why permission should be granted. In view 
of the presumption against inappropriate development, the Secretary of State will 
attach substantial weight to the harm to the Green Belt when considering any planning 
application or appeal concerning such development.  
 
PRINCIPLE OF THE DEVELOPMENT: 
 
4.3 A development is considered to be inappropriate unless it is for one of the 
purposes set out under paragraph 3.4 of PPG2, one of which is essential facilities for 
outdoor sport and recreation. According to paragraph 3.5 of PPG2, “essential facilities 
should be genuinely required for uses of land which preserve the openness of the 
Green Belt and do not conflict with the purposes of including land within it. Possible 
examples of such facilities include small changing rooms or unobtrusive spectator 
accommodation for outdoor sport, or small stable for outdoor sport and outdoor 
recreation”.   
 
4.4 Whilst the open farm and wildlife sanctuary elements of the attraction fall within the 
definition of essential facility for outdoor recreation the children’s play area and café 
within the proposed amenity building fall outside the list of purposes set out under 
paragraph 3.4 of PPG2. Given their inappropriateness in the green belt they are, by 
definition harmful to the green belt, contrary to the national planning advice set out 
under PPG2 and Policy GB1 of the City of York Draft Local Plan.  
 
SCALE, MASSING AND EXTERNAL APPEARANCE OF THE AMENITY BUILDING: 
 
4.5 Policy SP2 and paragraph 1.28 of the City of York Draft Local Plan set out the main 
purpose of the Green Belt around York, which is to preserve the setting and the special 
character of the historic city. Policy GB1 of the Draft Local Plan further states, inter 
alia, that planning permission for developments within the green belt will only be 
granted where the scale, location, and design of such development would not detract 
from the open character of the Green Belt.  
 
4.6 The two storey element of the amenity building would measure 391sq.m with an 
overall height of 7.7m (eaves height of 5.5m). It would be a modern aluminium profile 
stand-alone structure within an open field outside a settlement limit in York Green Belt. 
Due to its overall height, scale, external appearance and massing together with its 
dominance when viewed from Moor Lane and Bad Bargain Lane to the north of the 
application site it is considered that the proposed two storey building would have an 
irreversible impact on the rural character to the detriment of the openness and visual 
amenities of York Green Belt and the purpose of including land within the Green Belt, 
contrary to, in particular paragraphs 3.5 and 3.15 of PPG2, policies SP2 and GB1 of 
the City of York Draft Local Plan, and the guidelines set out in Murton Village Design 
Statement.  
SCALE AND MASSING OF THE ANIMAL BARN: 
 
4.7 An animal barn is proposed to the east of the proposed amenity building. It would 
be used to house farm animals for the open farm element of the attraction as well as 

Page 37



 

Application Reference Number: 11/00002/FULM  Item No: 4b  
Page 8 of 11 

for the storage of tractors and farm machinery. The information submitted with the 
application does not suggest in any way that the building would be used for the trading 
of farm animals, although it is reasonably clear that it forms part of the visitors’ 
attraction. Notwithstanding this position, however, it is considered that the building 
falls within the purpose of “agriculture” as defined under Section 336 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 (which states that agriculture includes the keeping and 
breeding of livestock including any creature for the purpose of the farming of the land). 
The ‘appropriateness’ of the building in a green belt in terms of its use is therefore not 
of concern. 
 
4.8 The main cause for concern, however, is the overall scale of the building. The barn 
would measure 429sq.m with an overall height of 4.6m (eaves height of 3.1m). Details 
regarding the numbers and types of farm animals/livestock proposed to be 
accommodated within the barn including details of the farm equipment proposed to be 
stored within the northern end of the building have not been provided as part of the 
submission. Without such details, it is not possible to assess whether the scale of the 
animal barn is proportionate to the size of the visitor attraction, and if not considered 
proportionate, whether the proposal would detract from the openness of the Green 
Belt.  
 
PARKING AREA: 
  
4.9 Subject to an appropriate landscaping condition and a condition requiring the use 
of grass grid paving it is considered that the proposed parking area would be less 
exposed and would thus have limited harm on the openness of York Green Belt. No 
external lighting has been proposed as part of the scheme. In any case a separate 
planning permission will be required for external lighting.  
 
BUSINESS VIABILITY  
 
4.10 The Countryside Officer considers the red squirrel area to be too small for the 
intended purpose, and access by the public would not be possible as the area would 
need to be enclosed. Furthermore, the planted trees will take many years to establish 
before any such proposals and intentions can be considered. This would further 
diminish the arguments relating to the feasibility of the proposal.  
 
HIGHWAY CONSIDERATIONS 
 
4.11 Concerns have been expressed by local residents regarding traffic implications 
by virtue of the development proposal. These include the suitability of the existing 
highway networks in terms of coping with the rise in traffic volume and the types of 
vehicles that are likely to visit the site and Murton village. This is exacerbated by the 
fact that there is a lack of public transport facilities serving the site and that most 
visitors will not be arriving by means other than private vehicles. Due to the 
narrowness and the condition of Moor Lane residents are also concerned that large 
vehicles, such as coaches will not be able to pass each other without causing further 
damage to the existing highways. Traffic assessment should have been submitted 
with the planning application.  
 

Page 38



 

Application Reference Number: 11/00002/FULM  Item No: 4b  
Page 9 of 11 

4.12 The above concerns are shared by Highway Network Management. In their latest 
response dated 7 March 2011 concerns have been expressed regarding the lack of 
information submitted with the application. It is considered that the application should 
have been accompanied by a Transport Impact Assessment report which addresses 
issues concerning: 
 
i. the likely impact additional traffic would have on the existing highway network; 
 
ii. the likelihood that the majority of staff and visitors will arrive by car given the lack of 
public transport facilities in this area; 
 
iii. the existing country roads are relatively narrow and as such are unsuitable for 
vehicles carrying schoolchildren who are likely to make up a high proportion of visitor 
numbers; 
 
iv. the existing carriageways are unsuitable for significant increases in the numbers of 
pedestrians and cyclists due to the restricted width of carriageways in the vicinity of 
Murton village coupled with the existing levels of traffic; and 
 
v. the visibility of on-coming traffic is somewhat restricted in a northerly direction when 
emerging on to Moor Lane. The applicant has failed to demonstrate that safe stopping 
distances are achievable  
 
4.13 Without a transport impact assessment report which satisfactorily addresses 
these issues the application is recommended for refusal on the grounds that the 
applicant has failed to demonstrate that the development can be undertaken without 
having a detrimental impact on highway safety in the vicinity of the site. 
 
OTHER MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 
4.14 DRAINAGE AND FLOOD RISK – According to York Drainage consultancy the 
application site is situated within low risk flood zone 1 and as such it should not suffer 
from river flooding. No objections have been raised by the Environment Agency 
subject to a condition to ensure that the submitted Flood Risk Assessment will be 
implemented. Conditions regarding the discharge of surface water have also been 
recommended by both the Environment Agency and Foss Internal Drainage Board. 
The additional information requested by York Drainage Consultancy can be secured 
by way of condition if approval is given.  
 
4.15 NATURE CONSERVATION – The fields within which the proposed development 
will be constructed are all formerly arable land which has recently been re-sown. As 
such the site at present has low ecological value. Furthermore, the proposal would 
have limited effect on the existing boundary treatment, and that there is to be 
additional planting or new trees and hedges as part of the overall landscaping of the 
site. It is also considered by the Conservation team that the creation of new ponds 
within the holding would provide good habitat for a variety of species. For these 
reasons no objections have been expressed by the Council’s Countryside Officer. 
Issues concerning the effect the scheme would have on legislations surrounding the 
protection of bats and red squirrels fall outside planning control.  
 

Page 39



 

Application Reference Number: 11/00002/FULM  Item No: 4b  
Page 10 of 11 

4.16 ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS -  No objections have been raised by 
Environmental Protection team regarding any possible statutory nuisances associated 
with the development proposals. In line with the Council’s Low Emission Strategy the 
uptake of low emission vehicles should be promoted as far as possible via 
infrastructures such as electric vehicle charging points. Informatives recommended. 
Issues concerning the hours of operation can be controlled by planning condition if 
approval is recommended.  
 
4.17 FARM DIVERSIFICATION - Whilst the national planning policy advice contained 
within Planning Policy Statements no.7 “Sustainable Development in Rural Areas” and 
no.4 “Planning for Sustainable Economic Growth” has been taken into consideration it 
is not considered that the benefits of farm diversification and tourism in rural areas 
could, in this instance outweigh the concerns set out above. 
 
5.0  CONCLUSION 
 
5.1 It is considered that the principle of the development is inappropriate in the Green 
Belt, which by definition is harmful to the Green Belt. By virtue of the scale, massing 
and external appearance of the amenity building and the lack of justification over the 
size of the animal barn it is considered that the development proposed is harmful to the 
openness of York Green Belt and the purpose of including land within the Green Belt.  
 
5.2 In addition, in the absence of a transport impact assessment report which 
satisfactorily addresses highways concerns the applicant has failed to demonstrate 
that the development can be undertaken without having a detrimental impact on 
highway safety in the vicinity of the site. Whilst the national planning policy advice 
contained within Planning Policy Statements no.7 and no.4 has been taken into 
consideration, it is not considered that the benefits of farm diversification and tourism 
in rural areas could, in this instance outweigh the concerns as summarised above. 
Thus this application is recommended for refusal. 
 
6.0  RECOMMENDATION:   Refuse 
 
 1  It is considered that whilst the open farm and wildlife sanctuary elements of the 
attraction fall within the definition of essential facility for outdoor recreation, the play 
areas, seating area, coffee shop, party rooms and other associated facilities within the 
proposed amenity building fall outside the list of purposes set out under paragraph 3.4 
of Planning Policy Guidance no.2 “Green Belts” and Policy GB1 of the City of York 
Draft Local Plan. As such they are considered to be inappropriate development in the 
Green Belt. Given their inappropriateness in the Green Belt they are, by definition 
harmful to the green belt, contrary to the national planning advice contained within 
Planning Policy Guidance no.2 “Green Belts” and Policy GB1 “Development in the 
Green Belt” of the City of York Draft Local Plan. 
 
 2  By virtue of its overall height, scale, external appearance and massing together 
with its dominance when viewed from Moor Lane and Bad Bargain Lane to the north of 
the application site, it is considered that the proposed two storey amenity building 
would, if approved have a harmful and irreversible impact on the open character and 
visual amenities of York Green Belt and the purpose of including land within the Green 
Belt, contrary to, in particular paragraphs 3.5 and 3.15 of Planning Policy Guidance 

Page 40



 

Application Reference Number: 11/00002/FULM  Item No: 4b  
Page 11 of 11 

no.2, policies SP2 and GB1 of the City of York Draft Local Plan, and the guidelines set 
out in Murton Village Design Statement. 
 
 3  Details regarding the numbers and types of farm animals/livestock including 
farm equipment to be accommodated within the proposed animal barn have not been 
provided, without which it is not possible to assess whether the scale of the proposed 
development is proportionate to the size of the proposed visitor attraction and open 
farm and whether it complies with the national planning advice set out under 
paragraphs 3.5 and 3.15 of Planning Policy Guidance no.2, policies SP2 and GB1 of 
the City of York Draft Local Plan and the guidelines set out in Murton Village Design 
Statement. 
 
 4  The applicant has failed to demonstrate that the development can be 
undertaken without having a detrimental impact on highway safety in the vicinity of the 
site. The application should have been accompanied by a Transport Impact 
Assessment report which satisfactorily addresses the following concerns: 
 
i. the likely impact additional traffic would have on the existing highway network; 
 
ii. the likelihood that the majority of staff and visitors will arrive by car given the lack of 
public transport facilities in this area; 
 
iii. the existing country roads are relatively narrow and as such are unsuitable for 
vehicles carrying schoolchildren who are likely to make up a high proportion of visitor 
numbers; 
 
iv. the existing carriageways are unsuitable for significant increases in the numbers of 
pedestrians and cyclists due to the restricted width of carriageways in the vicinity of 
Murton village coupled with the existing levels of traffic; and 
 
v. the visibility of on-coming traffic is somewhat restricted in a northerly direction when 
emerging on to Moor Lane. The applicant has failed to demonstrate that safe stopping 
distances are achievable. 
 
7.0  INFORMATIVES: 
 
 
Contact details: 
Author: Billy Wong Development Management Officer 
Tel No: 01904 551344 
 

Page 41



Page 42

This page is intentionally left blank



�

�

�

Produced using ESRI (UK)'s  MapExplorer 2.0 - http://www.esriuk.com

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with the permission
of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown
Copyright 2000.

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may
lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

SLA Number

Organisation

Department

Comments

Date

Scale :

Not set

Beetle Bank Farm, Moor Lane, Murton
11/00002/FULM

City of York Council

Planning & Sustainable Development

14 March 2011

Application site

1:3000

Page 43



Page 44

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Application Reference Number: 10/02527/OUTM  Item No:  4c 
Page 1 of 18 

COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
Date: 24 March 2011 Ward: Guildhall 
Team: Major and Commercial 

Team 
Parish: Guildhall Planning Panel 

 
Reference: 10/02527/OUTM 
Application at: Hungate Development Site Hungate York   
For: Variation of condition 3 of planning approval 08/00737/FUL for 

mixed use redevelopment to amend the approved plans and 
documents to allow revisions to the phase 2 building and to the 
siting of the focal building and variation of condition 6 to allow an 
increase in height of the phase 2 building, 

By: Hungate (York) Regeneration Ltd 
Application Type: Major Outline Application (13 weeks) 
Target Date: 27 January 2011 
Recommendation: Approve subject to Section 106 Agreement 
 
1.0  PROPOSAL 
 
THE SITE 
 
1.1  This application relates to the Hungate development site, which is located 
between the Stonebow to the northwest and the River Foss to the south. This 
particular application relates to Phase 2 ( Block E ), which will sit between the built 
and occupied Block C to the east and the focal building to the west.  The application 
also relates to the proposed focal building, which would front onto two proposed 
areas of open space, St John's Square, which is central to the Hungate site and 
Friars Quay by the River Foss. 
 
THE PROPOSAL 
 
1.2  The application seeks to vary conditions 3 and 6 of the outline permission for the 
Hungate site.  Condition 3 specifies the list of approved plans and associated 
documents and condition 6 refers to the heights of buildings to be erected across the 
development site.  The application proposes the following revisions: 
 
(i)  Alterations to the Phase 2 scheme involving an increase in the number of 
residential units from 154 (as approved in the Reserved Matters scheme) to 175 
units and a reduction in the amount of commercial floorspace.  These alterations are 
dealt with under the associated application which seeks permission to vary 
conditions 1, 6 and 8 of the Reserved Matters Approval (10/2534/REMM).  
 
(ii)  As a result of a small increase in the footprint of the Phase 2 building and a 
recognition that the previously granted consent identified that the street between 
Block E and the focal building is of restrictive width, permission is sought to alter the 
footprint of the focal building to achieve parallel faces of the building so as to ensure 
a minimum 5 metre separation distance between Block E and the focal building.   
 
(iii) The proposed height of the Phase 2 building conflicts with Condition 6 of the 
outline permission. This condition requires that no buildings shall exceed the building 

Agenda Item 4cPage 45



 

Application Reference Number: 10/02527/OUTM  Item No: 4c 
Page 2 of 18 

ridge heights as specified on the sectional drawings detailed in the Design 
Statement. One of these sectional drawings shows a line drawn between the ridge of 
Rowntree Wharf and the roof line of St. Saviourgate and Peasholme House and 
confirms that none of the new buildings in the development would rise above this 
line.  Permission is therefore sought to vary Condition 6 so as to allow the building 
height of Block E to exceed this line by 1 metre on 2 corner sections of the 6 storey 
element of the building. 
 
2.0  POLICY CONTEXT 
 
2.1  Development Plan Allocation: 
 
2.2  Policies:  
  
CYGP1 
Design 
  
CYGP9 
Landscaping 
  
CYH3C 
Mix of Dwellings on Housing Site 
  
CYGP4A 
Sustainability 
  
CYHE2 
Development in historic locations 
  
CYT4 
Cycle parking standards 
  
CYH2A 
Affordable Housing 
 
3.0  CONSULTATIONS 
 
INTERNAL 
 
Renaissance Team 
 
3.1  With reference to height increase;  Overall, the benefits outweigh any negative 
impacts.  Do not consider the small proportion of the roof projecting above the 
imaginary upper limit line by this limited height increase will be perceptible when it is 
built.  However recommend that this upper limit is not amended for other changes 
and that all subsequent buildings are still assessed against this line as agreed in the 
outline permission and a similar balance of benefits is assessed against any 
necessary subsequent assessment of building heights. 
 
 
 

Page 46



 

Application Reference Number: 10/02527/OUTM  Item No: 4c 
Page 3 of 18 

Design, Conservation and Sustainable Development 
3.2  The variation to the ground floor use and building façade does not appear to 
affect the width of walkway and potential for vegetation along the riverside walkway.  
The creation of private terraces, to a degree, provides an extension to the openness 
alongside the river, and negates the need for incongruous ramps from the pavement 
level, and introduces a slim bit of greenery as a formal hedge between the two. 
 
Highway Network Management 
 
3.3  No highway objections.  The level of development proposed has not yet 
exceeded that considered and agreed at the outline stage. 
 
EXTERNAL 
 
Environment Agency 
 
3.4  No objection 
 
Guildhall Planning Panel 
 
3.5  Object.  We believed at the time that the Hungate scheme was already an 
overdevelopment. The proposed amendments would further lead to an increase in 
density. 
 
Publicity 
 
3.6  The application was publicised by site notice, press notice and letters of 
neighbour notification.  The deadline for comments was 10 March 2011.  A letter has 
been received from a resident of Rowntree Wharf objecting to the proposal for the 
following reason; 
 
(i)  Phase 2 included cafes and commercial units at ground floor facing the river.  
This design was the result of a public display and previous consultation with 
residents.  The developer has no way of knowing what particular aspect of the 
design appealed to the public and it is presumptuous to state that the changes would 
result in minor view changes.  Why was this application submitted without further and 
wider consultation with the public?  Many will be unaware of the changes. 
 
(ii) Although the committee approved the outline plan there was strong opposition 
from other party councillors and the general public with respects to population 
density. The planned population density of the site was excessive but this has now 
increased for the phase 2 building and will lead to slums later in the century. 
 
3.7  A further letter has been received requesting that the Council consider 
population density when reviewing this application.  The letter states that York 
currently has a relatively low population density, however there is a potential for this 
site to have the highest density of any area in York, even without this requested 
change by the developer. 
 
 
 

Page 47



 

Application Reference Number: 10/02527/OUTM  Item No: 4c 
Page 4 of 18 

4.0  APPRAISAL 
 
4.1  Key Issues: 
 
- Implications on the comprehensive redevelopment of the Hungate site as agreed in 
the outline application 
- Visual impact of relocation of focal building and of increase in height of block E 
- Highway safety 
 
FOCAL BUILDING 
 
Background 
 
4.2 The aspiration for the focal building, as agreed when the outline application was 
approved, was that it would become a community space comprising possibly of a 
crèche, exhibition space, art/technology workspaces, media centre, museum or 
similar.  The legal agreement associated with the outline consent requires that up to 
8,000 sq ft of space in the building be proposed for community use.  The exact use 
will be agreed with the council at the time of development.  
 
4.3  In 2008, permission was granted to amend the siting of the focal building 9 
metres back from St Johns Square.  This was due to the location of a sewer route 
through the site. Permission was also granted to reduce the length of the focal 
building by around 4.5 metres so as to ensure that the relocation would not 
compromise the size of Friars Quay.  As such the amount of floorspace within the 
focal building was reduced from 3,481 sq m to 3,241 sq m. 
 
4.4 According to the plans the building will be used for offices, retail, cafes, bars and 
restaurant on the ground and first floors.  Above would be some residential (22 units, 
14 2-bed, 8 1-bed) and the community space.  The central strip of the building would 
be 6 storey in height.     
 
4.5  This proposal is a result of a proposed small increase in the footprint of the 
Phase 2 building and a recognition that the previously granted consent identified that 
the street between block E and the focal building is of restrictive width.  The extent of 
the increase in the footprint is considered to be relatively minor amounting to the 
building width of Block E increasing by between 700 mm and 1000mm. 
 
4.6  Permission is sought to alter the footprint of the focal building to achieve parallel 
faces of the building so as to ensure a minimum 5 metre separation distance 
between block E and the Focal Building.   The elevation of the Focal building facing 
St. John's Square would remain unchanged however the elevation facing Friar's 
Quay would be narrowed by 1.9 metres which would reduce the footprint of the Focal 
building by 25 square metres.  To compensate for this loss in floor area and maintain 
the size of footprint approved in the outline, the Focal building would be lengthened 
towards Friars Quay by 960mm.  
 
 
 
 

Page 48



 

Application Reference Number: 10/02527/OUTM  Item No: 4c 
Page 5 of 18 

IMPLICATIONS ON THE COMPREHENSIVE REDEVELOPMENT OF THE 
HUNGATE SITE AS AGREED IN THE OUTLINE APPLICATION 
 
4.7  Through alterations to the footprint of the focal building to achieve parallel faces 
of the building, this proposal would not involve a loss in the floorspace of the 
building.  As such the aspirations for the focal building, as agreed when the outline 
application was approved, would not be compromised.  The affordable housing to be 
delivered across the site would also not be affected by this proposal. 
 
VISUAL IMPACT / EFFECT ON THE SETTING 
 
4.8  In design terms, Officers consider that the alteration of the footprint to achieve 
parallel faces and its slight relocation, would be acceptable.  The focal building has 
yet to be designed in detail, with only the location, height and use established at 
outline stage.  The mass was focused towards the centre of the building with the 
"wings" lower, which enables the footprint to be altered in this way without significant 
implications.  
 
4.9  The provision of a minimum 5 metre gap between Block E and the focal building 
is in accordance with the masterplan granted outline consent, and is beneficial in 
terms of encouraging movement between phase 2 and the Focal Building.  Friars 
Quay would be reduced by approximately 16 sq metres in size as a consequence of 
the proposal.  However, the square would continue to be adequate to provide a 
pleasant riverside area.  
 
4.10  It is considered that the relocation of the building would have a neutral effect on 
the conservation area (which terminates at the river at the south of the Hungate site) 
and nearby listed buildings such as Navigation Wharf. 
 
HIGHWAY SAFETY 
 
4.11  Through altering the footpath of the focal building to achieve parallel faces of 
the building, the proposal manages to accommodate the swept paths requested by 
Highways Officers such that both 11 metre refuse vehicles and shorter fire tenders 
could now access Friar's Quay and turn round to exit the way they came in.  
Highways Officers raise no objections to both this application and the application to 
vary conditions on the Reserved Matters approval. 
 
HEIGHT OF BLOCK E 
 
4.12 The proposed height of the Phase 2 building requires a variation of Condition 6 
of the outline permission.   This condition requires that no buildings shall exceed the 
building ridge heights as specified on the sectional drawings detailed in the Design 
Statement. One of these sectional drawings shows a line drawn between the ridge of 
Rowntree Wharf and the roof line of St. Saviourgate and Peasholme House and 
confirms that none of the new buildings in the development would rise above this 
line.  
 
4.13  As discussed in the report relating to application 10/2534/REMM, permission is 
sought for the building height of Block E to exceed this line by 1 metre on 2 corner 
sections of the 6 storey element of the building fronting the riverside as a result of an 

Page 49



 

Application Reference Number: 10/02527/OUTM  Item No: 4c 
Page 6 of 18 

increase in floor to floor heights and the architectural form of the roofscape in 
providing roofs with a suitable pitch.  The agent has clarified that the proposed 
increase is a result of the building being designed with maximum flexibility for the 
future to achieve the desired levels of sustainability.  This has been achieved by 
incorporating space in the basement for a centralised heating system, extra service 
risers and an increased space within the corridor ceilings to provide the required pipe 
work.  The objective is to maintain a minimum standard of code for sustainable 
homes level 3 and lifetime homes with 15% of the properties improved to meet level 
4 in order to provide high quality sustainable accommodation. 
 
4.14  A significant subject of debate at the time of the outline application concerned 
the height of the Hungate development.  With reference to the River Foss frontage of 
the scheme and in particular the relationship to the Navigation Wharf Grade II listed 
building, the approach adopted was to reflect the wharf like characteristics across 
the river by including buildings of a similar but slightly lower height to Navigation 
Wharf.   
 
4.15  Only a small proportion of the building would project one metre above the 
imaginary line drawn between the ridge of Peasholme House and that of Rowntree 
Wharf and in the context of Local Plan Policy GP4a, which refers to the fact that 
proposals should have regard to the principles of sustainable development, Officers 
are satisfied that the benefits to be achieved from the additional height outweigh the 
minimal visual impact which would result from the increase.  
 
4.16  It is therefore recommended that Condition 6 of the outline permission, which 
refers to the height of buildings, be amended.  In order to ensure that all buildings in 
future phases are assessed against the sectional drawings detailed in the Design 
Statement and a similar balance of benefits is undertaken against future possible 
proposals for increases in height, the wording of the condition would be such as to 
allow the increase of the height of the Phase 2 building only. 
 
5.0  CONCLUSION 
 
5.1  The proposed relocation and alteration to the footprint of the focal building would 
not compromise the contents of the outline permission, i.e. the amount of community 
space and affordable housing to be delivered.  Furthermore Officers do not consider 
that the proposal would affect visual or residential amenity, highway safety or the 
appearance of the nearby conservation area. 
 
5.2  In terms of the proposed increase in height of part of the Phase 2 building, 
Officers are satisfied that the benefits to be achieved in designing a building with 
maximum flexibility for the future to achieve desired levels of sustainability outweigh 
the minimal visual impact which would result from the increase.  It is therefore 
recommended that Condition 6 of the outline permission, which refers to the height 
of buildings, be amended.  In order to ensure that all buildings in future phases are 
assessed against the sectional drawings detailed in the Design Statement and a 
similar balance of benefits is undertaken against future possible proposals for 
increases in height, the wording of the condition would be such as to allow the 
increase of the height of the Phase 2 building only. 
 

Page 50



 

Application Reference Number: 10/02527/OUTM  Item No: 4c 
Page 7 of 18 

5.3  The proposal to vary Condition 3 of the outline permission to reflect proposed 
revisions to the Phase 2 scheme through an increase in the number of residential 
units and a reduction in the amount of commercial, is assessed within the 
accompanying application to vary conditions of the reserved matters approval 
(07/1901/REMM).  As Members will note, this application is supported. Approval is 
recommended subject to the variation of the S106 Agreement to refer to this 
application  
 
5.4  It is recommended that this application to vary conditions 3 and 6 of the outline 
permission be approved subject to the imposition of all conditions attached to outline 
permission 08/00737/FUL.  Condition 3 would be varied to include the revised details 
associated with the changes to the siting and footprint of the focal building and the 
revisions to the Block E and Condition 6 would be varied to allow the increase in the 
height of part of the Phase 2 building. 
 
6.0  RECOMMENDATION:  Approve subject to Section 106 Agreement 
 
 1  Approval of all reserved matters shall be made to the Local Planning Authority 
not later than the expiration of six years beginning with the date of outline approval 
for the site (July 2006) and the development hereby permitted shall be begun either 
before: 
 
a)   the expiration of eight years from the date of outline consent permission 
02/03741/OUT; or 
b)   the expiration of two years from the date of approval of the last of the reserved 
matters to be approved; which ever is the later. 
 
Reason:  To ensure compliance with Section 92 and 93 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990. 
 
 2  Fully detailed drawings illustrating all of the following details for each phase of 
development shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority prior to the commencement of building works for each phase and the 
development shall be carried out in accordance with such details: 
 
Details to be submitted: design, external appearance, boundary treatment and 
landscaping of the proposed development to be carried out, including a schedule of 
all facing materials to be used, noise attenuation measures and fume extraction 
systems. 
 
Reason:  So that the Local Planning Authority may be satisfied with the finished 
appearance of the development. 
 
 3  The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the 
following plans and other submitted details:- 
 
Focal Building - Amended Location : 060134_SK003 (4 March 2011) 
Ground Floor Context Plan : 060134_102 (30 September 2010) 
Site Sections - Sheet 1 - Southwest Sectional Elevations : 060134_305 (31.1.11) 
Site Sections - Sheet 2 - Northwest Sectional Elevations : 060134_306 (31.1.11) 
 

Page 51



 

Application Reference Number: 10/02527/OUTM  Item No: 4c 
Page 8 of 18 

Revised schedule of uses, floorspace and accommodation, as set out in Hungate - 
Outline application revised master plan (Document 4a) revised June 2005 
 
Document 3 a  - Town Planning Statement Addendum (January 2004) 
 
Master Plan and Drawings: - PL001 (November 2004) , PL002 (November 2004), 
PL003 (Revised June 2005), PL004  (November 2004), PL005 (31 May 2005 and 
extracts 28 June 2005) , PL007 (29 March 2005), PL008 (29 March 2005), PL009 
(29 March 2005), PL010 (31 May 2005) 
 
Document 5a - Revised Design Statement (November 2004) and addendum 
including revised focal building location received 20.3.2008  
Document 6a - Revised landscape design Guidelines  November 2004)  
 
Document 7 - Transport Assessment (November 2002)   
Document 7a  - Transport Assessment S supplementary Statement (December 
2004) 
Document 8 - Environmental Statement   (November 2002)    
Document 8a -   Environmental Statement Addendum (January 2005) 
Document 9  - Environmental Statement  Technical appendix A Scoping Opinion 
(July 2002) 
Document 10 - Environmental Statement  Technical appendix  B Revised Air Quality 
Monitoring Study (Nov 2004)  
Document11 - Environmental Statement  Technical appendix C Noise and Vibration 
Information (Nov 2002) 
Document12 - Environmental Statement Technical appendix D Archaeological 
Assessment Vol 1 (Nov 02) 
Document 12a - Environmental Statement Technical appendix D Archaeological 
Assessment Supplementary Statement (January 2005) 
Document 13 - Environmental Statement Technical appendix D Archaeological 
Assessment Vol 1 (Nov 02) 
 Document 14 - Environmental Statement  Technical appendix E Built Heritage 
Assessment (Nov 2002) 
Document 15 - Environmental Statement Technical appendix F Consolidated 
Environmental Review  (Nov 02) 
Document 16  - Environmental Statement  Technical appendix G Flood Risk  
Assessment (November 2002) 
Document 17 - Environmental Statement  Technical appendix H Ecological Appraisal 
(November 2002) 
Document 18   - Environmental Statement  Technical appendix I Ecological 
Management Plan  (Nov 2002) 
Document 19   - Environmental Statement  Non Technical Summary (November 
2002) 
Document 19 a  - Environmental Statement  Non Technical Summary (January 
2005) 
Document 20   -  Sustainability Statement  (November 2002) 
Document 21 - Residential Market Overview  (November 2002) 
Document 22 - Leisure and Retail Market Overview   (November 2002) 
Document 23 - Offices at Hungate  - Marketing Strategy   (October 2002) 
Document 24 - Design Code (December 2004) and revised extract 'Spatial 
Hierarchy' (31 May 2005)  

Page 52



 

Application Reference Number: 10/02527/OUTM  Item No: 4c 
Page 9 of 18 

Document 25  - Statement of Community Involvement/responses to Issues Raised 
During Consultation (January 2005) and revised schedule of responses (20 July 
2005) 
Document 26 - Environmental Statement  Technical  Appendix J Ground Water 
Monitoring Strategy (Jan 05) 
Document 27 - Design Solutions/ Internal Flats Layouts (29 March 2005) 
Document 28 - Courtyard Section -  Illustrative Design Solutions (31 May 2005) 
Document 29 - Open Space Audit (4 May 2005) 
Document 30  - EIA Implications of Design Amendments (June 2005)  
 
or any plans or details subsequently agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority as an amendment to the approved plans. 
 
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that the development is carried 
out only as approved by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
 4  Notwithstanding the details submitted on the Masterplan drawings, the precise 
siting of buildings H and the Landmark office block (G) shall be agreed in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority prior to commencement of the relevant phase of the 
development. The precise siting shall be within the area marked on the attached 
plan. 
 
Reason: In order that the Local Planning Authority may be satisfied with the siting of 
these buildings having been informed by more detailed works carried out under the 
programme of archaeological investigation and excavation. 
 
 5  The external design details for each phase of the development shall be fully in 
accordance with the submitted Design Code (January 2005), to the satisfaction of 
the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: In order to ensure that the design of the development reflects the original 
principles of the design as agreed by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
 6  With the exception of Block E in Phase 2 of the development, the buildings to 
be erected on this site shall not exceed the building ridge heights as specified as 
O.S. datum levels on the Sections on pages 38 and 39 of the amended Design 
Statement received on 11th January 2005. 
 
Reason:  In the interests of protecting the amenities of the adjoining residents and to 
assist the development being integrated into the area. 
 
 7  The phasing for the development shall be in accordance with that established 
in the planning obligation.  Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. 
 
Reason: In order that the impact of the phasing of the development can be properly 
assessed, prior to commencement of the development. 
 
 8  Fully detailed drawing illustrating the design and materials of roads, footpaths 
and other adoptable open spaces shall be submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority prior to the start of construction on site. 

Page 53



 

Application Reference Number: 10/02527/OUTM  Item No: 4c 
Page 10 of 18 

 
Reason:  In the interests of highway safety. 
 
 9  No dwelling in respect of each phase of development to which this planning 
permission relates shall be occupied unless or until the carriageway basecourse and 
kerb foundation to the new estate road and footpath to which it fronts, is adjacent to 
or gains access from, has been constructed.  Road and footway wearing courses 
and street lighting shall be provided within three months of the date of completion the 
construction of the phase of the development. 
 
Reason:  To ensure appropriate access and egress to the properties, in the interests 
of highway safety and the convenience of prospective residents. 
 
10  Safety Audit: 
A full 3 stage road safety audit carried out with advice set out in the DMRB HD19/03 
and guidance issued by the council, will be required for the internal highway layout 
and all off-site works requiring alteration, stage 1 of which must be submitted to and 
agreed in writing by the LPA prior to each phase of  works commencing on site. 
 
Reason: To minimise the road safety risks associated with the changes imposed by 
the development. 
 
11  Prior to each phase of the development commencing details of the cycle 
parking areas, including means of enclosure, shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The building or buildings within that phase 
shall not be occupied until the cycle parking areas and means of enclosure (including 
the public cycle parking areas within that phase) have been provided within the site 
in accordance with such approved details, and these areas shall not be used for any 
purpose other than the parking of cycles. Cycle parking shall be in accordance with 
the schedule Summary of Cycle Parking Requirements 1056/70 dated 23/05/05 
 
Reason:  To promote use of cycles thereby reducing congestion on the adjacent 
roads and in the interests of the amenity of neighbours. 
 
12  Prior to each phase of the development commencing details of the measures 
to be employed to prevent the egress of mud, water and other detritus onto the 
public highway, and details of the measures to be employed to remove any such 
substance from the public highway shall be submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. Such measures as shall have been approved shall be 
employed and adhered to at all times during construction works. 
 
Reason:  To prevent the egress of water and loose material creating a hazard on the 
public highway. 
 
13  Prior to the commencement of the use hereby approved in each phase of 
development, provision shall be made within the site for accommodation of 
delivery/service vehicles in accordance with details which shall have been previously 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Block G  - 
accommodation for servicing will be made within the courtyard with access via 
Carmelite Street;  Block H - will include service bay provision on the Stonebow 
frontage  Thereafter all such areas shall be retained free of all obstructions and used 

Page 54



 

Application Reference Number: 10/02527/OUTM  Item No: 4c 
Page 11 of 18 

solely for the intended purpose. 
 
Reason:   To ensure that delivery/service vehicles can be accommodated within the 
site and to maintain the free and safe passage of highway users. 
 
14  Prior to the commencement of any phase of the development hereby 
permitted a programme for the following off site works by phase shall be submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, or arrangements entered 
into which ensure the same. 
 
- Zebra crossing and pedestrian refuges on Peasholme Green at junction with St. 
Saviours Place, 
- Pedestrian tables/plateaus at the junctions of Dundas Street, Hungate and Garden 
Place, including street furniture/signage. 
- Surface improvement at the Fossgate junction, 
- A scheme covering street furniture along The Stonebow 
(adjustment/enhancement), 
- A scheme covering new and improved highway signage, to surrounding streets, 
including cycle and pedestrian links.  
 
Reason:  In the interests of the safe and free passage of highway users. 
 
15  Prior to the commencement of any phase of the development hereby 
permitted a phased programme of works as set out in the Outline Specification for 
Upgrade of Existing Streets, dated 22/6/05 Revision E, shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, or arrangements entered into 
which ensure the same. These works shall be in accordance with the Street Section 
Drawings, 1056/70/101, 1056/70/102 B & 1056/70/103 B dated 24/5/05.  
 
Reason:  In the interests of the safe and free passage of highway users. 
 
16  Prior to commencement of each phase of the office or commercial 
development hereby permitted a stage one (interim) Travel Plan which shall include 
details of modal split targets and default provisions in the event that those targets are 
not met and within six months of first occupation of any part of the office or 
commercial development to submit to the Council a stage two (final) Travel Plan and 
to implement such Travel Plan as maybe approved by the Council in accordance 
with a timetable which shall have been previously agreed in writing by the Council 
provided always that in the event that there shall be any change of occupier of any 
part of the office or commercial development that occupier shall submit to the 
Council prior to its occupation a revised Travel Plan and implement such Travel Plan 
as maybe approved by the Council throughout its period occupation. 
 
Reason: To ensure the delivery of sustainable transport objectives including 
reductions in car usage and increased use of public transport, walking and cycling. 
 
17  No development in any phase shall take place until there has been submitted 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority a detailed landscaping 
scheme which shall illustrate the number, species, height and position of trees and 
shrubs.  This scheme shall be implemented within a period of 6 months of the 
completion of the relevant phase of development.  Any trees or plants which within a 

Page 55



 

Application Reference Number: 10/02527/OUTM  Item No: 4c 
Page 12 of 18 

period of 5 years from the completion of the development die, are removed or 
become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting 
season with others of a similar size and species, unless alternatives are agreed in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason:  So that the Local Planning Authority may be satisfied with the variety, 
suitability and disposition of species within the site. 
 
18  The detailed drawings for each phase of development should be submitted for 
the approval of the Local Planning Authority and should include a plan and schedule 
of all trees and shrubs on the site.  Such plan shall show the spread of each tree.  It 
will identify those trees and shrubs to be retained and those to be felled.  Trees and 
shrubs to be retained shall be protected during the development of the site by the 
following measures: 
 
i A chestnut pale or similar fence not less than 1.2m high shall be erected at a 
distance of not less than 4.5m from the trunks; 
 
ii No development (including the erection of site huts) shall take place within the 
crown spread of the trees; 
 
iii No materials (including fuel or spoil) shall be stored within the crown spread of 
the trees; 
 
iv No burning of materials shall take place within 3m of the crown spread of any 
tree; 
 
v No services shall be routed under the crown spread of any tree without the 
express written permission of the Local Planning Authority; 
 
Reason:  Some of the existing planting is considered to make a significant 
contribution to the amenities of this area. 
 
19  A scheme of works for the restoration of the Foss Riverbank/wall, excluding 
the Kings Pool site, shall be submitted and agreed with the Local Planning Authority 
prior to the commencement of the relevant phase of development. 
 
Reason: In the interests of the visual amenities of locality, flood defence and ecology 
along the Foss corridor. 
 
20  During the development of the site, all demolition and construction works and 
ancillary operations, including deliveries to and dispatch from the site, shall be 
confined to the following hours: 
 
 Monday to Friday   08.00 to 18.00 
 Saturday    09.00 to 13.00  
 Not at all on Sundays and Bank Holidays 
 
Reason: To protect the amenity of the locality 
 
21  The hours of operation for each Class B1 premises shall be approved in 

Page 56



 

Application Reference Number: 10/02527/OUTM  Item No: 4c 
Page 13 of 18 

writing by the Local Planning Authority. Once approved, the agreed hours shall be 
complied with at all times, unless agreed otherwise in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. 
 
Reason: To protect the amenity of local residents. 
 
22  The hours of delivery to and dispatch from each commercial premises, to 
include Use Classes B1, A1, A3, A4 and A5, shall be confined to the following times, 
unless otherwise approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority:  
Monday - Friday          08:00 - 18:00 
Saturday, Sunday & Bank Holidays 09:00 - 18:00 
 
Reason: To protect the amenity of local residents. 
 
23  Premises used for Class B1, A3, A4 or A5 use, that adjoin residential 
premises, shall be noise insulated in accordance with a scheme to be approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The noise insulation scheme shall be fully 
implemented prior to occupation. No alterations to the external walls, facades, 
windows, doors, roof or any openings in the building(s) shall be undertaken 
(including the closing up or removal of openings) without the prior written approval of 
the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: To protect the amenity of local residents. 
 
24  Details of all fixed machinery, plant and equipment to be installed in or located 
on the use hereby permitted, which is audible at any noise sensitive location, shall 
be submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval. These details shall include 
maximum sound levels (LAmax(f)) and average sound levels (LAeq), octave band 
noise levels and any proposed noise mitigation measures. All such approved 
machinery, plant and equipment shall not be used on the site except in accordance 
with the prior written approval of the Local Planning Authority. The machinery, plant 
or equipment and any approved noise mitigation measures shall be fully 
implemented and operational before the proposed use first opens and shall be 
appropriately maintained thereafter. 
 
Reason: To protect the amenity of the locality. 
 
25  Residential premises facing The Stonebow and Peaseholme Green shall be 
fitted with fixed windows that cannot be opened and provided with alternative means 
of mechanical ventilation. These premises shall also not be provided with balconies 
or any other form of outdoor area. The residential premises to which this condition 
applies shall be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority.  
 
Reason: To prevent the introduction of relevant receptors and the requirement to 
declare an air quality management area. 
 
26  The building envelope of all residential accommodation shall be constructed 
so as to achieve internal noise levels of 30 dB LAeq 1 hour and 60 dB LA Max 
(23:00 - 07:00) in bedrooms and 35 dB LAeq 1 hour (07:00 - 23:00) in all other 
habitable rooms. These noise levels are with windows shut and other means of 
acoustic ventilation provided. The detailed scheme shall be approved in writing by 

Page 57



 

Application Reference Number: 10/02527/OUTM  Item No: 4c 
Page 14 of 18 

the Local Planning Authority and fully implemented before the use hereby approved 
is occupied. 
 
Reason: To protect the amenity of residents. 
 
27  There shall be adequate facilities for the treatment and extraction of fumes so 
that there is no adverse impact on the amenities of local residents by reason of 
fumes, odour or noise. Details of the extraction plant or machinery and any filtration 
system required shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval; once 
approved it shall be installed and fully operational before the proposed use first 
opens and shall be appropriately maintained thereafter. 
 
Reason: To protect the amenity of the locality. 
 
28  Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, no 
building or other obstruction shall be located over or within 6m (six) of the line of the 
sewers at greater depths, or within 3m (three) of the line of the sewers at shallower 
depths which cross the site. 
 
Reason : To prevent pollution of the water environment. 
 
29  Each  phase of development shall not begin until details of separate systems 
of  foul and surface water drainage works  for that phase have been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, and carried out in accordance 
with these approved details.  
 
Reason : To prevent pollution of the water environment. 
 
30  No piping shall be installed within 10m of any public sewer unless otherwise 
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority 
 
Reason : To prevent pollution of the water environment. 
 
31  Prior to the commencement of the development hereby permitted details of 
the proposed sewer realignment and confirmation of the phase of development in 
which the works will be undertaken shall be submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason : To prevent pollution of the water environment. 
 
32  Unless otherwise approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, there 
shall be no piped discharge of surface water from any phase of the development 
prior to the completion of the approved surface water drainage works and no 
buildings shall be occupied or brought into use prior to completion of the approved 
foul drainage works. 
 
Reason : To prevent pollution of the water environment. 
 
33  No development approved by this permission shall be commenced until: 
 
a) A desk top study has been carried out which shall include the identification of 

Page 58



 

Application Reference Number: 10/02527/OUTM  Item No: 4c 
Page 15 of 18 

previous site uses, potential contaminants that might reasonably be expected given 
those uses and other relevant information.  Using this information a diagrammatical 
representation (Conceptual Model) for the site of all potential contaminant sources, 
pathways and receptors has been produced. 
 
b) A site investigation has been designed for the site using the information obtained 
from the desk top study and any diagrammatical representations (Conceptual 
Model). This should be submitted to, and approved in writing by the LPA prior to that 
investigation being carried out on the site. The investigation must be comprehensive 
enough to enable: 
 
- a risk assessment to be undertaken relating to human health, controlled waters and 
the wider environment   associated on and off the site that may be affected, and 
- refinement of the Conceptual Model, and 
- the development of a Method Statement detailing the remediation requirements 
 
c) The site investigation has been undertaken in accordance with details approved 
by the LPA and a risk assessment has been undertaken. 
 
d) A Method Statement detailing the remediation requirements, including measures 
to minimise the impact on human health, controlled waters and the wider 
environment, using the information obtained from the Site Investigation has been 
submitted to the LPA. This should be approved in writing by the LPA prior to that 
remediation being carried out on the site. 
 
Reason: To protect  human health, controlled waters and the wider environment the 
environment and ensure that the remediated site is reclaimed to an appropriate 
standard. 
 
34  If during development, contamination not previously identified, is found to be 
present at the site then no further development (unless otherwise agreed in writing 
by the LPA) shall be carried out until the applicant has submitted, and obtained 
written approval from the LPA for an addendum to the Method Statement. This 
addendum must detail how this unsuspected contamination shall be dealt with. 
 
Reason: To ensure that the development complies with the approved details, in the 
interests of protection of Controlled Waters, human health, and the wider 
environment.  
 
35  Upon completion of the remediation detailed in the method statement a report 
shall be submitted to the LPA that provides a verification that the required works 
regarding contamination have been carried out in accordance with the approved 
method statement(s).  Post-remediation sampling and monitoring results shall be 
included in the reports to demonstrate that the required remediation has been fully 
met.  Future monitoring proposals and reporting shall also be detailed in the report. 
 
Reason: To protect Controlled Waters, human health and the wider environment by 
ensuring that the remediated site has been reclaimed to an appropriate standard. 
 
36  Each phase of the development of the site should be carried out in 
accordance with the approved method statement. 

Page 59



 

Application Reference Number: 10/02527/OUTM  Item No: 4c 
Page 16 of 18 

 
Reason: To ensure that the development complies with approved details in the 
interests of protection of Controlled Waters, human health and the wider 
environment. 
 
37  Development of each phase approved by this permission shall not be 
commenced unless the method for piling foundations has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the LPA.  The planning shall thereafter be undertaken only in 
accordance with the approved details. 
 
Reason: The site is contaminated/potentially contaminated and piling could lead to 
the contamination of groundwater in the underlying aquifer. 
 
38  The detailed drawings submitted to illustrate the landscaping works for 
approval in respect of each phase of development under reserved matters shall 
indicate existing site levels together with details of proposed finished levels of the 
landscaped areas. 
 
Reason: To ensure that the development does not result in the displacement of 
floodwater. 
 
39  Prior to being discharged into any watercourse, surface water, sewer or 
soakaway system, all surface water drainage from parking areas and the 
hardstandings shall be passed through an oil interceptor installed in accordance with 
a scheme previously submitted to and approved in writing by the LPA.  Roof water 
shall not pass through the interceptor. 
 
Reason: To prevent pollution of the water environment. 
 
40  Diffusion tube monitoring points shall be provided that are fully accessible by 
officers of the council, on the facade of any new residential buildings erected along 
The Stonebow / Peaseholme Green. The exact position of the monitoring points shall 
be confirmed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  
 
Reason: To allow the monitoring and assessment of local air quality. 
 
41  Prior to any commencement of each phase of the development on site, a 
detailed method of work statement shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority.  This statement shall include the precautions to be taken to 
ensure that the safety of the general public, the method of securing the site, access 
to the site and route to be taken by vehicles transporting the demolition and 
construction material from the site. 
  
Reason: To ensure that the works are carried out in a safe manner with a minimum 
disruption to users of the adjacent public highway and adjacent occupants. 
 
42  Prior to any works commencing on site, a construction environmental 
management plan (CEMP) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The CEMP shall identify the steps and procedures that will be 
implemented to minimise the creation and impact of noise, vibration and dust 
resulting from the site preparation, groundwork and construction phases of the 

Page 60



 

Application Reference Number: 10/02527/OUTM  Item No: 4c 
Page 17 of 18 

development. Once approved, the CEMP shall be adhered to at all times, unless 
otherwise first agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: To protect the amenity of occupants of adjacent and adjoining properties 
during the development of the premises. 
 
43  Details of the works and provision to facilitate disabled access and movement 
within the site and to the buildings permitted shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority and shall be implemented before the use is 
commenced or the building is occupied. 
 
Reason:  To ensure adequate provision for access within the development. 
 
44  Full details of the proposed CCTV facilities within the site and lighting for the 
car park and cycle route shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the LPA, 
prior to any part of the development being brought into use. 
 
Reason: In the interests of safety and visual amenity. 
 
45  The operation and management of the apartment block car parks shall be 
undertaken in accordance with car park management schemes which shall 
previously have been  submitted to and  agreed in writing with the Local Planning 
Authority for each phase of the development, and shall not be revised without the 
prior written approval of the LPA. 
 
Reason: In order to ensure the efficient operation of these facilities, in the interests of 
the safety and convenience of highway users. 
 
46  The development shall make provision for the linkage of the Foss Walkway 
adjacent to the Shambles car park with the proposed pedestrian and cycle route 
within the site. Details of the treatment of the boundary at this south west corner of 
the site and site levels at the boundary shall be submitted to approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority prior to the phase of development within which it is 
located is commenced. Thereafter the agreed treatment shall be retained at all times 
unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: In order to safeguard the future provision of a continuous route along the 
north bank of the Foss at this point, in accordance with the objectives of the Foss 
Walkway Strategy. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 61



 

Application Reference Number: 10/02527/OUTM  Item No: 4c 
Page 18 of 18 

7.0  INFORMATIVES: 
Notes to Applicant 
 
 1. REASON FOR APPROVAL 
 
In the opinion of the Local Planning Authority the proposal, subject to the conditions 
listed above, would not cause undue harm to interests of acknowledged importance, 
with particular reference to; 
-  implications on the comprehensive redevelopment of the Hungate site  
-  design and appearance 
- landscaping 
- affordable housing /mix of house types 
- highway safety 
-sustainability 
 
 As such the proposal complies with Policies GP1, GP4a, GP9, HE2, H2A, H3C and 
T4 of the City of York Development Control Local Plan. 
 
 2. Your attention is drawn to the existence of a legal obligation under Section 106 of 
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 relating to this development, which will 
need to varied and agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. 
 
 3. The reserved matters applications will be expected to demonstrate compliance 
with the principles of the Secure By Design initiative and Designing out Crime 
guidance, and should the design details be formulated in full consultation with the 
Police Architectural Liaison Officer.   
 
 
 
Contact details: 
Author: Rachel Tyas Development Management Officer (Wed - Fri) 
Tel No: 01904 551610 
 

Page 62



�

�

�

�

�

�

�

Produced using ESRI (UK)'s  MapExplorer 2.0 - http://www.esriuk.com

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with the permission
of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown
Copyright 2000.

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may
lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

SLA Number

Organisation

Department

Comments

Date

Scale :

Not set

Hungate Development Site
10/02527/OUTM

City of York Council

Planning & Sustainable Development

14 March 2011

Application site

1:2500

Page 63



Page 64

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Application Reference Number: 10/02534/REMM  Item No: 4d 
Page 1 of 15 

COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
Date: 24 March 2011 Ward: Guildhall 
Team: Major and Commercial 

Team 
Parish: Guildhall Planning Panel 

 
 
Reference: 10/02534/REMM 
Application at: Hungate Development Site Hungate York   
For: Variation of conditions 1, 6 and 8 of planning approval 

07/01901/REMM for the erection of part 5, part 6 storey 
residential building with ground floor commercial units to allow 
revisions to the elevations, an increase in height, an increase in 
the number of residential units from 154 to 175 and reduction in 
the amount of commercial floorspace 

By: Hungate (York) Regeneration Ltd 
Application Type: Major Reserved Matters Application (13w) 
Target Date: 27 January 2011 
Recommendation: Approve subject to Section 106 Agreement 
 
1.0  PROPOSAL 
 
THE SITE 
 
1.1  This application relates to the Hungate development site, which is located 
between the Stonebow to the northwest and the River Foss to the south.  This 
particular application relates to Phase 2 ( Block E ), which would sit between the built 
and occupied Block C to the east and the focal building to the west.  
 
THE PROPOSAL 
 
1.2  The application seeks to vary conditions 1, 6 and 8 of the Reserved Matters 
Approval for Phase 2, which was issued in November 2007.  Condition 1 specifies 
the list of approved plans and associated documents, Condition 6 refers to the partial 
use of the riverside walkway for tables and chairs associated with commercial 
premises and condition 8 refers to a soft landscaping drawing. The application 
proposes the following key revisions; 
 
(i) an increase in the number of residential units from 154 to 175 
(ii) a reduction in the amount of commercial floorspace 
(iii) amendments to the treatment of the elevations 
(iv) a 1 metre increase in the height of the building on 2 corner sections of the 6 
storey element of the building. 
 
1.3 Members will note that an application (10/2527/OUT) to vary conditions on the 
outline approval (issued July 2006) to reflect the proposed revisions to the Phase 2 
building and to alter the footprint of the focal building , is also on this months agenda. 
This application is referenced 10/2527/OUT. 
 
 

Agenda Item 4dPage 65



 

Application Reference Number: 10/02534/REMM  Item No: 4d 
Page 2 of 15 

 
2.0  POLICY CONTEXT 
 
2.1  Development Plan Allocation: 
 
Areas of Archaeological Interest GMS Constraints: City Centre Area 0006 
 
Conservation Area GMS Constraints: Central Historic Core CONF 
 
Contaminated Land GMS Constraints:  
 
City Boundary GMS Constraints: York City Boundary 0001 
 
DC Area Teams GMS Constraints: Central Area 0002 
 
2.2  Policies:  
  
CYGP1 
Design 
  
CYGP4A 
Sustainability 
  
CYGP9 
Landscaping 
  
CYHE2 
Development in historic locations 
  
CYH2A 
Affordable Housing 
  
CYH3C 
Mix of Dwellings on Housing Site 
  
CYT4 
Cycle parking standards 
 
3.0  CONSULTATIONS 
 
INTERNAL 
 
Renaissance Team 
 
3.1  In addition to the conditioning of materials, recommend conditioning a range of 
design details, for instance window treatments, ground floor louvre details and the 
articulation at ground floor. 
 
3.2  In relation to height increase;  Overall, the benefits outweigh any negative 
impacts.  Do not consider the small proportion of the roof projecting above the 
imaginary upper limit line by this limited height increase will be perceptible when it is 

Page 66



 

Application Reference Number: 10/02534/REMM  Item No: 4d 
Page 3 of 15 

built.  However, recommend that this upper limit is not amended for other changes 
and that all subsequent buildings are still assessed against this line as agreed in the 
outline permission and a similar balance of benefits is assessed against any 
necessary subsequent assessment of building heights. 
 
Design, Conservation and Sustainable Development 
 
3.3  A commitment to a more garden like scheme with greater detail is required given 
that this outdoor space is integral to the success of the development.  Details for 
riverside landscape/management and Pound Lane is also required. 
 
Highway Network Management 
 
3.4  No objections subject to the revised Section 106 to ensure all previous 
obligations and conditions remain. 
 
Environmental Protection Unit  
 
3.5  No objections to the proposed changes.  With respects to air quality, and based 
on the proposed provision of 51 car parking spaces, request the installation of a 
minimum of 5 electric vehicle recharge points within the proposed development to 
promote the use of electric vehicles. 
 
Communities and Neighbourhoods 
 
3.6  The proposal to increase the number of residential units from 154 to 175 is 
supported by the Housing Development Team. The overall affordable housing 
requirement at Hungate is 20.38%, which is applicable to each phase.  Consequently 
Phase 2 will now provide 35 affordable units, which represents an additional 4 
affordable units from the original permission. 
 
EXTERNAL 
 
Environment Agency 
 
3.7  No objection 
 
Guildhall Planning Panel 
 
3.8  Object.  We believed at the time that the Hungate scheme was already an 
overdevelopment.  The proposed amendments would further lead to an increase in 
density. 
 
Publicity 
 
3.9  The application was publicised by site notice, press notice and letters of 
neighbour notification. The deadline for comments was 10 March 2011.  A letter has 
been received from a resident of Rowntree Wharf objecting to the proposal for the 
following reason; 
 

Page 67



 

Application Reference Number: 10/02534/REMM  Item No: 4d 
Page 4 of 15 

(i)  Phase 2 included cafes and commercial units at ground floor facing the river.  
This design was the result of a public display and previous consultation with 
residents.  The developer has no way of knowing what particular aspect of the 
design appealed to the public and it is presumptuous to state that the changes would 
result in minor view changes.  Why was this application submitted without further and 
wider consultation with the public?  Many will be unaware of the changes. 
 
(ii) Although the committee approved the outline plan there was strong opposition 
from other party councillors and the general public with respects to population 
density. The planned population density of the site was excessive but this has now 
increased for the phase 2 building and will lead to slums later in the century. 
 
3.10  A further letter has been received requesting that the Council consider 
population density when reviewing this application.  The letter states that York 
currently has a relatively low population density, however there is a potential for this 
site to have the highest density of any area in York, even without this requested 
change by the developer. 
 
4.0  APPRAISAL 
 
4.1  KEY ISSUES; 
 
- Implications on the comprehensive redevelopment of the Hungate site as agreed in 
the outline application 
- Loss of commercial space 
- Housing amount, size and type 
- Affordable Housing 
- Design and external appearance 
- Landscaping 
- Highways, car and cycle parking 
 
PLANNING POLICIES 
 
4.2 The application is to be considered in the context of the principles established in 
the development brief and relevant national and local plan policies. 
 
4.3 The Hungate site was allocated for mixed use (employment and residential) 
development in the City of York Deposit Draft Local Plan, May 1998.  In the 4th set 
of changes (2005) the site is allocated for premier employment use (B1) and an 
estimated capacity of 600 new homes, 180 of which could be affordable. 
 
4.4  A development brief for the site, setting out the Council's requirements and 
aspirations for its development, was approved for consultation purposes in 
December 2004.  The document was approved for the purposes of guiding planning 
applications for the development of the site in March 2005. 
 
4.5 Although not planning policy, the details of this application should be derived 
from the Design Code submitted in January 2005 and the Design Statement 
(November 2004) associated with the outline application (02/03741/OUT).   
 

Page 68



 

Application Reference Number: 10/02534/REMM  Item No: 4d 
Page 5 of 15 

IMPLICATIONS ON THE COMPREHENSIVE REDEVELOPMENT OF THE 
HUNGATE SITE AS AGREED IN THE OUTLINE APPLICATION 
 
4.6  At outline stage it was proposed that block E would be of mixed use, providing 
762m squared internal space for A1 and A3 uses and 10,557m squared dedicated to 
residential development (which would provide 163 units).  The commercial element 
was at ground floor level, facing west towards the proposed focal building. 
 
4.7  The reserved matters application proposed an increase in the extent of 
commercial floorspace with 1151m squared of A1/A3 use and 10,384m squared 
dedicated to residential (154 units).  The additional commercial space was a result of 
the proposal to have commercial units at ground floor level facing the River Foss as 
well as facing west towards the focal building. 
 
4.8  This application seeks to revert to the outline approval insofar as replacing the 
commercial units on the riverside with residential accommodation.  Five commercial 
units would be retained on the elevation facing the focal building but the units would 
be shallower in depth as rather than the commercial units extending to the inner 
courtyard, the "inner" half of this elevation would be given over to residential 
accommodation.  This would provide 331m squared internal space for A1 / A3 use 
and 13,863m squared dedicated to residential (175 units).  This represents an 
additional 12 units above the figure of 163 approved at outline stage. 
 
REDUCTION IN COMMERCIAL SPACE 
 
4.9  Although this proposal involves a reduction of 431m sq. of commercial 
floorspace from the outline approval, commercial units would continue to occupy the 
frontage to the new street created between the Focal Building and Block E, from 
Palmer Street to Friars Quay leading to the Riverside.  The siting of commercial units 
along this street is considered important to the success of this mixed use scheme as 
it creates an active frontage onto Friars Quay public open space and St. Johns 
Square.   
 
4.10  The quayside itself consists of the walkway along the river frontage and Friar's 
Quay, opposite Rowntree Wharf.  Although the mixed uses along the river frontage 
are no longer proposed,  Officers are satisfied that activity would still be encouraged 
through a pedestrian walkway at lower level and a series of raised terraces serving 
the residential dwellings at an upper level. 
 
HOUSING NUMBERS, SIZE AND TYPE 
 
4.11  The amount of residential units for the whole site was agreed at outline stage, 
720 were proposed overall.  163 of which would be in block E.  With the increase in 
the extent of the commercial floorspace, the reserved matters application for block E 
proposed 154 residential units, 9 No. less than detailed in the outline approval.  This 
proposal seeks permission for 175 units, 12 more than the outline approval.   
 
4.12  As with Phase 1, the amount of units proposed differs from the outline 
approval.  In Phase 1, the number of units increased by 41 between the outline and 
reserved matters approvals.  Further to this, Members will recall that an application 
to convert 7 of the existing townhouses to form 14 No. duplex apartments was 

Page 69



 

Application Reference Number: 10/02534/REMM  Item No: 4d 
Page 6 of 15 

approved at the January meeting (10/2646/FULM).  Taking together the 48 additional 
units approved in Phase 1 and the 12 additional units proposed in this application, 
Officers acknowledge that approval of this application would equate to an additional 
60 residential units within Phases 1 and 2 to the numbers of units approved in the 
outline scheme. 
 
4.13  Officers raise no objection to the proposed increase in the number of units in 
phase 2.  It is accepted that in a large, phased development such as Hungate, 
flexibility is desirable in order to incorporate up to date information on demand over 
the duration of the whole scheme.  It is noted however that the outline application 
was considered on the basis of 720 units, both in terms of its implications for housing 
supply and in order to calculate the Section 106 contributions for affordable housing, 
highways, education and leisure provision.  The applicants have confirmed that it is 
not their intention at this stage to exceed the 720 units approved on the site and 
numbers will be regularised as subsequent phases of the scheme are progressed.  
This can be monitored on a phase by phase basis. 
 
4.14 Members may recall that the resolution to approve application 10/2646/FULM 
(referred to in paragraph 4.11) was subject to the planning obligation for the Hungate 
site being updated to ensure numbers across the site do not exceed 720 without due 
reconsideration of the key principles and recalculation of S106 requirements in 
accordance with site viability.  This deed of variation to the Section 106 Agreement is 
in the process of being drafted. 
 
4.15  Draft Local Plan Policy H3c states that a mix of new house types, sizes and 
tenures will be required on all residential development sites where appropriate to the 
location and nature of development.   
 
4.16  The masterplan (agreed at outline stage) stated there would be 10,557m² of 
residential floorspace creating 163 dwellings.  The reserved matters approval details 
10,384 m square of residential floorspace creating 154 dwellings.  This application 
proposes 13,863m squared dedicated to residential creating 175 units.  The dwelling 
size (by bedroom) for each scheme is as follows 
 
Outline 
1-bed = 25.2% 
2-bed = 69.3% 
3-bed = 5.5%   
 
The approved reserved matters  
Studio = 3.3% 
1-bed = 20.8% 
2-bed = 67.5% 
3-bed = 8.4% 
 
The proposed variation to the reserved matters approval;  
1-bed  = 41.7% 
2-bed  = 48.6% 
3-bed  = 9.7% 
 

Page 70



 

Application Reference Number: 10/02534/REMM  Item No: 4d 
Page 7 of 15 

4.17  In comparison with the outline scheme, this application proposes 32 additional 
one bed units, 28 less two bed units and 8 more three bed units.  Although the 
increase in the number of one bed units at the expense of the 2 bed units is noted, 
the proportion of each overall is considered acceptable.  The increase in 3 bed units 
from the outline application is welcomed.  Overall the mix within block E is 
considered to be reasonable.   
 
AFFORDABLE HOUSING  
 
4.18  Policy H2a of the Draft Local Plan states affordable housing should be 
distributed throughout a housing development rather than concentrated in one area, 
commonly known as pepper potting.  The policy also sets targets for affordable 
housing and the percentages of rented and sale units.  For Hungate, the figures 
were set at outline stage. 
 
4.19  The overall affordable housing requirement at Hungate is 20.38%, which is 
applicable to each phase.  Consequently Phase 2 will now provide 35 affordable 
units, which represents an additional 4 affordable units from the original permission.   
The 35 affordable units which would be provided in Phase 2 are as follows; 
 
Social Rent 
1 bed     11 
2 bed     11 
 
Discount Sale 
1 bed     7 
2 bed     6 
 
4.20  The percentage of affordable housing provided in Phase 2 is appropriate.  Only 
one and two bed affordable units are proposed, this is considered to be acceptable 
because 5 of the 4 bed townhouses in Phase 1 are affordable. Phase 2 will provide 6 
car parking spaces for the affordable housing units within this phase, with a further 
14 spaces still to be provided in later phases. 
 
4.21 With reference to pepper-potting and the statement within Policy H2a that 
affordable housing should be distributed throughout a housing development rather 
than concentrated in one area, Officers note that the high service charges 
associated with the development have a significant impact on the affordability of both 
the social rent and Discount Sale units. Consequently Officers accept the proposal 
for the affordable housing in this phase to be contained in one complete service 
core. The Registered Provider (RP) with responsibility for the affordable properties 
would be granted a long leasehold interest and would manage that core, setting their 
own management charges subject to meeting the standards of Hungate (York) 
Regeneration Ltd. The RP would also be able to agree the specification within the 
internal public areas of the core to minimise the service charges. This would allow 
the homes to be meaningfully affordable. 
 
DESIGN AND EXTERNAL APPEARANCE 
 
4.22  This proposal to increase the residential element of Phase 2 with the loss of 
commercial floorspace would involve changes to the elevations as approved in the 

Page 71



 

Application Reference Number: 10/02534/REMM  Item No: 4d 
Page 8 of 15 

2007 Reserved Matters scheme.  Such changes need to be assessed against Policy 
GP1 and HE2 of the Local Plan and the Hungate Development Brief and Design 
Statement. 
 
4.23  Policy GP1 of the Draft Local Plan refers to design.  It states that development 
proposals must, respect or enhance the local environment; be of a density, layout, 
scale, mass and design that is compatible with the surrounding area; retain, 
enhance, or create urban spaces; provide amenity space and space for waste 
storage; ensure no undue adverse impact from noise disturbance, overlooking, 
overshadowing or overdominance.  Policy HE2 (Local Plan) states that in areas 
adjoining conservation areas, development proposals are expected to respect 
adjacent buildings, open spaces, landmarks and settings and have regard to local 
scale, proportion, detail and materials. 
 
4.24  The Hungate Development Brief states that the site should be a place with a 
unique identity, which respects the strong character of surrounding areas and 
buildings, particularly the built and natural environment and the landscape and 
ecology of the River Foss.  Variations in height, roof modelling, elevational treatment 
and a selection of materials should be used. There should be a variety of heights 
adjacent the River Foss to provide varied form and roofscapes, and the canalisation 
of the river should be avoided. 
 
4.25  The design statement advised that block E would be made up of a landmark 
corner facing St John's Square, the west elevation (facing the focal building) would 
be of a scale and style that created a sense of enclosure and grandeur appropriate 
to public open space.  The north and east elevations would reflect the traditional 
vertical emphasis of York Streets and use a variety of materials and roof 
shapes/heights.  The Foss facing elevation would have a warehouse aesthetic, of 
similar scale and (repetitive) appearance to Navigation Wharf.  The building would 
vary in height, at its lowest, a small two-storey area parallel with the focal building, at 
its highest 6-storey facing the river.  
 
HEIGHT 
 
4.26 The proposed height of the Phase 2 building requires a variation of Condition 6 
of the outline permission.   This condition requires that no buildings shall exceed the 
building ridge heights as specified on the sectional drawings detailed in the Design 
Statement. One of these sectional drawings shows a line drawn between the ridge of 
Rowntree Wharf and the roof line of St. Saviourgate and Peasholme House and 
confirms that none of the new buildings in the development would rise above this 
line.  
 
4.27   Permission is sought for the building height of Block E to exceed this line by 1 
metre on 2 corner sections of the 6 storey element of the Phase 2 building fronting 
the riverside as a result of an increase in floor to floor heights and the architectural 
form of the roofscape in providing roofs with a suitable pitch.  The agent has clarified 
that the proposed increase is a result of the building being designed with maximum 
flexibility for the future to achieve the desired levels of sustainability.  This has been 
achieved by incorporating space in the basement for a centralised heating system, 
extra service risers and an increased space within the corridor ceilings to provide the 
required pipe work.  The objective is to maintain a minimum standard of code for 

Page 72



 

Application Reference Number: 10/02534/REMM  Item No: 4d 
Page 9 of 15 

sustainable homes level 3 and lifetime homes with 15% of the properties improved to 
meet level 4 in order to provide high quality sustainable accommodation. 
 
4.28  A significant subject of debate at the time of the outline application concerned 
the height of the Hungate development.  With reference to the River Foss frontage of 
the scheme and in particular the relationship to the Navigation Wharf Grade II listed 
building, the approach adopted was to reflect the wharf like characteristics across 
the river by including buildings of a similar but slightly lower height to Navigation 
Wharf.   
 
4.29  Only a small proportion of the building would project one metre above the 
imaginary line drawn between the ridge of Peasholme House and that of Rowntree 
Wharf and in the context of Local Plan Policy GP4a, which refers to the fact that 
proposals should have regard to the principles of sustainable development, Officers 
are satisfied that the benefits to be achieved from the additional height outweigh the 
minimal visual impact which would result from the increase.  
 
ELEVATIONAL TREATMENT 
 
4.30  The proposed amendments to the elevations are considered to remain true to 
the development brief and outline permission.  Reflective of the design code, 
buildings within streets tend to be narrower plots and express their individuality 
through changes in material, fenestration, storey height and roof form.  The 
elevations denote the principle of a bottom middle and top through the expression of 
a plinth and also a variety of methods of dealing with a setback uppermost storey at 
roof level.  In terms of roof detailing, the amended elevations provide a variation in 
ridge and eaves heights and articulation.  The proposals include a number of the 
established roof solutions found in York such as setback, dormer, gable, pitched, 
mansard and parapet. 
 
Riverside Elevation 
 
4.31 The Design code identified the elevation fronting the river as a "set piece", 
which could reflect the industrial waterside heritage of the site, possibly using a 
warehouse vernacular. These principles are adopted by the amended scheme which 
uses a number of established warehouse aesthetic devices, symmetry and order and 
closely follow the approved phase two reserved matters approval. 
 
Commercial elements 
 
4.32  Similar to the reserved matters approval, the commercial elements will be 
predominantly glazed.  The detailed design of the commercial units is proposed to be 
agreed by condition, to ensure a consistent but flexible approach to shopfront detail 
and advertisements. 
 
4.33 Overall, the design is considered to be true to the development brief and outline 
permission.  Block E would have identity and character and respect its settings. 
 
 
 
 

Page 73



 

Application Reference Number: 10/02534/REMM  Item No: 4d 
Page 10 of 15 

LANDSCAPING 
 
4.34  The schedule of accommodation for this phase of development should provide 
2646m sq. of amenity space and 833m sq. of children's play space.  The courtyard 
within the Phase 2 building is approximately 1170m2 and given that there is a lack of 
private gardens and open space elsewhere within the Hungate development, it is 
considered essential that the courtyard provides an immediate, appealing, useable 
outdoor "garden" space for all potential residents, including children.  The two key 
functions the courtyard should therefore fulfil are for it to be an attractive space to 
look across and for the space to provide a communal garden area that can be used 
for sitting and general play. 
 
4.35  The submitted landscape proposals for the courtyard of the Phase 2 building 
differ from the plans approved in the Reserved Matters scheme with this proposal 
involving extensive areas of reflective pools bound by formal hedges with the whole 
area being punctuated with standard trees in containers.  This is considered to be at 
odds with the key functions of the courtyard and the applicant has therefore been 
asked to amend the scheme to provide more useable garden space and planting.  
Members will be updated at the meeting. 
 
4.36 The proposed location of block E and the river walkway, in close proximity to 
the River Foss, are in accordance with approved details at outline stage and the 
development brief.  In addition to the vegetation on the river bank there would be a 
further strip of ground cover planting that would vary in width, between 1.5m and 3m.  
The detailed scheme of vegetation at the edge of the river and the scheme of works 
for the riverbank wall (condition 20 of the outline approval) are covered separately in 
the Ecological Management Plan. However the implementation of planting within the 
river banks and planting / landscaping works between the river wall and pavement 
should be completed within this phase of the built development, therefore details of 
work and planting to the riverside have been requested.  It is anticipated that this 
information will be available at the Meeting.  Additional details of the materials and 
layout of the walkway are proposed as a condition of approval. 
 
HIGHWAYS, CAR AND CYCLE PARKING 
 
4.37  Policy T4 of the City of York Local Plan seeks to maintain and promote cycle 
use. 
 
4.38 139 cycle spaces are proposed for residents. This amount equates to one 
space per 72% of the units. The cycle provision is in accordance with the ratio 
agreed at outline stage.  A further 32 spaces are proposed for the commercial units, 
of these 8 spaces are enclosed within the footprint of the building for use of staff of 
the commercial units.  The remainder of the commercial cycle parking is for public 
use and the exact locations will be established as further phases come forward as 
part of a site wide strategy for street furniture.  
 
4.39  51 car parking spaces are proposed, this includes visitor's space and 7.8% of 
spaces would be for disabled parking.    At outline stage 45 spaces were proposed in 
this block.  There are 12 more residential units proposed and 6 more car parking 
spaces.  There is no objection to this variation in numbers, which remains below one 

Page 74



 

Application Reference Number: 10/02534/REMM  Item No: 4d 
Page 11 of 15 

space per unit.  6 parking spaces for the affordable housing units would be provided 
within this phase. 
 
4.40   With respects to air quality, and based on the proposed provision of 51 car 
parking spaces, the Environmental Protection Unit have requested the installation of 
a minimum of 5 electric vehicle recharge points within the proposed development to 
promote the use of electric vehicles.  Although the applicants have agreed to this 
request, Officers do not consider it reasonable to require the provision of the 
recharge points by condition.  Instead an informative would be attached to the 
decision. 
 
5.0  CONCLUSION 
 
5.1  The key considerations of this application are whether the proposed revisions to 
the reserved matters approval are acceptable in the context of the principles 
established in the Hungate Development Brief, Design Code and Design Statement 
associated with the outline approval and with relevant national and local plan 
policies.  
 
5.2  The Hungate scheme is a mixed use development and whilst it is acknowledged 
that this proposal involves a reduction in the extent of commercial floorspace, 
Officers are satisfied that the retention of commercial units on the new street created 
between the Focal Building and Block E will ensure an active frontage onto Friars 
Quay public open space and St. John's Square.  Although the mixed uses along the 
river frontage are no longer proposed, Officers are satisfied that activity would still be 
encouraged through a pedestrian walkway at lower level. 
 
5.3  With reference to the proposed increase in the number of units in Phase 2, 
Officers raise no objection as it is accepted that in a large, phased development such 
as Hungate, flexibility is desirable in order to incorporate up-to-date information on 
demand over the duration of the whole scheme.  However the outline application 
was considered on the basis of 720 units both in terms of its implications for housing 
supply and in order to calculate the Section 106 contributions.  Therefore whilst the 
applicants have confirmed that it is not their intention at this stage to exceed the 720 
units and numbers will be regularised as subsequent phases of the scheme are 
progressed, this can be monitored on a phase by phase basis.  Four additional 
affordable units are to be provided as a result of the increase in the number of units 
in Phase 2, which is considered to be acceptable.  
 
5.4  In terms of the proposed increase in height of part of the building, Officers are 
satisfied that the benefits to be achieved in designing a building with maximum 
flexibility for the future to achieve desired levels of sustainability outweigh the 
minimal visual impact which would result from the increase.  With respects to 
revisions to the elevations, Officers consider that the plans adhere to Condition 5 of 
the outline, which requires that the external design details for each of the 
development shall be fully in accordance with the submitted Design Code. There are 
concerns with the submitted landscaping scheme in terms of the lack of useable 
garden space and planting, however it is anticipated that amended plans will be 
available at the Meeting. 
 

Page 75



 

Application Reference Number: 10/02534/REMM  Item No: 4d 
Page 12 of 15 

5.5  The cycle provision is in accordance with the ratio agreed at outline stage and 
the number of proposed car parking spaces remains below one space per unit, 
which is acceptable. 
 
5.6  Subject to conditions, as set out below, arising from the details submitted and 
therefore supplementing the conditions of the outline approval, it is recommended 
that the application be approved, also subject to the variation of the S106 Agreement 
to refer to this application.  
 
6.0  RECOMMENDATION:   Approve subject to Section 106 Agreement 
 
 1  The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the 
following plans and other submitted details:- 
 
**** 
 
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that the development is carried 
out only as approved by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
 2  Large scale details of the items listed below shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of 
the development and the works shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
details. 
 
a/- Roof panels 
b/- Chimneys 
c/- Vertical dividing fin(s) 
d/- Typical eaves, verge and parapet details  
e/- Soffit overhang 
f/- Columns including bases and capitols 
g/- All types of windows and window systems (1:20 + larger scale details, door 
openings showing reveals, lintels and cills) 
h/- Glazing 
i/- Terrace and balconies including soffits and doors onto balconies 
j/- Main entrance doors, door surrounds and canopies 
k/- Letterboxes 
l/- Shafts into basement car park 
m/- Vents for car park 
 
Reason:  So that the Local Planning Authority may be satisfied with these details. 
 
3  VISQ8  Samples of exterior materials to be app  
 
 4  Sample panels of the brickwork and stonework to be used on this 
development shall be erected on the site and shall illustrate the colour, texture and 
bonding of brickwork/ stonework and the mortar treatment to be used, and shall be 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of 
building works.  These panels shall be retained until a minimum of 2 square metres 
of wall of the approved development has been completed in accordance with the 
approved sample. 
 

Page 76



 

Application Reference Number: 10/02534/REMM  Item No: 4d 
Page 13 of 15 

Reason:  So that the Local Planning Authority may be satisfied with the finished 
appearance of these details prior to the commencement of building works in view of 
their sensitive location. 
 
 5  Prior to first occupation of the commercial units a detailed scheme for the 
design of the shopfronts (1:20 elevations and sections) and the proposed means of 
advertising each premises, including illumination, shall be submitted to and agreed 
by the Local Planning Authority.  The commercial premises shall be developed in 
accordance with the approved scheme, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: To achieve a consistent acceptable appearance. 
 
 6  Prior to development commencing detailed floor plans, elevations and section 
drawings of the river walkway including the proposed bridge supports, railings and 
pedestrian routes, shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority and the development implemented in accordance with the approved 
details.  
 
Reason: In the interests of design. 
 
 7  Details of the scheme of lighting for the internal courtyard area shall be 
submitted, agreed to by the Local Planning Authority and implemented in 
accordance with the approved details prior to first occupation. 
 
Reason: In the interests of visual amenity and safety. 
 
 8  The commercial premises shall not be open to customers outside the 
following hours: 
 
Sunday to Thursday 07:00 to 23:00 
Fridays and Saturdays 07:00 to 24:00 
 
All associated cleaning up, clearing of outdoor tables and disposal of waste shall be 
completed within 30 minutes of the required closing time.  
 
All tables and chairs shall be either fixed to the ground or stored within the premises 
outside the permitted hours of operation. 
 
Reason: In the interests of residential and visual amenity. 
 
 9  Prior to occupation of the commercial units, a noise management scheme, 
which shall specify how noise emanating from the units shall be controlled, shall be 
agreed to by the Local Planning Authority and the agreed scheme adhered to at all 
times. 
 
Reason: In the interests of amenity.  
 
10  No external speakers shall be installed at the commercial premises. 
 
Reason: In the interests of local and residential amenity. 

Page 77



 

Application Reference Number: 10/02534/REMM  Item No: 4d 
Page 14 of 15 

 
11  Prior to development commencing a drawing illustrating the amount and 
location of car parking spaces for the affordable units shall be submitted to and 
agreed to in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The spaces shall be retained for 
such thereafter. 
 
Reason: To ensure an adequate amount of car parking for affordable dwellings. 
 
12  Prior to development commencing, detailed plans of the route between block 
E and the focal building showing the split between pedestrian areas and areas 
allocated for tables and chairs, shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority and the development implemented in accordance with the 
approved details. 
 
Tables and chairs shall be confined to the agreed areas at all times unless otherwise 
agreed by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason:  In the interests of design and highway safety. 
 
7.0  INFORMATIVES: 
Notes to Applicant 
 
 1. REASON FOR APPROVAL 
 
In the opinion of the Local Planning Authority the proposal, subject to the conditions 
listed above, would not cause undue harm to interests of acknowledged importance, 
with particular reference to; 
 
- design and appearance 
- landscaping 
- affordable housing/mix of house types 
- sustainability 
 
As such the proposal complies with Policies GP1, GP3, GP4A, GP9, GP11, GP15, 
HE2,  H2, H3C, T4 and S6 of the City of York Local Plan Deposit Draft. 
 
2.  SECURED BY DESIGN 
 
Your attention is drawn to potential crime reduction by considering the Police 
'Secured by Design' Award Scheme for this site. Full details and an application form 
for the scheme can be found on www.securedbydesign.com   
 
3.  SEWERS 
 
You are advised that consent must be gained from Yorkshire Water to divert any 
public sewers. 
 
 4. AIR QUALITY 
 
In line with City of York Council's emerging Low Emission Strategy, electric recharge 
points are currently being sought on new developments wherever appropriate.  A 

Page 78



 

Application Reference Number: 10/02534/REMM  Item No: 4d 
Page 15 of 15 

Supplementary Planning Document is currently being jointly developed by the 
Environmental Protection Unit and City Development, which will set out standards for 
electric vehicle recharge points on all new developments.   
 
It is requested that a minimum of 5 electric vehicle recharge points be installed within 
the proposed development to promote the use of electric vehicles. 
 
It is recommended that any flood sensitive equipment such as electrical sockets in 
the basement are raised above potential flood levels. 
 
 
Contact details: 
Author: Rachel Tyas Development Management Officer (Wed - Fri) 
Tel No: 01904 551610 
 

Page 79



Page 80

This page is intentionally left blank



�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

Produced using ESRI (UK)'s  MapExplorer 2.0 - http://www.esriuk.com

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with the permission
of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown
Copyright 2000.

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may
lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

SLA Number

Organisation

Department

Comments

Date

Scale :

Not set

Hungate Development Site
10/02534/REMM

City of York Council

Planning & Sustainable Development

14 March 2011

Application site

1:2500

Page 81



Page 82

This page is intentionally left blank



 

  
 

   

 
Planning Committee  24th March 2011 

Report of the Assistant Director of Planning and Sustainable Development 
 
THREE CONSERVATION AREA APPRAISALS FOR STRENSALL, 
STRENSALL RAILWAY BUILDINGS AND TOWTHORPE VILLAGE 
CONSERVATION AREAS: RESULTS OF CONSULTATION AND 
FINAL DRAFTS FOR APPROVAL 

Summary 

1. This report presents the results of a public consultation exercise on the three 
separate draft Conservation Area Character Appraisals for the neighbouring 
conservation areas of Strensall (No.23, 19.16ha), Strensall Railway Buildings 
(No.31, 1.58ha) and Towthorpe Village (No.32, 8.81ha). The appraisals include 
a review of existing boundaries. The report recommends that, following minor 
revisions to the appraisals, they are approved as supporting documents to 
existing City of York Council conservation policies. The appraisals would also 
inform the emerging Local Development Framework. 

Background 

2. A conservation area appraisal defines in detail the special architectural and 
historic interest of an area; by doing so it explains why an area is worthy of 
protection and it provides a clear basis on which to formulate and evaluate 
development proposals. An important aspect of the appraisal process is a 
review of the appropriateness of the existing boundary. 

3. The draft appraisals were  approved for consultation by Planning Committee on 
25th November 2010. 

Consultation 

4. The consultation exercise ran from 10th December until 28th January 2011, a 
period of six weeks, and it was facilitated by the Community Planning team. 
Strensall and Towthorpe Parish Council were actively involved in leaflet 
delivery and hosted the exhibition. Public consultation used the following 
methods: 

a) A single leaflet summarising the three appraisals and boundary changes, 
with a tear-off comments slip, were distributed to all properties within and 
surrounding the proposed conservation area (approximately 440 leaflets as 
opposed to the whole parish which would be approximately 2372 
households).  The map in Annex B shows the existing Conservation Area 
boundaries, proposed amendments, and delivery areas for the leaflet. 

Agenda Item 5Page 83



b) Copies of the appraisal document were made available at the Council 
offices in St Leonard’s Place, Strensall with Towthorpe Parish Council 
Office, Strensall Library, The Half Moon, The Ship Inn and Delicious at York 
Delicatessen, as well as on the Council website and Strensall with 
Towthorpe Parish Council website.   

c) An exhibition of the appraisal was held by representatives of the consultants 
and the City of York Council, followed by discussion as an agenda item at 
Strensall Parish Council meeting on 11th January 2011. 

d) A letter to consultees and appropriate amenity bodies (see list of consultees 
in Annex A). 

e) A press release was sent to the York Press, and posters advertising the 
exhibition and meeting on the 11th January and also where the appraisals 
can be viewed were placed in local venues in order to promote it to the 
wider village residents.  An article also featured in the December/ January 
parish ‘Outreach’ magazine which was delivered to each property in 
Strensall and Towthorpe. 

31 replies were received representing a response rate of 7% within the 
leafleted area.  Many of the responses received were very detailed.  The full list 
of responses is recorded at Annex C with specific comments from officers 
alongside. 

 
 Character 
 
5. Question 1 in the summary leaflet asked, “In your opinion, do Strensall, 

Strensall Railway Buildings and/ or Towthorpe have any other qualities not 
mentioned in the character appraisals?” 
 

6. Responses did not identify any new positive qualities pertinent to these 
conservation areas though further information was received in respect of the 
signal box within the Strensall Railway Buildings conservation area and this 
allows some clarification of the text. No comments were received in respect of 
the proposed renaming of the Towthorpe conservation area (previously 
Towthorpe Village which appeared to misrepresent the agricultural hamlet – 
see note on page 1 of Towthorpe appraisal). In addition, the River Foss 
Society have drawn attention to the significant industrial archaeology of the 
Foss Navigation through Strensall and their recording work should be 
referenced in the text. 

 
7. Annex C provides a full list of the comments received with officer responses 

alongside. These include points of clarification, particularly in respect of 
existing protection of the surrounding landscape outside the built-up areas, and 
in respect of the openness of the Towthorpe Conservation area which is 
“washed over” as greenbelt. Matters such as additional tree protection, action 
on redundant and problem buildings within Strensall, and on street lighting will 
be referred to the relevant sections of the Local Authority for action. In 
summary the following additional points have been raised: 
 

Page 84



• need to survey the village trees and those affecting immediate settings and 
views with the intention of providing protection through Tree Preservation 
Orders 

• open views to the south across fields and between buildings to be 
acknowledged in the Strensall Conservation Area appraisal 

• the extent of survival of the former locks, bi-pass channels & landing areas 
running north-eastwards from Strensall New Bridge and out beyond the 
conservation area as far as the double lock at Lock House should be 
mentioned in the Strensall Conservation Area Appraisal 

 
8.   Please see Annex C for a full list of officer recommendations and proposed 

changes to the documents. 
 

Boundary Reviews 
 
9. Question 2 in the summary leaflet asked, “Do you think the boundaries for 

the three Conservation Areas are correct?  If not, how do you think they 
should be changed?” 
 

10. With a notable exception (Strensall Railway Buildings Area A) responses 
generally indicated support for the boundary changes as proposed. A number 
of suggestions were made for extending the boundaries to include the wider 
landscape which has protection through various other means such as green 
belt status, Common Land registration, SSSI or SINC status. Existing 
designations have been checked with the countryside officer and they are 
considered the appropriate means of protection for such areas outside the 
main body of the built-up area. 

 
11. Suggestions for including additional buildings have been assessed not only on 

individual merit but whether they would make a special contribution to the 
character and appearance of the area as a whole. It is important to ensure that 
the special qualities of each conservation area are not devalued through quite 
ordinary inclusions. 

 
12. Strensall - Suggestions for amendments to the conservation area included: 
 

• Areas bounded by Ox Carr Lane and Flaxton Road encompassing the 
properties that front these roads running from Pasture Close and up to 
Lords Moor Lane to preserve the heritage and landscape of the area (Annex 
C 3). The open fields between the railway line and the village. These areas 
were discounted for reasons in 10 & 11 above. 

• Add the other two canal locks and former tow path linking the three locks 
(Annex C 27).  One lock is within the greenbelt and well outside the village, 
and the other is just north of Strensall Bridge in an area protected as open 
space (GP7). The former tow path is now recommended for inclusion (ref 
Annex E). 

• Remove modern houses in Northfields which are out of context in the 
conservation area (Annex C 6). This was considered as Area A in the 
boundary review, though the idea was rejected on historical rather than 
architectural grounds. 

 

Page 85



13. Strensall Railway Buildings - Suggestions for amendments to the 
conservation area included: 

 
• Oppose 101 The Village, poor architectural merit, and derelict builder’s yard 

- former station yard (Annex C18). There are social reasons for including 
101 The Village; and the builder’s yard is already noted as making a 
negative contribution to the area. 

• Add two cottages and one house along Brecks Lane associated with the old 
brick and tileworks (Annex C 19). Their exclusion has been recommended 
on the basis of 11 above. These houses are much altered and the works 
has ceased. 

• Network Rail concerns about the inclusion of the former station yard (Annex 
C 20). A change of wording is recommended to allay fears concerning the 
site’s potential as a future station stop. 

 
14. Towthorpe – no suggestions for alterations to the boundary were submitted. 
 
15. It is therefore proposed that the boundaries of “Strensall Railway Buildings” and 

“Towthorpe” Conservation Areas are extended as recommended in the draft 
Appraisals.  The boundary of Strensall Conservation Area is proposed to be 
amended as shown in Annex E. This represents the proposed boundary as 
shown in the draft appraisal document with the addition of the tow-path on the 
northern bank of the Foss as recommended in Annex C para 27. 

 
 

Options  

16. Option 1 - Approve the draft document(s) as amended by the suggested 
changes in Annex C and Annex E (revised boundary map for Strensall) 

 
17. Option 2 - Approve the draft document(s) with further changes or fewer 

changes than proposed above. 
 
18. Option 3 – Do not approve the draft document(s) and boundary review 

proposals. 
 

Analysis 
 

19. Option 1 - All responses to the consultation were given full consideration and 
assessed in relation to government policy and English Heritage Guidance.  The 
amendments set out in Annex C reflect the outcome of deliberations. With 
these amendments incorporated it is considered that the appraisals would be 
robust documents, providing a sound basis for developing management 
proposals and also for making development decisions. 

 
20. Option 2 - Proposals for minor changes could be incorporated into the 

documents if they are supported by relevant arguments. Any proposals for 
further boundary extensions should involve an additional period of consultation 
if they include areas not considered before. It is considered that the exercise 
so far has resulted in full consideration of the boundary options. 

 

Page 86



21.   Option 3 - Production of the appraisals, including the requirement for boundary 
review, is in accordance with national guidance on heritage protection. 
Approval of the documents would assist the Authority in fulfilling its statutory 
obligations under Section 69 of the (Listed Building and Conservation areas) 
Act 1990. We are unaware of any valid reasons to resist the appraisals. 

 
Corporate Priorities 

22. The appraisals would assist in improving the actual and perceived condition 
and appearance of each of the conservation areas.  This aim supports the 
following objectives of the corporate strategy: “thriving city”, “inclusive city” 
“sustainable city”. It would also provide a more informed basis for decision 
making and for policy formulation. 

 
23. The appraisal would contribute towards the Local Authority’s statutory 

obligations with regard to conservation areas in their control.  
 

Implications 

24. Financial - Production of the document will be met by existing budgets 

25. Human Resources - No implications 

26. Equalities - Different formats of the finished appraisal will be made available 
on request. 

27. Legal - No further implications.   

28. Crime and Disorder - No implications        

29. Information Technology - No implications 

30. Property - No implications 

31. Other - No other implications 

Risk Management 
 

32. There are no known risks associated with the report. 
 

 Recommendations 

33. Members are asked to agree Option 1, to approve the three draft appraisals 
(Strensall,  Strensall Railway Buildings and Towthorpe Village), as proposed in 
Annex D1, D2 & D3 and as amended by Annex C, for planning purposes. 

Reasons: The documents represent a thorough analysis of the character and 
appearance of each conservation area and they have been prepared in 
accordance with current guidance from English Heritage. The boundary 
reviews have been carried out in accordance with the Planning (Listed 
Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 and they conform with the latest 
policy guidance on the historic environment - PPS 5 and the related planning 
practice guide.  The documents are clearly written and accessible to a wide 

Page 87



range of users.  The consultation method and range accords with previous 
practice.  Information and views of consultees have been carefully considered 
in the amendments proposed.  The approval of the documents will assist with 
the formulation and determination of development proposals both within and 
adjacent to the 3no conservation areas. 

Contact Details 

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report: 
Janine Riley 
Conservation Architect 
01904 551305 
 
Katherine Atkinson 
Community Planner 
01904 551694 
 
Design Conservation and 
Sustainable Development 

Mike Slater 
Assistant Director (Planning and Sustainable 
Development) 
 
Report Approved ü Date 11 March 2011 

 

    

Specialist Implications Officer(s)   
There are no specialist implications 
 
Wards Affected:  Strensall with Towthorpe  All  

 
For further information please contact the author of the report 
 
Background Papers: 
Planning Policy Statement 5 (PPS 5 for DCLG)  TSO March 2010 
Guidance on Conservation Area Appraisals  English Heritage  2006 
 
Annexes 
 
Annex A  List of consultees 
Annex B  Map showing public consultation area (delivery area) 
Annex C  Schedule of consultation responses with proposed amendments  
Annex D1  Consultation Draft Strensall Conservation Area Appraisal  
Annex D2   Consultation Draft Strensall Railway Buildings Conservation Area 

Appraisal  
Annex D3   Consultation Draft Towthorpe Conservation Area Appraisal  
Annex E   Map showing proposed amendments to Strensall Conservation Area 

revised with further boundary extension to include Foss towpath (area 
D). This map would replace Map no2 within the Appraisal. 

 
[Please note that colour copies of the maps will be available at the meeting] 

Page 88



ANNEX A – Consultee List for Strensall, Strensall Railway Buildings and Towthorpe 
Conservation Area Character Appraisals, November 2010 
 
NAME POSITION ORGANISATION 

Cllr M Kirk Strensall Ward Councillor City of York Council 
Cllr S Wiseman Strensall Ward Councillor City of York Council 
TBC Owner Former Station Yard (Strensall 

Railway Buildings proposed extension) 
Network Rail 
 

Susan Nunn Clerk Strensall & Towthorpe Parish Council 
Val Jesse Secretary  Strensall Local History Group 
June Card Secretary  River Foss Society 
Alison Sinclair Chair York Open Planning Forum 
Verlie Riley Coordinator Conservation Area Advisory Panel 
Dr G Woolley Chair CPRE (York and Selby District) 
Alison Fisher   English Heritage 
Steve Roskams   York Archaeological Forum 
Peter Brown Director York Civic Trust 
David Brinklow Chairman Yorkshire Architectural & Archaeological 

Society 
Barry Potter Chair York Natural Environment Panel 
Lynne Walker   Council for British Archaeology 
Judy Jones Heritage Advisor British Waterways 
Mr J Cornell  Railway Heritage Trust 
Sir Coordinator Network Rail/ East Coast Mainline 
Sir Coordinator Victorian Society 
Sir Coordinator Twentieth Century Society 
Michael Slater Assistant Director  CYC City Strategy 
Martin Grainger Principle Forward Planning Officer CYC City Development  
Derek Gauld Principle Development Officer CYC City Development  
Esther Priestley Landscape Architect CYC DCSD  
Bob Missin Countryside Officer CYC DCSD 
John Oxley City Archaeologist CYC DCSD 
Verlie Riley Common Land Officer CYC DCSD 
Bob Sydes Renaissance Team CYC DCSD 
Jonathan Carr Head of Development Management CYC Development Management 
Simon Glazier Team Leader Major & Commercial  CYC Development Management 
Gareth Arnold Team Leader Householders & Small 

Scale 
CYC Development Management 

Ian Stokes Principle Transport Planner - Strategy CYC Transport Planning Unit 
Howard Watson Area Engineer CYC Highway Development 
Karen Streeton Support Services Manager CYC Development Management 
Pete Audin Head of Local Land Charges CYC Local Land Charges 
Andrew Docherty Assistant Director of Legal 

Governance and IT 
CYC Legal Services 

James Nicholson Neighbourhood Management Officer CYC Neighbourhood Management Unit 
 
 
 

Page 89



Page 90

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 91



Page 92

This page is intentionally left blank



Origin No. Officer Response Officer Recommendation/ Proposed 
Amendments

CYC 
Commons 
Registration

1 Noted. No change

Noted.

See 15 and 20. para 7.05 to be amended see 20

para 7.02 suggests an approach. The area is 
washed over as greenbelt and CYC policy SP2 
would apply including sequential testing of uses

No change

para 7.04 (Towthorpe) wording to be more directive. 
Suggestions for general items to be covered in 
other conservation areas considered adequate. 
River Lock to be included for Strensall.

Towthorpe 7.04 Article 4 (2) directions should be 
introduced to cover roofs, doors, windows, porches, 
boundary walls and gates. This would provide 
additional protection to the essentially agricultural 
character of many unlisted buildings within the area. 
It would also prevent the use of unsympathetic 
materials/styles. and allow control over design and 
materials used against the highway. For Strensall - 

ANNEX C - Schedule of Responses to Strensall Three CAA Consultations (10/12/10 - 28/01/11)

I have reviewed the proposed changes and there is no impact on and registered Village 
Greens or Common Land.

The panel highlighted the importance of the last section - “Future Management  
Suggestions” and recommended that proposals were more specific in each area  e.g. which 
elements should be covered by Article 4  directions?

Conservation 
Area Advisory 
Panel

2

Comment - Q1 qualities not mentioned?/ Q2 boundary correct?

Conservation Area Advisory Panel

Strensall Railway Buildings: the panel supported proposals to amend the boundary to 
include Station Yard and drew attention to previous  proposals for a new station stop in this 
location.  Officers will seek clarification from Transport Planning (TP3) and from Network 
Rail.
Towthorpe: The panel were supportive of conclusions that would recognise that the 
character of the CA was of farm buildings disposed in open space and that the importance 
of the space between the buildings must be recognised - recommendations should make 
clear how the character of the CA can be retained.

materials used against the highway. For Strensall - 
also see no27  

Member of 
Public

3 These areas are outside the village envelope and 
their protection is adequately covered by green belt 
policies and the SSSI status of the Common. 
Conservation Area legislation was introduced to 
protect the man-made environment and is therefore 
not appropriate in this instance. For the buildings to 
be included they should be of special significance to 
the socio-economic development area or to be of a 
character which reinforces the special appearance 
of the area.   Please also see no23. 

No change

Member of 
Public

4 No other qualities. Correct boundaries. Noted. No change

Member of 
Public

5 Conservation area should be extended to 
include open fields - open space and trees 
(see map - fields between railway and 
village).

Please see no3 above. In any future development 
proposals planners are duty bound by law to take 
account of the effect of proposals on the setting of 
conservation areas.  English Heritage have brought 
out specific guidance on setting. The area between 
the railway lines and the village is within the 
greenbelt and part of it is a Site of Importance for 
Nature Conservation (SINC)

No change

To help protect the environment and strengthen the character of Strensall this could be an 
opportunity to include the areas bounded by Ox Carr Lane and Flaxton Road encompassing 
the properties that front these roads running from Pasture Close and up to Lords Moor Lane. 
One side of Ox Carr Lane and Flaxton Road sits Strensall Common a SSSI (A Site of 
Special Scientific Interest) owned by the MOD and under the direction of Natural England.  
Could this area be given consideration? - separate conservation area of linear form as 
shown on the attached MAPS, I have include the area of woodland to the rear of Whitewalls, 
I think this would be an ideal opportunity to preserve the heritage and landscape of the area 
for future generations.

P
age 93



Member of 
Public

6 No, the reports have covered in depth the 
attributes of the respective areas.

No, the houses in Northfields currently in the 
CA are modern and out of context for a CA.

Initially these houses were proposed for removal but 
the site lies close to the heart of the historic village 
settlement and any redevelopment should be highly 
controlled due to its potential effect on the church 
and wider conservation area. So this proposal was 
reconsidered due to the historic significance of the 
area and the contribution of the mature trees within 
it which provide amenity for the wider area. See 
para 5.06

No change

Member of 
Public

7 The character appraisals are accurate. I support the proposals to extend the 
conservation area.

Noted. No change

Member of 
Public

8 My opinion is that as many areas as possible 
should be included in the Conservation Area.

Noted. Areas proposed for inclusion must be of 
special architectural or historic interest or be of high 
townscape value. 

No change

Member of 
Public

9 Yes, I agree the boundaries are correct, 
especially the proposed boundary in Moor 
Lane.

Noted No change

Member of 
Public

10 I do agree that Southfields Road should be 
reorganised according to the new boundary 
line shown on the plan Area B1.

Noted. No change

Member of 
Public

11 I agree with the appraisals. I am in full agreement of all the additions, in 
particular down Princess Road and Moor 
Lane.  I would also like to include and protect 
all the tall trees on the southern boundary 
that closed the vista part way down Moor 
Lane.

Noted. Also trees are covered in Strensall CAA para 
11.06

Strensall 11.06 management suggestion to be 
referred to DCSD section for action

Lane.
Member of 
Public

12 No, all plain houses (i.e. rest of Strensall?). Noted - though the appraisa describes some special 
qualities of the houses 

No change

Parish 
Council/ River 
Foss Society

13 Please see no 27 below To be referred to English Heritage  for specific 
inclusion in list description for Strensall New Bridge

Noted para 7.04 to be amended as in no2 above

The appraisal is succinct and it has been divided 
into small sections. We would be cautious about 
highlighting some aspects in case this is taken as 
meaning that other aspects are of lesser 
significance. 

DCSD officers will discuss with relevant officer in 
City Development whether there would be any 
benefit to producing a Planning Statement.  
Development Briefs are normally reserved for larger 
urban sites.

English 
Heritage

14 Towthorpe
 
This is a succinct, readable and carefully analysed summary of the special interest of the 
hamlet of Towthorpe and we are supportive of its approach and summary. We particularly 
endorse its conslusions that the residential conversion of the farm buildings would be 
detrimental to the character of the hamlet. Their use for commercial purposes is sensible in 
our view. We also endorse the need to review the listability of the unlisted historic buildings 
and secure an A4D to assist in the retention of the less tangible historic features such as 
hedges, fenestration and the like.We support the retention of the present boundary. 

One practical suggestion includes - It would help in getting to the heart of the special interest 
if the certain statements were to be made in bold. For example at 3.02 I suggest that  "The 
setting.....is dominated by open agricultural land" is the essence of this paragraph and in my 
experience planners will need to be able to quote such statements in reports etc.. and thus 
need to find them with ease in the document. One final point, has there been pressure for 
conversion of the outbuildings and if so would a Development Brief approach be helpful to 
be sure of retaining the special interest?

Keen to see if the canal locks could be looked at for possible inclusion in the appraisal and 
addition to the CA.  See plans and elevations of New Bridge and Lock chamber drawn for 
the River Foss Society.

P
age 94



The appraisal is succinct and it has been divided 
into small sections. We would be cautious about 
highlighting some aspects in case this is taken as 
meaning that other aspects are of lesser 
significance .  

DCSD to explore relevant aspects of management 
with Highways. The English Heritage survey 
summary reports will be placed on the general 
conservation area file EC67 for future reference. 

CYC 
Transport 
Planning

15 Noted. The appraisal should be reworded to 
accommodate this possibility in future. Please see 
no20.

Strensall Railway Buildings para 7.05 to be 
amended. See no20

Member of 
Public

16 No, these look great as they are!  Especially if 
it stops further developments, e.g. no housing 
estates on Towthorpe

We agree that boundaries should be altered.  
Of note, the recent Hogg development is not 
detailed on 'Strensall Railway Buildings' map, 
although not in conservation area, the map 
ought to be amended.

Towthorpe is within the greenbelt and this 
designation places restrictions on the extent and 
type of development

The maps for Strensall Railway Buildings have 
been checked and they appear to be correct within 
the appraisal document

A York North East Rail Scheme (YNERS) was proposed several years ago, which advocated 
rail 'shuttle' services between Strensall and York, calling at Haxby and York Hospital en 
route. However, the advice from the (then existing) Strategic Rail Authority was to 
concentrate on building a new station at Haxby for existing York Scarborough to call there. 

Although the new station at Haxby as proposed in LTP2 hasn't been built it is expected to be 
a medium-term project in LTP3 (commencing 2019 ish). Ultimately, this could be the 
precursor to the full YNERS, which would include Strensall, so a proposed extension to the 
Strensall Railway Buildings Conservation Area to include the former station yard may have a 
material affect on this.

Strensall
 
This too is readable although the size and scope of Strensall makes this a much more 
detailed assessment. Again some form of highlighting would be benficial especially as the 
pressure for development and infill is strong. The management proposals are sensible and 
given that much of the suggested scope for visual improvement lies within the control of the 
council (highways, lighting, planning enforcement) we hope that these can be secured by an 
agreed protocol within the Council.
 
Finally I am attaching for your interest the two summaries of the condition of these two 
conservation areas. We commissioned this research following the submission of returns to 
our CA@R survey of 2009 when both Strensall and Towthorpe were considered to be at risk. 
I am not sure that we have shared this information with council's for which I apologise and 
hope that you will find it of interest.

ought to be amended.

CBA/ Public 17 Thank you for clarifying this. The signal box is noted 
as being a landmark and also a building which 
makes a positive contribution to the area.

para 4.03 to be corrected to include the information 
supplied. Wording to be agreed with the consultant

Member of 
Public

18 The house has been included also for its 
significance to the village community as the former 
doctor's residence - please see para 5.05 for 
information. Conservation Area controls would not 
prevent the sort of changes you suggest being 
made, though Conservation Area Consent would be 
required if demolition was proposed.  The reasons 
for including Area A (Strensall Railway Buildings), 
the former station stop, are explained at 5.04. 
Inclusion of this area is important to the rationale 
behind the designation of this area. The poor 
buildings associated with the "builder's yard" are 
noted as being of negative value to the 
conservation area in map 4, so there is no intention 
to preserve them.

No changeI write in response to your proposal to extend the conservation area to include 101 The 
Village. In my humble opinion the house is or poor architectural merit, it is lacking in features 
and has its proportions all wrong. The house is a poor example of architecture of the period 
and should not be afforded Conservation Area status which would ultimately prevent the 
owner from making any cosmetic changes to improve its appearance. The house could 
benefit from a total makeover to improve the kerb appeal of the street and would benefit 
even greater from being demolished and another more fitting house to be built in its place. 
I oppose the move to extend the CA in this direction and laugh at the fact that you also want 
to preserve a derelict builder's yard!

Thanks for this information, having looked at the plans  the only comment that I have on the 
draft plan relates the Strensall Railway Buildings plan and specifically to the signal box.

Section 4.03 - Strensall Signal Box – the  current signal box is of a later pattern of North 
Eastern Railway box and dates from 1901. It is possibly the second signal box on the site, 
the earlier one was probably mid 1870s. When the York and NM built the line it did not have 
signal boxes as such so there would not have been one contemporary with the station 
buildings.

The North Eastern Railway built signal boxes on this line  from 1873 onwards.

P
age 95



Member of 
Public

19 SRB - There are a few houses along Brecks 
Lane associated with the old brick and 
tileworks, are these worthy of inclusion in the 
plan (2 cottages and 1 house).

I approve of the extended boundaries fro 
Strensall Railway Buildings area.

Conservation Area designation was introduced 
mainly to protect the special qualities of areas 
rather than of individual buildings. The Works has 
gone and the buildings, which have been altered, 
are not special in their own right. They are also 
separated from the village by the new bus terminus 

No change

Reasons for including the area in the Strensall 
Railway Buildings CAA have been outlined in 5.04. 
Its historical significance is intrinsic to the 
conservation area though the existing poor quality 
buildings relating to its use as a builder's yard are 
marked as being of negative value to the area.

No change to the proposed boundary extension

It is not the intention to prevent development but 
any development should respect the special historic 
features of the site and the site's potentially huge 
contribution to the streetscape as the it provides the 
termination to the vista looking east from the main 
village street (The Village)  

para 7.05 - omit reference to open character and 
wording of paragraph to be replaced by "Any future 
proposals for the former station site should allow for 
a new station stop to be created in accordance with 
the latest Network Rail or CYC Transport Planning 
initiatives. In addition proposals should demonstrate 
how existing historic features of the site have been 
incorporated into the scheme. Use of a landscape 
boundary should be considered in order to reinforce 
the site's relationship to existing trees and to the 
countryside beyond."   

Noted see above

Network Rail have concerns over the extension to the east (designated Area A within the 
CAA) on the following grounds:
·         As an active (and soon to be re-let) part of Network Rail’s commercial estate Network 
Rail would resist any alteration in designation which would place undue planning controls on 
this site.

·         We are concerned that the proposed designation will have a negative impact on 
Network Rail’s ability to develop the site and to maximise its commercial usage. 

·         As a not for dividend company which provides the Country’s rail infrastructure income 
from commercial operations (ie the letting of appropriate sites etc) is reinvested into the 
railway. Restriction on Network Rail’s ability to achieve commercial returns through the 
imposition of restrictive planning control is thus not in the travelling public’s interest. 

Network Rail 20

It is not the intention to prevent this sort of 
development. In principle the development of a 
station stop would be compatible with the character 
of the conservation area. 

see above

The site's location in relation to its potentially high 
impact on townscape character is another reason 
for inclusion (see last 5.04 last sentence)

see above

·         It is also the case that, in the longer term, City of York Council’s aspirations as 
expressed in the current LTP for the development of a new station / halt at Strensall in this 
area could be affected by the proposed designation. We would be concerned that the CAA 
could end up with conflicting adopted Policy Documents.

In addition

According to The  Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 in order to 
designate a conservation area the LPA must justify that it is ‘desirable to preserve or 
enhance’  ‘areas of special architectural or historic interest’. The justification for the 
extension of the CA in this direction is that (page 7 of the CAA) ‘In view of their historic 
association with the railway it is considered that the former station yard is worthy of inclusion 
within the designated area’. Whilst this association is not disputed Network Rail would 
suggest that a more substantial argument / justification should be provided based on the 
impact of this area on the CA. 

P
age 96



Noted.  The existing building is noted as being of 
negative value to the area on map 4

wording of para 7.05 to be altered to omit reference 
to open character (see above)

CPRE 21 Noted No change

Member of 
Public

22 The report was comprehensive and 
professional.  I agree with its contents and 
feel there is nothing to add.

I support the proposed changes to the 
conservation area, particularly the extension 
of Area C to include C1.

Noted. No change

Member of 
Public

23 I value the open views of the village across 
the field.  Open spaces, hedgerows and 
verges need protecting in addition to houses.  
Additional proposed area: the large houses 
on Flaxton Road, e.g. Windrush etc.

I support the proposed changes to the 
conservation areas.  In particular the 
extension of Area C to include C1 on Moor 
Lane.

Please see no3 above. Also hedges should be 
covered by the Hedgrow Regulations Act 1997, and 
the Common is a Special Protection Area (SPA) in 
addition to its SSSI status.  Part of the area 
between Southfield Road and the railway line has 
recently been declared a Site of Importance for 
Nature Conservation (SINC). Additional views south 
should be indicated.

Additional views south  from Southfield Road and 
The Village (SE end)  should be indicated on map 6 
Strensall CAA

Member of 
Public

24 Not to my knowledge. We support the proposed amendments to 
Strensall's conservation areas, in particular 

Noted No change

Thank you for inviting CPRE comments on the Draft Conservation Area Appraisals for 
Strensall.  We believe that the proposals reflect the true character and setting of the 
individual areas and are pleased to give them our support.

Of particular concern is the CAA statement that the site ‘has an open character which needs 
to be retained should the site be redeveloped in the future’. The former coal yard is a 
working commercial site and has been so for a considerable period. There has been no 
association with the working railway for a significant period. The site does not have a wholly 
open character, containing a building and coal drops, embankments, fencing and vegetation 
/ tree growth to the fringes. In addition development extends to the north and the east of the 
site and as such the site does not sit in isolation from surrounding building. It is clearly 
brown-field, developed land and as such its designation for retention as open space would 
be resisted.  In addition the suggested “openness” of the site would be effectively 
undermined by the construction of a station/halt in the future. The condition and 
undistinguished quality of the existing building on the site also undermines the suggested 
historic association of the yard. 

Public Strensall's conservation areas, in particular 
the extension to Princess Road/ Moor Lane.

Member of 
Public

25 We support the proposed amendments to 
Strensall's conservation areas, in particular 
the extension to Princess Road/ Moor Lane.

Noted No change

P
age 97



Member of 
Public

26 I support the proposed amendments to 
Strensall's conservation areas, in particular 
the extension to Princess Road/ Moor Lane.

Noted No change

These walls are included within the conservation 
area boundary already.

DCSD to refer matter to English Heritage for review 
of list description 

The double lock at Lock House is several hundred 
meters outside the built-up area and it is within the 
greenbelt; so conservation area designation is not 
appropriate. The lock immediately to the north-east 
of the Strensall Bridge is within an area designated 
as open space (policy GP7). Nature has gradually 
filled in the water courses and landings, though 
there is some evidence of the locks and later sluice 
gates in ruined condition above ground an an 
animal watering place is still detectable to the other 
side of Strensall Bridge. The Strensall conservation 
area appraisal makes general reference to these 
works at para 4.07 and they are shown on the 1852 
& 1911 OS maps. Conservation area designation 
protects townscape in its broadest sense and as the 
openness is already protected under GP7 
conservation area status would not add further 
protection. Other mechanisms should be found to 
highlight the significance of this area.     

Strensall CAA -para 4.07  reference work of River 
Foss Society for further infomation on this important 
industrial archaeology; para 8.5  replace third 
sentence with "The former lock walls remain to the 
east of the bridge, though they have been damaged 
by self-seeded trees";   (fourth sentence)  should be 
amended to refer to the important series of river 
locks running NE from Strensall and their high 
significance in terms of industrial archaeology, 
though they are now partially buried.  Exact wording 
to be agreed with the consultant. Locks to be 
referred to EH for consideration in respect of listing. 
Add 11.08 "It is recommended that a community 
archaeology project be prepared, in association with 
the River Foss Society, to assist in  further revealing 
the high significance of the navigation system to the 
wider public". 11.06 Add "Trees should be carefully 
removed from the lock walls adjacent to Strensall 
New Bridge to assist with their preservation. 
Replacement trees should be planted close to he 
area in accordance with CYC arboriculturalist 
recommendations"

The former towpath on the north bank is a clearly 
defined boundary and we agree that this should be 

Strensall CAA - the northern boundary line should 
be amended to include the path north of the river 

1.  We strongly support the suggestion in Para 11.07 that the listing of the Strensall New 
Bridge be amended to include the associated walls along the River.

2.  The Conservation Area should also be extended to include the surviving remains of the 
other two locks dating from the time of the Foss Navigation Company, namely the one just 
north-east of the John Carr Bridge (grid reference 6346110) and the double lock at Lock 
House (645618).

3.  We appreciate that the emphasis is on the conservation of the built environment but 
would like to suggest that the former towpath linking the three locks is also of historic 

River Foss 
Society

27

defined boundary and we agree that this should be 
included in the conservation area to protect the 
historic riverside setting, particularly where it runs 
through the tannery area which is not protected by 
greenbelt status. There are excellent views of the 
former Manor site from here as the land rises within 
the curve of the Foss, and the C19th church tower 
lies beyond (referred to in para 8.07)

be amended to include the path north of the river 
Foss within the area between the two bridges.  
Views from towpath south towards Manor House 
and church tower to be added to Map 6 (as 
amended in Annex E), and also views along 
towpath west towards Strensall Bridge to be added. 

28 Not that I am aware of. I support the posoposed amendments to the 
conservation area.

Noted No change

28a Noted Strensall CAA - paragraph to be added  in future 
management suggestions suggesting that a Section 
215 notice is pursued to assist in remedying the 
situation and other similar identified properties in 
Strensall village.  Exact wording to be agreed with 
consultants and legal services

Member of 
Public

29 You appear to have covered them thoroughly. We agree with the amendments shown to 
Strensall's Conservation Areas including the 
extension to Proncess Road/ Moor Lane.

Noted No change

Member of 
Public

I have returned the document supporting extension of the Strensall conservation areas.  It 
prompts me to say to you, however, that my belief in the value of this is seriously diminished 
by the fact that the house at 5 Princess Road has not only been left unoccupied for many 
years but has been completely neglected and is now a blight on the area.  What is the point 
of having a conservation area if an owner is permitted to do this?

would like to suggest that the former towpath linking the three locks is also of historic 
interest and should be included in the Conservation Area.  The former towpath now forms 
part of the Foss Walk and the Centenary Way, the public footpath which follows the north 
bank of the River Foss as it curves around Strensall.  This would entail extending the 
present boundary of the Conservation Ares to the opposite side of the River Foss and would 
have the advantage of giving additional protection to the view of the listed John Carr Bridge 
from the riverbank.

P
age 98



Please see no27 above. Thank you for this 
information

The information should be referred to in para 8.05.

Please see no27 above. Thank you for this 
information

Please see no27 above. Also refer to River Foss 
Society in para 8.05 Strensall CAA.

Please see no27 above. Thank you for this 
information

See no27 point 2 above. Also document should give 
reference to work of River Foss Society in para 8.05 
if the society agrees (Strensall CAA).

30Member of 
Public

By now you should have had from Tony the plans etc. which we have made from our survey 
of Strensall lower lock and the associated bridge. The two (upper and lower)locks in 
Strensall village are particularly interesting because they are the only two locks on the Foss 
navigation which were the responsibility of Mr William Scruton. The other locks to the south 
(between Strensall and York) were all built under Mr Moon's tenure and are of a different 
type to Mr Scruton's design (Moon was the first Superintendent of Works but was sacked as 
the Navigation approached Strensall. Scruton replaced Moon and brought the navigation 
into Strensall. The lower lock is the best preserved above ground of the two and,apart from 
the actual lock gates which have long since gone, still contains all the principal architectural 
elements and are clearly visible. The upper lock has largely been filled in but below ground 
there is probably much buried archaeology. We have not surveyed the above ground 
remains yet but an initial visit shows that a number of interesting features survive. 

After the closure of the navigation the upper ends of the locks were closed by a brick walls 
containing sluices so that water could still be directed through the former lock chambers 
when the need arose (perhaps when water levels were very high). The majority of the Foss 
Navigation locks have this feature but the wall at Strensall upper lock is particularly 
interesting because it still houses the intact winding gear for the sluice gate. Near the lock 
was a landing on the Navigation where goods were loaded and unloaded, beyond its site to 
the west is the surviving late eighteenth century road bridge(from Sheriff Hutton) built by 
John Carr. Beyond again are the remnants of the former tannery. These features thus 
combine to make an interesting archaeological area. Above Strensall near Warbutts is a 
staircase lock (comprising two locks with one built immediately up-slope of its companion) 
constructed in the very early nineteenth century. 

At this point the navigation ceased to follow the River Foss, and became a canal-like 
structure to Sheriff Hutton Bridge thereby avoiding the need to follow a massive and long 
bend in the route of the Foss. In other words the canal cut off the bend by being constructed 
across the latter's neck. The staircase (or double) lock took the the waterway up out of the 
flood plain and on to the top of the terrace above. We have not visited this part yet but from 

Member of 
Public

31 Noted No changeConservation area C and C1
I would like to add my support to the retention of and/or extension to the present 
conservation areas as outlined by the City of York Council in their leaflet published by the 
City Strategy Directorate in December 2010.  In particular to the C1 extension along 
Princess Road/Moor Lane highlighting the importance of some of the properties and their 
relevance to the historic development of the railways in and around York.  Many good 
buildings relevant to the railways have been allowed to be demolished and the land 
redeveloped in an unsympathetic way losing the visible and “walking” history of the 
development of our village.  This should not be allowed to happen further and the extension 
of the conservation area should help to support that view. 

flood plain and on to the top of the terrace above. We have not visited this part yet but from 
walking along the near-by footpath, it is clear that substantial remains survive of the double 
lock in what is now a private garden. This is the only lock of this type on the whole of the 
Foss Navigation.  I trust the above is of interest

P
age 99



Several points noted. Works to trees within the 
conservation require notice. Southlands Road has 
been included as it marks the historic back lane of 
the village. Part of the land between here and the 
railway line is a SINC and the wider open area is 
designated as greenbelt - see no3 & no23 above. 
Article 4 Directions can be used to prevent 
incremental loss of some special features which 
currently fall outside planning control. They should 
be subject to public consultation to assess strength 
of support. Some management suggestions (eg 
signage, shop-fronts) would be controlled through 
the development application process and others in 
liaison with Highways (eg street lighting). Bridges 
are usually looked after by CYC Highway 
Engineers. Please see no20 for info re potential 
station

DCSD to  consider tree survey for village and its 
setting. para 11.06 added re trees at Strensall New 
Bridge (see no27 above). 

Noted The Local Authority will refer the matter of the canal 
locks to English Heritage.  Please see 13 & 27 
above. 

COMMENTS FROM LOCAL INFORMATION SESSION 11/01/11 ~25 attendees:
- Definately need to survey the village trees with a view to TPOs where necessary to 
preserve the village landscape.
- Correct boundaries.
- Agree with Princess Road extension/ Moor Lane.
- Agree with Southlands Road extension.
- Protect the trees within and adjoining the conservation area.
- Retain the open space/ protect the openess between Southlands Road and the railway 
line.
- Should the south side of Southlands Road also be included as it is a similar style of 
housing?
- New area along Lord's Moor Lane from the golf club to the cattle grid at Moorside Caravan 
Park; lovely setting of established oak trees on each side, forms setting for SSSI Common, 
rural splendour (SEE MAP FROM EVENT).
- Is it in the Parish's interest to pursue article 4 directions?
- How will future management suggestions be implemented?
- Listing of Strensall New Bridge (known locally as 'Humpy Bridge'), who will pay for 
maintainance, it is being damaged by self seeding ashes. 
- Extension A2 was previously proposed to be the site of a new railway station. 

Strensall with 
Towthorpe 
Parish Council 
08/02/2011

32 The Parish Council considered the spreadsheet from City of York Council containing 
comments from members of the public and outside bodies on the three draft Appraisals and 
was heartened to note that the overwhelming response was positive. It is hoped that where 
action is needed, this will be taken. 

Of particular mention, comment 13, the suggestion for inclusion of  the canal locks on The 
River Foss to be given Listed Status associated with Strensall New Bridge, but concerns 
were expressed about how this can be processed. 

Noted An explanatory leaflet should be prepared to explain  
Article 4 directions and procedures, though this 
action has not yet been prioritized within the Design 
Conservation and Sustainable Development 
(DCSD) work programme. Network Rail will be 
contacted directly about the coal cells so their 
leasee can be advised. 

Normally a Managemnt Plan is prepared by the LA 
but current resources do not allow for such a 
comprehensive approach. 

The relevant departments will be made aware of the 
management suggestions though.  

We will distribute a copy of our 'A practical guide to 
living within a Conservation Area for householders' 
leaflet with a letter/ plan to those within the new 
extensions.

The Parish Council would appreciate guidance on the procedures involved in Article 4 
direction and enforcement as indicated in Comment 2 by the Conservation Area Advisory 
Panel. This issue was raised by members of the Parish Council, specifically about protecting 
the coal cells in the old Station Yard, now the property of Network Rail and, it is understood 
has been recently leased to a rail property maintenance contractor. However, Article 4 
direction has a wider context and your views on extending such direction to cover each 
entire Conservation Area, is sought.

Your views are also requested on the maintenance of the conservation area to ensure their 
preservation in the future. 

The entire Appraisal process has proceeded very smoothly and the Appraisals themselves 
were conducted and delivered in a thoroughly professional manner. Can we assume that 
after formal approval by City of York Council, those residents who will then find themselves 
within the expanded boundaries of the Conservation Areas will be notified and the 
implications of the change drawn to their attention?

P
age 100



S
T

R
E

N
S

A
L

L
 C

O
N

S
E

R
V

A
T

IO
N

  
A

R
E

A
 A

P
P

R
A

IS
A

L
  
 

  

In
 a

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 
w

ith
 S

tr
en

sa
ll 

w
ith

 T
ow

th
or

pe
 

Pa
ri

sh
 C

ou
nc

il 

Page 101



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Pa

ge
 

 
 1 

In
tr

od
uc

tio
n 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  2

 
 

 2 
Lo

ca
tio

n 
an

d 
C

on
te

xt
  

 
 

 
 

 
  3

 
 

 
 

   
 

 
 

3 
 T

op
og

ra
ph

y 
an

d 
Se

tt
in

g 
 

 
 

 
 

  4
 

  
  

   
4 

 H
ist

or
ic

al
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t  

 
 

 
   

   
   

   
 5

 
 5 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

Bo
un

da
ry

 
 

 
 

 
  8

 
   

 
 

6 
G

en
er

al
 C

ha
ra

ct
er

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 1

0 
 

  
7 

 C
hu

rc
h 

La
ne

 
 

   
 

 
 

 
   

   
   

 1
2 

 8 
M

an
or

 F
ar

m
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 1

4 
 9 

Th
e 

Vi
lla

ge
  

 
 

   
 

   
 

 
 1

6 
 10

 
Pr

in
ce

ss
 R

oa
d/

M
oo

r 
La

ne
 

 
 

 
 

 
 1

9 
   

 11
 

Fu
tu

re
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
Su

gg
es

tio
ns

 
 

 
 

  
  2

1 
   

 
  

A
PP

EN
D

IX
 A

 - 
Li

st
ed

 B
ui

ld
in

g 
D

es
cr

ip
tio

ns
 

 
   St

re
ns

al
l C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
C

ha
ra

ct
er

 A
pp

ra
isa

l, 
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
10

 
1 

C
O

N
T

E
N

T
S

 

Th
is 

do
cu

m
en

t 
w

as
 p

re
pa

re
d 

in
 N

ov
em

be
r 

20
10

 
by

 W
oo

dh
al

l P
la

nn
in

g 
an

d 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

on
 b

eh
al

f 
of

 t
he

 C
ity

 o
f Y

or
k 

C
ou

nc
il.

  T
he

 fo
rm

at
 a

nd
 

co
nt

en
t 

w
er

e 
ag

re
ed

 w
ith

 t
he

 D
es

ig
n,

 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

an
d 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
Se

ct
io

n 
of

 C
ity

 o
f Y

or
k 

C
ou

nc
il,

 a
nd

 t
he

 d
oc

um
en

t 
w

as
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

by
 t

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
on

 …
…

...
 

   

Page 102



St
re

ns
al

l C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

C
ha

ra
ct

er
 A

pp
ra

isa
l, 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
 

2 

1
 

IN
T

R
O

D
U

C
T

IO
N

 

1.
01

 A
 c

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

ar
ea

 is
 d

ef
in

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 (L

ist
ed

 B
ui

ld
in

gs
 a

nd
 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
as

) A
ct

 1
99

0 
as

 a
n 

ar
ea

 
of

 s
pe

ci
al

 a
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

al
 o

r 
hi

st
or

ic
 

in
te

re
st

, (
th

e 
ch

ar
ac

te
r 

or
 a

pp
ea

ra
nc

e 
of

 
w

hi
ch

) i
s 

de
sir

ab
le

 t
o 

pr
es

er
ve

 o
r 

en
ha

nc
e.

  S
ec

tio
n 

69
 o

f t
he

 A
ct

 r
eq

ui
re

s 
Lo

ca
l P

la
nn

in
g 

A
ut

ho
ri

tie
s 

to
 id

en
tif

y 
an

d 
de

sig
na

te
 c

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

ar
ea

s 
w

ith
in

 t
he

ir
 

ge
og

ra
ph

ic
al

 b
ou

nd
ar

ie
s 

an
d 

to
 

fo
rm

ul
at

e,
 in

 c
on

ju
nc

tio
n 

w
ith

 t
he

 p
ub

lic
, 

pr
op

os
al

s 
fo

r 
th

ei
r 

pr
es

er
va

tio
n 

an
d 

en
ha

nc
em

en
t 

(S
ec

tio
ns

 7
1 

an
d 

72
 o

f t
he

 
A

ct
). 

 T
he

 A
ct

 p
la

ce
s 

a 
du

ty
 u

po
n 

Lo
ca

l 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 A

ut
ho

ri
tie

s 
to

 r
ev

ie
w

 t
he

 e
xt

en
t 

of
 t

he
 c

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

ar
ea

s. 

1.
02

 S
tr

en
sa

ll 
is 

a 
hi

st
or

ic
 v

ill
ag

e,
 lo

ca
te

d 
to

 
th

e 
no

rt
h 

of
 Y

or
k 

(s
ee

 M
ap

 1
). 

 T
he

 
St

re
ns

al
l C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
w

as
 

de
sig

na
te

d 
in

 1
97

9 
an

d 
w

as
 e

xt
en

de
d 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
pu

bl
ic

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

in
 2

00
1t

o 
in

cl
ud

e 
ri

ve
rs

id
e 

pa
st

ur
e 

la
nd

 a
nd

 
pa

dd
oc

ks
 t

o 
th

e 
no

rt
h-

w
es

t, 
bu

ild
in

gs
 

al
on

g 
W

es
t 

En
d 

an
d 

so
ut

h 
al

on
g 

Pr
in

ce
ss

 
Ro

ad
 s

ee
 M

ap
 2

.  
In

 a
dd

iti
on

, a
 s

m
al

l a
re

a 
on

 t
he

 e
as

te
rn

 e
dg

e 
of

 t
he

 v
ill

ag
e 

is 
de

sig
na

te
d 

as
 t

he
 S

tr
en

sa
ll 

Ra
ilw

ay
 

Bu
ild

in
gs

 C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

an
d 

th
is 

is 
th

e 
su

bj
ec

t 
of

 a
 s

ep
ar

at
e 

A
pp

ra
isa

l 
do

cu
m

en
t. 

   

1.
03

 
Th

is 
re

po
rt

 c
on

ta
in

s 
an

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t o

f t
he

 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
an

d 
is 

in
 fo

ur
 

se
ct

io
ns

.  
Th

e 
fir

st
 p

ar
t 

(C
ha

pt
er

s 
1-

4)
 

se
ts

 t
he

 s
ce

ne
 b

y 
an

al
ys

in
g 

th
e 

hi
st

or
y 

an
d 

ba
se

lin
e 

fa
ct

or
s 

of
 t

he
 c

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

ar
ea

. T
he

 s
ec

on
d 

pa
rt

 (C
ha

pt
er

 5
) 

re
vi

ew
s 

th
e 

ex
te

nt
 o

f t
he

 C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

as
 d

es
ig

na
te

d 
an

d 
ex

pl
ai

ns
 t

he
 

re
as

on
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

re
ce

nt
 r

ev
isi

on
 o

f i
ts

 
bo

un
da

ri
es

. T
he

 t
hi

rd
 p

ar
t 

de
sc

ri
be

s 
th

e 
ar

ea
 a

s 
re

vi
se

d,
 fi

rs
tly

 in
 g

en
er

al
 t

er
m

s 
(C

ha
pt

er
 6

) a
nd

 t
he

n,
 in

 m
or

e 
de

ta
il,

 a
s 

 
fo

ur
 s

ub
-a

re
as

 (C
ha

pt
er

s 
7-

10
 ).

 T
he

 fi
na

l 
pa

rt
 (C

ha
pt

er
 1

1)
 d

isc
us

se
s 

th
e 

m
ea

su
re

s 
th

at
 c

ou
ld

 b
e 

in
tr

od
uc

ed
 w

ith
in

 t
he

 
de

sig
na

te
d 

ar
ea

 in
 o

rd
er

 t
o 

pr
es

er
ve

 a
nd

 
en

ha
nc

e 
its

 c
ha

ra
ct

er
 a

nd
 a

pp
ea

ra
nc

e.
 

 1.
04

 T
he

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t 

is 
ba

se
d 

on
 fi

el
d 

w
or

k 
in

 
A

ug
us

t 
an

d 
Se

pt
em

be
r 

20
10

 a
nd

 is
 

lim
ite

d 
to

 t
he

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
 a

nd
 a

re
as

 v
isi

bl
e 

fr
om

 t
he

 p
ub

lic
 d

om
ai

n.
   

1.
05

 S
tr

en
sa

ll 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
A

pp
ra

isa
l 

w
as

 a
pp

ro
ve

d 
as

 a
 s

up
po

rt
in

g 
do

cu
m

en
t 

to
 t

he
 c

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

po
lic

ie
s 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 

th
e 

C
ity

 o
f Y

or
k'

s 
dr

af
t 

Lo
ca

l P
la

n 
(in

co
rp

or
at

in
g 

th
e 

fo
ur

th
 s

et
 o

f c
ha

ng
es

) 
by

 t
he

 P
la

nn
in

g 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 o
f C

ity
 o

f 
Yo

rk
 C

ou
nc

il 
 to

 b
e 

in
se

rte
d.

  T
he

 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
A

pp
ra

isa
l w

ill
 a

lso
 b

e 

us
ed

 t
o 

in
fo

rm
 t

he
 e

m
er

gi
ng

 L
oc

al
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
Fr

am
ew

or
k.

 

   

M
ap

 1
 

Page 103



St
re

ns
al

l C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

C
ha

ra
ct

er
 A

pp
ra

isa
l, 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
 

3 

2
 

L
O

C
A

T
IO

N
 A

N
D

 C
O

N
T

E
X

T
 

 2
.0

1 
Th

e 
St

re
ns

al
l C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
lie

s 
ap

pr
ox

im
at

el
y 

5 
ki

lo
m

et
re

s 
no

rt
h 

of
 Y

or
k 

ci
ty

 c
en

tr
e.

  T
he

 c
or

e 
of

 t
he

 v
ill

ag
e 

is 
on

 
th

e 
so

ut
h 

sid
e 

of
 t

he
 R

iv
er

 F
os

s 
an

d 
is 

po
sit

io
ne

d 
be

tw
ee

n 
th

e 
B1

36
3 

an
d 

A
64

 
(s

ee
 M

ap
 1

). 
 T

he
 S

tr
en

sa
ll 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

co
ve

rs
 t

he
 h

ea
rt

 o
f t

he
 h

ist
or

ic
 

se
tt

le
m

en
t 

to
 t

he
 n

or
th

 o
f t

he
 r

ai
lw

ay
 li

ne
 

(s
ee

 P
la

te
 1

). 

2.
02

  T
he

 d
es

ig
na

te
d 

ar
ea

 is
 fo

cu
se

d 
ar

ou
nd

 t
he

 
hi

st
or

ic
 c

or
e 

of
 t

he
 v

ill
ag

e 
an

d 
in

cl
ud

es
 S

t 
M

ar
y’

s 
C

hu
rc

h 
to

 w
es

t, 
fa

rm
la

nd
 u

p 
to

 t
he

 
Ri

ve
r 

Fo
ss

 t
o 

th
e 

no
rt

h 
an

d 
th

e 
pr

op
er

tie
s 

on
 b

ot
h 

sid
es

 o
f t

he
 m

ai
n 

ro
ad

, T
he

 V
ill

ag
e,

 
as

 fa
r 

as
 N

or
th

fie
ld

s 
to

 t
he

 e
as

t. 
 

 
 

   
Pl

at
e 

1 
 A

er
ia

l v
ie

w
  

Page 104



St
re

ns
al

l C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

C
ha

ra
ct

er
 A

pp
ra

isa
l, 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
 

4 

3
 

T
O

P
O

G
R

A
P

H
Y

 A
N

D
 L

A
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

 S
E

T
T

IN
G

 

3.
01

 S
tr

en
sa

ll 
vi

lla
ge

 o
cc

up
ie

s 
pa

rt
 o

f a
 fl

at
 

op
en

 a
re

a 
to

 t
he

 s
ou

th
 o

f t
he

 R
iv

er
 F

os
s. 

 
Th

e 
vi

lla
ge

 it
se

lf 
is 

su
rr

ou
nd

ed
 b

y 
fie

ld
s 

to
 

th
e 

no
rt

h,
 e

as
t 

an
d 

w
es

t. 
 T

he
se

 a
re

as
 o

f 
op

en
 g

ro
un

d 
en

ab
le

 lo
ng

 d
ist

an
ce

 v
ie

w
s 

to
w

ar
ds

 t
he

 v
ill

ag
e 

fr
om

 t
he

 n
or

th
, i

n 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

 t
ow

ar
ds

 t
he

 c
hu

rc
h 

an
d 

M
an

or
 

Fa
rm

 w
hi

ch
 a

re
 s

et
 o

n 
sli

gh
tly

 h
ig

he
r 

gr
ou

nd
.  

To
 t

he
 s

ou
th

 o
f t

he
 v

ill
ag

e 
is 

St
re

ns
al

l C
om

m
on

 a
nd

 S
tr

en
sa

ll 
A

rm
y 

C
am

p.
 

 3.
02

 T
he

 im
m

ed
ia

te
 s

et
tin

g 
of

 t
he

 d
es

ig
na

te
d 

ar
ea

 is
 d

om
in

at
ed

 b
y 

tw
en

tie
th

-c
en

tu
ry

 
ho

us
in

g 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
to

 s
ou

th
, w

es
t 

an
d 

ea
st

, t
ho

ug
h 

tr
ee

 fr
in

ge
s 

he
lp

 t
o 

m
iti

ga
te

 
th

ei
r 

ef
fe

ct
.  

To
 t

he
 n

or
th

 li
es

 o
pe

n 
gr

ou
nd

 u
se

d 
fo

r 
ag

ri
cu

ltu
ra

l p
ur

po
se

s 
(s

ee
 P

la
te

 2
). 

 A
lth

ou
gh

 t
he

 im
m

ed
ia

te
 

se
tt

in
g,

 a
dj

ac
en

t 
to

 S
tr

en
sa

ll 
Br

id
ge

, i
s 

co
m

pr
om

ise
d 

by
 t

he
 p

ar
tia

lly
 d

em
ol

ish
ed

 
fo

rm
er

 t
an

ne
ry

 b
ui

ld
in

g.
  A

s 
a 

re
su

lt 
th

e 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
is 

pr
ed

om
in

an
tly

 
en

cl
os

ed
 b

y 
su

rr
ou

nd
in

g 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
w

ith
 o

nl
y 

th
e 

op
en

 g
ro

un
d 

to
 t

he
 n

or
th

 
pr

ov
id

in
g 

re
lie

f t
o 

th
is 

en
cl

os
ur

e.
   

          
 

 

Pl
at

e 
2 

Vi
ew

 w
es

t 
ou

t o
f t

he
 d

es
ig

na
te

d 
 

ar
ea

 fr
om

 S
tr

en
sa

ll 
N

ew
 B

ri
dg

e 
 

Page 105



St
re

ns
al

l C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

C
ha

ra
ct

er
 A

pp
ra

isa
l, 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
 

5 

4
 

H
IS

T
O

R
IC

A
L

 D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 

 
 

4.
01

 T
he

 n
am

e 
St

re
ns

al
l p

ro
ba

bl
y 

in
di

ca
te

s 
an

 
A

ng
lo

-S
ax

on
 s

et
tle

m
en

t, 
al

th
ou

gh
 t

he
re

 
m

ay
 h

av
e 

be
en

 a
ct

iv
ity

 in
 o

r 
ar

ou
nd

 t
he

 
sit

e 
of

 t
he

 v
ill

ag
e 

at
 e

ar
lie

r 
pe

ri
od

s. 
 P

re
-

hi
st

or
ic

 a
nd

 R
om

an
 r

em
ai

ns
 h

av
e 

be
en

 
fo

un
d 

in
 t

he
 a

re
a 

an
d 

it 
m

ay
 h

av
e 

al
w

ay
s 

be
en

 a
 c

on
ve

ni
en

t 
cr

os
sin

g 
po

in
t 

of
 t

he
 

Ri
ve

r 
Fo

ss
.  

It 
ha

s 
be

en
 s

ug
ge

st
ed

 t
ha

t 
th

e 
vi

lla
ge

 w
as

 t
he

 s
ite

 o
f t

he
 S

yn
od

 o
f 

W
hi

tb
y,

 w
hi

ch
 m

ay
 in

di
ca

te
 t

ha
t 

it 
w

as
 

al
so

 a
n 

ea
rl

y 
m

on
as

tic
 s

ite
.  

  
 4.

02
 S

tr
en

sa
ll 

w
as

 in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 t

he
 D

om
es

da
y 

Su
rv

ey
 o

f 1
08

6,
 a

s 
on

e 
of

 t
he

 e
st

at
es

 o
f 

th
e 

A
rc

hb
ish

op
 o

f Y
or

k,
 a

nd
 it

 w
as

 
de

sc
ri

be
d 

as
; “

St
re

ns
ha

le
, S

as
fo

rd
 a

nd
 

Tu
rc

hi
l h

el
d 

fiv
e 

ge
ld

ab
le

 c
ar

cu
ca

te
s 

of
 S

t 
Pe

te
r.

  T
he

re
 is

 la
nd

 fo
r 

tw
o 

pl
ou

gh
s, 

it 
is 

w
as

te
.”

  A
t 

th
is 

ea
rl

y 
pe

ri
od

 S
tr

en
sa

ll 
ap

pe
ar

s 
to

 h
av

e 
be

en
 w

ith
in

 t
he

 fo
re

st
 o

f 
G

al
tr

es
 t

ha
t 

st
re

tc
he

d 
no

rt
h 

of
 Y

or
k.

  
Th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 t
he

 t
hi

rt
ee

nt
h 

ce
nt

ur
y 

th
e 

pr
eb

en
da

ri
es

 o
f S

tr
en

sa
ll 

(o
ne

 o
f t

he
 

ca
no

ns
 o

f S
t. 

Pe
te

r’
s, 

Yo
rk

) d
ev

el
op

ed
 

th
ei

r 
ow

n 
hu

nt
in

g 
pr

es
er

ve
 o

n 
th

e 
ed

ge
 

of
 t

he
 r

oy
al

 fo
re

st
.  

 4.
03

  
M

an
or

 F
ar

m
 (f

or
m

er
ly

 k
no

w
n 

as
 

St
re

ns
al

l H
al

l) 
oc

cu
pi

es
 a

 m
oa

te
d 

sit
e 

w
hi

ch
 w

as
 p

ro
ba

bl
y 

th
e 

ad
m

in
ist

ra
tiv

e 
ce

nt
re

 o
f t

he
 v

ill
ag

e 
fr

om
 t

he
 e

ar
ly

 
m

ed
ie

va
l p

er
io

d 
(a

nd
 p

os
sib

ly
 e

ar
lie

r)
.  

Pl
at

e 
3 

Vi
ew

 e
as

t 
al

on
g 

Th
e 

Vi
lla

ge
 

Pl
at

e 
4 

Vi
ew

 e
as

t 
al

on
g 

Th
e 

Vi
lla

ge
 

Th
e 

la
nd

 c
lo

se
 t

o 
th

e 
ha

ll 
w

as
 k

no
w

n 
as

 
C

on
ey

 G
ar

th
s 

an
d 

m
ay

 b
e 

th
e 

sit
e 

of
 t

he
 

fr
ee

 w
ar

re
n 

gr
an

te
d 

to
 G

er
ar

d 
de

 
Vu

ip
pe

ns
 in

 1
29

2 
(‘c

on
ey

’ b
ei

ng
 a

no
th

er
 

na
m

e 
fo

r 
ra

bb
it)

.  
O

th
er

 e
vi

de
nc

e 
fo

r 
th

e 
ea

rl
y 

hi
st

or
y 

of
 t

he
 s

et
tle

m
en

t 
in

cl
ud

es
 

th
e 

pr
es

en
ce

 o
f r

id
ge

 a
nd

 fu
rr

ow
 (s

ig
ns

 o
f 

m
ed

ie
va

l p
lo

ug
hi

ng
) a

ro
un

d 
th

e 
vi

lla
ge

. 
 4.

04
 S

tr
en

sa
ll 

ha
s 

a 
ty

pi
ca

l m
ed

ie
va

l p
at

te
rn

 o
f 

pr
op

er
tie

s, 
w

ith
 n

ar
ro

w
-fr

on
te

d 
pl

ot
s 

of
 

la
nd

 t
ha

t 
ex

te
nd

 b
ac

k 
on

 e
ith

er
 s

id
e 

of
  a

 
sin

gl
e 

w
es

t-
ea

st
 s

tr
ee

t 
(t

he
 p

re
se

nt
 

C
hu

rc
h 

La
ne

 a
nd

 T
he

 V
ill

ag
e 

- s
ee

 P
la

te
s 

3 
&

 4
). 

 T
he

 p
lo

ts
 o

n 
th

e 
no

rt
h 

sid
e 

w
er

e 
bo

un
de

d 
by

 t
he

 R
iv

er
 F

os
s 

an
d 

th
os

e 
on

 
th

e 
so

ut
h 

sid
e 

st
re

tc
he

d 
to

 B
ac

k 
La

ne
 

(n
ow

 S
ou

th
fie

ld
s 

Ro
ad

). 
 O

th
er

 r
oa

ds
 le

d 
ou

t 
of

 t
he

 v
ill

ag
e 

to
 t

he
 n

or
th

 a
nd

 s
ou

th
.  

Th
e 

ch
ur

ch
 w

as
 a

t 
th

e 
w

es
t 

en
d 

of
 t

he
 

vi
lla

ge
, c

lo
se

 t
o 

th
e 

ha
ll.

  T
he

 m
ed

ie
va

l 
fie

ld
s 

la
y 

on
 b

ot
h 

sid
es

 o
f t

he
 R

iv
er

 F
os

s, 
w

ith
 c

om
m

on
 la

nd
 (S

tr
en

sa
ll 

C
om

m
on

) 
to

 t
he

 s
ou

th
 o

f t
he

 v
ill

ag
e.

  T
he

 
in

ha
bi

ta
nt

s 
of

 th
e 

vi
lla

ge
 a

lso
 h

ad
 g

ra
zi

ng
 

ri
gh

ts
 w

ith
in

 t
he

 fo
re

st
.  

   
   

   
 4.

05
 T

he
 h

ea
rt

h 
ta

x 
re

tu
rn

s 
fo

r 
16

63
 s

ug
ge

st
 

th
at

 t
he

re
 w

er
e 

ar
ou

nd
 4

6 
ho

us
es

 w
ith

in
 

th
e 

vi
lla

ge
 a

t 
th

at
 d

at
e,

 w
ith

 a
 li

ke
ly

 
po

pu
la

tio
n 

of
 a

pp
ro

xi
m

at
el

y 
20

0.
  T

he
 

en
cl

os
ur

e 
of

 t
he

 m
ed

ie
va

l f
ie

ld
s 

du
rin

g 
Pl

at
e 

5 
St

 M
ar

y’
s 

C
hu

rc
h 

Page 106



th
e 

se
ve

nt
ee

nt
h 

an
d 

ei
gh

te
en

th
 c

en
tu

ri
es

 
an

d 
a 

co
rr

es
po

nd
in

g 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
in

 
ag

ri
cu

ltu
re

 le
d 

to
 a

 s
lo

w
 in

cr
ea

se
 in

 t
he

 
siz

e 
of

 t
he

 v
ill

ag
e,

 w
hi

ch
 b

y 
18

01
 h

ad
 a

 
po

pu
la

tio
n 

of
 2

97
.  

U
nu

su
al

ly
, t

he
 

en
cl

os
ed

 fi
el

ds
 s

ee
m

 t
o 

ha
ve

 r
et

ai
ne

d 
th

e 
fo

rm
 s

om
et

hi
ng

 o
f t

he
 lo

ng
 n

ar
ro

w
 s

tr
ip

s 
th

at
 a

re
 c

ha
ra

ct
er

ist
ic

 o
f f

ar
m

in
g 

pa
tt

er
ns

 
w

ith
in

 m
ed

ie
va

l f
ie

ld
s. 

 A
lso

, S
tr

en
sa

ll 
C

om
m

on
 r

em
ai

ne
d 

op
en

 u
nt

il 
th

e 
la

te
 

ni
ne

te
en

th
 c

en
tu

ry
. 

 4.
06

 A
 s

ch
oo

l w
as

 fo
un

de
d 

in
 S

tr
en

sa
ll 

in
 

17
18

-1
9,

 p
ro

ba
bl

y 
on

 t
he

 s
ite

 o
f t

he
 

ni
ne

te
en

th
 c

en
tu

ry
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

th
at

 h
as

 
re

ce
nt

ly
 b

ee
n 

co
nv

er
te

d 
in

to
 r

es
id

en
tia

l 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
io

n.
  T

he
 c

hu
rc

h 
w

as
 

co
m

pl
et

el
y 

re
bu

ilt
 b

et
w

ee
n 

18
01

 a
nd

 
18

03
, o

nl
y 

to
 b

e 
re

pl
ac

ed
 a

ga
in

 in
 1

86
5-

6 
(s

ee
 P

la
te

 5
). 

 
 4.

07
 T

he
 F

os
s 

N
av

ig
at

io
n 

C
om

pa
ny

 w
as

 
fo

rm
ed

 in
 1

79
3 

w
ith

 t
he

 in
te

nt
io

n 
of

 
fo

rm
in

g 
a 

na
vi

ga
bl

e 
lin

k 
be

tw
ee

n 
th

e 
ju

nc
tio

n 
of

 t
he

 R
iv

er
s 

Fo
ss

 a
nd

 O
us

e 
in

 
ce

nt
ra

l Y
or

k 
no

rt
h 

to
 S

til
lin

gt
on

 M
ill

.  
D

ur
in

g 
17

96
 a

nd
 1

79
7 

tw
o 

lo
ck

s 
an

d 
a 

br
id

ge
 (S

tr
en

sa
ll 

N
ew

 B
ri

dg
e 

- S
ee

 P
la

te
 

6)
 w

er
e 

co
ns

tr
uc

te
d 

at
 S

tr
en

sa
ll 

as
 p

ar
t 

of
 t

hi
s 

w
or

k.
  D

ur
in

g 
th

e 
fir

st
 fi

ve
 y

ea
rs

 
of

 t
he

 n
in

et
ee

nt
h 

ce
nt

ur
y 

a 
ca

na
l w

as
 d

ug
 

fr
om

 n
or

th
 o

f S
tr

en
sa

ll 
to

 S
he

ri
ff 

H
ut

to
n 

Br
id

ge
 b

ut
 w

or
k 

th
en

 s
to

pp
ed

.  
St

re
ns

al
l 

Br
id

ge
, d

es
ig

ne
d 

by
 t

he
 e

m
in

en
t 

Yo
rk

 
ar

ch
ite

ct
 Jo

hn
 C

ar
r,

 w
as

 c
on

st
ru

ct
ed

 in
 

17
98

, r
ep

la
ci

ng
 a

n 
ea

rl
ie

r 
br

id
ge

.  
 

 4.
08

 T
he

 e
ig

ht
ee

nt
h 

an
d 

ea
rly

 n
in

et
ee

nt
h 

ce
nt

ur
ie

s 
ap

pe
ar

 t
o 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
a 

tim
e 

of
 

pr
os

pe
ri

ty
 fo

r 
th

e 
vi

lla
ge

 a
s 

m
an

y 
of

 t
he

 
ol

de
r 

ho
us

es
 d

at
e 

fr
om

 t
hi

s 
pe

ri
od

.  
A

lso
, 

a 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 n
ew

 r
el

ig
io

us
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 w
er

e 
er

ec
te

d,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

a 
Q

ua
ke

r 
m

ee
tin

g 
ho

us
e,

 a
nd

 t
w

o 
M

et
ho

di
st

 c
ha

pe
ls 

(o
ne

 
Pr

im
iti

ve
, t

he
 o

th
er

 W
es

le
ya

n-
Se

e 
Pl

at
e 

7)
.  

Th
is 

pe
rio

d 
m

ay
 a

lso
 h

av
e 

se
en

 t
he

 
es

ta
bl

ish
m

en
t 

of
 t

he
 t

an
ne

ry
 o

n 
th

e 
no

rt
h 

sid
e 

of
 t

he
 r

iv
er

, n
ex

t 
to

 t
he

 b
ri

dg
e.

 
 4.

09
 T

he
 o

pe
ni

ng
 o

f t
he

 Y
or

k 
to

 S
ca

rb
or

ou
gh

 
ra

ilw
ay

 in
 1

84
5,

 w
hi

ch
 r

an
 t

o 
th

e 
so

ut
h 

of
 

th
e 

vi
lla

ge
, l

ed
 t

o 
a 

ra
pi

d 
re

du
ct

io
n 

in
 t

he
 

us
e 

of
 t

he
 c

an
al

.  
By

 1
85

4 
th

e 
m

aj
or

ity
 o

f 
Th

e 
Vi

lla
ge

, C
hu

rc
h 

La
ne

 a
nd

 W
es

t 
En

d 
ha

d 
be

en
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 a
s 

ca
n 

be
 s

ee
n 

fr
om

 
th

e 
fir

st
 O

rd
na

nc
e 

Su
rv

ey
 m

ap
.  

O
nl

y 
th

e 
vi

ca
ra

ge
 a

nd
 it

s 
ou

tb
ui

ld
in

g 
ex

ist
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

so
ut

h 
sid

e 
of

 Y
or

k 
Ro

ad
.  

In
te

re
st

in
gl

y,
 

th
er

e 
w

er
e 

fe
w

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
 o

n 
th

e 
la

nd
 t

o 
th

e 
so

ut
h 

of
 t

he
 c

hu
rc

h 
(id

en
tif

ie
d 

as
 

Bu
tt

s 
En

d)
, p

os
sib

ly
 b

ec
au

se
 it

 w
as

 g
le

be
 

la
nd

 a
nd

 la
y 

be
tw

ee
n 

th
e 

ch
ur

ch
 a

nd
 t

he
 

vi
ca

ra
ge

.  
A

lso
, n

o 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
ha

d 
ta

ke
n 

pl
ac

e 
on

 M
oo

r 
La

ne
 (t

he
 n

or
th

er
n 

se
ct

io
n 

of
 w

hi
ch

 is
 n

ow
 k

no
w

n 
as

 
Pr

in
ce

ss
 R

oa
d)

, a
lth

ou
gh

 t
he

 m
ap

 
ev

id
en

ce
 in

di
ca

te
s 

th
e 

ex
ist

en
ce

 o
f a

 g
at

e-
ke

ep
er

s 
co

tt
ag

e 
(n

ow
 d

em
ol

ish
ed

) a
t 

th
e 

le
ve

l c
ro

ss
in

g.
   

 

St
re

ns
al

l C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

C
ha

ra
ct

er
 A

pp
ra

isa
l, 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
 

6 

Pl
at

e 
8 

Th
e 

Po
pl

ar
s 

fr
om

 P
ri

nc
es

s 
Ro

ad
 

Pl
at

e 
7 

Fo
rm

er
 C

ha
pe

l, 
C

hu
rc

h 
La

ne
 

Pl
at

e 
6 

St
re

ns
al

l N
ew

 B
ri

dg
e 

Page 107



18
52

 O
rd

na
nc

e 
Su

rv
ey

 M
ap

 
Th

is 
m

ap
 is

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
O

rd
na

nc
e 

Su
rv

ey
 M

ap
pi

ng
 w

ith
 p

er
m

iss
io

n 
of

 t
he

 c
on

tr
ol

le
r 

of
 H

M
SO

, ©
C

ro
w

n 
C

op
yr

ig
ht

.  
 

U
na

ut
ho

ri
se

d 
re

pr
od

uc
tio

n 
in

fr
in

ge
s 

cr
ow

n 
co

py
rig

ht
 a

nd
 m

ay
 le

ad
 to

 p
ro

se
cu

tio
n 

or
 c

iv
il 

pr
oc

ee
di

ng
s 

Page 108



19
11

 O
rd

na
nc

e 
Su

rv
ey

 M
ap

 
Th

is 
m

ap
 is

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
O

rd
na

nc
e 

Su
rv

ey
 M

ap
pi

ng
 w

ith
 p

er
m

iss
io

n 
of

 t
he

 c
on

tr
ol

le
r 

of
 H

M
SO

, ©
C

ro
w

n 
C

op
yr

ig
ht

.  
 

U
na

ut
ho

ri
se

d 
re

pr
od

uc
tio

n 
in

fr
in

ge
s 

cr
ow

n 
co

py
rig

ht
 a

nd
 m

ay
 le

ad
 to

 p
ro

se
cu

tio
n 

or
 c

iv
il 

pr
oc

ee
di

ng
s 

Page 109



Pl
at

e 
9 

M
et

ho
di

st
 C

hu
rc

h,
 T

he
 V

ill
ag

e 

Pl
at

e 
11

 H
aw

th
or

n 
M

ew
s 

Pl
at

e 
10

 M
id

 t
w

en
tie

th
 c

en
tu

ry
 h

ou
sin

g 
on

 
 

Pr
in

ce
ss

 R
oa

d 

4.
10

 S
tr

en
sa

ll 
di

d 
no

t 
ex

pa
nd

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
tly

 
du

ri
ng

 t
he

 s
ec

on
d 

ha
lf 

of
 t

he
 n

in
et

ee
nt

h 
ce

nt
ur

y,
 a

lth
ou

gh
 a

s 
no

te
d 

in
 5

.0
6 

ab
ov

e 
th

e 
ch

ur
ch

 w
as

 r
eb

ui
lt 

in
 1

86
5-

6.
   

A
 

ho
us

e 
(n

ow
 T

he
 P

op
la

rs
 - 

se
e 

Pl
at

e 
8)

 
w

as
 b

ui
lt 

on
 t

he
 s

ou
th

 s
id

e 
of

 Y
or

k 
Ro

ad
 

at
 it

s 
ju

nc
tio

n 
w

ith
 P

ri
nc

es
s 

Ro
ad

 a
nd

 in
 

18
95

 a
 n

ew
 W

es
le

ya
n 

C
ha

pe
l (

th
e 

pr
es

en
t 

M
et

ho
di

st
 C

hu
rc

h)
 w

as
 

co
ns

tr
uc

te
d 

(s
ee

 P
la

te
 9

). 
   

 
 4.

11
 B

y 
ea

rl
y 

tw
en

tie
th

 c
en

tu
ry

 li
tt

le
 h

ad
 

ch
an

ge
d 

in
 t

he
 a

re
a.

  D
uc

k 
La

ne
 a

pp
ea

rs
 

to
 h

av
e 

be
en

 im
pr

ov
ed

 t
o 

pr
ov

id
e 

be
tt

er
 

ac
ce

ss
 t

o 
th

e 
Yo

rk
 R

oa
d 

an
d 

ne
w

 h
ou

se
s 

be
ga

n 
to

 a
pp

ea
r 

on
 t

he
 e

as
t 

sid
e 

of
 M

oo
r 

La
ne

 (n
ow

 p
ar

tly
 P

ri
nc

es
s 

Ro
ad

 - 
se

e 
Pl

at
e 

10
). 

 F
ur

th
er

 h
ou

sin
g 

w
as

 a
lso

 
co

ns
tr

uc
te

d 
al

on
g 

W
es

t 
En

d 
an

d 
th

e 
sc

ho
ol

 w
as

 e
xp

an
de

d.
  A

t t
he

 e
as

t e
nd

 o
f 

Th
e 

Vi
lla

ge
 a

 fi
ne

 s
in

gl
e 

st
or

ey
 h

ou
se

 
na

m
ed

 M
ea

do
w

sid
e 

(N
o.

 6
9)

 w
as

 b
ui

lt.
   

 4.
12

 B
y 

19
30

 N
o.

 2
 W

es
t 

En
d 

(n
am

ed
 

O
ak

le
ig

h 
at

 t
ha

t 
da

te
) h

ad
 b

ee
n 

bu
ilt

.  
A

lso
, t

he
 O

rd
na

nc
e 

Su
rv

ey
 m

ap
 o

f t
ha

t 
da

te
s 

no
te

s 
th

e 
ex

ist
en

ce
 o

f S
tr

en
sa

ll 
H

al
t 

at
 t

he
 le

ve
l c

ro
ss

in
g 

on
 M

oo
r 

La
ne

.  
Tw

en
ty

 y
ea

rs
 la

te
r 

th
er

e 
ha

d 
be

en
 m

uc
h 

m
or

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
al

on
g 

M
oo

r 
La

ne
 a

nd
 

by
 t

he
 e

ar
ly

 1
97

0s
 t

he
re

 h
ad

 b
ee

n 
ex

te
ns

iv
e 

in
fil

l d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 
th

e 
vi

lla
ge

.  
Th

is 
in

cl
ud

ed
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

on
 t

he
 

no
rt

h 
sid

e 
of

 S
ou

th
fie

ld
s 

Ro
ad

 (f
or

m
er

ly
 

Ba
ck

 L
an

e)
 a

nd
 t

he
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

of
 S

t. 

M
ar

y’
s 

C
lo

se
 a

nd
 C

hu
rc

h 
Vi

ew
 (n

ow
 

W
es

t 
En

d 
C

lo
se

) o
n 

th
e 

op
en

 s
pa

ce
 t

o 
th

e 
so

ut
h 

of
 t

he
 c

hu
rc

h.
  A

lso
, t

he
re

 h
ad

 
be

en
 c

on
sid

er
ab

le
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

to
 t

he
 

so
ut

h 
an

d 
w

es
t 

of
 t

he
 h

ist
or

ic
 c

or
e.

   
  

 4.
13

 B
y 

th
e 

en
d 

of
 th

e 
tw

en
tie

th
 c

en
tu

ry
 

ho
us

es
 h

ad
 a

lso
 b

ee
n 

bu
ilt

 in
 t

he
 g

ro
un

ds
 

of
 N

o 
69

 T
he

 V
ill

ag
e 

an
d 

in
fil

l 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
ha

s 
al

so
 o

cc
ur

re
d 

to
 t

he
 

no
rt

h 
of

 T
he

 G
ra

ng
e.

  T
he

 b
eg

in
ni

ng
 o

f 
th

e 
tw

en
ty

-fi
rs

t 
ce

nt
ur

y 
sa

w
 a

 r
ap

id
 

in
cr

ea
se

 in
 t

he
 n

um
be

r 
in

fil
l 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

.  
Ex

am
pl

es
 in

cl
ud

e 
ne

w
 

ho
us

in
g 

to
 t

he
 s

ou
th

 o
f Y

ew
 T

re
e 

Fa
rm

 
an

d 
H

aw
th

or
n 

M
ew

s 
on

 t
he

 n
or

th
 s

id
e 

of
 

Th
e 

Vi
lla

ge
 (s

ee
 P

la
te

 1
1)

. 
                  

St
re

ns
al

l C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

C
ha

ra
ct

er
 A

pp
ra

isa
l, 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
 

7 

Page 110



St
re

ns
al

l C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

C
ha

ra
ct

er
 A

pp
ra

isa
l, 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
 

8 

5 
C

O
N

SE
R

V
A

T
IO

N
 A

R
E

A
 B

O
U

N
D

A
R

Y
 

5.
01

 
O

ne
 o

f t
he

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 o

f a
n 

ap
pr

ai
sa

l 
is 

a 
re

vi
ew

 o
f t

he
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
bo

un
da

ri
es

 to
 e

st
ab

lis
h 

 w
he

th
er

 c
ha

ng
es

 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

ap
pr

op
ri

at
e 

if 
it 

m
ig

ht
 b

e 
ap

pr
op

ri
at

e 
fo

r 
th

er
e 

to
 b

e 
an

y 
ch

an
ge

s. 
 

Th
er

ef
or

e 
th

e 
ex

te
nt

 o
f t

he
 e

xi
st

in
g 

de
sig

na
te

d 
ar

ea
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

re
vi

ew
ed

 a
nd

 
ar

ea
s 

ar
ou

nd
 t

he
 e

xi
st

in
g 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
st

ud
ie

d 
to

 a
sc

er
ta

in
 

w
he

th
er

 a
ny

 n
ew

 a
re

as
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 
in

cl
ud

ed
 o

r 
ex

ist
in

g 
ar

ea
s 

ex
cl

ud
ed

.  
 

  
E

xi
st

in
g 

bo
un

da
ry

 
5.

02
 

Th
e 

cu
rr

en
t 

bo
un

da
ry

 o
f t

he
 d

es
ig

na
te

d 
ar

ea
 is

 il
lu

st
ra

te
d 

on
 M

ap
 2

 in
 A

pp
en

di
x 

A
.  

To
 t

he
 n

or
th

 t
he

 e
xi

st
in

g 
bo

un
da

ry
 

fo
llo

w
s 

th
e 

lin
e 

of
 t

he
 R

iv
er

 F
os

s 
(s

ee
 

Pl
at

e 
12

) f
ro

m
 S

tr
en

sa
ll 

N
ew

 B
ri

dg
e 

ea
st

 
to

 S
tr

en
sa

ll 
Br

id
ge

 a
nd

 B
on

e 
D

ik
e.

  I
t 

th
en

 fo
llo

w
s 

th
e 

lin
e 

of
 B

on
e 

D
ik

e,
 

w
ra

pp
in

g 
ar

ou
nd

 t
he

 n
or

th
-e

as
t 

co
rn

er
 

of
 th

e 
vi

lla
ge

, e
xc

lu
di

ng
 N

et
he

rw
oo

ds
, 

an
d 

ru
nn

in
g 

so
ut

h 
do

w
n 

th
e 

w
es

t 
sid

e 
of

 
N

or
th

fie
ld

s 
to

 c
on

ne
ct

 t
o 

Th
e 

Vi
lla

ge
. 

 5.
03

 
Th

e 
bo

un
da

ry
 c

on
tin

ue
s 

so
ut

h 
ac

ro
ss

 
Th

e 
Vi

lla
ge

 a
nd

 in
cl

ud
es

 t
he

 S
yc

am
or

e 
Fa

rm
 c

om
pl

ex
.  

It 
th

en
 r

un
s 

w
es

t 
al

on
g 

Bo
ne

 D
ik

e 
fo

r 
a 

sh
or

t 
di

st
an

ce
 b

ef
or

e 
tu

rn
in

g 
so

ut
h 

to
 in

cl
ud

e 
Ye

w
 T

re
e 

Fa
rm

.  
Th

e 
bo

un
da

ry
 c

ut
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

Ba
dg

er
 

C
ot

ta
ge

 a
nd

 r
un

s 
w

es
t, 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
th

e 
re

ar
 

(s
ou

th
er

n)
 b

ou
nd

ar
ie

s 
of

 t
he

 p
ro

pe
rt

ie
s 

th
at

 fr
on

t 
Th

e 
Vi

lla
ge

, b
ef

or
e 

it 
tu

rn
s 

so
ut

h 
do

w
n 

th
e 

re
ar

 (e
as

te
rn

) 
bo

un
da

ri
es

 o
f t

he
 h

ou
se

s 
al

on
g 

Pr
in

ce
ss

 
Ro

ad
. 

 5.
04

 
Th

e 
bo

un
da

ry
 c

on
tin

ue
s 

to
 t

he
 t

er
ra

ce
d 

ho
us

es
 b

ef
or

e 
re

tu
rn

in
g 

no
rt

h 
up

 t
he

 
w

es
te

rn
 s

id
e 

of
 P

ri
nc

es
s 

Ro
ad

 a
lo

ng
 t

he
 

ba
ck

 e
dg

e 
of

 t
he

 fo
ot

pa
th

.  
Th

e 
de

sig
na

te
d 

ar
ea

 in
cl

ud
es

 T
he

 P
op

la
rs

, o
n 

th
e 

ju
nc

tio
n 

w
ith

 Y
or

k 
Ro

ad
, a

nd
 t

he
 O

ld
 

Vi
ca

ra
ge

, o
n 

th
e 

so
ut

h 
sid

e 
of

 Y
or

k 
Ro

ad
 

op
po

sit
e 

its
 ju

nc
tio

n 
w

ith
 W

es
t 

En
d.

  
 5.

05
 

Th
e 

bo
un

da
ry

 c
ro

ss
es

 Y
or

k 
Ro

ad
 (s

ee
 

Pl
at

e 
13

) a
nd

 r
un

s 
no

rt
h 

to
 in

cl
ud

e 
th

e 
ho

us
es

 o
n 

th
e 

ea
st

 a
nd

 n
or

th
 s

id
es

 o
f 

W
es

t 
En

d.
  I

t 
th

en
 t

ur
ns

 n
or

th
, e

xc
lu

di
ng

 
th

e 
Pr

im
ar

y 
Sc

ho
ol

 fr
om

 t
he

 d
es

ig
na

te
d 

ar
ea

, t
o 

co
nn

ec
t 

ba
ck

 t
o 

St
re

ns
al

l N
ew

 
Br

id
ge

. 
   

P
os

si
bl

e 
al

te
ra

ti
on

s 
5.

06
 

A
 s

m
al

l s
ec

tio
n 

of
 t

he
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
ha

s 
be

en
 c

on
sid

er
ed

 fo
r 

ex
cl

us
io

n 
w

ith
in

 
th

e 
de

sig
na

te
d 

ar
ea

 d
ue

 t
o 

its
 la

ck
 o

f 
sp

ec
ia

l a
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

al
 in

te
re

st
. T

hi
s 

A
re

a 
is 

an
no

ta
te

d 
as

 A
re

a 
A

 o
n 

M
ap

 2
 in

 
A

pp
en

di
x 

A
 a

nd
 in

cl
ud

es
 S

t 
M

ar
y’

s 
C

lo
se

 
of

f t
he

 s
ou

th
 s

id
e 

of
 C

hu
rc

h 
La

ne
 (s

ee
 

Pl
at

e 
14

), 
N

os
. 5

-1
1 

C
hu

rc
h 

La
ne

, W
es

t 

Pl
at

e 
12

 V
ie

w
 lo

ok
in

g 
ea

st
 a

lo
ng

 th
e 

Ri
ve

r 
Fo

ss
 

Pl
at

e 
13

 V
ie

w
 n

or
th

 a
lo

ng
 Y

or
k 

Ro
ad

 

Pl
at

e 
14

  S
t M

ar
y’

s 
C

lo
se

 

Page 111



St
re

ns
al

l C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

C
ha

ra
ct

er
 A

pp
ra

isa
l, 

N
ov

em
be

r 
 2

01
0 

9 

En
d 

C
lo

se
 (s

ee
 P

la
te

 1
5)

, N
os

. 4
- 8

 W
es

t 
En

d 
(e

as
t 

sid
e)

 a
nd

 N
os

. 8
-1

6 
on

 t
he

 
no

rt
h 

sid
e 

of
 Y

or
k 

Ro
ad

.  
Th

is 
is 

an
 a

re
a 

of
 la

te
 t

w
en

tie
th

 c
en

tu
ry

 h
ou

se
s 

an
d 

bu
ng

al
ow

s 
w

hi
ch

 in
cl

ud
es

 t
w

o 
sm

al
l c

ul
-

de
-s

ac
s. 

 H
ow

ev
er

, t
he

 “
of

f s
et

” 
br

an
ch

 in
 

th
e 

ro
ad

 a
lig

nm
en

t 
fr

om
 Y

or
k 

Ro
ad

 
su

gg
es

ts
 t

he
 s

ite
 h

as
 h

ist
or

ic
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

ce
 

w
or

th
y 

of
 p

ro
te

ct
io

n.
  T

he
 r

oa
d 

fr
om

 
Yo

rk
 fo

cu
se

s 
di

re
ct

ly
 to

w
ar

ds
 th

e 
ch

ur
ch

 
sp

ir
e 

ac
ro

ss
 t

he
 s

ite
.  

In
 a

dd
iti

on
, t

he
 a

-
ty

pi
ca

l p
at

te
rn

 o
f t

he
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

do
es

 
no

t 
di

sr
up

t 
th

e 
st

re
et

sc
en

e 
as

 it
 is

 
in

te
rn

al
 t

o 
th

e 
ar

ea
.  

Th
e 

ga
rd

en
s 

of
fe

r 
m

at
ur

e 
he

dg
in

g 
an

d 
3 

no
. l

ar
ge

 t
re

es
 a

s 
am

en
ity

 t
o 

th
e 

w
id

er
 e

nv
ir

on
m

en
t 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

e 
ea

st
 b

ou
nd

ar
y 

of
 t

he
 a

lle
y 

to
 

C
hu

rc
h 

La
ne

.  
O

n 
ba

la
nc

e 
it 

ha
s 

be
en

 
de

ci
de

d 
to

 r
et

ai
n 

th
is 

ar
ea

 w
ith

in
 t

he
 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a.

   
  5.

07
 

It 
is 

re
co

m
m

en
de

d 
th

at
 t

w
o 

ar
ea

s 
ar

e 
in

cl
ud

ed
 w

ith
in

 t
he

 C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a.

  
Th

es
e 

ar
e 

an
no

ta
te

d 
as

 A
re

as
 B

 &
 C

 o
n 

M
ap

 2
. 

 5.
08

 
A

re
a 

B 
is 

on
 t

he
 n

or
th

 s
id

e 
of

 S
ou

th
fie

ld
s 

Ro
ad

, a
n 

im
po

rt
an

t 
hi

st
or

ic
 la

ne
, d

ef
in

in
g 

th
e 

or
ig

in
al

 r
ea

r 
(s

ou
th

er
n)

 b
ou

nd
ar

ie
s 

of
 

th
e 

pr
op

er
tie

s 
al

on
g 

th
e 

m
ai

n 
st

re
et

.  
It 

is 
th

er
ef

or
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 t

ha
t, 

al
th

ou
gh

 fe
w

 
of

 t
he

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
 in

 t
hi

s 
ar

ea
 a

re
 o

f s
pe

ci
al

 
Pl

at
e 

17
 N

os
. 9

 &
 1

1 
M

oo
r 

La
ne

 

in
te

re
st

, t
he

 h
ist

or
ic

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 

ro
ad

 ju
st

ifi
es

 it
s 

in
cl

us
io

n 
w

ith
in

 t
he

 
de

sig
na

te
d 

ar
ea

 (s
ee

 P
la

te
 1

6)
. 

 5.
09

 
A

re
a 

C
 is

 lo
ca

te
d 

at
 t

he
 s

ou
th

er
n 

en
d 

of
 

th
e 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a.

  P
ri

nc
es

s 
Ro

ad
 a

nd
 

M
oo

r 
La

ne
 fo

rm
 p

ar
t 

of
 t

he
 h

ist
or

ic
 r

oa
d 

pa
tt

er
n 

of
 t

he
 v

ill
ag

e 
an

d 
th

e 
ho

us
es

 
re

pr
es

en
t 

th
e 

lim
ite

d 
 e

xp
an

sio
n 

of
 t

he
 

ar
ea

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
th

e 
ar

ri
va

l o
f t

he
 r

ai
lw

ay
.  

In
 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
, N

os
. 5

-1
1 

M
oo

r 
La

ne
 a

re
 v

er
y 

go
od

 e
xa

m
pl

es
 o

f l
at

e 
ni

ne
te

en
th

/e
ar

ly
 

tw
en

tie
th

 c
en

tu
ry

 la
rg

e 
vi

lla
 p

ai
rs

 (s
ee

 P
la

te
 

17
). 

 It
 is

 a
lso

 u
nd

er
st

oo
d 

fr
om

 h
ist

or
ic

 
m

ap
 r

ec
or

ds
 t

ha
t 

a 
st

at
io

n 
ha

lt 
an

d 
ga

te
 

ho
us

e 
w

er
e 

lo
ca

te
d 

at
 th

e 
le

ve
l c

ro
ss

in
g,

 
w

hi
ch

 is
 a

lm
os

t 
ce

rt
ai

nl
y 

on
e 

of
 t

he
 

re
as

on
s 

w
hy

 im
pr

es
siv

e 
pr

op
er

tie
s 

w
er

e 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

in
 th

is 
ar

ea
.  

Th
is 

ha
lt 

w
as

 u
se

d 
by

 t
ro

op
s 

fr
om

 t
he

 n
ea

rb
y 

St
re

ns
al

l A
rm

y 
C

am
p 

du
ri

ng
 W

or
ld

 W
ar

 T
w

o.
 

  
R

ec
om

m
en

da
ti

on
s 

5.
10

 
In

 v
ie

w
 o

f a
ll 

th
e 

ab
ov

e,
 it

 is
 c

on
sid

er
ed

 
th

at
 A

re
a 

A
 s

ho
ul

d 
re

m
ai

n 
w

ith
in

 t
he

 
de

sig
na

te
d 

ar
ea

 a
nd

 A
re

as
 B

 &
 C

 b
e 

in
cl

ud
ed

 d
ue

 t
o 

th
ei

r 
hi

st
or

ic
al

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
ce

 
w

ith
in

 S
tr

en
sa

ll.
 

 
 

 
  

  
 

  
 

Pl
at

e 
15

 W
es

t 
En

d 
C

lo
se

 
  Pl

at
e 

16
 V

ie
w

 w
es

t 
al

on
g 

So
ut

hf
ie

ld
s 

Ro
ad

 

Page 112



7

22

11

15

15

O
SM

IN
G

TO
N

 G
D

N
S

45

Fo
res

t C
ourt

12

30

5

C
H

U
RC

H
 L

A
N

E

45

2

15

7

4

2

80

5

51

20

17
.2

m

YO
RK

 R
O

AD
M

P 
.2

5

47

23

51

61

1

8

SO
U

TH
FI

EL
D

S

The Vicar
age

El

16
.1

m

Ing
s F

arm

51

53

St
re

ns
al

l
17

A
sh

 T
re

e 
H

ou
se

69

19

MOOR LANE

2

10

11

A
pp

le
tr

ee
 H

ou
se

6

St
on

e

2

TOBY COURT

5

Th
e 

W
ill

ow
s

3

19
a 

& 
b

LB

16
a

18

2

11

21

WILKINSON WAY

9

11

33

18
.4

m

66

29

23

7

SHELLEY DRIVE

W
es

t 
Pi

ts

28

67

37

3

8

RIVERSID
E W

ALK

6

1

10

Pl
ay

in
g 

Fi
el

d

18

100

26

11

Po
nd

8

80

3

11

32

Is
su

es

Garage

N
ET

H
ER

W
O

O
D

S

M
an

or
 H

ou
se

TC
B

29
45

W
ei

r

15
.9

m

3

11

11

17
.1

m

7

8

2

23

20

29

Po
nd

21

4a

11

W
ar

10a

10

4

1

4

H
ou

se

2a

Th
e 

Ro
be

rt
 W

ilk
in

so
n 

VC

23

3

16

1

18

Po
nd

96

40

11

25

15

58

78

3

37

MIDDLECROFT DRIVE

19

LE
YF

IEL
D C

LO
SE

31

5

18

18
.6

m

NORTHFIELDS

10

93

Drain

Br
an

sd
al

e

Bo
ne

 D
ike

92

41
ST

A
TI

O
N

Pl
um

 T
re

e 
H

ou
se

Po
nd

H
om

e

31
a

Ya
rd

Th
e 

Sh
ip

 In
n

(P
H

)

3

Bl
an

ds

20

51

ST MARY'S CL

47

Drain

9

8

Church Farm

6

10

11

5

29

H
el

m
sd

al
e

The 
Gabl

es

St
 M

ar
y'

s
C

hu
rc

h

St
on

e

(P
H

)

15

10

4

TY
N

EH
A

M

64

Sy
ca

m
or

e
Fa

rm

24

Lit
tle

gar
th

4

Lo
w

ga
rt

h

La
w

ns
w

oo
d

1

15

FB

17
.3

m

16

17

3

61

11

9

44

49

18

1

FO
SSL

AND VIEW

12

20

17
.5

m

W
or

ks

54

10

C
RE

A
SE

R 
C

LO
SE

13

LANE

l

10

17

16

LC

Drain

Drain

9

3

11
16

.9
m

Si
gn

al
 G

an
tr

y

56

1

Su
b

PO

41

12

1

5

2

Bo
ne

D
ike

Bone 
Dike

15

39

20

1

71

TH
E 

VI
LL

A
G

E

58

G
ar

th
1

Th
e 

O
ld

 V
ic

ar
ag

e

Br
ac

ke
n 

Lo
dg

e

1

5

72

2

HAWTHORNE MEWS

Th
e

1

LB

7a

14

9

39

2

21

35

16

1

Pu
m

p

18

5 t
o 8

7

1

17
Dra

in

19

56

30

1

6

41

4

33

18

12

11
0

12

10

10
1

15

8

Drain

4

N
ur

sin
g

C
H

U
RC

H
 L

A
N

E

8

Fo
ss

21

9

12

W
ES

T 
EN

D
 C

L

1a

Ye
w

 T
re

e

44

2

35

28

2

7

WEST END

21

18
.2

m

20

31

11

25
32

OAKLA
NDS

15

Th
e 

Br
am

bl
es

18

St
on

e

Garden Cottage

6

8

El Sub Sta

K
lo

st
er

s

G
LE

BE
 C

LO
SE

6a
8a

1

H
A

RV
ES

T 
C

LO
SE

17

20

11

1

12

2

15

3

M
O

O
RL

A
N

D
 G

A
RT

H

2

43

23

18

54

9 t
o 1

2

Ex
ch

an
ge

5

72

15

3

Path (um) 42

60

El
 S

ub
 S

ta

13

67

Bl
ue

 F
ir

s

1a

10 to 16

49

2

1

2

23

5

M
id

ga
rt

h

Fa
rm

38

SQ
UARE

1

H
al

l

Fa
rm

49

C
re

st

RO
A

D

16
.7

m
43

St
re

ns
al

l B
ri

dg
e

H
ea

lth
 C

en
tr

e

1

ORCHARD W
AY

53

22

1

Li
by

17.9m

MIDDLECROFT GROVE

11

2

8

The Birches

C
oa

ch

C
hu

rc
h

19

14

26

49

53

2

14
 to

 17

LOW CROFT

33

St
re

ns
al

l N
ew

 B
ri

dg
e

C
ob

b'
s 

C
ot

ta
ge

Pr
im

ar
y 

Sc
ho

ol

47

5

3

41

1

22
 to

 25

42

28

LY
N

W
O

O
D

6

WESTPIT

86

35

Te
le

ph
on

e

70

Ri
ve

r F
os

s

1

47

62

36

Church

Surgery 16

Th
e 

Pe
bb

le
s

Th
e

So
ut

hf
ie

ld
s

18.6m

59
25 14

30

M
em

l

33

El Sub Sta

14

55

14

HIGHLANDS AVENUE

42

17

H
ea

th
er

 C
ot

ta
ge

2a

5

8

2

SH
ER

BO
U

RN
E 

G
R

SB

2

21

C
LO

SE

WESTPIT LANE

14

6

7

24

1

18
 to

 21

W
ES

T 
EN

D

32

St
 M

ar
y'

s

1 t
o 4

2

35

11

WOOD CLOSE

12

36

7

33

2

38

1

LC

12

31

7

Ta
nn

er
y

Ri
ve

r

Bu
ild

er
's

16
.8

m

15

82

Drain

40

5

H
ou

se

33

W
or

ks

57

Pa
th

 (u
m

)

10

2

1

72

PRINCESS R
OAD

15

SL

67

62 Th
e

H
alf

 M
oo

n

Th
e 

Po
pl

ar
s

M
P 

6

St
a

G
P

4

Gre
ys

to
ne

s

M
ID

D
LE

C
RO

FT
 D

R

W
A

Y

2

Ba
dg

er
 C

ot
ta

ge

M
ap

 2
  -

 C
ur

re
nt

 C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
   

 A
re

a 
bo

un
da

ry

C
ur

re
nt

 C
on

se
rv

at
io

n
A

re
a 

bo
un

da
ry

north

P
ro

po
se

d 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n

A
re

a 
bo

un
da

ry

A
RE

A
 A

A
RE

A
 C

A
RE

A
 B

R
e-

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
S

ite

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
S

ite

A
re

a 
A

 a
ss

es
se

d 
bu

t
re

ta
in

ed
 w

ith
in

 th
e

bo
un

da
ry

T
hi

s 
m

ap
 is

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
O

rd
na

nc
e 

S
ur

ve
y 

M
ap

pi
ng

 w
ith

 th
e 

pe
rm

is
si

on
 o

f t
he

 c
on

tr
ol

le
r 

of
 H

M
S

O
, ©

 C
ro

w
n 

C
op

yr
ig

ht
.  

U
na

ut
ho

ris
ed

 r
ep

ro
du

ct
io

n 
in

fr
in

ge
s 

C
ro

w
n 

C
op

yr
ig

ht
 a

nd
 m

ay
 le

ad
 to

 p
ro

se
cu

tio
n 

or
 c

iv
il 

pr
oc

ee
di

ng
s.

  C
ity

 o
f Y

or
k 

Li
ce

nc
e 

N
um

be
r 

10
00

-2
08

18

Page 113



St
re

ns
al

l C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

 C
ha

ra
ct

er
 A

pp
ra

isa
l, 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
 

10
 

6 
G

E
N

E
R

A
L

 C
H

A
R

A
C

T
E

R
 

6.
01

 T
hi

s 
se

ct
io

n 
co

ns
id

er
s 

th
e 

ge
ne

ra
l 

ch
ar

ac
te

r 
of

 t
he

 w
ho

le
 o

f t
he

 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a,
 a

s 
di

st
in

ct
 fr

om
 t

he
 

an
al

ys
is 

of
 t

he
 fo

ur
 c

ha
ra

ct
er

 a
re

as
 t

ha
t 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

(s
ee

 6
.0

9 
be

lo
w

). 
 6.

02
 T

he
 k

ey
 c

ha
ra

ct
er

ist
ic

 o
f t

he
 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

is 
th

at
 o

f a
 li

ne
ar

 
vi

lla
ge

 t
ha

t, 
un

us
ua

lly
, h

as
 n

o 
th

ro
ug

h 
ro

ut
e 

at
 it

s 
w

es
te

rn
 e

nd
.  

Th
e 

la
te

r 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
to

 t
he

 s
ou

th
 a

nd
 w

es
t 

of
 t

he
 

hi
st

or
ic

 c
or

e 
re

su
lts

 in
 s

om
e 

lo
ss

 o
f t

he
 

vi
lla

ge
 c

ha
ra

ct
er

 b
ut

 t
he

 r
iv

er
 a

nd
 t

he
 

op
en

 g
ro

un
d 

to
 t

he
 n

or
th

 r
et

ai
n 

th
e 

ru
ra

l 
se

tt
in

g 
on

 t
hi

s 
sid

e 
of

 t
he

 C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a.

 
 6.

03
 T

he
 fo

rm
 o

f t
he

 v
ill

ag
e 

is 
pr

in
ci

pa
lly

 
es

ta
bl

ish
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

lo
ng

 n
ar

ro
w

 p
lo

ts
 o

n 
ei

th
er

 s
id

e 
of

 t
he

 m
ai

n 
w

es
t-

ea
st

 r
oa

ds
, 

w
ith

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
 fr

on
tin

g 
th

e 
ro

ad
s 

an
d 

m
an

y 
ou

tb
ui

ld
in

gs
 in

 t
he

 lo
ng

 r
ea

r 
ga

rd
en

s 
(s

ee
 P

la
te

s 
18

 a
nd

 1
9)

.  
Th

es
e 

re
ar

 
ga

rd
en

s 
pr

ov
id

e 
re

lie
f t

o 
th

e 
en

cl
os

ed
 

vi
lla

ge
 s

tr
ee

ts
.  

H
ow

ev
er

, t
he

re
 a

re
 m

an
y 

in
st

an
ce

s 
w

he
re

 g
ar

de
ns

 h
av

e 
be

en
 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
fo

r 
ho

us
in

g,
 w

hi
ch

 h
as

 t
o 

an
 

ex
te

nt
 e

ro
de

d 
th

e 
hi

st
or

ic
 p

at
te

rn
 o

f 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
in

 t
he

 a
re

a.
 

 6.
04

 T
he

 r
oa

ds
 a

llo
w

 m
ed

iu
m

 d
ist

an
ce

 v
ie

w
s 

w
ith

in
 t

he
 d

es
ig

na
te

d 
ar

ea
 a

nd
 t

he
re

 a
re

 

Pl
at

e 
18

 
Vi

ew
 o

f W
es

t E
nd

 
 Pl

at
e 

19
 T

he
 V

ill
ag

e 
 Pl

at
e 

20
 

Vi
lla

ge
 s

ho
ps

 
 

Page 114



St
re

ns
al

l C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

 C
ha

ra
ct

er
 A

pp
ra

isa
l, 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
 

11
 

Pl
at

e 
22

 
Tr

ee
s 

al
on

g 
Th

e 
Vi

lla
ge

 
 

  6
.0

9 
 T

he
 c

ha
ra

ct
er

 o
f t

he
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
is 

fa
ir

ly
 c

on
sis

te
nt

 a
nd

 t
he

 v
ill

ag
e 

is 
ge

ne
ra

lly
 p

er
ce

iv
ed

 a
s 

on
e 

en
tit

y.
 

H
ow

ev
er

, t
he

 fo
ur

 a
re

as
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

be
lo

w
 (a

nd
 s

ho
w

n 
on

 M
ap

 3
) d

o 
ha

ve
 

so
m

e 
di

ffe
re

nt
 c

ha
ra

ct
er

ist
ic

s 
an

d 
ar

e 
th

er
ef

or
e 

an
al

ys
ed

 s
ep

ar
at

el
y 

in
 t

he
 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
se

ct
io

ns
: 

 
! 

C
hu

rc
h 

La
ne

 
! 

M
an

or
 F

ar
m

 
! 

Th
e 

Vi
lla

ge
 

! 
Pr

in
ce

ss
 R

oa
d/

M
oo

r 
La

ne
 

     
  

      

al
so

 li
m

ite
d 

vi
ew

s 
in

to
 t

he
 d

es
ig

na
te

d 
ar

ea
 t

ow
ar

ds
 t

he
 c

hu
rc

h 
to

w
er

 w
hi

ch
 is

 a
 

lo
ca

l l
an

dm
ar

k.
  V

ie
w

s 
fr

om
 t

he
 n

or
th

 
ac

ro
ss

 t
he

 o
pe

n 
fie

ld
s 

to
 t

he
 c

hu
rc

h 
ar

e 
of

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
 im

po
rt

an
ce

. 
 6.

05
 T

he
 v

ill
ag

e 
its

el
f i

s 
a 

bu
sy

 r
ur

al
 s

et
tle

m
en

t 
w

ith
 a

 n
um

be
r 

of
 s

ho
ps

 a
nd

 lo
ca

l 
se

rv
ic

es
.  

Th
is 

ac
tiv

ity
 g

iv
es

 t
he

 v
ill

ag
e 

vi
ta

lit
y 

an
d 

en
ab

le
s 

th
e 

de
sig

na
te

d 
ar

ea
 t

o 
re

ta
in

 it
s 

vi
lla

ge
 c

ha
ra

ct
er

 (s
ee

 P
la

te
 2

0)
. 

 6.
06

 W
ith

in
 t

he
 d

es
ig

na
te

d 
ar

ea
 t

he
re

 a
re

 n
o 

pu
bl

ic
 o

pe
n 

sp
ac

es
.  

Th
e 

on
ly

 o
pe

n 
ar

ea
s 

ar
e 

th
e 

gr
ou

nd
s 

of
 S

t 
M

ar
y’

s 
C

hu
rc

h 
(s

ee
 

Pl
at

e 
21

) a
nd

 t
he

 o
pe

n 
gr

ou
nd

 a
nd

 
w

oo
de

d 
ar

ea
s 

ad
ja

ce
nt

 t
o 

th
e 

ri
ve

r.
 

 6.
07

  T
he

 m
an

y 
m

at
ur

e 
tr

ee
s 

w
ith

in
 t

he
 v

ill
ag

e,
 

in
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

 a
ro

un
d 

th
e 

ch
ur

ch
, t

he
 

no
rt

he
rn

 b
ou

nd
ar

y 
of

 t
he

 v
ill

ag
e 

en
ve

lo
pe

 
an

d 
al

on
g 

Th
e 

Vi
lla

ge
 it

se
lf 

(p
ar

tic
ul

ar
ly

 a
t 

its
 e

as
t 

en
d)

 s
of

te
n 

th
e 

vi
su

al
 a

pp
ea

ra
nc

e 
of

 t
he

 a
re

a 
(s

ee
 P

la
te

 2
2)

. 
 6.

08
 T

he
 S

tr
en

sa
ll 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

in
cl

ud
es

 
se

ve
n 

bu
ild

in
gs

 o
r 

st
ru

ct
ur

es
 t

ha
t 

ar
e 

in
cl

ud
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

Li
st

 o
f B

ui
ld

in
gs

 o
f S

pe
ci

al
 

A
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

al
 o

r 
H

ist
or

ic
 In

te
re

st
 

(in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

e 
tw

o 
br

id
ge

s 
ac

ro
ss

 t
he

 r
iv

er
 

- s
ee

 P
la

te
s 

6 
&

 2
3)

.  
Li

st
ed

 b
ui

ld
in

g 
de

sc
ri

pt
io

ns
 a

re
 lo

ca
te

d 
in

 A
pp

en
di

x 
A

. 

Pl
at

e 
21

 G
ro

un
ds

 o
f t

he
 c

hu
rc

h 
 Pl

at
e 

23
 

St
re

ns
al

l N
ew

 B
ri

dg
e 

 

Page 115



7

11

15

15

45

Fo
res

t C
ourt

12

30

5

C
H

U
RC

H
 L

A
N

E

45

2

15

7

4

2

80

5

51

20

17
.2

m

YO
RK

 R
O

AD
M

P 
.2

5

47

23

51

61

1

8

SO
U

TH
FI

EL
D

S

The Vicar
age

El

16
.1

m

Ing
s F

arm

51

53

St
re

ns
al

l
17

A
sh

 T
re

e 
H

ou
se

69

19

2

10

11

A
pp

le
tr

ee
 H

ou
se

6

St
on

e

2

TOBY COURT

5

Th
e 

W
ill

ow
s

3

19
a 

& 
b

LB

16
a

18

2

11

21

WILKINSON WAY

9

11

33

18
.4

m

66

29

23

7

SHELLEY DRIVE

W
es

t P
its

28

37

3

8

RIVERSID
E W

ALK

6

1

10

Pl
ay

in
g 

Fi
el

d

18

100

26

11

Po
nd

8

80

3

11

32

Is
su

es

Garage

N
ET

H
ER

W
O

O
D

S

M
an

or
 H

ou
se

TC
B

29
45

W
ei

r

15
.9

m

3

11

17
.1

m

7

8

2

23

20

29

Po
nd

21

4a

11

W
ar

10a

10

1

4

H
ou

se

2a

8

Th
e 

Ro
be

rt
 W

ilk
in

so
n 

VC

23

3

16

1

18

Po
nd

40

11

25

15

58

78

3

37

MIDDLECROFT DRIVE

19

LE
YF

IEL
D C

LO
SE

31

5

18

18
.6

m

NORTHFIELDS

10

93

Drain

Br
an

sd
al

e

Bo
ne

 D
ike

92

41

ST
A

TI
O

N

Pl
um

 T
re

e 
H

ou
se

Po
nd

H
om

e

31
a

Ya
rd

Th
e 

Sh
ip

 In
n

(P
H

)

3

Bl
an

ds

20

51

ST MARY'S CL

47

Drain

9Church Farm

6

10

11

5

29

H
el

m
sd

al
e

The 
Gabl

es

St
 M

ar
y'

s
C

hu
rc

h

St
on

e

(P
H

)

15

10

TY
N

EH
A

M

64

Sy
ca

m
or

e
Fa

rm

24

Lit
tle

gar
th

4

Lo
w

ga
rt

h

La
w

ns
w

oo
d

1

15

17
.3

m

16

17

61

11

9

44

49

18

FO
SS

LA
ND VIEW

12

20

17
.5

m

W
or

ks

54

10

C
RE

A
SE

R 
C

LO
SE

13

LANE

l

10

17

16

LC

Drain

Drain

9

3

11
16

.9
m

Si
gn

al
 G

an
tr

y

56

1

Su
b

PO

41

12

1

5

2

Bo
ne

D
ike

Bone D
ike

15

39

20

1

71

TH
E 

VI
LL

A
G

E

58

G
ar

th

1

Th
e 

O
ld

 V
ic

ar
ag

e

Br
ac

ke
n 

Lo
dg

e

1

5

72

2

HAWTHORNE MEWS

Th
e

1

LB

7a

14

9

39

2

21

35

16

1

Pu
m

p

18

5 t
o 8

7

1

17
Dra

in

19

56

30

1

6

4

33

12

12

10

10
1

110

15

8

Drain

4

N
ur

sin
g

C
H

U
RC

H
 L

A
N

E

8

Fo
ss

21

9

12
W

ES
T 

EN
D

 C
L

1a

Ye
w

 T
re

e

44

2

35

28

2

7

WEST END

21

18
.2

m

20

31

11

25
32

15

Th
e 

Br
am

bl
es

18

St
on

e

Garden Cottage

6

8

El Sub Sta

K
lo

st
er

s

G
LE

BE
 C

LO
SE

6a
8a

1

H
A

RV
ES

T 
C

LO
SE

17

20

11

1

12

2

15

3

M
O

O
RL

A
N

D
 G

A
RT

H

2

43

23

18

54

9 t
o 1

2

Ex
ch

an
ge

5

72

15

3

Path (um) 42

60

El
 S

ub
 S

ta

13

67

Bl
ue

 F
ir

s

1a

10 to 16

49

2

1

2

23

5

M
id

ga
rt

h

Fa
rm

38

SQ
UARE

NORTHFIELDS

1

H
al

l

Fa
rm

49

C
re

st

RO
A

D

16
.7

m
43

St
re

ns
al

l B
ri

dg
e

H
ea

lth
 C

en
tr

e

1

ORCHARD W
AY

53

22

1

Li
by

17.9m

MIDDLECROFT GROVE

11

2

8

C
oa

ch

C
hu

rc
h

19

14

26

49

53

2

14
 to

 17

LOW CROFT

33

St
re

ns
al

l N
ew

 B
ri

dg
e

C
ob

b'
s 

C
ot

ta
ge

Pr
im

ar
y 

Sc
ho

ol

47

5

3
41

1

22
 to

 25

42

28

LY
N

W
O

O
D

6

WESTPIT

86

35

Te
le

ph
on

e

70

Ri
ve

r F
os

s

1

47

62

36

Church

Surgery 16

Th
e 

Pe
bb

le
s

Th
e

So
ut

hf
ie

ld
s

18.6m

59
25 14

30

M
em

l

33

14

55

14

HIGHLANDS AVENUE

42

17

H
ea

th
er

 C
ot

ta
ge

2a

5

8

SH
ER

BO
U

RN
E 

G
R

SB

2

21

C
LO

SE

WESTPIT LANE

14

6

7

1

18
 to

 21

W
ES

T 
EN

D

32

St
 M

ar
y'

s

1 t
o 4

2

35

11

WOOD CLOSE

12

36

7

33

2

38

1

LC

12

31

7

Ta
nn

er
y

Ri
ve

r

Bu
ild

er
's

16
.8

m

15

82

Drain

40

5

H
ou

se

33

W
or

ks

57

Pa
th

 (u
m

)

10

2

1

72

PRINCESS R
OAD

15

SL

67

62 Th
e

H
alf

 M
oo

n

Th
e 

Po
pl

ar
s

M
P 

6

St
a

G
P

4

Gre
ys

to
ne

s

M
ID

D
LE

C
RO

FT
 D

R W
A

Y

2

Ba
dg

er
 C

ot
ta

ge

P
rin

ce
ss

 R
oa

d

T
he

 V
ill

ag
e

M
ap

 3
 -

  C
ha

ra
ct

er
 A

re
as

north

C
hu

rc
h 

La
ne

M
an

or
 F

ar
m

C
ur

re
nt

 C
on

se
rv

at
io

n
A

re
a 

bo
un

da
ry

P
ro

po
se

d 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n

A
re

a 
bo

un
da

ry

R
e-

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
S

ite

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
S

ite

T
hi

s 
m

ap
 is

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
O

rd
na

nc
e 

S
ur

ve
y 

M
ap

pi
ng

 w
ith

 th
e 

pe
rm

is
si

on
 o

f t
he

 c
on

tr
ol

le
r 

of
 H

M
S

O
, ©

 C
ro

w
n 

C
op

yr
ig

ht
.  

U
na

ut
ho

ris
ed

 r
ep

ro
du

ct
io

n 
in

fr
in

ge
s 

C
ro

w
n 

C
op

yr
ig

ht
 a

nd
 m

ay
 le

ad
 to

 p
ro

se
cu

tio
n 

or
 c

iv
il 

pr
oc

ee
di

ng
s.

  C
ity

 o
f Y

or
k 

Li
ce

nc
e 

N
um

be
r 

10
00

-2
08

18

Page 116



7

11

15

15

45

Fo
res

t C
ourt

12

30

5

C
H

U
RC

H
 L

A
N

E

45

15

7

4

2

80

5

51

20

17
.2

m

YO
RK

 R
O

AD
M

P 
.2

5

47

23

51

61

1

8

SO
U

TH
FI

EL
D

S

The Vicar
age

El

16
.1

m

Ing
s F

arm

51

53

St
re

ns
al

l
17

A
sh

 T
re

e 
H

ou
se

69

19

2

10

11

A
pp

le
tr

ee
 H

ou
se

6

St
on

e

2

TOBY COURT

Th
e 

W
ill

ow
s

3

19
a 

& 
b

LB

16
a

18

2

11

21

WILKINSON WAY

9

11

33

18
.4

m

66

29

23

7

SHELLEY DRIVE

W
es

t P
its

28

37

3

8

RIVERSID
E W

ALK

6

1

10

Pl
ay

in
g 

Fi
el

d

18

100

26

11

Po
nd

8

80

3

11

32

Is
su

es

Garage

N
ET

H
ER

W
O

O
D

S

M
an

or
 H

ou
se

TC
B

29
45

W
ei

r

15
.9

m

3

11

17
.1

m

7

8

2

23

20

29

Po
nd

21

4a

11

W
ar

10a

10

1

4

H
ou

se

2a

8

Th
e 

Ro
be

rt
 W

ilk
in

so
n 

VC

23

3

16

1

18

Po
nd

40

11

25

15

58

78

3

37

MIDDLECROFT DRIVE

19

LE
YF

IEL
D C

LO
SE

31

5

18

18
.6

m

NORTHFIELDS

10

93

Drain

Br
an

sd
al

e

Bo
ne

 D
ike

92

41

ST
A

TI
O

N

Pl
um

 T
re

e 
H

ou
se

Po
nd

H
om

e

31
a

Ya
rd

Th
e 

Sh
ip

 In
n

(P
H

)

3

Bl
an

ds

20

51

ST MARY'S CL

47

Drain

9Church Farm

6

10

11

5

29

H
el

m
sd

al
e

The 
Gabl

es

St
 M

ar
y'

s
C

hu
rc

h

St
on

e

(P
H

)

15

10

TY
N

EH
A

M

64

Sy
ca

m
or

e
Fa

rm

Lit
tle

gar
th

4

Lo
w

ga
rt

h

La
w

ns
w

oo
d

1

15

17
.3

m

16

17

11

9

44

49

FO
SSL

AND VIEW

12

20

17
.5

m

W
or

ks

54

10

C
RE

A
SE

R 
C

LO
SE

13

LANE

l

10

17

16

LC

Drain

Drain

9

3

11
16

.9
m

Si
gn

al
 G

an
tr

y

56

1

Su
b

PO

41

12

1

5

2

Bo
ne

D
ike

Bone 
Dike

39

20

1

71

TH
E 

VI
LL

A
G

E

58

G
ar

th

1

Th
e 

O
ld

 V
ic

ar
ag

e

Br
ac

ke
n 

Lo
dg

e

1

5

72

2

HAWTHORNE MEWS

Th
e

1

LB

7a

14

9

39

2

21

35

16

1

Pu
m

p

18

5 t
o 8

7

1

17
Dra

in

19

56

30

1

6

4

33

12

12

10

10
1

110

15

8

Drain

4

N
ur

sin
g

C
H

U
RC

H
 L

A
N

E

8

Fo
ss

21

9

12
W

ES
T 

EN
D

 C
L

1a

Ye
w

 T
re

e

44

2

35

28

2

7

WEST END

21

18
.2

m

20

31

25
32

15

Th
e 

Br
am

bl
es

18

St
on

e

Garden Cottage

6

8

El Sub Sta

K
lo

st
er

s

G
LE

BE
 C

LO
SE

6a
8a

1

H
A

RV
ES

T 
C

LO
SE

17

20

11

1

12

2

15

3

M
O

O
RL

A
N

D
 G

A
RT

H

2

43

23

18

54

9 t
o 1

2

Ex
ch

an
ge

5

72

15

3

Path (um) 42

60

El
 S

ub
 S

ta

13

67

Bl
ue

 F
ir

s

1a

10 to 16

49

2

1

2

23

5

M
id

ga
rt

h

Fa
rm

38

SQ
UARE

NORTHFIELDS

1

H
al

l

Fa
rm

49

C
re

st

RO
A

D

16
.7

m
43

St
re

ns
al

l B
ri

dg
e

H
ea

lth
 C

en
tr

e

1

ORCHARD W
AY

53

22

1

Li
by

17.9m

MIDDLECROFT GROVE

11

2

8

C
oa

ch

C
hu

rc
h

19

14

26

49

53

2

14
 to

 17

LOW CROFT

33

St
re

ns
al

l N
ew

 B
ri

dg
e

C
ob

b'
s 

C
ot

ta
ge

Pr
im

ar
y 

Sc
ho

ol

47

5

3

41

1

22
 to

 25

42

28

LY
N

W
O

O
D

6

WESTPIT

35

Te
le

ph
on

e

70

Ri
ve

r F
os

s

1

47

62

36

Church

Surgery 16

Th
e 

Pe
bb

le
s

Th
e

So
ut

hf
ie

ld
s

18.6m

59
25 14

30

M
em

l

33

14

55

HIGHLANDS AVENUE

42

17

H
ea

th
er

 C
ot

ta
ge

2a

5

8

SH
ER

BO
U

RN
E 

G
R

SB

2

21

C
LO

SE

WESTPIT LANE

14

6

7

1

18
 to

 21

W
ES

T 
EN

D

32

St
 M

ar
y'

s

1 t
o 4

2

35

11

WOOD CLOSE

12

36

7

33

2

1

LC

12

31

7

Ta
nn

er
y

Ri
ve

r

Bu
ild

er
's

16
.8

m

15

82

Drain

40

5

H
ou

se

33

W
or

ks

57

Pa
th

 (u
m

)

10

2

1

72

PRINCESS R
OAD

15

SL

67

62 Th
e

H
alf

 M
oo

n

Th
e 

Po
pl

ar
s

M
P 

6

St
a

G
P

4

Gre
ys

to
ne

s

M
ID

D
LE

C
RO

FT
 D

R

W
A

Y

2

Ba
dg

er
 C

ot
ta

ge

M
ap

 4
 -

  E
xi

st
in

g 
us

es

C
om

m
un

ity

C
om

m
er

ci
al

R
es

id
en

tia
l

north

A
gr

ic
ul

tu
ra

l a
nd

H
or

tic
ul

tu
ra

l

E
du

ca
tio

n 
(a

ll 
le

ve
ls

)

R
el

ig
io

us

C
ur

re
nt

 C
on

se
rv

at
io

n
A

re
a 

bo
un

da
ry

P
ro

po
se

d 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n

A
re

a 
bo

un
da

ry

R
e-

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
S

ite

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
S

ite

T
hi

s 
m

ap
 is

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
O

rd
na

nc
e 

S
ur

ve
y 

M
ap

pi
ng

 w
ith

 th
e 

pe
rm

is
si

on
 o

f t
he

 c
on

tr
ol

le
r 

of
 H

M
S

O
, ©

 C
ro

w
n 

C
op

yr
ig

ht
.  

U
na

ut
ho

ris
ed

 r
ep

ro
du

ct
io

n 
in

fr
in

ge
s 

C
ro

w
n 

C
op

yr
ig

ht
 a

nd
 m

ay
 le

ad
 to

 p
ro

se
cu

tio
n 

or
 c

iv
il 

pr
oc

ee
di

ng
s.

  C
ity

 o
f Y

or
k 

Li
ce

nc
e 

N
um

be
r 

10
00

-2
08

18

Page 117



7

11

15

15

45

Fo
res

t C
ourt

12

30

5

C
H

U
RC

H
 L

A
N

E

45

15

7

4

2

80

5

51

20

17
.2

m

YO
RK

 R
O

AD
M

P 
.2

5

47

23

51

1

61

1

8

SO
U

TH
FI

EL
D

S

The Vicar
age

El

16
.1

m

Ing
s F

arm

51

53

St
re

ns
al

l
17

A
sh

 T
re

e 
H

ou
se

69

19

2

10

11

A
pp

le
tr

ee
 H

ou
se

6

St
on

e

2

TOBY COURT

Th
e 

W
ill

ow
s

3

19
a 

& 
b

LB

16
a

18

2

11

21

WILKINSON WAY

9

11

33

18
.4

m

66

29

23

7

SHELLEY DRIVE

W
es

t P
its

28

37

3

8

RIVERSID
E W

ALK

6

1

10

Pl
ay

in
g 

Fi
el

d

18

100

26

11

Po
nd

8

80

3

11

32

Is
su

es

Garage

N
ET

H
ER

W
O

O
D

S

M
an

or
 H

ou
se

TC
B

29
45

W
ei

r

15
.9

m

3

11

17
.1

m

7

8

2

23

20

29

Po
nd

21

4a

11

W
ar

10a

10

1

4

H
ou

se

2a

8

Th
e 

Ro
be

rt
 W

ilk
in

so
n 

VC

23

3

16

1

18

Po
nd

40

11

25

15

58

78

3

37

MIDDLECROFT DRIVE

19

LE
YF

IEL
D C

LO
SE

31

5

18

18
.6

m

NORTHFIELDS

10

93

Drain

Br
an

sd
al

e

Bo
ne

 D
ike

92

41

ST
A

TI
O

N

Pl
um

 T
re

e 
H

ou
se

Po
nd

H
om

e

31
a

Ya
rd

Th
e 

Sh
ip

 In
n

(P
H

)

3

Bl
an

ds

20

51

ST MARY'S CL

47

Drain

9Church Farm

6

10

11

5

29

H
el

m
sd

al
e

The 
Gabl

es

St
 M

ar
y'

s
C

hu
rc

h

St
on

e

(P
H

)

15

10

TY
N

EH
A

M

64

Sy
ca

m
or

e
Fa

rm

Lit
tle

gar
th

4

Lo
w

ga
rt

h

La
w

ns
w

oo
d

1

15

17
.3

m

16

17

11

9

44

49

18

FO
SSL

AND VIEW

12

20

17
.5

m

W
or

ks

54

10

C
RE

A
SE

R 
C

LO
SE

13

LANE

l

10

17

16

LC

Drain

Drain

9

3

11
16

.9
m

Si
gn

al
 G

an
tr

y

56

1

Su
b

PO

41

12

1

5

2

Bo
ne

D
ike

Bone D
ike

39

20

1

71

TH
E 

VI
LL

A
G

E

58

G
ar

th

1

Th
e 

O
ld

 V
ic

ar
ag

e

Br
ac

ke
n 

Lo
dg

e

1

5

72

2

HAWTHORNE MEWS

Th
e

1

LB

7a

14

9

39

2

21

35

16

1

Pu
m

p

18

5 t
o 8

7

1

17
Dra

in

19

56

30

1

6

4

33

12

12

10

10
1

110

15

8

Drain

4

N
ur

sin
g

C
H

U
RC

H
 L

A
N

E

8

Fo
ss

21

9

12
W

ES
T 

EN
D

 C
L

1a

Ye
w

 T
re

e

44

2

35

28

2

7

WEST END

21

18
.2

m

20

31

25
32

15

Th
e 

Br
am

bl
es

18

St
on

e

Garden Cottage

6

8

El Sub Sta

K
lo

st
er

s

G
LE

BE
 C

LO
SE

6a
8a

1

H
A

RV
ES

T 
C

LO
SE

17

20

11

1

12

2

15

3

M
O

O
RL

A
N

D
 G

A
RT

H

2

43

23

18

54

9 t
o 1

2

Ex
ch

an
ge

5

72

15

3

Path (um) 42

60

El
 S

ub
 S

ta

13

67

Bl
ue

 F
ir

s

1a

10 to 16

49

2

1

2

23

5

M
id

ga
rt

h

Fa
rm

38

SQ
UARE

NORTHFIELDS

1

H
al

l

Fa
rm

49

C
re

st

RO
A

D

16
.7

m
43

St
re

ns
al

l B
ri

dg
e

H
ea

lth
 C

en
tr

e

1

ORCHARD W
AY

53

22

1

Li
by

17.9m

MIDDLECROFT GROVE

11

2

8

C
oa

ch

C
hu

rc
h

19

14

26

49

53

2

14
 to

 17

LOW CROFT

33

St
re

ns
al

l N
ew

 B
ri

dg
e

C
ob

b'
s 

C
ot

ta
ge

Pr
im

ar
y 

Sc
ho

ol

47

5

3

41

1

22
 to

 25

42

28

LY
N

W
O

O
D

6

WESTPIT

35

Te
le

ph
on

e

70

Ri
ve

r F
os

s

1

47

62

36

Church

Surgery 16

Th
e 

Pe
bb

le
s

Th
e

So
ut

hf
ie

ld
s

18.6m

59
25 14

30

M
em

l

33

14

55

HIGHLANDS AVENUE

42

17

H
ea

th
er

 C
ot

ta
ge

2a

5

8

SH
ER

BO
U

RN
E 

G
R

SB

2

21

C
LO

SE

WESTPIT LANE

14

6

7

1

18
 to

 21

W
ES

T 
EN

D

32

St
 M

ar
y'

s

1 t
o 4

2

35

11

WOOD CLOSE

12

36

7

33

2

1

LC

12

31

7

Ta
nn

er
y

Ri
ve

r

Bu
ild

er
's

16
.8

m

15

82

Drain

40

5

H
ou

se

33

W
or

ks

57

Pa
th

 (u
m

)

10

2

1

72

PRINCESS R
OAD

15

SL

67

62 Th
e

H
alf

 M
oo

n

Th
e 

Po
pl

ar
s

M
P 

6

St
a

G
P

4

Gre
ys

to
ne

s

M
ID

D
LE

C
RO

FT
 D

R W
A

Y

2

Ba
dg

er
 C

ot
ta

ge

M
ap

 5
  -

  B
ui

ld
in

g 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t

north

C
ur

re
nt

 C
on

se
rv

at
io

n
A

re
a 

bo
un

da
ry

P
ro

po
se

d 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n

A
re

a 
bo

un
da

ry

R
e-

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
S

ite

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
S

ite

Li
st

ed
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

B
ui

ld
in

gs
 w

hi
ch

 m
ak

e 
a

po
si

tiv
e 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n

B
ui

ld
in

gs
 w

hi
ch

 m
ak

e 
a

ne
ga

tiv
e 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n

B
ui

ld
in

gs
 w

hi
ch

 m
ak

e 
a

ne
ut

ra
l c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n

T
hi

s 
m

ap
 is

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
O

rd
na

nc
e 

S
ur

ve
y 

M
ap

pi
ng

 w
ith

 th
e 

pe
rm

is
si

on
 o

f t
he

 c
on

tr
ol

le
r 

of
 H

M
S

O
, ©

 C
ro

w
n 

C
op

yr
ig

ht
.  

U
na

ut
ho

ris
ed

 r
ep

ro
du

ct
io

n 
in

fr
in

ge
s 

C
ro

w
n 

C
op

yr
ig

ht
 a

nd
 m

ay
 le

ad
 to

 p
ro

se
cu

tio
n 

or
 c

iv
il 

pr
oc

ee
di

ng
s.

  C
ity

 o
f Y

or
k 

Li
ce

nc
e 

N
um

be
r 

10
00

-2
08

18

Page 118



7

11

15

15

45

Fo
res

t C
ourt

12

30

5

C
H

U
RC

H
 L

A
N

E

45

15

7

4

2

80

5

51

20

17
.2

m

YO
RK

 R
O

AD
M

P 
.2

5

47

23

51

1

61

1

66a 10
3

8

SO
U

TH
FI

EL
D

S

The Vicar
age

El

16
.1

m

Ing
s F

arm

51

53

St
re

ns
al

l
17

A
sh

 T
re

e 
H

ou
se

69

19

2

10

11

A
pp

le
tr

ee
 H

ou
se

6

St
on

e

2

TOBY COURT

5

Th
e 

W
ill

ow
s

3

19
a 

& 
b

LB

16
a

18

2

11

21

WILKINSON WAY

9

11

33

18
.4

m

66

29

23

7

SHELLEY DRIVE

W
es

t 
Pi

ts

28

37

3

8

RIVERSID
E W

ALK

6

1

10

Pl
ay

in
g 

Fi
el

d

18

100

26

11

Po
nd

8

80

3

11

32

Is
su

es

Garage

N
ET

H
ER

W
O

O
D

S

M
an

or
 H

ou
se

TC
B

29
45

W
ei

r

15
.9

m

3

11

17
.1

m

7

8

2

23

20

29

Po
nd

21

4a

11

W
ar

10a

10

1

4

H
ou

se

2a

8

Th
e 

Ro
be

rt
 W

ilk
in

so
n 

VC

23

3

16

1

18

C
al

di
e

Po
nd

40

11

25

15

58

78

3

37

MIDDLECROFT DRIVE

19

LE
YF

IEL
D C

LO
SE

31

5

18

18
.6

m

NORTHFIELDS

10

93

Drain

Br
an

sd
al

e

Bo
ne

 D
ike

92

41

ST
A

TI
O

N

Pl
um

 T
re

e 
H

ou
se

Po
nd

H
om

e

31
a

Ya
rd

Th
e 

Sh
ip

 In
n

(P
H

)

3

Bl
an

ds

20

51

ST MARY'S CL

47

Drain

9Church Farm

6

10

11

5

29

H
el

m
sd

al
e

The 
Gabl

es

St
on

e

(P
H

)

15

10

TY
N

EH
A

M

64

Sy
ca

m
or

e
Fa

rm

Lit
tle

gar
th

4

Lo
w

ga
rt

h

2

La
w

ns
w

oo
d

1

15

17
.3

m

16

17

11

9

44

49

18

FO
SSL

AND VIEW

12

20

17
.5

m

W
or

ks

54

10

C
RE

A
SE

R 
C

LO
SE

13

LANE

l

10

17

16

LC

Drain

Drain

9

3

11
16

.9
m

Si
gn

al
 G

an
tr

y

56

1

Su
b

PO

41

12

1

5

2

Bo
ne

D
ike

Bone D
ike

15

39

20

1

71

TH
E 

VI
LL

A
G

E

58

G
ar

th

1

Th
e 

O
ld

 V
ic

ar
ag

e

Br
ac

ke
n 

Lo
dg

e

1

5

72

2

HAWTHORNE MEWS

Th
e

1

LB

7a

14

9

39

2

21

35

16

1

Pu
m

p

18

5 t
o 8

7

1

17
Dra

in

19

56

30

1

6

4

33

12

12

10

10
1

110

15

8

Drain

4

N
ur

sin
g

C
H

U
RC

H
 L

A
N

E

8

Fo
ss

21

9

12
W

ES
T 

EN
D

 C
L

1a

Ye
w

 T
re

e

44

2

35

28

2

7

WEST END

21

18
.2

m

20

31

11

25
32

15

Th
e 

Br
am

bl
es

18

St
on

e

Garden Cottage

6

8

El Sub Sta

K
lo

st
er

s

G
LE

BE
 C

LO
SE

6a
8a

1

H
A

RV
ES

T 
C

LO
SE

17

20

11

1

12

2

15

3

M
O

O
RL

A
N

D
 G

A
RT

H

2

43

23

18

54

9 t
o 1

2

Ex
ch

an
ge

5

72

15

3

Path (um) 42

60

El
 S

ub
 S

ta

13

67

Bl
ue

 F
ir

s

1a

10 to 16

49

2

1

2

23

5

M
id

ga
rt

h

Fa
rm

38

SQ
UARE

NORTHFIELDS

1

H
al

l

Fa
rm

49

C
re

st

RO
A

D

16
.7

m
43

St
re

ns
al

l B
ri

dg
e

H
ea

lth
 C

en
tr

e

1

ORCHARD W
AY

53

22

1

Li
by

17.9m

MIDDLECROFT GROVE

11

2

8

C
oa

ch

C
hu

rc
h

19

14

26

49

53

2

14
 to

 17

LOW CROFT

33

St
re

ns
al

l N
ew

 B
ri

dg
e

C
ob

b'
s 

C
ot

ta
ge

Pr
im

ar
y 

Sc
ho

ol

47

5

3

41

1

22
 to

 25

42

28

LY
N

W
O

O
D

6

WESTPIT

35

Te
le

ph
on

e

70

Ri
ve

r F
os

s

1

47

62

120

36
Church

Surgery

17
.6

m

16

Th
e 

Pe
bb

le
s

Th
e

So
ut

hf
ie

ld
s

18.6m

59
25 14

30

M
em

l

33

14

55

HIGHLANDS AVENUE

42

17

H
ea

th
er

 C
ot

ta
ge

2a

5

8

SH
ER

BO
U

RN
E 

G
R

SB

2

21

C
LO

SE

WESTPIT LANE

14

6

7

1

18
 to

 21

W
ES

T 
EN

D

32

St
 M

ar
y'

s

1 t
o 4

2

35

11

WOOD CLOSE

12

36

7

33

2

38

1

LC

12

31

7

Ta
nn

er
y

Ri
ve

r

Bu
ild

er
's

16
.8

m

15

82

M
P 

.5

Drain

40

5

H
ou

se

33

W
or

ks

57

Pa
th

 (u
m

)

10

2

1

72

PRINCESS R
OAD

15

SL

67

62 Th
e

H
alf

 M
oo

n

Th
e 

Po
pl

ar
s

M
P 

6

St
a

G
P

4

Gre
ys

to
ne

s

M
ID

D
LE

C
RO

FT
 D

R

W
A

Y

2

10

Ba
dg

er
 C

ot
ta

ge

M
ap

 6
 -

  S
pa

tia
l a

na
ly

si
s

La
nd

m
ar

ks

M
ed

iu
m

 d
is

ta
nc

e 
vi

ew
s

Lo
ng

 d
is

ta
nc

e 
vi

ew
s

W
at

er

north

P
ub

lic
 F

oo
tp

at
hs

T
re

es

G
at

ew
ay

G
ra

ss
ed

 A
re

a

C
ur

re
nt

 C
on

se
rv

at
io

n
A

re
a 

bo
un

da
ry

P
ro

po
se

d 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n

A
re

a 
bo

un
da

ry

R
e-

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
S

ite

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
S

ite

A
gr

ic
ul

tu
re

T
hi

s 
m

ap
 is

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
O

rd
na

nc
e 

S
ur

ve
y 

M
ap

pi
ng

 w
ith

 th
e 

pe
rm

is
si

on
 o

f t
he

 c
on

tr
ol

le
r 

of
 H

M
S

O
, ©

 C
ro

w
n 

C
op

yr
ig

ht
.  

U
na

ut
ho

ris
ed

 r
ep

ro
du

ct
io

n 
in

fr
in

ge
s 

C
ro

w
n 

C
op

yr
ig

ht
 a

nd
 m

ay
 le

ad
 to

 p
ro

se
cu

tio
n 

or
 c

iv
il 

pr
oc

ee
di

ng
s.

  C
ity

 o
f Y

or
k 

Li
ce

nc
e 

N
um

be
r 

10
00

-2
08

18

Page 119



St
re

ns
al

l C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

C
ha

ra
ct

er
 A

pp
ra

isa
l, 

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
 

12
 

7 
C

H
U

R
C

H
 L

A
N

E
 

7.
01

 T
hi

s 
ch

ar
ac

te
r 

ar
ea

 c
on

sis
ts

 o
f C

hu
rc

h 
La

ne
 a

nd
 p

ar
ts

 o
f W

es
t 

En
d 

an
d 

Yo
rk

 
Ro

ad
 (s

ee
 M

ap
 3

). 
   

 7.
02

 T
he

 s
pe

ci
al

 in
te

re
st

 o
f t

hi
s 

ch
ar

ac
te

r 
ar

ea
 

is 
th

e 
re

su
lt 

of
 a

 n
um

be
r 

of
 d

iff
er

en
t 

fa
ct

or
s: 

th
e 

tig
ht

 e
nc

lo
su

re
 o

f C
hu

rc
h 

La
ne

 a
nd

 t
he

 v
isu

al
 d

om
in

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 

ch
ur

ch
; t

he
 v

ar
ie

d 
re

la
tio

ns
hi

p 
of

 
bu

ild
in

gs
 t

o 
Yo

rk
 R

oa
d;

 a
nd

 t
he

 
ar

ch
ite

ct
ur

al
 q

ua
lit

y 
of

 t
he

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
. 

  
 U

se
s 

7.
03

 T
he

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
 in

 t
hi

s 
ch

ar
ac

te
r 

ar
ea

 a
re

 a
ll 

re
sid

en
tia

l w
ith

 t
he

 e
xc

ep
tio

n 
of

 S
t 

M
ar

y’
s 

C
hu

rc
h 

(s
ee

 M
ap

 4
). 

   
  

Q
ua

lit
ie

s 
of

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
 

7.
04

 W
ith

in
 t

hi
s 

ch
ar

ac
te

r 
ar

ea
 t

he
re

 a
re

 t
w

o 
lis

te
d 

bu
ild

in
gs

 (s
ee

 A
pp

en
di

x 
A

): 
St

 
M

ar
y’

s 
C

hu
rc

h 
(s

ee
 P

la
te

 2
4)

; a
nd

 N
o.

 3
 

C
hu

rc
h 

La
ne

 - 
Be

rw
in

 H
ou

se
, w

hi
ch

 is
 a

 
m

id
-e

ig
ht

ee
nt

h 
ce

nt
ur

y 
ho

us
e 

(s
ee

 P
la

te
 

25
). 

 M
os

t 
of

 t
he

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
 a

re
 o

f a
 

m
od

es
t 

tw
o 

st
or

ey
 h

ei
gh

t. 
 T

he
y 

ar
e 

ge
ne

ra
lly

 o
f s

im
pl

e 
fo

rm
, w

ith
 v

er
tic

al
 

w
in

do
w

 o
pe

ni
ng

s, 
co

ns
tr

uc
te

d 
in

 c
la

m
p-

fir
ed

,  
re

d 
br

ic
k,

 w
ith

 t
ile

d 
or

 s
la

te
d 

pi
tc

he
d 

ro
of

s. 
 T

he
 c

hu
rc

h 
is 

ve
ry

 
di

ffe
re

nt
, h

av
in

g 
a 

co
m

pl
ex

 fo
rm

 w
ith

 a
 

pr
om

in
en

t 
to

w
er

 a
nd

 s
pi

re
.  

 

Pl
at

e 
24

   
St

 M
ar

y’
s 

C
hu

rc
h 

Pl
at

e 
26

   
N

o.
 2

 W
es

t 
En

d 

Pl
at

e 
25

 
N

o.
 3

 C
hu

rc
h 

La
ne

 (B
er

w
in

 
 

H
ou

se
) 

7.
05

 L
oc

al
 d

et
ai

lin
g 

in
cl

ud
es

 b
ri

ck
 c

am
be

re
d 

or
 

fla
t 

ar
ch

 li
nt

el
s, 

an
d 

de
co

ra
tiv

e 
ba

nd
in

g 
at

 
ea

ve
s 

le
ve

l. 
 S

om
e 

of
 th

e 
ea

rl
ie

st
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 
al

so
 h

av
e 

tr
ia

ng
ul

ar
 b

ri
ck

 p
an

el
s 

- k
no

w
n 

as
 b

ri
ck

 t
um

bl
in

g 
on

 t
he

ir
 g

ab
le

s. 
 M

os
t 

re
ta

in
 t

he
ir 

or
ig

in
al

 fe
at

ur
es

, s
uc

h 
as

 s
as

h 
w

in
do

w
s 

an
d 

ca
st

 ir
on

 d
ow

np
ip

es
.  

A
lso

, 
w

ith
in

 t
hi

s 
ch

ar
ac

te
r 

ar
ea

 a
re

 a
 n

um
be

r 
of

 
la

rg
er

 o
r 

m
or

e 
pr

om
in

en
t 

de
ta

ch
ed

 
pr

op
er

tie
s 

w
hi

ch
 r

ef
le

ct
 t

he
 e

xp
an

sio
n 

of
 

th
e 

vi
lla

ge
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
la

te
 n

in
et

ee
nt

h 
an

d 
ea

rl
y 

tw
en

tie
th

 c
en

tu
ri

es
.  

Ex
am

pl
es

 
in

cl
ud

e 
th

e 
Vi

ca
ra

ge
 a

nd
 N

o.
 2

 W
es

t 
En

d 
(s

ee
 P

la
te

 2
6)

.  
A

ll 
th

e 
hi

st
or

ic
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

, 
lis

te
d 

or
 n

ot
, c

on
tr

ib
ut

e 
to

 t
he

 c
ha

ra
ct

er
 

an
d 

th
e 

ap
pe

ar
an

ce
 o

f t
he

 a
re

a 
(s

ee
 M

ap
 

5)
. 

  
Sp

ac
es

 a
nd

 v
ie

w
s 

7.
06

 T
he

 o
pe

n 
sp

ac
e 

w
ith

in
 t

hi
s 

ch
ar

ac
te

r 
ar

ea
 

is 
lim

ite
d 

to
 t

he
 c

hu
rc

hy
ar

d 
w

hi
ch

 is
 s

et
 

be
hi

nd
 a

 t
re

e 
fil

te
r 

al
on

g 
its

 b
ou

nd
ar

y 
w

ith
 C

hu
rc

h 
La

ne
.  

Th
is 

ch
ur

ch
ya

rd
 

co
ns

ist
s 

of
 m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
gr

as
s 

an
d 

m
em

or
ia

l 
st

on
es

. 
 7.

07
 T

he
re

 is
 a

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t 

vi
ew

 n
or

th
 a

lo
ng

 
W

es
t 

En
d 

to
w

ar
ds

 t
he

 c
hu

rc
h 

to
w

er
 (s

ee
 

Pl
at

e 
27

). 
 N

o.
 2

 W
es

t 
En

d 
as

 a
 m

in
or

 
la

nd
m

ar
k 

bu
ild

in
g 

on
 Y

or
k 

Ro
ad

, 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

ly
 in

 v
ie

w
s 

lo
ok

in
g 

no
rt

h.
  S

om
e 

Page 120



Pl
at

e 
27

  V
ie

w
 to

w
ar

ds
 C

hu
rc

h 
To

w
er

 

St
re

ns
al

l C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

C
ha

ra
ct

er
 A

pp
ra

isa
l, 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
 

13
 

lim
ite

d 
vi

ew
s 

al
so

 o
cc

ur
 a

lo
ng

 C
hu

rc
h 

La
ne

 a
nd

 W
es

t 
En

d 
in

 b
ot

h 
di

re
ct

io
ns

.  
 

 7.
08

 T
he

re
 is

 a
n 

im
po

rt
an

t 
pe

de
st

ri
an

 r
ou

te
 

w
ith

in
 t

hi
s 

ch
ar

ac
te

r 
ar

ea
.  

Th
is 

is 
th

e 
na

rr
ow

 p
at

hw
ay

, e
nc

lo
se

d 
by

 h
ig

h 
w

al
ls 

th
at

 c
on

ne
ct

s 
C

hu
rc

h 
La

ne
 w

ith
 W

es
t 

En
d.

  I
t 

is 
an

 im
po

rt
an

t 
hi

st
or

ic
 r

ou
te

 
w

ith
in

 t
he

 v
ill

ag
e 

an
d 

du
e 

to
 t

he
 e

nc
lo

su
re

 
pr

ov
id

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
ga

rd
en

 w
al

ls 
an

d 
hi

gh
 

be
ec

h 
he

dg
in

g 
of

 t
he

 a
dj

ac
en

t 
pr

op
er

tie
s 

th
e 

fo
ot

pa
th

 r
et

ai
ns

 it
s 

hi
st

or
ic

 in
te

re
st

 
an

d 
sig

ni
fic

an
ce

 d
es

pi
te

 b
ei

ng
 fi

ni
sh

ed
 w

ith
 

ta
rm

ac
 (s

ee
 P

la
te

 2
8)

. 
   

So
ft

 la
nd

sc
ap

in
g 

 
7.

09
 T

he
re

 a
re

 a
 la

rg
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 m

at
ur

e 
tr

ee
s 

w
ith

in
 t

hi
s 

se
ct

io
n 

of
 t

he
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
(s

ee
 M

ap
 6

). 
 M

an
y 

ar
e 

lo
ca

te
d 

in
 

th
e 

gr
ou

nd
s 

of
 t

he
 c

hu
rc

h.
  O

th
er

 t
re

es
 

ar
e 

lo
ca

te
d 

in
 t

he
 g

ar
de

ns
 o

f t
he

 v
ar

io
us

 
ho

us
es

.  
Th

e 
Vi

ca
ra

ge
 o

n 
Yo

rk
 R

oa
d,

 
w

hi
ch

 h
as

 v
er

y 
sig

ni
fic

an
t 

tr
ee

s 
al

on
g 

its
 

bo
un

da
ry

 t
ha

t 
pr

ev
en

t 
pu

bl
ic

 v
ie

w
s 

to
w

ar
ds

 t
he

 b
ui

ld
in

g.
  T

he
 n

um
er

ou
s 

tr
ee

s 
an

d 
he

dg
es

 m
ak

e 
a 

vi
ta

l a
nd

 v
ar

ie
d 

co
nt

ri
bu

tio
n 

to
 t

he
 c

ha
ra

ct
er

 o
f t

hi
s 

ar
ea

. 
   

N
eu

tr
al

 a
nd

 n
eg

at
iv

e 
fa

ct
or

s 
7.

10
 W

he
re

 r
ec

en
t 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

 h
av

e 
a 

m
od

es
t 

fo
rm

 a
nd

 m
ak

e 
us

e 
of

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 
bu

ild
in

g 
m

at
er

ia
ls 

an
d 

de
ta

ili
ng

, t
he

y 
ca

n 
be

 c
on

sid
er

ed
 a

s 
ne

ut
ra

l f
ac

to
rs

 w
ith

in
 

th
e 

ar
ea

 (M
ap

 5
). 

 
 

 7.
11

 W
ith

in
 t

he
 c

ha
ra

ct
er

 a
re

a 
ar

e 
a 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 m

od
er

n 
de

ta
ch

ed
 m

od
er

n 
ho

us
es

 t
ha

t 
do

 n
ot

 h
av

e 
ar

ch
ite

ct
ur

al
 in

te
re

st
 o

r 
 

hi
st

or
ic

 c
ha

ra
ct

er
ist

ic
s 

th
at

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
e 

to
 

th
e 

ch
ar

ac
te

r 
of

 t
he

 a
re

a 
(s

ee
 P

la
te

 2
9 

an
d 

M
ap

 5
). 

 

Pl
at

e 
29

  L
ar

ge
 m

od
er

n 
ho

us
e 

on
 C

hu
rc

h 
   

La
ne

 
 Pl

at
e 

28
  V

ie
w

 o
f a

lle
y 

Page 121



St
re

ns
al

l C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

C
ha

ra
ct

er
 A

pp
ra

isa
l, 

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
 

14
 

8 
M

A
N

O
R

 F
A

R
M

 

8.
01

 
Th

is 
ch

ar
ac

te
r 

ar
ea

 is
 fo

cu
se

d 
ar

ou
nd

  
M

an
or

 F
ar

m
 (p

re
vi

ou
sly

 n
am

ed
 S

tr
en

sa
ll 

H
al

l) 
w

hi
ch

 w
as

 t
he

 a
dm

in
ist

ra
tiv

e 
ce

nt
re

 o
f t

he
 m

ed
ie

va
l v

ill
ag

e,
 t

og
et

he
r 

w
ith

 t
he

 o
pe

n 
ar

ea
s 

th
at

 e
xt

en
d 

no
rt

h 
to

 t
he

 R
iv

er
 F

os
s. 

 It
 e

xt
en

ds
 fr

om
 

St
re

ns
al

l N
ew

 B
ri

dg
e 

in
 t

he
 w

es
t 

to
 

St
re

ns
al

l B
ri

dg
e 

to
 t

he
 e

as
t 

(s
ee

 M
ap

 3
). 

  
 8.

02
  T

he
 s

pe
ci

al
 in

te
re

st
 o

f t
hi

s 
ar

ea
 is

 
ce

nt
re

d 
on

 t
he

 h
ist

or
ic

 c
om

pl
ex

 o
f 

bu
ild

in
gs

 a
nd

 la
nd

 a
t 

M
an

or
 F

ar
m

, t
he

 
m

ed
ie

va
l m

oa
te

d 
sit

e 
an

d 
its

 o
pe

n 
se

tt
in

g.
  

  
  U

se
s 

8.
03

 
W

ith
in

 t
he

 a
re

a 
th

er
e 

is 
on

ly
 o

ne
 

pr
op

er
ty

, M
an

or
 H

ou
se

 a
nd

 it
s 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 a

gr
ic

ul
tu

ra
l b

ui
ld

in
gs

 (s
ee

 
M

ap
 4

). 
 T

he
 r

em
ai

nd
er

 o
f t

he
 c

ha
ra

ct
er

 
ar

ea
 is

 m
ad

e 
up

 o
f o

pe
n 

fa
rm

la
nd

 a
nd

 
w

oo
de

d 
ar

ea
s 

ad
ja

ce
nt

 t
o 

th
e 

ri
ve

r.
 

   
Q

ua
lit

ie
s 

of
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 
8.

04
 

M
an

or
 H

ou
se

 is
 a

 G
ra

de
 II

 li
st

ed
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

(s
ee

 A
pp

en
di

x 
A

). 
 It

 d
at

es
 fr

om
 t

he
 la

te
 

se
ve

nt
ee

nt
h 

ce
nt

ur
y 

bu
t 

w
as

 
su

bs
ta

nt
ia

lly
 a

lte
re

d 
in

 t
he

 e
ig

ht
ee

nt
h 

an
d 

tw
en

tie
th

 c
en

tu
ri

es
 (s

ee
 P

la
te

 3
0 

an
d 

M
ap

 5
). 

  
  

Pl
at

e 
30

 V
ie

w
 t

ow
ar

ds
 M

an
or

 F
ar

m
 

Pl
at

e 
31

 S
tr

en
sa

ll 
N

ew
 B

ri
dg

e 
 Pl

at
e 

32
  R

em
na

nt
s 

of
 lo

ck
 e

nt
ra

nc
e 

 

Page 122



Pl
at

e 
35

 W
oo

de
d 

ar
ea

 a
nd

 in
fo

rm
al

 
 

fo
ot

pa
th

 to
 t

he
 s

ou
th

 o
f 

 
St

re
ns

al
l N

ew
 B

ri
dg

e 

Pl
at

e 
33

 S
tr

en
sa

ll 
Br

id
ge

 
 

St
re

ns
al

l C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

C
ha

ra
ct

er
 A

pp
ra

isa
l, 

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
 

15
 

  
O

th
er

 S
tr

uc
tu

re
s 

8.
05

 
W

ith
in

 t
he

 c
ha

ra
ct

er
 a

re
a 

th
er

e 
ar

e 
tw

o 
lis

te
d 

br
id

ge
s 

(s
ee

 A
pp

en
di

x 
A

). 
 

St
re

ns
al

l N
ew

 B
ri

dg
e 

is 
lo

ca
te

d 
at

 t
he

 
w

es
te

rn
 e

nd
 o

f t
he

 d
es

ig
na

te
d 

ar
ea

 a
nd

 
is 

th
e 

on
ly

 r
em

ai
ni

ng
 b

ri
dg

e 
bu

ilt
 b

y 
th

e 
Fo

ss
 N

av
ig

at
io

n 
C

om
pa

ny
 in

 t
he

 la
te

 
ei

gh
te

en
th

 c
en

tu
ry

 (s
ee

 P
la

te
 3

1)
.  

O
n 

th
e 

ea
st

 s
id

e 
of

 t
he

 b
ri

dg
e 

ar
e 

th
e 

re
m

ai
ns

 o
f a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
w

al
ls 

w
hi

ch
 c

ou
ld

 
be

 r
el

at
ed

 t
o 

fo
rm

er
 lo

ck
s 

(s
ee

 P
la

te
 3

2)
.  

Th
es

e 
re

m
na

nt
s 

ad
d 

to
 t

he
 in

te
re

st
 o

f 
th

is 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

 p
ar

t 
of

 t
he

 c
ha

ra
ct

er
 a

re
a.

  
St

re
ns

al
l B

ri
dg

e,
 w

hi
ch

 d
at

es
 fr

om
 1

79
8,

 
ca

rr
ie

s 
th

e 
m

ai
n 

ro
ad

 n
or

th
 fr

om
 t

he
 

vi
lla

ge
 (s

ee
 P

la
te

 3
3)

.  
 

  
  S

pa
ce

s 
an

d 
vi

ew
s 

8.
06

 
Th

e 
op

en
 s

pa
ce

s 
ar

ou
nd

 M
an

or
 F

ar
m

 
de

fin
e 

th
is 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
 c

ha
ra

ct
er

 a
re

a.
  T

he
 

tr
ee

s 
at

 t
he

 w
es

te
rn

 e
nd

 o
f t

he
 a

re
a 

an
d 

al
on

g 
th

e 
re

ar
 b

ou
nd

ar
ie

s 
of

 t
he

 v
ill

ag
e 

en
ve

lo
pe

 c
re

at
e 

a 
di

st
in

ct
iv

e 
ru

ra
l s

et
tin

g 
  

(s
ee

 P
la

te
 3

4)
.  

Vi
ew

s 
in

to
 t

he
 d

es
ig

na
te

d 
ar

ea
, a

nd
 t

o 
th

e 
ch

ur
ch

 t
ow

er
, f

ro
m

 
ac

ro
ss

 t
he

 R
iv

er
 F

os
s 

ar
e 

im
po

rt
an

t, 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

ly
 t

ho
se

 t
ha

t 
ar

e 
po

ss
ib

le
 a

lo
ng

 
th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 fo
ot

pa
th

 t
ha

t 
fo

llo
w

s 
th

e 
no

rt
he

rn
 b

an
k 

of
 t

he
 r

iv
er

 (s
ee

 M
ap

 6
). 

 8.
07

 
A

 p
an

or
am

ic
 v

ie
w

 lo
ok

in
g 

no
rt

h 
ou

t 
ac

ro
ss

 o
pe

n 
fie

ld
s 

is 
po

ss
ib

le
 fr

om
 

St
re

ns
al

l B
ri

dg
e 

an
d 

se
rv

es
 a

s 
a 

re
m

in
de

r 
of

 t
he

 a
gr

ic
ul

tu
ra

l h
ist

or
y 

of
 t

he
 v

ill
ag

e.
 

 8.
08

 
Th

e 
w

oo
de

d 
ar

ea
 o

n 
th

e 
so

ut
h 

sid
e 

of
 

th
e 

ri
ve

r 
cl

os
e 

to
 S

tr
en

sa
ll 

N
ew

 B
ri

dg
e 

co
nt

ai
ns

 a
n 

in
fo

rm
al

 fo
ot

pa
th

 u
se

d 
fo

r 
re

cr
ea

tio
na

l p
ur

po
se

s 
(s

ee
 P

la
te

 3
5)

. 
   

 S
of

t 
la

nd
sc

ap
in

g 
 

8.
09

 
Th

e 
m

aj
or

ity
 o

f t
hi

s 
ch

ar
ac

te
r 

ar
ea

 
co

ns
ist

s 
of

 g
ra

ss
la

nd
 u

se
d 

fo
r 

ag
ri

cu
ltu

ra
l 

pu
rp

os
es

 a
nd

 t
he

 w
oo

de
d 

ar
ea

 o
n 

th
e 

so
ut

h 
sid

e 
of

 t
he

 r
iv

er
 a

dj
ac

en
t 

to
 

St
re

ns
al

l N
ew

 B
ri

dg
e 

(s
ee

 P
la

te
 3

5 
an

d 
M

ap
 6

). 
 T

he
 b

ou
nd

ar
y 

of
 th

e 
vi

lla
ge

 
en

ve
lo

pe
 a

lso
 c

on
ta

in
s 

sig
ni

fic
an

t 
tr

ee
s. 

  
N

eu
tr

al
 a

nd
 n

eg
at

iv
e 

fa
ct

or
s 

8.
10

 
Th

er
e 

ar
e 

no
 n

eu
tr

al
 o

r 
ne

ga
tiv

e 
fa

ct
or

s 
w

ith
in

 th
is 

ch
ar

ac
te

r 
ar

ea
. 

  

Pl
at

e 
34

  V
ie

w
 in

to
 t

he
 a

re
a 

ac
ro

ss
 t

he
 

 
Ri

ve
r 

Fo
ss

 

Page 123



St
re

ns
al

l C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

C
ha

ra
ct

er
 A

pp
ra

isa
l, 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
 

16
 

9 
T

H
E

 V
IL

L
A

G
E

 
 

 

9.
01

 T
hi

s 
ch

ar
ac

te
r 

ar
ea

 (s
ee

 M
ap

 3
) c

on
sis

ts
 o

f t
he

 
m

ai
n 

ro
ad

 t
hr

ou
gh

 t
he

 v
ill

ag
e 

w
hi

ch
 r

un
s 

in
 a

 
ea

st
/w

es
t 

di
re

ct
io

n 
an

d 
co

nt
ai

ns
 p

ro
pe

rt
ie

s 
on

 
bo

th
 s

id
es

 o
f t

he
 r

oa
d.

  I
t 

al
so

 in
cl

ud
es

 t
he

 
ho

us
es

 o
n 

th
e 

no
rt

h 
sid

e 
of

 S
ou

th
fie

ld
s 

Ro
ad

, 
w

hi
ch

 it
 is

 p
ro

po
se

d 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

in
cl

ud
ed

 w
ith

in
 

th
e 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

(s
ee

 C
ha

pt
er

 5
.0

0)
. 

 9.
02

 T
he

 s
pe

ci
al

 in
te

re
st

 o
f t

hi
s 

ch
ar

ac
te

r 
ar

ea
 is

 
th

e 
re

su
lt 

of
 a

 n
um

be
r 

of
 d

iff
er

en
t 

fa
ct

or
s: 

th
e 

ar
ch

ite
ct

ur
al

 q
ua

lit
y 

of
 t

he
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

; t
he

 
hi

st
or

ic
 p

lo
t 

la
yo

ut
s; 

th
e 

re
la

tiv
e 

va
ri

et
y 

of
 t

he
 

bu
ild

in
gs

 in
 t

er
m

s 
of

 s
ty

le
, s

iz
e;

 a
nd

 t
he

ir
 

re
la

tio
ns

hi
p 

to
 t

he
 r

oa
d.

 
  

U
se

s 
9.

03
 T

he
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

e 
a 

m
ix

tu
re

 o
f 

re
sid

en
tia

l a
nd

 c
om

m
er

ci
al

 u
se

s 
ty

pi
ca

lly
 

fo
un

d 
in

 a
 v

ill
ag

e.
  F

ac
ili

tie
s 

in
cl

ud
e 

tw
o 

pu
bl

ic
 

ho
us

es
, a

 g
ar

ag
e,

 t
he

 lo
ca

l l
ib

ra
ry

, a
 p

os
t 

of
fic

e,
 a

 c
on

ve
ni

en
ce

 s
to

re
, t

he
 M

et
ho

di
st

 
C

hu
rc

h 
an

d 
th

e 
fis

h 
&

 c
hi

p 
sh

op
 (s

ee
 M

ap
 4

). 
  

Q
ua

lit
ie

s 
of

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
 

9.
04

 T
hi

s 
ch

ar
ac

te
r 

ar
ea

 in
cl

ud
es

 t
w

o 
lis

te
d 

bu
ild

in
gs

 (s
ee

 M
ap

 5
 a

nd
 A

pp
en

di
x 

A
): 

N
o.

 5
9 

Th
e 

Vi
lla

ge
 a

 la
te

 e
ig

ht
ee

nt
h 

ce
nt

ur
y 

ho
us

e,
 

re
m

od
el

ed
 in

 t
he

 e
ar

ly
 n

in
et

ee
nt

h 
ce

nt
ur

y 
(s

ee
 P

la
te

 3
6)

 a
nd

 t
he

 w
ar

 m
em

or
ia

l (
se

e 
9.

07
 

be
lo

w
). 

 M
os

t 
bu

ild
in

gs
 a

re
 o

f a
 m

od
es

t 
tw

o 
st

or
ey

 h
ei

gh
t 

an
d 

fo
rm

 p
ar

t 
of

 s
m

al
l 

co
lle

ct
io

ns
 o

f b
ui

ld
in

gs
 o

r 
te

rr
ac

es
.  

Th
ey

 a
re

 

Pl
at

e 
36

 N
o.

 5
9 

Th
e 

Vi
lla

ge
  

Pl
at

e 
37

 G
ab

le
 d

et
ai

lin
g 

 
 Pl

at
e 

38
 T

he
 S

hi
p 

Pu
bl

ic
 H

ou
se

 

Page 124



St
re

ns
al

l C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

C
ha

ra
ct

er
 A

pp
ra

isa
l, 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
 

17
 

of
 s

im
pl

e 
fo

rm
, w

ith
 v

er
tic

al
 w

in
do

w
 

op
en

in
gs

, c
on

st
ru

ct
ed

 in
 c

la
m

p-
fir

ed
, r

ed
 

br
ic

k,
 w

ith
 t

ile
d 

or
 s

la
te

d 
cl

ea
r 

ro
of

 s
lo

pe
s 

in
te

rr
up

te
d 

on
ly

 b
y 

th
e 

nu
m

er
ou

s 
ch

im
ne

ys
. T

he
 m

or
e 

fo
rm

al
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 in
 t

he
 

ar
ea

 a
re

 s
et

 b
eh

in
d 

pl
in

th
 w

al
ls 

an
d 

ra
ili

ng
s. 

 9.
05

 L
oc

al
 d

et
ai

lin
g 

in
cl

ud
es

 b
ri

ck
 c

am
be

re
d 

or
 

fla
t 

ar
ch

 li
nt

el
s, 

an
d 

de
co

ra
tiv

e 
ba

nd
in

g 
at

 
ea

ve
s 

le
ve

l. 
 S

om
e 

of
 th

e 
ea

rl
ie

st
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 
al

so
 h

av
e 

tr
ia

ng
ul

ar
 b

ri
ck

 p
an

el
s 

- k
no

w
n 

as
 

br
ic

k 
tu

m
bl

in
g 

on
 t

he
ir

 g
ab

le
s 

(s
ee

 P
la

te
 

37
). 

 M
an

y 
of

 t
he

 e
ig

ht
ee

nt
h 

an
d 

ni
ne

te
en

th
 

ce
nt

ur
y 

bu
ild

in
gs

 r
et

ai
n 

or
ig

in
al

 fe
at

ur
es

, 
su

ch
 a

s 
sa

sh
 w

in
do

w
s 

an
d 

ca
st

 ir
on

 
do

w
np

ip
es

.  
So

m
e 

of
 t

he
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 w
ith

in
 

th
e 

ar
ea

 s
ho

w
 e

vi
de

nc
e 

of
 a

da
pt

at
io

n 
of

 t
he

 
fa

br
ic

, s
uc

h 
as

 t
he

 fo
rm

er
 B

ut
ch

er
s 

w
hi

ch
 

ha
s 

be
en

 in
cr

ea
se

d 
in

 h
ei

gh
t. 

 M
os

t 
of

 t
he

 
hi

st
or

ic
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

, w
he

th
er

 li
st

ed
 o

r 
no

t, 
co

nt
ri

bu
te

 t
o 

th
e 

ch
ar

ac
te

r 
an

d 
th

e 
ap

pe
ar

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 a

re
a 

(s
ee

 M
ap

 5
). 

 S
om

e 
of

 t
he

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
 w

ith
in

 t
hi

s 
ch

ar
ac

te
r 

ar
ea

 
ha

ve
 r

en
de

re
d 

or
 p

ai
nt

ed
 fa

ca
de

s, 
fo

r 
ex

am
pl

e 
Th

e 
Sh

ip
 P

ub
lic

 H
ou

se
 (s

ee
 P

la
te

 
38

). 
 A

lth
ou

gh
 t

he
 u

se
 o

f r
en

de
r 

an
d 

pa
in

te
d 

br
ic

kw
or

k 
(s

ee
 P

la
te

 3
9)

 is
 n

ot
 t

he
 

pr
ed

om
in

an
t 

m
at

er
ia

l f
or

 e
xt

er
na

l w
al

ls 
w

ith
in

 t
he

 a
re

a,
 t

he
se

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
 a

lso
 

co
nt

ri
bu

te
 t

o 
th

e 
ch

ar
ac

te
r 

an
d 

ap
pe

ar
an

ce
 

of
 t

he
 a

re
a.

 
 9.

06
 M

os
t 

of
 t

he
 m

or
e 

m
od

er
n 

bu
ild

in
gs

 in
 t

hi
s 

ch
ar

ac
te

r 
ar

ea
 a

re
 c

on
st

ru
ct

ed
 in

 a
 

sy
m

pa
th

et
ic

 b
ri

ck
 a

nd
 a

re
 o

f a
 s

im
pl

e 
fo

rm
.  

H
ow

ev
er

, t
he

re
 a

re
 s

ev
er

al
 e

xa
m

pl
es

 o
f 

ho
us

es
 t

ha
t 

do
 n

ot
 c

on
fo

rm
 t

o 
th

e 
lo

ca
l 

ve
rn

ac
ul

ar
 a

nd
 m

an
y 

of
 t

he
se

 d
o 

no
t 

fo
llo

w
 t

he
 fi

ne
 u

rb
an

 g
ra

in
 o

f t
he

 
de

sig
na

te
d 

ar
ea

. 
  

O
th

er
 s

tr
uc

tu
re

s 
9.

07
 T

he
 v

er
y 

fin
e 

w
ar

 m
em

or
ia

l i
s 

a 
G

ra
de

 II
 

lis
te

d 
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

(s
ee

 A
pp

en
di

x 
A

) t
ha

t 
is 

lo
ca

te
d 

on
 t

he
 n

or
th

 s
id

e 
of

 T
he

 V
ill

ag
e.

  
It 

co
ns

ist
s 

of
 s

m
al

l h
ar

d 
la

nd
sc

ap
ed

 a
re

a 
w

ith
 t

he
 m

em
or

ia
l r

ai
se

d 
on

 a
 s

er
ie

s 
of

 
st

ep
s. 

 T
he

 t
al

l b
ac

k-
cl

ot
h 

of
 h

ed
gi

ng
 a

nd
 

sh
ru

bs
 p

ro
vi

de
s 

a 
su

ita
bl

e 
ba

ck
-d

ro
p 

to
 

th
e 

Po
rt

la
nd

 s
to

ne
 (s

ee
 P

la
te

 4
0)

. 
 

 
 

Sp
ac

es
 a

nd
 v

ie
w

s 
9.

08
 T

he
 s

pa
ce

s 
in

 t
hi

s 
ch

ar
ac

te
r 

ar
ea

 a
re

 
pr

ed
om

in
an

tly
 li

m
ite

d 
to

 t
he

 s
tr

ee
ts

ce
ne

 
as

 m
os

t 
of

 t
he

 o
pe

n 
ar

ea
s 

ar
e 

th
e 

re
ar

 
ga

rd
en

s 
of

 t
he

 v
ar

io
us

 h
ou

se
s, 

w
hi

ch
 

ca
nn

ot
 g

en
er

al
ly

 b
e 

se
en

 fr
om

 t
he

 p
ub

lic
 

do
m

ai
n.

  H
ow

ev
er

, t
he

re
 a

re
 n

um
be

r 
of

 
ex

am
pl

es
 o

f b
ui

ld
in

g 
en

cl
av

es
 s

et
 a

ro
un

d 
a 

sh
ar

ed
 y

ar
d 

ar
ea

. T
he

 o
nl

y 
pu

bl
ic

 s
pa

ce
 is

 
th

e 
sm

al
l l

an
ds

ca
pe

d 
ar

ea
 o

f t
he

 w
ar

 
m

em
or

ia
l (

se
e 

Pl
at

e 
40

). 
  

 9.
09

 T
he

re
 is

 a
 d

es
ig

na
te

d 
pu

bl
ic

 fo
ot

pa
th

 t
ha

t 
ru

ns
 fr

om
 T

he
 V

ill
ag

e,
 a

dj
ac

en
t 

to
 N

o.
 1

8,
 

th
ro

ug
h 

to
 S

ou
th

fie
ld

s 
ne

xt
 t

o 
N

o.
 2

9.
  

Th
is 

is 
a 

ta
rm

ac
 fo

ot
pa

th
 a

nd
 h

as
 n

o 
hi

st
or

ic
 fe

at
ur

es
.  

A
 s

ec
on

d,
 u

n-
de

sig
na

te
d,

 p
ed

es
tr

ia
n 

ro
ut

e 
ru

ns
 a

dj
ac

en
t 

to
 t

he
 c

on
ve

ni
en

ce
 s

to
re

 o
n 

Th
e 

Vi
lla

ge
 

Pl
at

e 
41

  V
ie

w
 s

ou
th

 a
lo

ng
 u

nm
ad

e 
ro

ut
e 

 Pl
at

e 
40

   
Th

e 
W

ar
 M

em
or

ia
l 

 Pl
at

e 
39

  N
o.

 6
9 

Th
e 

Vi
lla

ge
 

Page 125



St
re

ns
al

l C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

C
ha

ra
ct

er
 A

pp
ra

isa
l, 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
 

18
 

th
ro

ug
h 

to
 S

ou
th

fie
ld

s. 
 T

hi
s 

is 
a 

w
id

e 
ro

ut
e 

an
d 

ha
s 

an
 u

nm
ad

e 
su

rf
ac

e 
bu

t 
ap

pe
ar

s 
to

 b
e 

of
 h

ist
or

ic
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

ce
 (s

ee
 P

la
te

 4
1)

.  
O

th
er

 
se

co
nd

ar
y 

tr
ac

ks
 h

av
e 

be
en

 t
ar

m
ac

ed
 w

hi
ch

 
er

od
es

 p
ar

t 
of

 t
he

 c
ha

ra
ct

er
 o

f t
he

 a
re

a.
 

 9.
10

 M
ed

iu
m

 d
ist

an
ce

 v
ie

w
s 

ex
ist

 a
lo

ng
 T

he
 

Vi
lla

ge
 in

 b
ot

h 
di

re
ct

io
ns

 b
ut

 a
re

 li
m

ite
d 

by
 

th
e 

cu
rv

at
ur

e 
an

d 
un

du
la

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 r

oa
d 

bu
t 

en
ab

le
s 

un
fo

ld
in

g 
vi

ew
s 

al
on

g 
th

e 
m

ai
n 

ro
ad

 (s
ee

 M
ap

 6
). 

  
 9.

11
 A

 lo
ng

 d
ist

an
ce

 v
ie

w
 o

ut
 o

f t
he

 d
es

ig
na

te
d 

ar
ea

 is
 p

os
sib

le
 fr

om
 t

he
 e

as
te

rn
 e

nd
 o

f T
he

 
Vi

lla
ge

.  
Si

m
ila

rl
y,

 v
ie

w
s 

in
to

 t
he

 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
ar

e 
al

so
 p

os
sib

le
, l

oo
ki

ng
 

w
es

t 
al

on
g 

th
e 

se
ct

io
n 

of
 T

he
 V

ill
ag

e 
th

at
 is

 
ou

ts
id

e 
th

e 
de

sig
na

te
d 

ar
ea

. 
 9.

12
 T

he
re

 is
 a

 s
ho

rt
 d

ist
an

ce
 v

ie
w

 o
ve

r 
th

e 
hu

m
p 

of
 S

tr
en

sa
ll 

Br
id

ge
 lo

ok
in

g 
so

ut
h 

to
w

ar
ds

 t
he

 M
et

ho
di

st
 C

ha
pe

l o
n 

th
e 

so
ut

h 
sid

e 
of

 t
he

 V
ill

ag
e.

  T
hi

s 
bu

ild
in

g 
cl

os
es

 t
he

 
vi

st
a 

an
d 

ac
ts

 a
s 

a 
lo

ca
l l

an
dm

ar
k 

(s
ee

 P
la

te
 

42
). 

 
 

  
So

ft
 la

nd
sc

ap
in

g 
9.

13
 T

he
re

 a
re

 a
 la

rg
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 m

at
ur

e 
tr

ee
s 

an
d 

he
dg

es
 w

ith
in

 th
is 

ch
ar

ac
te

r 
ar

ea
.  

M
os

t 
of

 th
e 

tr
ee

s 
an

d 
he

dg
es

 a
re

 lo
ca

te
d 

w
ith

in
 

th
e 

cu
rt

ila
ge

 o
f t

he
 v

ar
io

us
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 b
ut

 t
he

y 
m

ak
e 

a 
ve

ry
 im

po
rt

an
t 

co
nt

ri
bu

tio
n 

to
 t

he
 

st
re

et
sc

en
e 

(s
ee

 P
la

te
 4

3 
an

d 
M

ap
 6

). 
  

 9.
14

 M
an

y 
of

 t
he

 h
ou

se
s 

on
 t

he
 n

or
th

 s
id

e 
of

 T
he

 

Vi
lla

ge
 h

av
e 

lo
ng

 r
ea

r 
ga

rd
en

s, 
so

m
e 

of
 

w
hi

ch
 h

av
e 

be
en

 in
fil

le
d 

w
ith

 n
ew

 h
ou

sin
g.

  
H

ow
ev

er
, t

o 
th

e 
ea

st
 o

f S
tr

en
sa

ll 
Br

id
ge

 a
 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 t

he
 h

ou
se

s 
re

ta
in

 t
he

ir
 lo

ng
 

re
ar

 g
ar

de
ns

, w
hi

ch
 a

dd
s 

to
 s

en
se

 o
f 

im
m

ed
ia

cy
 t

o 
th

e 
su

rr
ou

nd
in

g 
co

un
tr

ys
id

e 
in

 t
hi

s 
pa

rt
 o

f t
he

 a
re

a.
 

  
N

eu
tr

al
 a

nd
 n

eg
at

iv
e 

fa
ct

or
s 

9.
15

 W
he

re
 r

ec
en

t 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
 w

ith
in

 t
hi

s 
ch

ar
ac

te
r 

ar
ea

 h
av

e 
a 

m
od

es
t 

fo
rm

 a
nd

 
m

as
sin

g 
th

at
 r

es
po

nd
s 

to
 h

ist
or

ic
al

 
pr

ec
ed

en
ts

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
vi

lla
ge

, a
nd

 m
ak

e 
us

e 
of

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 b
ui

ld
in

g 
m

at
er

ia
ls 

an
d 

de
ta

ili
ng

, t
he

y 
ca

n 
be

 c
on

sid
er

ed
 a

s 
ne

ut
ra

l f
ac

to
rs

 w
ith

in
 t

he
 a

re
a 

(s
ee

 M
ap

 
5)

. 
 9.

16
 H

ow
ev

er
, t

he
re

 a
re

 a
 n

um
be

r 
of

 
ex

am
pl

es
 o

f b
ui

ld
in

gs
 t

ha
t 

do
 n

ot
 h

av
e 

ar
ch

ite
ct

ur
al

 in
te

re
st

 o
r 

 h
ist

or
ic

 
ch

ar
ac

te
ri

st
ic

s 
th

at
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

e 
to

 t
he

 
ch

ar
ac

te
r 

of
 t

he
 a

re
a,

 s
uc

h 
as

 t
he

 t
yp

ic
al

 
la

te
 t

w
en

tie
th

 c
en

tu
ry

 b
un

ga
lo

w
s 

on
 T

he
 

Vi
lla

ge
 (s

ee
 M

ap
 5

 a
nd

 P
la

te
 4

4)
. 

 9.
17

 A
s 

a 
re

su
lt 

of
 t

he
 c

om
m

er
ci

al
 u

se
s 

w
ith

in
 

th
e 

ar
ea

 a
 n

um
be

r 
of

 t
he

 r
et

ai
l u

ni
ts

 h
av

e 
in

ap
pr

op
ri

at
e 

sh
op

fr
on

ts
.  

Th
e 

in
tr

od
uc

tio
n 

of
 la

rg
e 

pl
as

tic
 fa

sc
ia

s 
is 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 t

o 
be

 a
 n

eg
at

iv
e 

fa
ct

or
 (s

ee
 

Pl
at

e 
20

). 
 T

he
 e

xt
en

t 
of

 il
lu

m
in

at
ed

 
sig

na
ge

 a
lso

 c
re

at
es

 a
 h

ar
sh

 e
ffe

ct
 o

n 
th

e 
vi

lla
ge

 a
m

bi
en

ce
 a

t 
ni

gh
t. 

 

Pl
at

e 
43

 T
re

es
 in

 t
he

 s
tr

ee
ts

ce
ne

 

Pl
at

e 
44

  V
ie

w
 o

f  
bu

ng
al

ow
s 

Th
e 

Vi
lla

ge
 

Pl
at

e 
42

  V
ie

w
 lo

ok
in

g 
so

ut
h 

fr
om

 
 

St
re

ns
al

l B
ri

dg
e 

Page 126



St
re

ns
al

l C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

C
ha

ra
ct

er
 A

pp
ra

isa
l, 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
 

19
 

10
 

  P
R

IN
C

E
SS

 R
O

A
D

/M
O

O
R

 L
A

N
E

 

10
.0

1 
Th

is 
ch

ar
ac

te
r 

ar
ea

 is
 fo

cu
se

d 
ar

ou
nd

 
th

e 
hi

st
or

ic
 r

ou
te

 o
f P

ri
nc

es
s 

La
ne

 a
nd

 
M

oo
r 

La
ne

 (w
hi

ch
 w

as
 fo

rm
er

ly
 a

ll 
kn

ow
n 

as
 M

oo
r 

La
ne

) a
t 

th
e 

so
ut

he
rn

 
en

d 
of

 t
he

 d
es

ig
na

te
d 

ar
ea

.  
It 

in
cl

ud
es

 
ho

us
in

g 
on

 t
he

 e
as

t 
sid

e 
of

 t
he

 h
ig

hw
ay

 
on

ly
 (s

ee
 M

ap
 3

). 
 10

.0
2 

Th
e 

sp
ec

ia
l i

nt
er

es
t 

of
 t

hi
s 

ch
ar

ac
te

r 
ar

ea
 is

 t
he

 r
es

ul
t 

of
 it

s 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
du

ri
ng

 t
he

 la
te

 n
in

et
ee

nt
h 

an
d 

ea
rl

y 
tw

en
tie

th
 c

en
tu

ry
.  

A
s 

a 
re

su
lt,

 th
is 

ar
ea

 
ha

s 
a 

di
st

in
ct

 s
ub

ur
ba

n 
ch

ar
ac

te
r,

 v
er

y 
di

ffe
re

nt
 fr

om
 t

he
 t

ra
di

tio
na

l v
ill

ag
e 

qu
al

iti
es

 o
f t

he
 r

es
t 

of
 t

he
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a.
 

  
  U

se
s 

10
.0

3 
Th

e 
bu

ild
in

gs
 in

 t
hi

s 
ch

ar
ac

te
r 

ar
ea

 a
re

 
al

l i
n 

re
sid

en
tia

l u
se

 (s
ee

 M
ap

 4
). 

  
 Q

ua
lit

ie
s 

of
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 
10

.0
4 

Th
er

e 
ar

e 
no

 li
st

ed
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 w
ith

in
 t

hi
s 

ch
ar

ac
te

r 
ar

ea
 b

ut
 t

he
re

 a
re

 s
ev

er
al

 
bu

ild
in

gs
 o

f n
ot

e 
(s

ee
 M

ap
 5

). 
  

 10
.0

5 
N

os
. 1

9-
25

 P
ri

nc
es

s 
Ro

ad
 fo

rm
 a

 s
ho

rt
 

te
rr

ac
ed

 b
lo

ck
, t

w
o 

an
d 

a 
ha

lf 
st

or
ey

 in
 

he
ig

ht
, b

ui
lt 

in
 t

he
 la

te
 n

in
et

ee
nt

h 
ce

nt
ur

y 
(s

ee
 P

la
te

 4
5)

.  
A

s 
re

su
lt 

th
e 

bu
ild

in
gs

 a
re

 m
or

e 
el

ab
or

at
e 

in
 

ap
pe

ar
an

ce
 t

ha
n 

th
os

e 
el

se
w

he
re

 in
 t

he
 

Pl
at

e 
45

 N
os

. 1
9-

25
 P

ri
nc

es
s 

Ro
ad

 

Pl
at

e 
46

 V
ie

w
 o

f 9
 &

 1
1 

M
oo

r 
La

ne
 

 Pl
at

e 
47

 V
ie

w
 o

f i
nt

er
-w

ar
  h

ou
sin

g 
 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a.

  T
he

y 
m

ak
e 

us
e 

of
 

co
nt

ra
st

in
g 

br
ic

kw
or

k 
an

d 
de

co
ra

tiv
e 

tim
be

r 
ea

ve
s. 

 T
he

 fo
rm

 o
f t

he
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 
is 

al
so

 d
iff

er
en

t, 
w

ith
 g

ab
le

s 
in

 t
he

 r
oo

f, 
ca

nt
ed

 b
ay

 w
in

do
w

s 
on

 t
he

 g
ro

un
d 

flo
or

 
an

d 
br

ac
ke

te
d 

po
rc

he
s 

ov
er

 t
he

 fr
on

t 
en

tr
an

ce
 d

oo
r.

   
 

 10
.0

6 
N

os
. 5

-1
1 

M
oo

r 
La

ne
 a

re
 e

xc
el

le
nt

 
ex

am
pl

es
 o

f l
ar

ge
, e

ar
ly

 t
w

en
tie

th
 

ce
nt

ur
y,

 s
em

i-d
et

ac
he

d 
su

bu
rb

an
 h

ou
se

s 
(s

ee
 P

la
te

 4
6)

.  
Th

es
e 

tw
o 

pa
ir

s 
re

pr
es

en
t 

ho
us

in
g 

bu
ilt

 a
s 

a 
re

su
lt 

of
 t

he
 

ra
ilw

ay
 a

nd
 a

re
 im

po
rt

an
t 

bo
th

 
hi

st
or

ic
al

ly
 a

nd
 a

rc
hi

te
ct

ur
al

ly
 t

o 
th

e 
vi

lla
ge

.  
Th

e 
m

as
sin

g 
of

 t
he

se
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 is
 

ve
ry

 b
ol

d,
 w

ith
 e

ac
h 

ho
us

e 
ha

vi
ng

 a
 

pr
om

in
en

t 
ga

bl
e 

th
at

 a
re

 is
 p

ai
re

d 
w

ith
 

its
 n

ei
gh

bo
ur

.  
Th

is 
fo

rm
 c

ou
pl

ed
 w

ith
 

th
e 

us
e 

of
 r

en
de

r 
an

d 
Ve

ne
tia

n-
st

yl
e 

w
in

do
w

s 
at

 s
ec

on
d 

flo
or

 le
ve

l p
ro

vi
de

 a
 

ve
ry

 in
di

vi
du

al
 a

pp
ea

ra
nc

e.
  O

th
er

 d
et

ai
ls 

ar
e 

m
or

e 
re

st
ra

in
ed

 b
ut

 a
t 

gr
ou

nd
 fl

oo
r 

le
ve

l t
he

re
 a

re
 c

an
te

d 
ba

y 
w

in
do

w
s 

lin
ke

d 
by

 a
 c

an
op

y 
th

at
 a

lso
 e

xt
en

ds
 o

ve
r 

th
e 

en
tr

an
ce

 d
oo

rs
.  

 10
.0

7 
O

th
er

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
 o

f i
nt

er
es

t 
in

cl
ud

e 
th

e 
in

te
r-

w
ar

 h
ou

sin
g 

at
 t

he
 n

or
th

er
n 

en
d 

of
 

Pr
in

ce
ss

 R
oa

d.
  T

he
se

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
 a

pp
ea

r 
to

 h
av

e 
be

en
 b

ui
lt 

in
 c

lo
se

 s
uc

ce
ss

io
n 

an
d 

fo
llo

w
 a

 s
im

ila
r 

bu
ild

in
g 

fo
rm

.  
Th

ey
 

Page 127



Pl
at

e 
50

 N
o.

 1
3 

Pr
in

ce
ss

 R
oa

d 

Pl
at

e 
48

 V
ie

w
 s

ou
th

 a
lo

ng
 P

ri
nc

es
s 

Ro
ad

 
 

St
re

ns
al

l C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

C
ha

ra
ct

er
 A

pp
ra

isa
l, 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
 

20
 

ar
e 

sm
al

l d
et

ac
he

d 
ho

us
es

,  
tw

o 
st

or
ey

s 
in

 h
ei

gh
t 

bu
t 

w
ith

 t
he

 fi
rs

t 
flo

or
 p

ar
tia

lly
 

co
nt

ai
ne

d 
in

 t
he

 r
oo

f a
nd

 w
ith

 o
nl

y 
on

e 
ce

nt
ra

l s
m

al
l w

in
do

w
 a

t 
fir

st
 fl

oo
r 

le
ve

l 
fa

ci
ng

 t
he

 s
tr

ee
t. 

 T
he

 u
se

 o
f a

 c
en

tr
al

 
ro

of
 g

ab
le

 a
nd

 g
ab

le
 r

oo
f p

or
ch

 a
dd

s 
in

te
re

st
 t

o 
th

es
e 

bu
ild

in
gs

 (s
ee

 P
la

te
 4

7)
.  

 
  

 S
pa

ce
s 

an
d 

vi
ew

s 
10

.0
6 

Th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 s

pa
ce

 w
ith

in
 t

hi
s 

ch
ar

ac
te

r 
ar

ea
 is

 li
m

ite
d 

to
 t

he
 s

tr
ee

ts
ca

pe
.  

H
ow

ev
er

, t
he

 r
ea

r 
ga

rd
en

s 
to

 t
he

 
va

ri
ou

s 
pr

op
er

tie
s 

ar
e 

al
so

 o
f 

im
po

rt
an

ce
, a

lth
ou

gh
 t

he
y 

ca
nn

ot
 

ge
ne

ra
lly

 b
e 

se
en

 fr
om

 t
he

 p
ub

lic
 

do
m

ai
n.

 
  10

.0
7 

Vi
ew

s 
w

ith
in

 t
he

 c
ha

ra
ct

er
 a

re
a 

lim
ite

d 
to

 t
ho

se
 n

or
th

 a
nd

 s
ou

th
 a

lo
ng

 t
he

 
hi

gh
w

ay
s 

(s
ee

 P
la

te
 4

8)
.  

Vi
ew

s 
in

to
 t

he
 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

ar
e 

po
ss

ib
le

 fr
om

 
M

oo
r 

La
ne

 lo
ok

in
g 

no
rt

h 
an

d 
th

e 
tr

ee
s 

(o
ut

sid
e 

th
e 

de
sig

na
te

d 
ar

ea
) t

ha
t 

ar
e 

se
en

 in
 t

he
 e

qu
iv

al
en

t 
vi

ew
 s

ou
th

 a
re

 o
f 

sig
ni

fic
an

ce
.  

Vi
ew

s 
ou

t o
f t

he
 c

ha
ra

ct
er

 
ar

ea
 a

re
 a

lso
 p

os
sib

le
 fr

om
 t

he
 le

ve
l 

cr
os

sin
g 

al
on

g 
th

e 
ra

ilw
ay

 t
ra

ck
s 

in
 b

ot
h 

di
re

ct
io

ns
 (s

ee
 P

la
te

 4
9)

. 
 

 
  

  S
of

t 
la

nd
sc

ap
in

g 
 

10
.0

8 
Th

e 
gr

as
s 

ve
rg

e 
do

w
n 

th
e 

w
es

t 
sid

e 
of

 
Pr

in
ce

ss
 R

oa
d 

an
d 

M
oo

r 
La

ne
 is

 
im

po
rt

an
t 

to
 t

he
 s

tr
ee

ts
ce

ne
 a

s 
it 

so
fte

ns
 

th
e 

ha
rd

 la
nd

sc
ap

e 
an

d 
in

cl
ud

es
 s

ev
er

al
 

m
at

ur
e 

tr
ee

s, 
w

hi
ch

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
e 

to
 t

he
 

le
af

y 
ap

pe
ar

an
ce

 o
f t

hi
s 

ch
ar

ac
te

r 
ar

ea
 

(s
ee

 M
ap

 6
). 

 In
 a

dd
iti

on
, m

an
y 

of
 t

he
 

fr
on

t 
ga

rd
en

s 
of

 t
he

 h
ou

sin
g 

on
 t

he
 e

as
t 

sid
e 

of
 t

he
 h

ig
hw

ay
 h

av
e 

m
at

ur
e 

tr
ee

s 
w

hi
ch

 a
lso

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
e 

to
 t

he
 c

ha
ra

ct
er

 o
f 

th
is 

ar
ea

. 
  

 N
eu

tr
al

 a
nd

 n
eg

at
iv

e 
fa

ct
or

s 
10

.0
9 

Th
er

e 
ar

e 
a 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 e

xa
m

pl
es

 o
f 

bu
ild

in
gs

 t
ha

t 
do

 n
ot

 h
av

e 
ar

ch
ite

ct
ur

al
 

in
te

re
st

 o
r 

hi
st

or
ic

 c
ha

ra
ct

er
ist

ic
s 

th
at

 
co

nt
ri

bu
te

 t
o 

th
e 

ch
ar

ac
te

r 
of

 t
he

 a
re

a 
(s

ee
 P

la
te

 5
0 

an
d 

M
ap

 5
). 

  
 

Pl
at

e 
49

 V
ie

w
 o

ut
 o

f t
he

 a
re

a 
al

on
g 

ra
ilw

ay
 

 
tr

ac
ks

 
 

Page 128



St
re

ns
al

l C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

C
ha

ra
ct

er
 A

pp
ra

isa
l, 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
 

21
 

1
1
 

  
F

U
T

U
R

E
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
 S

U
G

G
E

S
T

IO
N

S
 

11
.0

1 
Th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

iss
ue

s 
sh

ou
ld

 fo
rm

 t
he

 
ba

sis
 fo

r 
a 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

pl
an

 fo
r 

th
e 

St
re

ns
al

l C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a.

  H
ow

ev
er

, 
al

l a
sp

ec
ts

 o
f t

he
 d

es
ig

na
te

d 
ar

ea
 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
in

 t
he

 a
pp

ra
isa

l s
ho

ul
d 

be
 

su
bj

ec
t 

to
 m

ea
su

re
s 

fo
r 

pr
es

er
va

tio
n 

or
 

en
ha

nc
em

en
t, 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
ly

 w
he

n 
co

ns
id

er
in

g 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 fo

r 
pl

an
ni

ng
 

pe
rm

iss
io

ns
 w

ith
in

 o
r 

ad
ja

ce
nt

 t
o 

th
e 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a.

 
 11

.0
2 

C
on

sid
er

at
io

n 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

gi
ve

n 
to

 
in

tr
od

uc
in

g 
A

rt
ic

le
 4

 (2
) d

ir
ec

tio
ns

 t
o 

th
e 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a.

  T
hi

s 
w

ou
ld

 
pr

ov
id

e 
ad

di
tio

na
l p

ro
te

ct
io

n 
to

 u
nl

ist
ed

 
bu

ild
in

gs
 w

ith
in

 t
he

 a
re

a 
an

d 
co

ul
d 

be
 

us
ed

, f
or

 e
xa

m
pl

e,
 t

o 
re

sis
t 

th
e 

re
pl

ac
em

en
t 

of
 t

im
be

r 
do

or
s 

an
d 

w
in

do
w

s 
in

 u
ns

ui
ta

bl
e 

m
at

er
ia

ls/
st

yl
es

, 
or

 t
he

 lo
ss

 o
f t

yp
ic

al
 fe

at
ur

es
 s

uc
h 

as
 

ga
te

s, 
fe

nc
es

, w
al

ls 
or

 o
th

er
 m

ea
ns

 o
f 

en
cl

os
ur

e.
 

 11
.0

3 
A

lo
ng

 T
he

 V
ill

ag
e 

th
er

e 
ar

e 
a 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 

co
m

m
er

ci
al

 u
se

s 
w

hi
ch

 g
en

er
at

e 
sig

na
ge

 
an

d 
th

e 
ne

ed
 fo

r 
sh

op
 fr

on
ta

ge
s. 

 S
om

e 
of

 t
he

 e
xi

st
in

g 
sig

na
ge

 a
nd

 s
ho

p 
fr

on
ts

 
ar

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 in
ap

pr
op

ri
at

e 
in

 t
he

 
vi

lla
ge

 c
on

te
xt

.  
A

n 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
in

 t
he

 
ov

er
al

l d
es

ig
n 

ap
pr

oa
ch

, t
ha

t 
re

sp
on

ds
 

to
 t

he
 v

ill
ag

e 
co

nt
ex

t 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
us

e 
of

 
sy

m
pa

th
et

ic
 n

at
ur

al
 m

at
er

ia
ls,

 w
ou

ld
 b

e 

be
ne

fic
ia

l t
o 

th
e 

ap
pe

ar
an

ce
 o

f t
he

 
de

sig
na

te
d 

ar
ea

.  
 11

.0
4 

A
 c

on
sis

te
nt

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
to

 h
ar

d 
su

rf
ac

es
 w

ou
ld

 b
ri

ng
 a

bo
ut

 a
 

sig
ni

fic
an

t 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
in

 t
he

 v
isu

al
 

ap
pe

ar
an

ce
 o

f t
he

 a
re

a.
  T

he
 

fo
ot

pa
th

s 
an

d 
hi

gh
w

ay
s 

re
qu

ir
e 

an
 

ap
pr

op
ri

at
e 

ch
oi

ce
 o

f m
at

er
ia

ls 
de

pe
nd

en
t 

on
 t

he
ir

 lo
ca

tio
n 

an
d 

fu
nc

tio
na

l r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
.  

 
 11

.0
5 

W
ith

in
 t

he
 a

re
a 

th
er

e 
ar

e 
a 

va
ri

et
y 

of
 li

gh
tin

g 
co

lu
m

n 
de

sig
ns

.  
It 

w
ou

ld
 

be
 b

en
ef

ic
ia

l i
f t

he
 c

ol
um

ns
 w

er
e 

of
 a

 
co

ns
ist

en
t 

de
sig

n 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 a

nd
 o

f a
 

hu
m

an
 s

ca
le

.  
A

lso
, t

he
 li

gh
t 

em
iss

io
ns

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 s

ym
pa

th
et

ic
 t

o 
th

ei
r 

ru
ra

l l
oc

at
io

n.
 

 11
.0

6 
Re

gu
la

r 
tr

ee
 m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 is

 
im

po
rt

an
t 

an
d 

th
er

e 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

en
co

ur
ag

em
en

t 
fo

r 
re

in
fo

rc
in

g 
he

dg
es

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 m

at
ur

e 
pl

an
tin

g.
  I

n 
ad

di
tio

n,
 it

 is
 r

ec
om

m
en

d 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
re

-s
ur

ve
y 

th
e 

de
sig

na
te

d 
ar

ea
 a

nd
 it

s 
im

m
ed

ia
te

 s
et

tin
g 

to
 

es
ta

bl
ish

 if
 a

ny
 fu

rt
he

r 
Tr

ee
 

Pr
es

er
va

tio
n 

O
rd

er
s 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
ap

pr
op

ri
at

e.
 

  

11
.0

7 
It 

is 
re

co
m

m
en

de
d 

th
at

 t
he

 
C

ou
nc

il 
su

gg
es

t 
to

 E
ng

lis
h 

H
er

ita
ge

 
th

at
 t

he
 li

st
in

g 
of

 t
he

 N
ew

 S
tr

en
sa

ll 
Br

id
ge

 b
e 

am
en

de
d 

to
 in

cl
ud

e 
th

e 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 w
al

ls 
al

on
g 

th
e 

ri
ve

r.
 

       

Page 129



L
IS

T
E

D
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N
S

 

                         St
re

ns
al

l C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

 C
ha

ra
ct

er
 A

pp
ra

isa
l, 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
 

A
pp

en
di

x 
A

 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 A

 
Page 130



St
re

ns
al

l C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

 C
ha

ra
ct

er
 A

pp
ra

isa
l, 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
 

 

A
pp

en
di

x 
A

 

C
H

U
R

C
H

 L
A

N
E

 
(n

or
th

 s
id

e)
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

C
hu

rc
h 

of
 S

t.
 M

ar
y 

 G
ra

de
 I

I 
 C

hu
rc

h.
  

18
65

-6
 a

nd
 l

at
e 

C
20

 a
dd

iti
on

. 
 J

 B
 a

nd
 W

 
A

tk
in

so
n.

  
Sa

nd
st

on
e 

an
d 

W
es

tm
or

la
nd

 s
la

te
. 

 W
es

t 
to

w
er

, 
4-

ba
y 

na
ve

 w
ith

 s
ou

th
 p

or
ch

, 
2-

ba
y 

ch
an

ce
l 

w
ith

 n
or

th
 v

es
tr

y 
an

d 
C

20
 p

ar
ish

 r
oo

m
.  

In
 G

eo
m

et
ri

c 
st

yl
e.

  
3-

st
ag

e 
to

w
er

 w
ith

 a
ng

le
 b

ut
tr

es
se

s. 
 W

es
t 

fr
on

t: 
2-

lig
ht

 w
in

do
w

 w
ith

 t
re

fo
il 

w
in

do
w

 a
nd

 r
el

ie
vi

ng
 

ar
ch

 a
bo

ve
.  

Tw
in

 b
el

fr
y 

w
in

do
w

s 
to

 e
ac

h 
fa

ce
.  

Sp
ir

e.
  

So
ut

h 
po

rc
h:

 
po

in
te

d 
do

or
w

ay
 

of
 

sin
gl

e 
or

de
r 

on
 

sh
af

te
d 

re
sp

on
ds

.  
2-

lig
ht

 w
in

do
w

s 
to

 n
av

e,
 s

in
gl

e-
lig

ht
 

w
in

do
w

s 
to

 c
ha

nc
el

.  
3-

lig
ht

 w
in

do
w

 t
o 

ea
st

 e
nd

.  
N

o 
in

te
rn

al
 

fe
at

ur
es

 
of

 
m

er
it.

 
 

C
20

 
ex

te
ns

io
n 

no
t 

of
 

sp
ec

ia
l i

nt
er

es
t. 

Pe
vs

ne
r 

N
, Y

or
ks

hi
re

: T
he

 N
or

th
 R

id
in

g,
 1

96
6 

 
 C

H
U

R
C

H
 L

A
N

E
 

(s
ou

th
 s

id
e)

 
 N

o.
 3

 
 G

ra
de

 I
I 

 H
ou

se
.  

M
id

 C
18

.  
Br

ic
k 

w
ith

 p
an

til
e 

ro
of

.  
 2

-c
el

l e
nd

-
lo

bb
y-

en
tr

y 
pl

an
.  

2 
st

or
ey

s, 
2 

ba
ys

.  
4-

pa
ne

l d
oo

r 
to

 
ri

gh
t 

w
ith

 
4-

pa
ne

 
sa

sh
es

 
be

ne
at

h 
ca

m
be

re
d 

br
ic

k 
ar

ch
es

 t
o 

le
ft.

  
Fi

rs
t 

flo
or

: 
4-

pa
ne

 s
as

he
s 

w
ith

 t
im

be
r 

lin
te

ls.
  

D
en

til
le

d 
ea

ve
s 

co
ur

se
. 

 R
ai

se
d 

ga
bl

e 
en

ds
.  

En
d 

st
ac

ks
. 

 
Tu

m
bl

in
g-

in
 

to
 

ga
bl

e 
en

ds
. 

 
In

te
ri

or
: 

or
ig

in
al

 b
ri

ck
-b

ui
lt 

in
gl

en
oo

k 
fir

ep
la

ce
. 

Page 131



St
re

ns
al

l C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

 C
ha

ra
ct

er
 A

pp
ra

isa
l, 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
 

 

A
pp

en
di

x 
A

 

 H
A

X
B

Y
 M

O
O

R
 R

O
A

D
 

 St
re

ns
al

l N
ew

 B
ri

dg
e 

 
(f

or
m

al
ly

 li
st

ed
 a

s 
St

re
ns

al
l L

ow
 B

ri
dg

e)
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
G

ra
de

 I
I 

 Br
id

ge
. 

 L
at

e 
C

18
. 

 B
ri

ck
 w

ith
 a

sh
la

r 
dr

es
sin

gs
.  

Si
ng

le
 

ro
un

d-
ar

ch
ed

 
hu

m
pb

ac
k 

br
id

ge
. 

 
Sp

la
ye

d 
ap

pr
oa

ch
es

 w
ith

 p
ie

rs
 a

nd
 s

te
pp

ed
 s

to
ne

 c
op

in
g.

  
Th

e 
on

ly
 

su
rv

iv
in

g 
br

id
ge

 
bu

ilt
 

by
 

th
e 

Fo
ss

 
N

av
ig

at
io

n 
C

om
pa

ny
. 

  SH
E

R
R

IF
F 

H
U

T
T

O
N

  
 St

re
ns

al
l B

ri
dg

e 
 G

ra
de

 I
I 

 Br
id

ge
. 

17
98

. 
 B

ui
lt 

to
 d

es
ig

ns
 b

y 
Jo

hn
 C

ar
r 

of
 

Yo
rk

. 
 A

sh
la

r.
  

Si
ng

le
 s

eg
m

en
ta

l 
ar

ch
 f

la
nk

ed
 b

y 
bu

tt
re

ss
es

. 
 

So
lid

 
ca

m
be

re
d 

co
pe

d 
pa

ra
pe

t. 
 

Ra
m

pe
d 

ap
pr

oa
ch

es
 

w
ith

 
co

nt
ai

ni
ng

 
w

al
ls 

in
 

m
at

ch
in

g 
st

yl
e.

  
Th

e 
br

id
ge

 c
os

t 
£1

,3
63

 3
s 

2d
 t

o 
bu

ild
. 

Page 132



 T
H

E
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
 

 W
ar

 M
em

or
ia

l 
 G

ra
de

 I
I 

 W
ar

 m
em

or
ia

l, 
19

22
 w

ith
 l

at
er

 a
dd

iti
on

. 
 A

 s
to

ne
 

C
el

tic
 c

ro
ss

 o
n 

a 
re

ct
an

gu
la

r 
sh

af
t 

m
ou

nt
ed

 o
n 

a 
ta

ll 
pl

in
th

 r
es

tin
g 

on
 a

 4
 s

te
p 

ba
se

. 
 Th

e 
in

sc
ri

pt
io

n 
on

 t
he

 fr
on

t 
of

 t
he

 p
lin

th
 r

ea
ds

: T
O

 
PE

RP
ET

U
A

TE
 T

H
E 

M
EM

O
RY

/O
F 

TH
E 

M
EN

 O
F 

TH
IS

 P
A

RI
SH

 W
H

O
/W

ER
E 

K
IL

LE
D

, D
IE

D
 F

RO
M

/
W

O
U

N
D

S 
O

R 
SI

C
K

N
ES

S 
C

O
N

TR
A

C
TE

D
/IN

 
TH

E 
G

RE
A

T 
W

A
R/

19
14

-1
91

9,
 

fo
llo

w
ed

 
by

 
17

 
na

m
es

 w
ith

 r
eg

im
en

ts
, 

an
d 

be
lo

w
: 

ER
EC

TE
D

 B
Y 

PU
BL

IC
 

SU
BS

C
RI

PT
IO

N
/O

RG
A

N
IS

ED
 

BY
 

TH
E 

ST
RE

N
SA

LL
 B

RA
N

C
H

/O
F 

TH
E 

BR
IT

IS
H

 L
EG

IO
N

. 
 O

n 
th

e 
le

ft 
re

tu
rn

 
on

 
th

e 
pl

in
th

 
is 

in
sc

ri
be

d 
W

O
RL

D
 

W
A

R/
19

39
-1

94
5/

RE
M

EM
BE

R,
 

fo
llo

w
ed

 
by

 6
 n

am
es

. 
 Th

e 
cr

os
s 

be
ar

s 
a 

fu
rt

he
r 

in
sc

ri
pt

io
n 

ha
lf 

w
ay

 u
p 

th
e 

sh
af

t 
re

ad
in

g 
TH

EY
 G

A
VE

/T
H

EI
R 

LI
VE

S/
TH

A
T 

W
E/

M
IG

H
T 

LI
VE

. 
 A

bo
ve

 t
hi

s 
is 

de
ep

ly
 i

nc
ise

d 
flo

ra
l d

ec
or

at
io

n 
co

ve
ri

ng
 t

he
 s

ha
ft 

an
d 

th
e 

he
ad

 o
f 

th
e 

cr
os

s, 
w

ith
 

a 
ce

nt
ra

l 
ro

se
. 

 
Be

lo
w

 
th

e 
in

sc
ri

pt
io

n 
is 

a 
re

lie
f 

ca
rv

in
g 

of
 a

 s
ol

di
er

 f
ac

in
g 

le
ft 

an
d 

lo
ok

in
g 

do
w

nw
ar

ds
, 

w
ith

 h
is 

ha
nd

s 
re

st
in

g 
on

 
hi

s 
gu

n 
be

fo
re

 
hi

m
. 

 
N

ea
r 

hi
s 

fe
et

 
ar

e 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tiv
es

 o
f a

 fi
el

d 
gu

n 
an

d 
pa

rt
 o

f a
 t

an
k.

  
A

 
la

ur
el

 w
re

at
h 

su
rr

ou
nd

s 
hi

s 
he

ad
. 

 

 Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 Im
po

rt
an

ce
 

 W
ar

 m
em

or
ia

ls 
ha

ve
 a

 v
er

y 
st

ro
ng

 h
ist

or
ic

al
 a

nd
 

cu
ltu

ra
l 

sig
ni

fic
an

ce
 o

n 
bo

th
 a

 l
oc

al
 a

nd
 n

at
io

na
l 

sc
al

e.
  

Th
e 

m
em

or
ia

l 
cr

os
s 

at
 S

tr
en

sa
ll 

is 
a 

fin
e 

ex
am

pl
e 

w
ith

 a
 h

ig
h 

st
an

da
rd

 o
f 

cr
af

ts
m

an
sh

ip
 i

n 
th

e 
ca

rv
in

g 
of

 i
ts

 d
ec

or
at

io
n 

an
d 

re
lie

f 
fig

ur
e 

of
 a

 
Fi

rs
t 

W
or

ld
 W

ar
 s

ol
di

er
.  

A
s 

a 
re

co
rd

 o
f t

he
 fa

lle
n 

of
 

bo
th

 
W

or
ld

 
W

ar
s 

it 
is 

cl
ea

rl
y 

of
 

na
tio

na
l 

sig
ni

fic
an

ce
. 

St
re

ns
al

l C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

 C
ha

ra
ct

er
 A

pp
ra

isa
l, 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
 

 

A
pp

en
di

x 
A

 

Page 133



 T
H

E
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
 

 (n
or

th
 s

id
e,

 o
ff)

 
 M

an
or

 H
ou

se
 F

ar
m

ho
us

e 
fo

rm
al

ly
 li

st
ed

 a
s 

St
re

ns
al

l H
al

l 
 G

ra
de

 I
I 

 H
ou

se
. 

 L
at

e 
C

17
 i

n 
or

ig
in

, 
su

bs
ta

nt
ia

lly
 a

lte
re

d 
C

18
 a

nd
 C

20
. 

 W
hi

te
w

as
he

d 
br

ic
k,

 C
20

 p
la

in
 t

ile
 

ro
of

.  
L-

sh
ap

ed
 o

n 
pl

an
 w

ith
 c

en
tr

al
-h

al
lw

ay
 e

nt
ry

.  
2 

st
or

ey
s, 

5 
ba

ys
. 

 
Ea

rl
y 

C
19

 
ha

lf-
gl

az
ed

 
do

or
 

be
ne

at
h 

G
ot

hi
ck

-t
ra

ce
ri

ed
 f

an
lig

ht
 i

n 
pe

di
m

en
te

d 
do

or
ca

se
 

su
pp

or
te

d 
on

 
sle

nd
er

 
co

lu
m

ns
.  

Su
bs

ta
nt

ia
l f

ir
st

-fl
oo

r 
st

ri
ng

 c
ou

rs
e.

  
PV

C
 w

in
do

w
s 

in
 

or
ig

in
al

 
op

en
in

gs
, 

be
ne

at
h 

el
lip

tic
al

 
re

lie
vi

ng
 

ar
ch

es
 

th
ro

ug
ho

ut
. 

St
ee

pl
y-

pi
tc

he
d 

hi
pp

ed
 

ro
of

.  
St

ac
ks

 r
em

ov
ed

 a
t 

19
84

 r
e-

ro
of

in
g.

  
In

te
ri

or
: 

la
te

 
C

17
 

cl
os

ed
 

st
ri

ng
 

st
ai

rc
as

e 
w

ith
 

pl
ai

n 
sq

ua
t 

ba
lu

st
er

s. 
 L

an
di

ng
 b

al
us

tr
ad

e 
is 

a 
C

20
 c

op
y.

 

St
re

ns
al

l C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

 C
ha

ra
ct

er
 A

pp
ra

isa
l, 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
 

 

A
pp

en
di

x 
A

 

Page 134



St
re

ns
al

l C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

 C
ha

ra
ct

er
 A

pp
ra

isa
l, 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
 

 

A
pp

en
di

x 
A

 

 T
H

E
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
 

(n
or

th
 s

id
e)

 
 N

o.
 5

9 
(f

or
m

al
ly

 li
st

ed
 a

s 
T

he
 G

ra
ng

e)
 

 G
ra

de
 I

I 
 H

ou
se

.  
La

te
 C

18
 r

em
od

el
le

d 
ea

rl
y 

C
19

.  
Br

ic
k 

in
 

Fl
em

ish
 b

on
d,

 p
an

til
e 

ro
of

.  
C

en
tr

al
-h

al
lw

ay
 e

nt
ry

, 2
 

ro
om

s 
in

 d
ep

th
.  

2 
st

or
ey

s, 
3 

ba
ys

.  
6-

pa
ne

l d
oo

r-
w

ay
 b

en
ea

th
 d

iv
id

ed
 o

ve
rl

ig
ht

 in
 D

or
ic

 d
oo

rc
as

e 
w

ith
 e

ng
ag

es
 c

ol
um

ns
.  

Re
pl

ac
em

en
t 

16
-p

an
e 

sa
sh

es
 b

en
ea

th
 c

am
be

re
d 

br
ic

k 
ar

ch
es

.  
H

ea
vy

 t
im

-
be

r 
co

rn
ic

e 
w

ith
 p

ai
re

d 
de

nt
ils

.  
G

ab
le

 c
op

in
g 

an
d 

en
d 

st
ac

ks
. 

Page 135



Page 136

This page is intentionally left blank



S
T

R
E

N
S

A
L

L
 R

A
IL

W
A

Y
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
S

  
C

O
N

S
E

R
V

A
T

IO
N

  
A

R
E

A
 A

P
P

R
A

IS
A

L
  
 

 

 

In
 a

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 
w

ith
 S

tr
en

sa
ll 

w
ith

 T
ow

th
or

pe
 

Pa
ri

sh
 C

ou
nc

il 

Page 137



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 
 

 1 
In

tr
od

uc
tio

n 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  2
 

 
 2 

Lo
ca

tio
n 

an
d 

C
on

te
xt

  
 

 
 

 
 

  3
 

 
   

 3 
To

po
gr

ap
hy

 a
nd

 S
et

tin
g 

 
 

 
 

 
  4

   
   

 4 
H

ist
or

ic
al

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
 

 
 

 
 

  5
 

 5 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
Bo

un
da

ry
 

 
 

 
 

  7
 

   
   

 
 

6 
C

ha
ra

ct
er

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
  9

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
   

7 
Fu

tu
re

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Su
gg

es
tio

ns
 

   
 

 
 

  1
2 

 
    

 
  

A
PP

EN
D

IX
 A

 - 
Li

st
ed

 B
ui

ld
in

g 
D

es
cr

ip
tio

ns
 

 
   St

re
ns

al
l R

ai
lw

ay
 B

ui
ld

in
gs

 C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

 C
ha

ra
ct

er
 A

pp
ra

isa
l, 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
 

1 

C
O

N
T

E
N

T
S

 

Th
is 

do
cu

m
en

t 
w

as
 p

re
pa

re
d 

in
 N

ov
em

be
r 

20
10

 
by

 W
oo

dh
al

l P
la

nn
in

g 
an

d 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

on
 b

eh
al

f 
of

 t
he

 C
ity

 o
f Y

or
k 

C
ou

nc
il.

  T
he

 fo
rm

at
 a

nd
 

co
nt

en
t 

w
er

e 
ag

re
ed

 w
ith

 t
he

 D
es

ig
n,

 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

an
d 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
Se

ct
io

n 
of

 C
ity

 o
f Y

or
k 

C
ou

nc
il,

 a
nd

 t
he

 d
oc

um
en

t 
w

as
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

by
 t

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
on

 …
…

…
...

. 
    

Page 138



St
re

ns
al

l R
ai

lw
ay

 B
ui

ld
in

gs
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
C

ha
ra

ct
er

 A
pp

ra
isa

l, 
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
10

 
2 

1
 

IN
T

R
O

D
U

C
T

IO
N

 

1.
01

 A
 c

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

ar
ea

 is
 d

ef
in

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 (L

ist
ed

 B
ui

ld
in

gs
 a

nd
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

as
) A

ct
 1

99
0 

as
 a

n 
ar

ea
 o

f s
pe

ci
al

 
ar

ch
ite

ct
ur

al
 o

r 
hi

st
or

ic
 in

te
re

st
, (

th
e 

ch
ar

ac
te

r 
or

 a
pp

ea
ra

nc
e 

of
 w

hi
ch

) i
s 

de
sir

ab
le

 to
 p

re
se

rv
e 

or
 e

nh
an

ce
.  

Se
ct

io
n 

69
 o

f t
he

 A
ct

 r
eq

ui
re

s 
Lo

ca
l P

la
nn

in
g 

A
ut

ho
ri

tie
s 

to
 id

en
tif

y 
an

d 
de

sig
na

te
 

co
ns

er
va

tio
n 

ar
ea

s 
w

ith
in

 t
he

ir 
ge

og
ra

ph
ic

al
 b

ou
nd

ar
ie

s 
an

d 
to

 fo
rm

ul
at

e,
 

in
 c

on
ju

nc
tio

n 
w

ith
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic

, p
ro

po
sa

ls 
fo

r 
th

ei
r 

pr
es

er
va

tio
n 

an
d 

en
ha

nc
em

en
t 

(s
ec

tio
n 

71
 a

nd
 7

2 
of

 t
he

 A
ct

). 
 T

he
 A

ct
 

pl
ac

es
 a

 d
ut

y 
up

on
 L

oc
al

 P
la

nn
in

g 
A

ut
ho

ri
tie

s 
to

 r
ev

ie
w

 t
he

 e
xt

en
t 

of
 t

he
 

co
ns

er
va

tio
n 

ar
ea

s. 

1.
02

 S
tr

en
sa

ll 
is 

a 
hi

st
or

ic
 v

ill
ag

e,
 lo

ca
te

d 
to

 th
e 

no
rt

h 
of

 Y
or

k 
(s

ee
 M

ap
 1

). 
 T

he
 S

tr
en

sa
ll 

Ra
ilw

ay
 B

ui
ld

in
gs

 C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

w
as

 
de

sig
na

te
d 

in
 2

00
1,

 w
ith

 t
he

 b
ou

nd
ar

ie
s 

as
 

sh
ow

n 
on

 M
ap

 2
.  

In
 a

dd
iti

on
, t

he
 h

ist
or

ic
 

co
re

 o
f t

he
 v

ill
ag

e 
is 

de
sig

na
te

d 
as

 t
he

 
St

re
ns

al
l C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a,
 w

hi
ch

 is
 t

he
 

su
bj

ec
t 

of
 a

 s
ep

ar
at

e 
A

pp
ra

isa
l d

oc
um

en
t. 

   

1.
03

 T
hi

s 
do

cu
m

en
t 

se
ts

 o
ut

 t
he

 fi
nd

in
gs

 o
f a

 
ch

ar
ac

te
r 

ap
pr

ai
sa

l o
f t

he
 S

tr
en

sa
ll 

Ra
ilw

ay
 

Bu
ild

in
gs

 C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

an
d 

ca
n 

be
 

re
ga

rd
ed

 a
s 

be
in

g 
in

 fo
ur

 p
ar

ts
. T

he
 fi

rs
t 

pa
rt

 (C
ha

pt
er

s 
1-

4)
 s

et
s 

th
e 

sc
en

e 
by

 

an
al

ys
in

g 
th

e 
hi

st
or

y 
an

d 
ba

se
lin

e 
fa

ct
or

s 
of

 t
he

 C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a.

 T
he

 s
ec

on
d 

pa
rt

 (C
ha

pt
er

 5
) r

ev
ie

w
s 

th
e 

ex
te

nt
 o

f 
th

e 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
as

 o
ri

gi
na

lly
 

de
sig

na
te

d 
an

d 
ex

pl
ai

ns
 th

e 
re

as
on

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 r

ev
isi

on
 o

f i
ts

 b
ou

nd
ar

ie
s. 

Th
e 

th
ir

d 
pa

rt
, (

C
ha

pt
er

 6
) d

es
cr

ib
es

 t
he

  
ch

ar
ac

te
r 

of
 t

he
 a

re
a.

 T
he

 fi
na

l p
ar

t 
(C

ha
pt

er
 7

) d
isc

us
se

s 
th

e 
m

ea
su

re
s 

th
at

 
co

ul
d 

be
 in

tr
od

uc
ed

 w
ith

in
 t

he
 

de
sig

na
te

d 
ar

ea
 in

 o
rd

er
 t

o 
pr

es
er

ve
 a

nd
 

en
ha

nc
e 

its
 c

ha
ra

ct
er

 a
nd

 a
pp

ea
ra

nc
e.

 
 1.

04
 T

he
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t 
is 

ba
se

d 
on

 fi
el

d 
w

or
k 

in
 

A
ug

us
t 

an
d 

Se
pt

em
be

r 
20

10
 a

nd
 is

 
lim

ite
d 

to
 t

he
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 a
nd

 a
re

as
 v

isi
bl

e 
fr

om
 t

he
 p

ub
lic

 d
om

ai
n.

   

1.
05

 S
tr

en
sa

ll 
Ra

ilw
ay

 B
ui

ld
in

gs
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
A

pp
ra

isa
l w

as
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

as
 a

 
su

pp
or

tin
g 

do
cu

m
en

t 
to

 t
he

 
co

ns
er

va
tio

n 
po

lic
ie

s 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 t
he

 C
ity

 
of

 Y
or

k'
s 

dr
af

t 
Lo

ca
l P

la
n 

(in
co

rp
or

at
in

g 
th

e 
fo

ur
th

 s
et

 o
f c

ha
ng

es
) b

y 
th

e 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 C

om
m

itt
ee

 o
f C

ity
 o

f Y
or

k 
C

ou
nc

il 
on

  t
o 

be
 in

se
rt

ed
. T

he
 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

A
pp

ra
isa

l w
ill

 a
lso

 b
e 

us
ed

 t
o 

in
fo

rm
 t

he
 e

m
er

gi
ng

 L
oc

al
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
Fr

am
ew

or
k.

 

 

    

M
ap

 1
 

Page 139



St
re

ns
al

l R
ai

lw
ay

 B
ui

ld
in

gs
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
 C

ha
ra

ct
er

 A
pp

ra
isa

l, 
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
10

 
3 

2
 

L
O

C
A

T
IO

N
 A

N
D

 C
O

N
T

E
X

T
 

 2
.0

1 
Th

e 
St

re
ns

al
l R

ai
lw

ay
 B

ui
ld

in
gs

 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
lie

s 
ap

pr
ox

im
at

el
y 

5 
ki

lo
m

et
re

s 
no

rt
h 

of
 Y

or
k 

ci
ty

 c
en

tr
e.

  
St

re
ns

al
l v

ill
ag

e 
sit

s 
to

 t
he

 s
ou

th
 a

nd
 e

as
t 

of
 t

he
 R

iv
er

 F
os

s 
an

d 
is 

po
sit

io
ne

d 
be

tw
ee

n 
th

e 
B1

36
3 

an
d 

A
64

 (s
ee

 M
ap

 1
). 

 
Th

e 
St

re
ns

al
l R

ai
lw

ay
 B

ui
ld

in
gs

 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
sit

s 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

St
re

ns
al

l v
ill

ag
e 

en
ve

lo
pe

 a
nd

 is
 lo

ca
te

d 
at

 
th

e 
ea

st
er

n 
en

d 
of

 S
tr

en
sa

ll,
 la

rg
el

y 
to

 t
he

 
no

rt
h 

of
 t

he
 r

ai
lw

ay
 li

ne
 (s

ee
 P

la
te

 1
). 

2.
02

  T
he

 d
es

ig
na

te
d 

ar
ea

 is
 fo

cu
se

d 
ar

ou
nd

 
th

e 
fo

rm
er

 s
ta

tio
n 

ho
us

e,
 it

s 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 
sig

na
l b

ox
 a

nd
 a

 n
um

be
r 

of
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
re

sid
en

tia
l p

ro
pe

rt
ie

s 
al

on
g 

Th
e 

Vi
lla

ge
.  

 2.
03

 I
t 

is 
es

tim
at

ed
 t

ha
t 

ap
pr

ox
im

at
el

y 
10

0 
pe

op
le

 li
ve

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a.
 

   
 

  

Pl
at

e 
1 

 A
er

ia
l v

ie
w

  

Page 140



St
re

ns
al

l R
ai

lw
ay

 B
ui

ld
in

gs
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
 C

ha
ra

ct
er

 A
pp

ra
isa

l, 
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
10

 
4 

3
 

T
O

P
O

G
R

A
P

H
Y

 A
N

D
 L

A
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

 S
E

T
T

IN
G

 

3.
01

 S
tr

en
sa

ll 
vi

lla
ge

 o
cc

up
ie

s 
pa

rt
 o

f a
 fl

at
 o

pe
n 

ar
ea

 t
o 

th
e 

so
ut

h 
of

 t
he

 R
iv

er
 F

os
s. 

Th
e 

vi
lla

ge
 it

se
lf 

is 
su

rr
ou

nd
ed

 b
y 

fie
ld

s 
to

 t
he

 
no

rt
h,

 e
as

t 
an

d 
w

es
t. 

 T
he

se
 a

re
as

 o
f o

pe
n 

gr
ou

nd
 e

na
bl

e 
lo

ng
 d

ist
an

ce
 v

ie
w

s 
to

w
ar

ds
 

th
e 

vi
lla

ge
 fr

om
 t

he
 n

or
th

.  
To

 t
he

 s
ou

th
-

ea
st

 o
f t

he
 v

ill
ag

e 
is 

St
re

ns
al

l C
om

m
on

 a
nd

 
St

re
ns

al
l A

rm
y 

C
am

p.
 

 3.
02

 T
he

 im
m

ed
ia

te
 s

et
tin

g 
of

 t
he

 S
tr

en
sa

ll 
Ra

ilw
ay

 B
ui

ld
in

gs
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
is 

do
m

in
at

ed
 b

y 
tw

en
tie

th
 c

en
tu

ry
 h

ou
sin

g 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t, 
th

e 
ra

ilw
ay

 li
ne

 a
nd

 a
 s

m
al

l 
se

ct
io

n 
of

 a
gr

ic
ul

tu
ra

l l
an

d 
be

tw
ee

n 
th

e 
ra

ilw
ay

 li
ne

 a
nd

 t
he

 h
ou

se
s 

on
 t

he
 s

ou
th

 
sid

e 
of

 T
he

 V
ill

ag
e.

  G
lim

ps
es

 o
f t

he
 

su
rr

ou
nd

in
g 

co
un

tr
ys

id
e 

ar
e 

po
ss

ib
le

 
ar

ou
nd

 t
he

 fo
rm

er
 s

ta
tio

n 
ya

rd
 a

nd
 a

lo
ng

 
th

e 
ra

ilw
ay

 t
ra

ck
s. 

 A
s 

a 
re

su
lt 

th
e 

de
sig

na
te

d 
ar

ea
 is

 e
nc

lo
se

d 
by

 s
ur

ro
un

di
ng

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
w

ith
 o

nl
y 

th
e 

op
en

 g
ro

un
d 

to
 

th
e 

so
ut

h 
an

d 
th

e 
sm

al
l p

la
yi

ng
 fi

el
d 

to
 t

he
 

w
es

t 
(s

ee
 P

la
te

 2
) p

ro
vi

di
ng

 t
he

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
ty

 
fo

r 
op

en
 v

ie
w

s 
an

d 
th

e 
se

ns
e 

of
 s

ep
ar

at
io

n 
fr

om
 S

tr
en

sa
ll 

its
el

f. 
  

           
 

Pl
at

e 
2 

Vi
ew

 o
f p

la
yi

ng
 to

 t
he

 w
es

t 
 

Page 141



St
re

ns
al

l R
ai

lw
ay

 B
ui

ld
in

gs
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
C

ha
ra

ct
er

 A
pp

ra
isa

l, 
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
10

 
5 

4
 

H
IS

T
O

R
IC

A
L

 D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 

 
 

4.
01

 
Th

e 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
cl

ea
rl

y 
re

la
te

s 
to

 
th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
of

 S
tr

en
sa

ll 
th

at
 

oc
cu

rr
ed

 a
s 

a 
re

su
lt 

of
 th

e 
bu

ild
in

g 
of

 
th

e 
ra

ilw
ay

 li
ne

. 
 4.

02
 

Th
e 

Yo
rk

 t
o 

Sc
ar

bo
ro

ug
h 

lin
e 

w
as

 
op

en
ed

 in
 1

84
5 

an
d 

it 
is 

un
de

rs
to

od
 t

ha
t 

th
e 

st
at

io
n 

ho
us

e 
w

as
 b

ui
lt 

in
 1

84
8.

  T
he

 
18

54
-5

6 
O

rd
na

nc
e 

Su
rv

ey
 m

ap
  

ill
us

tr
at

es
 t

he
 b

as
ic

 la
yo

ut
 o

f t
he

 
de

sig
na

te
d 

ar
ea

 w
ith

 T
he

 V
ill

ag
e,

 k
no

w
n 

at
 t

hi
s 

da
te

 a
s 

H
ag

gs
 L

an
e,

 la
id

 o
ut

 in
 it

s 
cu

rr
en

t 
al

ig
nm

en
t 

an
d 

Lo
rd

’s 
M

oo
r 

La
ne

 
ex

te
nd

in
g 

so
ut

h 
fr

om
 t

he
 le

ve
l c

ro
ss

in
g.

   
 4.

03
 

St
re

ns
al

l R
ai

lw
ay

 S
ta

tio
n 

is 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

on
 

th
e 

18
54

-5
6 

O
rd

na
nc

e 
Su

rv
ey

 m
ap

 b
ut

 it
 

is 
no

t c
le

ar
 w

he
th

er
 th

e 
sig

na
l b

ox
 th

at
 

su
rv

iv
es

 t
od

ay
 is

 s
ho

w
n 

at
 t

hi
s 

da
te

.  
It 

is 
al

so
 a

ss
um

ed
 t

ha
t 

th
e 

pl
at

fo
rm

 o
pp

os
ite

 
th

e 
sig

na
l b

ox
 w

as
 in

 e
xi

st
en

ce
 a

t 
th

is 
da

te
.  

Th
e 

co
al

 d
ro

ps
 o

n 
th

e 
no

rt
h 

sid
e 

of
 t

he
 r

ai
lw

ay
 li

ne
, b

ey
on

d 
th

e 
pl

at
fo

rm
, 

ar
e 

no
t 

cl
ea

rl
y 

sh
ow

n 
bu

t 
ap

pe
ar

 t
o 

be
 

pa
rt

 o
f t

he
 c

oa
l d

ep
ot

 t
ha

t 
is 

id
en

tif
ie

d.
  

A
lso

 a
t 

th
is 

da
te

 t
he

re
 a

pp
ea

rs
 t

o 
be

 a
 

sm
al

l g
ro

up
 o

f b
ui

ld
in

gs
 t

o 
th

e 
w

es
t 

of
 

th
e 

st
at

io
n 

ho
us

e 
on

 t
he

 s
ou

th
 s

id
e 

of
 

Th
e 

Vi
lla

ge
. 

 4.
04

 
By

 1
89

2 
th

e 
de

sig
na

te
d 

ar
ea

 h
as

 n
ot

 
ch

an
ge

d 
sig

ni
fic

an
tly

.  
W

ha
t 

ha
s 

Pl
at

e 
3 

Ea
rl

y 
bu

ild
in

g 

Pl
at

e 
4 

Vi
ew

 o
f h

ou
se

s 
on

 t
he

 n
or

th
 s

id
e 

of
 T

he
 V

ill
ag

e 

Pl
at

e 
5 

Th
e 

sig
na

l b
ox

 

pr
ev

io
us

ly
 a

pp
ea

re
d 

to
 b

e 
a 

sm
al

l g
ro

up
 

of
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 o
n 

th
e 

so
ut

h 
sid

e 
of

 T
he

 
Vi

lla
ge

 (n
ow

 s
ho

w
n 

as
 S

ta
tio

n 
Ro

ad
) t

o 
th

e 
w

es
t 

of
 t

he
 s

ta
tio

n 
ho

us
e,

 n
ow

 
ap

pe
ar

s 
as

 o
nl

y 
on

e 
bu

ild
in

g,
 w

hi
ch

 s
til

l 
su

rv
iv

es
 (s

ee
 P

la
te

 3
). 

 O
n 

th
e 

no
rt

h 
sid

e 
of

 T
he

 V
ill

ag
e 

tw
o 

ho
us

es
 a

pp
ea

r 
to

 h
av

e 
be

en
 b

ui
lt 

at
 it

s 
ea

st
er

n 
en

d 
op

po
sit

e 
th

e 
le

ve
l c

ro
ss

in
g.

 
 4.

05
 

By
 th

e 
ea

rl
y 

tw
en

tie
th

 c
en

tu
ry

 m
os

t o
f 

th
e 

bu
ild

in
gs

 t
ha

t 
ar

e 
w

ith
in

 t
he

 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
ha

d 
be

en
 

co
ns

tr
uc

te
d,

 a
s 

sh
ow

n 
on

 t
he

 1
91

2-
13

 
O

rd
na

nc
e 

Su
rv

ey
 m

ap
.  

Th
is 

sh
ow

s 
ho

us
es

 o
n 

bo
th

 s
id

es
 o

f T
he

 V
ill

ag
e 

(s
ee

 
Pl

at
e 

4)
, a

lth
ou

gh
 a

 g
ap

 e
xi

st
s 

on
 t

he
 

no
rt

h 
sid

e.
  A

lso
, b

y 
th

is 
da

te
 t

he
 s

ig
na

l 
bo

x 
is 

cl
ea

rl
y 

sh
ow

n 
(s

ee
 P

la
te

 5
) a

nd
 t

he
 

br
ic

k 
an

d 
til

e 
w

or
ks

 t
o 

th
e 

no
rt

h 
ha

d 
be

en
 e

st
ab

lis
he

d.
 

 4.
06

 
Li

tt
le

 c
ha

ng
ed

 w
ith

in
 t

he
 d

es
ig

na
te

d 
ar

ea
 

du
ri

ng
 t

he
 r

em
ai

nd
er

 o
f t

he
 t

w
en

tie
th

 
ce

nt
ur

y.
  T

he
 c

in
de

r 
tr

ac
k 

le
ad

in
g 

to
 t

he
 

br
ic

k 
an

d 
til

e 
w

or
ks

 w
as

 a
do

pt
ed

 a
s 

hi
gh

w
ay

 a
nd

 L
or

ds
 M

oo
r 

La
ne

, l
ea

di
ng

 
so

ut
h 

fr
om

 t
he

 s
ig

na
l b

ox
, b

ec
am

e 
a 

fo
rm

al
 e

xt
en

sio
n 

to
 t

he
 m

ai
n 

ro
ad

.  
In

 
19

30
s 

St
re

ns
al

l S
ta

tio
n 

cl
os

ed
 t

o 
re

gu
la

r 
tim

et
ab

le
d 

pa
ss

en
ge

rs
, b

ut
 S

un
da

y 

Page 142



St
re

ns
al

l R
ai

lw
ay

 B
ui

ld
in

gs
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
C

ha
ra

ct
er

 A
pp

ra
isa

l, 
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
10

 
6 

  
 

Pl
at

e 
6 

O
bl

iq
ue

 v
ie

w
 o

f 1
28

a 
on

 r
ig

ht
 

ha
nd

 s
id

e 

  

se
rv

ic
es

 a
nd

 e
xc

ur
sio

ns
 o

pe
ra

te
d 

un
til

 
th

e 
19

50
s. 

 T
he

 s
ta

tio
n 

w
as

 a
lso

 u
se

d 
by

 
th

e 
ne

ar
by

 a
rm

y 
ba

se
 d

ur
in

g 
W

or
ld

 W
ar

 
Tw

o.
  T

he
 s

ta
tio

n 
ho

us
e 

w
as

 b
ro

ug
ht

 
ba

ck
 in

to
 u

se
 a

s 
a 

pr
iv

at
e 

re
sid

en
tia

l u
ni

t 
at

 s
om

e 
st

ag
e 

du
ri

ng
 t

he
 s

ec
on

d 
ha

lf 
of

 
th

e 
tw

en
tie

th
 c

en
tu

ry
.  

 4.
07

  
N

o.
 1

01
 T

he
 V

ill
ag

e 
w

as
 b

ui
lt 

in
 1

93
7 

to
 

se
rv

e 
as

 t
he

 lo
ca

l d
oc

to
r’

s 
ho

us
e 

an
d 

su
rg

er
y 

(s
ee

 P
la

te
 9

) a
nd

 a
t 

ab
ou

t 
th

e 
sa

m
e 

tim
e 

th
e 

N
or

th
fie

ld
s 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

w
as

 c
on

st
ru

ct
ed

 t
o 

th
e 

no
rt

h.
  L

at
er

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
 w

ith
in

 t
he

 C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

ge
ne

ra
lly

 in
vo

lv
ed

 t
he

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
of

 in
di

vi
du

al
 h

ou
se

s 
(s

ee
 P

la
te

 6
). 

  F
in

al
ly

, 
“S

ta
tio

n 
Ro

ad
” 

w
as

 r
e-

na
m

ed
 T

he
 V

ill
ag

e 
du

ri
ng

 t
he

 s
ec

on
d 

ha
lf 

of
 t

he
 t

w
en

tie
th

 
ce

nt
ur

y.
 

            

Page 143



18
52

 O
rd

na
nc

e 
Su

rv
ey

 M
ap

 
Th

is 
m

ap
 is

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
O

rd
na

nc
e 

Su
rv

ey
 M

ap
pi

ng
 w

ith
 p

er
m

iss
io

n 
of

 t
he

 c
on

tr
ol

le
r 

of
 H

M
SO

, ©
C

ro
w

n 
C

op
yr

ig
ht

.  
 

U
na

ut
ho

ri
se

d 
re

pr
od

uc
tio

n 
in

fr
in

ge
s 

cr
ow

n 
co

py
rig

ht
 a

nd
 m

ay
 le

ad
 to

 p
ro

se
cu

tio
n 

or
 c

iv
il 

pr
oc

ee
di

ng
s 

Page 144



19
11

 O
rd

na
nc

e 
Su

rv
ey

 M
ap

 
Th

is 
m

ap
 is

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
O

rd
na

nc
e 

Su
rv

ey
 M

ap
pi

ng
 w

ith
 p

er
m

iss
io

n 
of

 t
he

 c
on

tr
ol

le
r 

of
 H

M
SO

, ©
C

ro
w

n 
C

op
yr

ig
ht

.  
 

U
na

ut
ho

ri
se

d 
re

pr
od

uc
tio

n 
in

fr
in

ge
s 

cr
ow

n 
co

py
rig

ht
 a

nd
 m

ay
 le

ad
 to

 p
ro

se
cu

tio
n 

or
 c

iv
il 

pr
oc

ee
di

ng
s 

Page 145



St
re

ns
al

l R
ai

lw
ay

 B
ui

ld
in

gs
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
C

ha
ra

ct
er

 A
pp

ra
isa

l, 
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
10

 
7 

5 
C

O
N

SE
R

V
A

T
IO

N
 A

R
E

A
 B

O
U

N
D

A
R

Y
 

5.
01

 
O

ne
 o

f t
he

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 o

f a
n 

ap
pr

ai
sa

l 
is 

a 
re

vi
ew

 o
f t

he
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
bo

un
da

ri
es

 to
 e

st
ab

lis
h 

w
he

th
er

 c
ha

ng
es

 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

ap
pr

op
ri

at
e.

  T
he

re
fo

re
 t

he
 

ex
te

nt
 o

f t
he

 e
xi

st
in

g 
de

sig
na

te
d 

ar
ea

 h
as

 
be

en
 r

ev
ie

w
ed

 a
nd

 a
re

as
 a

ro
un

d 
th

e 
ex

ist
in

g 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

st
ud

ie
d 

to
 a

sc
er

ta
in

 w
he

th
er

 a
ny

 n
ew

 
ar

ea
s 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
in

cl
ud

ed
 o

r 
ex

ist
in

g 
ar

ea
s 

ex
cl

ud
ed

.  
 

  
E

xi
st

in
g 

bo
un

da
ry

 
5.

02
 

Th
e 

cu
rr

en
t 

bo
un

da
ry

 o
f t

he
 d

es
ig

na
te

d 
ar

ea
 is

 il
lu

st
ra

te
d 

on
 M

ap
 2

.  
 T

he
 e

as
te

rn
 

en
d 

of
 t

he
 d

es
ig

na
te

d 
ar

ea
 is

 fo
cu

se
d 

ar
ou

nd
 t

he
 fo

rm
er

 s
ta

tio
n 

ho
us

e 
to

ge
th

er
 w

ith
 it

s 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 s
ig

na
l b

ox
 

an
d 

le
ve

l c
ro

ss
in

g.
   

It 
is 

al
so

 in
cl

ud
es

 
w

ha
t 

ar
e 

un
de

rs
to

od
 t

o 
be

 t
he

 fo
rm

er
 

sid
in

gs
 t

o 
th

e 
so

ut
h–

w
es

t. 
 T

he
 r

em
in

de
r 

of
 t

he
 d

es
ig

na
te

d 
ar

ea
 is

 fo
cu

se
d 

ar
ou

nd
 

ho
us

in
g 

on
 b

ot
h 

sid
es

 o
f T

he
 V

ill
ag

e 
w

hi
ch

 r
un

s 
in

 a
n 

ea
st

/w
es

t 
di

re
ct

io
n.

 
  

P
os

si
bl

e 
al

te
ra

ti
on

s 
5.

03
 

Th
er

e 
ar

e 
no

 a
re

as
 w

hi
ch

 a
re

 c
on

sid
er

ed
 

to
 b

e 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

ap
pr

op
ri

at
el

y 
w

ith
in

 t
he

 
cu

rr
en

t 
bo

un
da

ry
. 

  
P

os
si

bl
e 

ad
di

ti
on

s 
5.

04
 

Tw
o 

ar
ea

s 
ar

e 
be

in
g 

pu
t 

fo
rw

ar
d 

fo
r 

in
cl

us
io

n 
in

 t
he

 C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a:

 t
he

 

fo
rm

er
 s

ta
tio

n 
ya

rd
 a

nd
 c

on
te

m
po

ra
ry

 
ra

ilw
ay

 h
ou

sin
g 

to
 t

he
 w

es
t. 

To
 t

he
 n

or
th

 
of

 t
he

 r
ai

lw
ay

 li
ne

 a
dj

ac
en

t 
to

 t
he

 le
ve

l 
cr

os
sin

g 
is 

th
e 

fo
rm

er
 s

ta
tio

n 
ya

rd
.  

Th
is 

in
cl

ud
es

 th
e 

co
al

 d
ro

ps
 th

at
 w

er
e 

 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 w
ith

 th
e 

ra
ilw

ay
 (s

ee
 P

la
te

 7
)  

Th
es

e 
ar

e 
in

 fo
rm

 o
f a

 s
er

ie
s 

of
 u

nc
ov

er
ed

 
br

ic
k 

ba
ys

 t
ha

t 
ab

ut
 th

e 
w

al
l t

ha
t 

w
as

 p
ar

t 
of

 t
he

 o
ld

 p
la

tfo
rm

, w
hi

ch
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

de
m

ol
ish

ed
. T

he
 1

85
4-

56
 O

rd
na

nc
e 

Su
rv

ey
 

m
ap

 in
di

ca
te

s 
th

at
 t

he
re

 w
as

 a
 c

oa
l d

ep
ot

 
at

 t
he

 s
ta

tio
n.

  I
n 

vi
ew

 o
f t

he
ir

 h
ist

or
ic

 
as

so
ci

at
io

n 
w

ith
 t

he
 r

ai
lw

ay
 it

 is
 c

on
sid

er
ed

 
th

at
 t

he
 fo

rm
er

 s
ta

tio
n 

ya
rd

 is
 w

or
th

y 
of

 
in

cl
us

io
n 

w
ith

in
 t

he
 d

es
ig

na
te

d 
ar

ea
 (A

re
a 

A
 o

n 
M

ap
 2

). 
 T

he
 fo

rm
er

 s
ta

tio
n 

ya
rd

 is
 

di
re

ct
ly

 in
 li

ne
 o

f v
ie

w
 fr

om
 t

he
 w

es
t w

he
n 

tr
av

el
in

g 
al

on
g 

th
e 

m
ai

n 
ro

ad
 a

nd
 t

he
re

fo
re

 
an

y 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
m

us
t 

be
 s

tr
ic

tly
 

co
nt

ro
lle

d.
 

 5.
05

 
Be

yo
nd

 t
he

 w
es

te
rn

 e
nd

 o
f t

he
 c

ur
re

nt
 

bo
un

da
ry

 o
n 

th
e 

no
rt

h 
sid

e 
of

 T
he

 V
ill

ag
e 

ar
e 

fiv
e 

re
sid

en
tia

l p
ro

pe
rt

ie
s 

of
 in

te
re

st
: 

N
os

. 9
3 

- 1
01

 (A
re

a 
B 

on
 M

ap
 2

). 
 N

os
. 

93
-9

9 
(s

ee
 P

la
te

 8
) a

re
 a

 t
w

o 
vi

lla
 p

ai
rs

 o
f 

sim
ila

r 
ag

e 
an

d 
fo

rm
 t

o 
th

e 
ot

he
r 

vi
lla

 p
ai

rs
 

in
 t

he
 d

es
ig

na
te

d 
ar

ea
, a

lth
ou

gh
 N

os
. 9

7 
an

d 
99

 h
av

e 
lo

st
 m

os
t 

of
 t

he
ir

 o
ri

gi
na

l 
de

ta
ils

.  
N

o.
 1

01
 is

 a
n 

in
te

re
st

in
g 

 a
nd

 w
el

l 
de

sig
ne

d 
de

ta
ch

ed
 h

ou
se

, d
at

ed
 1

93
7 

(s
ee

 
Pl

at
e 

9)
.  

It 
w

as
 p

ur
po

se
 b

ui
lt 

as
 a

 d
oc

to
r’

s 

Pl
at

e 
8 

N
os

. 9
3-

99
 T

he
 V

ill
ag

e 

Pl
at

e 
9 

 N
o.

 1
01

 T
he

 V
ill

ag
e 

Pl
at

e 
7 

Vi
ew

 o
f  

fo
rm

er
 s

ta
tio

n 
ya

rd
 

Page 146



St
re

ns
al

l R
ai

lw
ay

 B
ui

ld
in

gs
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
C

ha
ra

ct
er

 A
pp

ra
isa

l, 
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
10

 
8 

 

 Pl
at

e 
10

 N
o.

 1
03

 T
he

 V
ill

ag
e 

ho
us

e 
an

d 
su

rg
er

y.
  I

n 
vi

ew
 o

f t
he

 q
ua

lit
y 

of
 t

he
se

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
 it

 is
 r

ec
om

m
en

de
d 

th
ey

 
ar

e 
al

so
 in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 t
he

 d
es

ig
na

te
d 

ar
ea

. 
 5.

06
 

It 
is 

al
so

 p
ro

po
se

d 
to

 in
cl

ud
e 

N
o.

 1
03

 
Th

e 
Vi

lla
ge

 in
 t

he
 d

es
ig

na
te

d 
ar

ea
.  

Th
is 

is 
a 

sin
gl

e 
st

or
ey

 la
te

 t
w

en
tie

th
 c

en
tu

ry
 

ho
us

e 
(s

ee
 P

la
te

 1
0)

.  
A

lth
ou

gh
 it

 is
 o

f n
o 

sp
ec

ia
l i

nt
er

es
t 

it 
is 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 

ap
pr

op
ri

at
e 

to
 in

cl
ud

e 
th

e 
ho

us
e 

in
 t

he
 

de
sig

na
te

d 
ar

ea
 in

 o
rd

er
 t

o 
se

ns
ib

ly
 

co
nn

ec
t 

th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 e
xt

en
sio

n 
to

 t
he

 
ex

ist
in

g 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
bo

un
da

ry
. 

  
R

ec
om

m
en

da
ti

on
s 

5.
07

 
In

 v
ie

w
 o

f a
ll 

th
e 

ab
ov

e,
 it

 is
 c

on
sid

er
ed

 
th

at
 t

he
 b

ou
nd

ar
y 

of
 t

he
 d

es
ig

na
te

d 
ar

ea
 

be
 a

lte
re

d 
to

 in
cl

ud
e 

th
e 

fo
rm

er
 s

ta
tio

n 
ya

rd
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
w

ith
 t

he
 r

ai
lw

ay
 (A

re
a 

A
 

on
 M

ap
 2

) a
nd

 n
um

be
rs

 9
3 

- 1
03

 T
he

 
Vi

lla
ge

 (A
re

a 
B 

on
 M

ap
 2

). 
 

   
  

 
  

 

Page 147



17
.2

m

128

Paddock

66a

10
3

11
3 St

on
e

Drain

Th
e 

Fi
rs

18
.0

m 130
100

125
Is

su
es

FB

G
re

en
sle

ev
es

1 St
at

io
n

1

8

93 92

K
ar

el
ia

Mast

2

Si
gn

al
 G

an
tr

y

LA
N

E

Tr
ac

k

H
ea

th
fie

ld

Be
ec

hw
oo

d

Pinewood

10
1

110

LC

67

El

The

Su
b

13
3

NORTHFIELDS

LB

BR
EC

KS

G
re

ys
to

ne
s

TH
E 

SID
IN

G
S

Ya
rd

120

PARK GATE

St
a

17
.6

m

Ri
dg

e

128a
1

M
P 

.5

Drain

SB

C
op

pe
rf

ie
ld

Li
tt

le

72

10

M
ap

 2
  -

 C
ur

re
nt

 C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
   

 A
re

a 
bo

un
da

ry

north

P
ro

po
se

d 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n

A
re

a 
bo

un
da

ry

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a

bo
un

da
ry

A
re

a 
B

A
re

a 
A

T
hi

s 
m

ap
 is

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
O

rd
na

nc
e 

S
ur

ve
y 

M
ap

pi
ng

 w
ith

 th
e 

pe
rm

is
si

on
 o

f t
he

 c
on

tr
ol

le
r 

of
 H

M
S

O
, ©

 C
ro

w
n 

C
op

yr
ig

ht
.  

U
na

ut
ho

ris
ed

 r
ep

ro
du

ct
io

n 
in

fr
in

ge
s 

C
ro

w
n 

C
op

yr
ig

ht
 a

nd
 m

ay
 le

ad
 to

 p
ro

se
cu

tio
n 

or
 c

iv
il 

pr
oc

ee
di

ng
s.

  C
ity

 o
f Y

or
k 

Li
ce

nc
e 

N
um

be
r 

10
00

-2
08

18

Page 148



St
re

ns
al

l R
ai

lw
ay

 B
ui

ld
in

gs
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
 C

ha
ra

ct
er

 A
pp

ra
isa

l, 
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
10

 
9 

6 
G

E
N

E
R

A
L

 C
H

A
R

A
C

T
E

R
 

6.
01

 T
hi

s 
se

ct
io

n 
co

ns
id

er
s 

th
e 

ge
ne

ra
l c

ha
ra

ct
er

 
of

 t
he

 w
ho

le
 o

f t
he

 C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a.

 
  

U
se

 
6.

02
 T

he
 p

re
do

m
in

an
t 

us
e 

of
 t

he
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 w
ith

in
 

th
e 

ar
ea

 is
 r

es
id

en
tia

l, 
w

ith
 t

he
 e

xc
ep

tio
n 

of
 

th
e 

ra
ilw

ay
 s

ig
na

l b
ox

 lo
ca

te
d 

at
 t

he
 le

ve
l 

cr
os

sin
g 

at
 t

he
 e

as
t 

en
d 

of
 t

he
 d

es
ig

na
te

d 
ar

ea
 (s

ee
 M

ap
 3

 a
nd

 P
la

te
 1

1)
.  

Th
e 

fo
rm

er
 

st
at

io
n 

ya
rd

 (A
re

a 
A

 o
f t

he
 p

ro
po

se
d 

ad
di

tio
ns

) w
as

 u
se

d 
as

 a
 b

ui
ld

er
s 

ya
rd

 w
ith

 
in

fo
rm

al
 o

ffi
ce

 u
nt

il 
re

ce
nt

ly
.  

W
ith

in
 A

re
a 

B 
of

 t
he

 p
ro

po
se

d 
ad

di
tio

n 
th

er
e 

ar
e 

tw
o 

sm
al

l 
ar

ea
s 

of
 la

nd
sc

ap
ed

 o
pe

n 
sp

ac
e 

on
 e

ith
er

 
sid

e 
of

 t
he

 ju
nc

tio
n 

of
 N

or
th

fie
ld

s 
w

ith
 T

he
 

Vi
lla

ge
.  

  
  

Q
ua

lit
ie

s 
of

 t
he

 B
ui

ld
in

gs
 

6.
03

 W
ith

in
 t

he
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
th

er
e 

is 
on

ly
 

on
e 

lis
te

d 
bu

ild
in

g 
(s

ee
 M

ap
 4

 a
nd

 in
 

A
pp

en
di

x 
A

). 
 T

hi
s 

is 
th

e 
fo

rm
er

 s
ta

tio
n 

ho
us

e,
 w

hi
ch

 is
 lo

ca
te

d 
di

re
ct

ly
 o

n 
th

e 
no

rt
h 

sid
e 

of
 t

he
 r

ai
lw

ay
 li

ne
 a

nd
 w

as
 b

ui
lt 

in
 c

ir
ca

 
18

48
 fo

r 
th

e 
Yo

rk
 a

nd
 N

or
th

 M
id

la
nd

 
Ra

ilw
ay

 L
in

e.
  T

he
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

is 
tw

o 
st

or
ey

s 
in

 
he

ig
ht

 a
nd

 is
 c

on
st

ru
ct

ed
 o

f l
oc

al
 b

ri
ck

 w
ith

 
st

on
e 

dr
es

sin
gs

 a
nd

 a
rc

h-
he

ad
ed

 w
in

do
w

s 
un

de
r 

a 
sh

al
lo

w
 p

itc
he

d 
ov

er
ha

ng
in

g 
sla

te
 

ro
of

.  
It 

ha
s 

a 
m

ai
n 

ra
ng

e 
w

ith
 a

 c
en

tr
al

 b
ay

 
th

at
 b

re
ak

s 
fo

rw
ar

d 
to

w
ar

ds
 t

he
 r

ai
lw

ay
 li

ne
 

an
d 

is 
ty

pi
ca

l o
f t

he
 e

ar
ly

 g
en

er
at

io
n 

of
 

ra
ilw

ay
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 (s
ee

 P
la

te
 1

2)
.  

 

Pl
at

e 
11

 V
ie

w
 t

ow
ar

ds
 t

he
 s

ig
na

l b
ox

 

Pl
at

e1
2 

Th
e 

fo
rm

er
 s

ta
tio

n 
ho

us
e 

 Pl
at

e 
13

 
Ex

am
pl

e 
of

 a
 v

ill
a 

pa
ir

 
 

6.
04

 T
he

 o
nl

y 
ot

he
r 

bu
ild

in
g 

th
at

 r
el

at
es

 
di

re
ct

ly
 t

o 
th

e 
ra

ilw
ay

 is
 t

he
 s

ig
na

l b
ox

 o
n 

th
e 

so
ut

h 
sid

e 
of

 t
he

 le
ve

l c
ro

ss
in

g 
(s

ee
 

Pl
at

es
 5

 a
nd

 1
1)

.  
Th

is 
ha

s 
a 

br
ic

k 
ba

se
 

w
ith

 a
 d

ist
in

ct
iv

e 
gl

az
ed

 fi
rs

t 
flo

or
.  

 6.
05

 O
n 

th
e 

so
ut

h 
sid

e 
of

 T
he

 V
ill

ag
e 

N
os

. 1
26

 
&

 1
28

 a
re

 t
he

 o
nl

y 
ex

am
pl

es
 o

f a
n 

ea
rl

y 
bu

ild
in

gs
 w

ith
in

 t
he

 d
es

ig
na

te
d 

ar
ea

.  
Th

e 
ho

us
e 

is 
se

m
i-d

et
ac

he
d 

w
ith

 a
 s

im
pl

e 
fo

rm
, i

s 
co

ns
tr

uc
te

d 
of

 b
ri

ck
s 

w
ith

 n
o 

de
co

ra
tiv

e 
de

ta
ili

ng
 a

nd
 h

as
 a

 p
an

til
ed

 
ro

of
 (s

ee
 P

la
te

 3
). 

  
 6.

06
 T

he
 m

aj
or

ity
 o

f t
he

 h
ou

se
s 

w
ith

in
 t

he
 

de
sig

na
te

d 
ar

ea
 a

re
 la

te
 V

ic
to

ri
an

 o
r 

ea
rl

y 
Ed

w
ar

di
an

 in
 s

ty
le

.  
Th

es
e 

ar
e 

tw
o 

st
or

ey
s 

in
 h

ei
gh

t, 
co

ns
tr

uc
te

d 
of

 r
ed

 b
ri

ck
 

an
d 

ha
ve

 p
itc

he
d 

sla
te

 r
oo

fs
 (s

ee
 P

la
te

 
13

). 
 T

he
 p

re
do

m
in

an
t 

bu
ild

in
g 

fo
rm

 is
 

sm
al

l v
ill

a 
pa

ir
s 

bu
t 

th
er

e 
is 

on
e 

ex
am

pl
e 

of
 a

 s
ho

rt
 t

er
ra

ce
 c

on
ta

in
in

g 
fiv

e 
un

its
 o

n 
th

e 
no

rt
h 

sid
e 

of
 T

he
 V

ill
ag

e.
  T

he
se

 
ho

us
es

 s
it 

be
hi

nd
 s

m
al

l f
ro

nt
 g

ar
de

ns
 t

ha
t 

ar
e 

de
fin

ed
 b

y 
a 

lo
w

 b
ri

ck
 w

al
l t

op
pe

d 
w

ith
 a

 s
to

ne
 c

op
in

g.
  T

he
 h

ou
se

s 
ar

e 
po

sit
io

ne
d 

cl
os

e 
to

ge
th

er
 w

hi
ch

 c
re

at
es

 a
 

fin
e 

lin
ea

r 
ur

ba
n 

gr
ai

n 
an

d 
al

so
 r

es
ul

ts
 in

 a
 

hi
gh

 d
en

sit
y 

of
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t. 

  
 6.

07
 M

an
y 

of
 t

he
se

 la
te

r 
ho

us
es

 h
av

e 
de

co
ra

tiv
e 

de
ta

ili
ng

, i
n 

co
nt

ra
st

 t
o 

th
e 

Page 149



St
re

ns
al

l R
ai

lw
ay

 B
ui

ld
in

gs
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
 C

ha
ra

ct
er

 A
pp

ra
isa

l, 
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
10

 
10

 

Pl
at

e 
15

 V
ie

w
 e

as
t 

al
on

g 
Th

e 
Vi

lla
ge

 
 

Br
ec

ks
 la

ne
 in

 t
he

 m
id

 t
w

en
tie

th
 c

en
tu

ry
.  

Th
e 

bu
s 

te
rm

in
us

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
re

-lo
ca

te
d 

no
rt

h.
 

N
on

e 
of

 t
he

 p
av

em
en

ts
 r

et
ai

n 
th

ei
r 

or
ig

in
al

 
m

at
er

ia
ls,

 w
hi

ch
 h

av
e 

be
en

 r
ep

la
ce

d 
w

ith
 

m
od

er
n 

co
nc

re
te

 k
er

bs
 a

nd
 ta

rm
ac

 
su

rf
ac

in
g.

  H
ow

ev
er

, t
he

 r
ub

be
r 

ro
ad

 s
ur

fa
ce

 
ac

ro
ss

 t
he

 le
ve

l c
ro

ss
in

g 
do

es
 p

ro
vi

de
 

in
te

re
st

 a
nd

 v
ar

ie
ty

 to
 th

e 
ar

ea
 a

nd
 r

ef
le

ct
s 

its
 fu

nc
tio

n.
 

 6.
10

 T
he

re
 a

re
 t

w
o 

sm
al

l o
pe

n 
gr

as
se

d 
sp

ac
es

, 
ea

ch
 p

la
nt

ed
 w

ith
 o

rn
am

en
ta

l t
re

es
 w

ith
in

 
A

re
a 

B 
of

 t
he

 p
ro

po
se

d 
ad

di
tio

ns
 t

o 
th

e 
de

sig
na

te
d 

ar
ea

 o
n 

ei
th

er
 s

id
e 

of
 t

he
 ju

nc
tio

n 
be

tw
ee

n 
N

or
th

fie
ld

s 
an

d 
Th

e 
Vi

lla
ge

.  
Th

es
e 

sp
ac

es
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

 b
re

ak
 in

 t
he

 b
ui

lt 
fo

rm
 o

f 
th

e 
ar

ea
 a

nd
 t

he
 t

re
es

 c
re

at
e 

an
 a

tt
ra

ct
iv

e 
ar

ea
 o

f l
an

ds
ca

pe
 (s

ee
 M

ap
 5

). 
 6.

11
 V

ie
w

s 
w

ith
in

 t
he

 d
es

ig
na

te
d 

ar
ea

 a
re

 
pr

ed
om

in
an

tly
 a

lo
ng

 T
he

 V
ill

ag
e 

to
 e

ith
er

 
en

d 
of

 t
he

 C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

(s
ee

 M
ap

 5
 

an
d 

Pl
at

e 
15

). 
 S

im
ila

rl
y,

 v
ie

w
s 

ar
e 

po
ss

ib
le

 
in

to
 a

nd
 o

ut
 o

f t
he

 d
es

ig
na

te
d 

ar
ea

 a
lo

ng
 

Th
e 

Vi
lla

ge
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 r
oa

ds
.  

A
lso

, t
he

re
 a

re
 

sig
ni

fic
an

t 
vi

ew
s 

ou
t 

of
 t

he
 d

es
ig

na
te

d 
ar

ea
 

fr
om

 t
he

 le
ve

l c
ro

ss
in

g 
lo

ok
in

g 
al

on
g 

th
e 

ra
ilw

ay
 t

ra
ck

s 
in

 b
ot

h 
di

re
ct

io
ns

 (s
ee

 P
la

te
 

17
). 

 T
he

 le
ve

l c
ro

ss
in

g 
al

so
 p

ro
vi

de
s 

an
 

ob
liq

ue
 v

ie
w

 t
o 

th
e 

fo
rm

er
 s

ta
tio

n 
ho

us
e 

(s
ee

 M
ap

 5
 a

nd
 P

la
te

 1
2)

.  
 

 6.
12

 A
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t 
vi

ew
 in

to
 t

he
 d

es
ig

na
te

d 
ar

ea
 

ex
ist

s 
lo

ok
in

g 
no

rt
h 

al
on

g 
Lo

rd
’s 

M
oo

r 
La

ne
.  

Th
is 

vi
ew

 is
 fr

am
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

sig
na

l b
ox

 a
nd

 

ol
de

r 
bu

ild
in

gs
 in

 t
he

 a
re

a.
  D

en
til

ed
 b

ri
ck

 
co

ur
sin

g 
ab

ov
e 

op
en

in
gs

 o
r 

a 
st

ri
ng

 c
ou

rs
e 

of
 w

hi
te

 c
on

tr
as

tin
g 

br
ic

k 
w

or
k 

pr
ov

id
e 

in
te

re
st

 t
o 

th
e 

fa
ça

de
 (s

ee
 P

la
te

 1
3)

.  
C

an
te

d 
ba

y 
w

in
do

w
s 

ar
e 

a 
fe

at
ur

e 
of

 t
he

se
 

ho
us

es
 a

nd
 t

he
se

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
 r

hy
th

m
 t

o 
th

e 
fa

ça
de

 a
nd

 t
he

 s
tr

ee
ts

ce
ne

.  
Th

e 
fr

on
t 

do
or

s 
ar

e 
hi

gh
lig

ht
ed

 t
hr

ou
gh

 t
he

 u
se

 o
f 

tim
be

r 
po

rc
he

s 
(s

ee
 P

la
te

 1
4)

.  
Th

es
e 

po
rc

he
s 

of
te

n 
ha

ve
 e

la
bo

ra
te

 c
ar

ve
d 

pa
ne

ls 
an

d 
br

ac
ke

ts
.  

M
an

y 
of

 t
he

 h
ou

se
s 

re
ta

in
 

th
ei

r 
or

ig
in

al
 v

er
tic

al
 s

lid
in

g 
sa

sh
 w

in
do

w
s 

an
d 

tim
be

r 
do

or
s. 

 6.
08

 T
he

re
 is

 o
ne

 la
te

r 
di

st
in

ct
iv

e 
ho

us
e 

(N
o.

 
10

1 
th

e 
Vi

lla
ge

), 
da

te
d 

19
37

, w
hi

ch
 a

lso
 

co
nt

ri
bu

te
s 

to
 t

he
 a

pp
ea

ra
nc

e 
of

 t
he

 a
re

a 
(s

ee
 P

la
te

 9
). 

 T
hi

s 
is 

w
ith

in
 A

re
a 

B 
of

 t
he

 
pr

op
os

ed
 a

dd
iti

on
s 

to
 t

he
 d

es
ig

na
te

d 
ar

ea
 

at
 t

he
 w

es
t 

en
d 

of
 T

he
 V

ill
ag

e.
  T

he
 h

ou
se

 
is 

co
ns

tr
uc

te
d 

w
ith

 r
ed

 b
ri

ck
 u

nd
er

 h
ip

pe
d 

pa
nt

ile
 r

oo
f. 

 It
 h

as
 a

 s
im

pl
e 

fo
rm

 w
ith

 li
tt

le
 

el
ab

or
at

io
n,

 w
ith

 t
he

 e
xc

ep
tio

n 
of

 t
he

 
br

ac
ke

t 
po

rc
h 

ov
er

 t
he

 e
nt

ra
nc

e 
do

or
. 

  
Sp

ac
es

 a
nd

 v
ie

w
s 

6.
09

 W
ith

in
 t

he
 d

es
ig

na
te

d 
ar

ea
 t

he
re

 a
re

 a
 

lim
ite

d 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 s
pa

ce
s 

du
e 

to
 t

he
 fo

rm
 

of
 t

he
 a

re
a 

an
d 

its
 s

m
al

l s
iz

e.
  T

he
 m

ai
n 

sp
ac

es
 a

re
 t

he
 r

oa
ds

 a
nd

 t
he

ir
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
el

em
en

ts
.  

Th
e 

ex
ce

pt
io

na
l w

id
th

 o
f T

he
 

Vi
lla

ge
 a

t 
its

 e
as

t 
en

d 
in

di
ca

te
s 

th
at

 t
hi

s 
w

as
 

a 
te

rm
in

us
 fo

r 
th

e 
bu

s 
an

d 
fo

r 
de

liv
er

y 
ve

hi
cl

es
 a

s 
th

er
e 

w
er

e 
no

 t
hr

ou
gh

 r
oa

ds
 

un
til

 t
he

 a
do

pt
io

n 
of

 L
or

ds
 M

oo
r 

La
ne

 a
nd

 

Pl
at

e 
14

 D
ec

or
at

iv
e 

br
ac

ke
te

d 
po

rc
he

s 
 Pl

at
e 

16
 V

ie
w

 in
to

 t
he

 d
es

ig
na

te
d 

fr
om

 
 

Lo
rd

’s 
M

oo
r 

La
ne

 

Page 150



St
re

ns
al

l R
ai

lw
ay

 B
ui

ld
in

gs
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
 C

ha
ra

ct
er

 A
pp

ra
isa

l, 
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
10

 
11

 

Pl
at

e 
17

 R
ai

lw
ay

 t
ra

ck
s 

ga
te

s 
at

 t
he

 le
ve

l c
ro

ss
in

g 
an

d 
th

e 
vi

st
a 

is 
cl

os
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

ho
us

es
 o

n 
th

e 
no

rt
h 

sid
e 

of
 

Th
e 

Vi
lla

ge
 (s

ee
 P

la
te

 1
6)

.  
Th

e 
le

ve
l 

cr
os

sin
g 

ac
ts

 a
s 

a 
ga

te
w

ay
 a

s 
it 

m
ar

ks
 t

he
 

en
tr

y 
in

to
 t

he
 a

re
a 

fr
om

 t
he

 s
ou

th
 a

nd
 t

he
 

sig
na

l b
ox

 a
ct

s 
as

 a
 lo

ca
l l

an
dm

ar
k 

(s
ee

 M
ap

 
5)

.  
 

 6.
13

 T
he

 fo
rm

er
 s

ta
tio

n 
ya

rd
 (A

re
a 

A
 o

f t
he

  o
f 

th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 a
dd

iti
on

s 
to

 t
he

 d
es

ig
na

te
d 

ar
ea

) i
s 

a 
pr

iv
at

e 
op

en
 s

pa
ce

 o
f h

ist
or

ic
 

sig
ni

fic
an

ce
.  

It 
co

nt
ai

ns
 c

oa
l d

ro
ps

 a
nd

 
ot

he
r 

st
or

ag
e 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 w
ith

 t
he

 
ra

ilw
ay

 t
ha

t 
co

m
pr

ise
 o

f a
 s

er
ie

s 
of

 la
rg

e 
un

co
ve

re
d 

br
ic

k-
bu

ilt
 b

ay
s 

(s
ee

 P
la

te
 7

). 
  

  
So

ft
 L

an
ds

ca
pi

ng
 

6.
14

 T
he

 s
tr

ee
ts

ce
ne

 a
lo

ng
 t

he
 V

ill
ag

e 
is 

so
fte

ne
d 

by
 t

he
 t

re
es

, s
hr

ub
s 

an
d 

he
dg

es
 

lo
ca

te
d 

in
 t

he
 fr

on
t 

ga
rd

en
s 

of
 t

he
 h

ou
se

s. 
 

Th
e 

la
rg

e 
m

at
ur

e 
tr

ee
s 

in
 t

he
 g

ar
de

n 
ar

ea
 

of
 t

he
 fo

rm
er

 s
ta

tio
n 

ho
us

e 
at

 t
he

 e
as

t 
en

d 
m

ak
e 

a 
ve

ry
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t 
co

nt
ri

bu
tio

n 
to

 t
he

 
ch

ar
ac

te
r 

an
d 

ap
pe

ar
an

ce
 o

f t
he

 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
as

 d
o 

ot
he

r 
tr

ee
 g

ro
up

s 
an

d 
or

na
m

en
ta

l t
re

es
 a

t 
ro

ad
 ju

nc
tio

ns
 (s

ee
 

Pl
at

e 
18

 a
nd

 M
ap

 5
). 

  
N

eu
tr

al
 a

nd
 N

eg
at

iv
e 

fa
ct

or
s 

  
6.

15
 W

ith
in

 t
he

 d
es

ig
na

te
d 

ar
ea

 t
he

re
 a

re
 a

 
lim

ite
d 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 n

eu
tr

al
 a

nd
 n

eg
at

iv
e 

fa
ct

or
s 

(s
ee

 M
ap

 4
). 

 6.
16

 W
ith

in
 A

re
a 

B 
of

 t
he

 p
ro

po
se

d 
ad

di
tio

n 
 t

o 
th

e 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a,
 N

os
. 9

7 
an

d 
99

 T
he

 

Vi
lla

ge
 a

re
 a

 v
ill

a 
pa

ir
, w

hi
ch

 h
as

 it
s 

br
ic

kw
or

k 
co

ve
re

d 
w

ith
 r

en
de

r;
 t

hi
s 

ha
s 

al
so

 r
es

ul
te

d 
in

 t
he

 lo
ss

 o
f m

uc
h 

of
 it

s 
or

ig
in

al
 d

et
ai

lin
g.

  A
lth

ou
gh

 t
he

 b
ui

ld
in

g 
st

ill
 d

isp
la

ys
 it

s 
or

ig
in

al
 fo

rm
 w

hi
ch

 c
ou

ld
 

be
 r

e-
in

st
at

ed
.  

A
s 

a 
re

su
lt,

 it
 is

 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 t
ha

t 
th

e 
bu

ild
in

g 
is 

a 
ne

ut
ra

l 
fa

ct
or

 w
ith

in
 t

he
 d

es
ig

na
te

d 
ar

ea
.  

 6.
17

 I
n 

ad
di

tio
n,

 s
om

e 
ho

us
es

 h
av

e 
un

fo
rt

un
at

el
y 

lo
st

 t
he

ir 
or

ig
in

al
 t

im
be

r 
w

in
do

w
 fr

am
es

 a
nd

 fr
on

t 
do

or
s. 

 O
th

er
 

ho
us

es
 h

av
e 

lo
st

 t
he

ir
 fr

on
t 

bo
un

da
ry

 
w

al
ls 

an
d 

th
e 

fr
on

t 
ga

rd
en

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

re
pl

ac
ed

 w
ith

 h
ar

d 
su

rf
ac

in
g 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 

ve
hi

cl
e 

pa
rk

in
g.

 
 6.

18
 O

n 
th

e 
so

ut
h 

sid
e 

of
 T

he
 V

ill
ag

e,
 to

 th
e 

ea
st

 o
f t

he
 fo

rm
er

 s
ta

tio
n 

ho
us

e 
is 

a 
la

rg
e 

m
od

er
n 

ho
us

e 
se

t 
ba

ck
 fr

om
 t

he
 g

en
er

al
 

bu
ild

in
g 

lin
e 

w
ith

 a
n 

L-
sh

ap
ed

 fo
ot

pr
in

t 
an

d 
la

rg
e 

do
rm

er
 w

in
do

w
.  

U
nf

or
tu

na
te

ly
 

th
e 

ef
fe

ct
s 

of
 it

s 
ex

po
se

d 
lo

ca
tio

n 
an

d 
its

 
un

ch
ar

ac
te

ri
st

ic
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

ty
po

lo
gy

 a
nd

 
do

rm
er

 w
in

do
w

 r
ep

re
se

nt
 a

 m
in

or
 

in
tr

us
io

n 
in

to
 t

he
 a

re
a 

(s
ee

 P
la

te
 1

9)
.  

Si
m

ila
rl

y 
th

e 
bu

ng
al

ow
 a

t 
N

o.
 1

03
 T

he
 

Vi
lla

ge
 (w

hi
ch

 is
 w

ith
in

 A
re

a 
B 

of
 t

he
 

pr
op

os
ed

 a
dd

iti
on

 to
 th

e 
de

sig
na

te
d 

ar
ea

) 
is 

al
so

 u
nc

ha
ra

ct
er

ist
ic

 o
f t

he
 r

em
ai

nd
er

 
of

 t
he

 C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

(s
ee

 P
la

te
 1

0)
.  

  
   

     
Pl

at
e 

19
  V

ie
w

 o
f m

od
er

n 
ho

us
e 

on
 t

he
 

so
ut

h 
sid

e 
of

 T
he

 V
ill

ag
e 

Pl
at

e 
18

 T
re

es
 in

 g
ar

de
n 

ar
ea

 o
f t

he
 fo

rm
er

 
st

at
io

n 
ho

us
e 

Page 151



17
.2

m

128

Paddock

66a

10
3

11
3 St

on
e

Drain

Th
e 

Fi
rs

18
.0

m 130
100

125

Is
su

es

FB

G
re

en
sle

ev
es

1 St
at

io
n

1

8

93 92

K
ar

el
ia

Mast

2

Si
gn

al
 G

an
tr

y

LA
N

E

Tr
ac

k

H
ea

th
fie

ld

Be
ec

hw
oo

d

Pinewood

10
1

110

LC

67

El

The

Su
b

13
3

NORTHFIELDS

LB

BR
EC

KS

G
re

ys
to

ne
s

TH
E 

SID
IN

G
S

Ya
rd

120

PARK GATE

St
a

17
.6

m

Ri
dg

e

128a

1

M
P 

.5

Drain

SB
Li

tt
le

72

10

M
ap

 3
 -

  E
xi

st
in

g 
us

es

R
es

id
en

tia
l (

in
cl

ud
in

g
st

ud
en

t r
es

id
en

ce
s 

an
d 

ca
re

ho
m

e)

north

T
ra

ns
po

rt

P
ro

po
se

d 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n

A
re

a 
bo

un
da

ry

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a

bo
un

da
ry

V
ac

an
t

T
hi

s 
m

ap
 is

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
O

rd
na

nc
e 

S
ur

ve
y 

M
ap

pi
ng

 w
ith

 th
e 

pe
rm

is
si

on
 o

f t
he

 c
on

tr
ol

le
r 

of
 H

M
S

O
, ©

 C
ro

w
n 

C
op

yr
ig

ht
.  

U
na

ut
ho

ris
ed

 r
ep

ro
du

ct
io

n 
in

fr
in

ge
s 

C
ro

w
n 

C
op

yr
ig

ht
 a

nd
 m

ay
 le

ad
 to

 p
ro

se
cu

tio
n 

or
 c

iv
il 

pr
oc

ee
di

ng
s.

  C
ity

 o
f Y

or
k 

Li
ce

nc
e 

N
um

be
r 

10
00

-2
08

18

Page 152



17
.2

m

128

Paddock

66a

10
3

11
3 St

on
e

Drain

Th
e 

Fi
rs

18
.0

m 130
100

125
Is

su
es

FB

G
re

en
sle

ev
es

1 St
at

io
n

1

8

93 92

K
ar

el
ia

Mast

2

Si
gn

al
 G

an
tr

y

LA
N

E

Tr
ac

k

H
ea

th
fie

ld

Be
ec

hw
oo

d

Pinewood

10
1

110

LC

67

El

The

Su
b

13
3

NORTHFIELDS

LB

BR
EC

KS

G
re

ys
to

ne
s

TH
E 

SID
IN

G
S

Ya
rd

120

PARK GATE

St
a

17
.6

m

Ri
dg

e

128a
1

M
P 

.5

Drain

SB

C
op

pe
rf

ie
ld

Li
tt

le

72

10

M
ap

 4
 -

  B
ui

ld
in

g 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t

Li
st

ed
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

B
ui

ld
in

gs
 w

hi
ch

 m
ak

e 
a

po
si

tiv
e 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n

north

P
ro

po
se

d 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n

A
re

a 
bo

un
da

ry

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a

bo
un

da
ry

B
ui

ld
in

gs
 w

hi
ch

 m
ak

e 
a

ne
ga

tiv
e 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n

B
ui

ld
in

gs
 w

hi
ch

 m
ak

e 
a

ne
ut

ra
l c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n

T
hi

s 
m

ap
 is

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
O

rd
na

nc
e 

S
ur

ve
y 

M
ap

pi
ng

 w
ith

 th
e 

pe
rm

is
si

on
 o

f t
he

 c
on

tr
ol

le
r 

of
 H

M
S

O
, ©

 C
ro

w
n 

C
op

yr
ig

ht
.  

U
na

ut
ho

ris
ed

 r
ep

ro
du

ct
io

n 
in

fr
in

ge
s 

C
ro

w
n 

C
op

yr
ig

ht
 a

nd
 m

ay
 le

ad
 to

 p
ro

se
cu

tio
n 

or
 c

iv
il 

pr
oc

ee
di

ng
s.

  C
ity

 o
f Y

or
k 

Li
ce

nc
e 

N
um

be
r 

10
00

-2
08

18

Page 153



17
.2

m

128

Paddock

66a

10
3

11
3 St

on
e

Drain

Th
e 

Fi
rs

18
.0

m 130
100

125

Is
su

es

FB

Th
e 

H
aw

th
or

ns

G
re

en
sle

ev
es

1 St
at

io
n

1

8

93 92

K
ar

el
ia

Mast

2

Si
gn

al
 G

an
tr

y

LA
N

E

Tr
ac

k

H
ea

th
fie

ld

Be
ec

hw
oo

d

Pinewood

10
1

110

LC

67
El

The

Su
b

13
3

NORTHFIELDS

LB

BR
EC

KS

G
re

ys
to

ne
s

TH
E 

SID
IN

G
S

Ya
rd

120

PARK GATE

St
a

17
.6

m

Ri
dg

e

128a

1

M
P 

.5

Drain

SB

C
op

pe
rf

ie
ld

Li
tt

le

72

10

M
ap

 5
 -

  S
pa

tia
l a

na
ly

si
s

P
ro

po
se

d 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n

A
re

a 
bo

un
da

ry

La
nd

m
ar

ks

M
ed

iu
m

 d
is

ta
nc

e 
vi

ew
s

Lo
ng

 d
is

ta
nc

e 
vi

ew
s

north

T
re

es

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a

bo
un

da
ry

G
at

ew
ay

T
hi

s 
m

ap
 is

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
O

rd
na

nc
e 

S
ur

ve
y 

M
ap

pi
ng

 w
ith

 th
e 

pe
rm

is
si

on
 o

f t
he

 c
on

tr
ol

le
r 

of
 H

M
S

O
, ©

 C
ro

w
n 

C
op

yr
ig

ht
.  

U
na

ut
ho

ris
ed

 r
ep

ro
du

ct
io

n 
in

fr
in

ge
s 

C
ro

w
n 

C
op

yr
ig

ht
 a

nd
 m

ay
 le

ad
 to

 p
ro

se
cu

tio
n 

or
 c

iv
il 

pr
oc

ee
di

ng
s.

  C
ity

 o
f Y

or
k 

Li
ce

nc
e 

N
um

be
r 

10
00

-2
08

18

Page 154



St
re

ns
al

l R
ai

lw
ay

 B
ui

ld
in

gs
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
C

ha
ra

ct
er

 A
pp

ra
isa

l, 
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
10

 
12

 

7
 

  
F

U
T

U
R

E
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
 S

U
G

G
E

S
T

IO
N

S
 

7.
01

 
Th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

iss
ue

s 
sh

ou
ld

 fo
rm

 t
he

 
ba

sis
 fo

r 
a 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

pl
an

 fo
r 

th
e 

St
re

ns
al

l R
ai

lw
ay

 B
ui

ld
in

gs
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a.
  H

ow
ev

er
, a

ll 
as

pe
ct

s 
of

 t
he

 a
re

a 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

in
 t

he
 a

pp
ra

isa
l s

ho
ul

d 
be

 
su

bj
ec

t 
to

 m
ea

su
re

s 
fo

r 
pr

es
er

va
tio

n 
or

 
en

ha
nc

em
en

t, 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

ly
 w

he
n 

co
ns

id
er

in
g 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 fo
r 

pl
an

ni
ng

 
pe

rm
iss

io
ns

 w
ith

in
 o

r 
ad

ja
ce

nt
 t

o 
th

e 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a.
 

 7.
02

 
C

on
sid

er
at

io
n 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
gi

ve
n 

to
 

in
tr

od
uc

in
g 

A
rt

ic
le

 4
 (2

) d
ir

ec
tio

ns
 t

o 
th

e 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a.
  T

hi
s 

w
ou

ld
 

pr
ov

id
e 

ad
di

tio
na

l p
ro

te
ct

io
n 

to
 

un
lis

te
d 

bu
ild

in
gs

 w
ith

in
 t

he
 a

re
a 

an
d 

co
ul

d 
be

 u
se

d,
 fo

r 
ex

am
pl

e,
 t

o 
re

sis
t 

th
e 

re
pl

ac
em

en
t 

of
 t

im
be

r 
do

or
s 

an
d 

w
in

do
w

s 
in

 u
ns

ui
ta

bl
e 

m
at

er
ia

ls/
st

yl
es

, 
or

 t
he

 lo
ss

 o
f t

yp
ic

al
 fe

at
ur

es
 s

uc
h 

as
 

ga
te

s, 
fe

nc
es

, w
al

ls 
or

 o
th

er
 m

ea
ns

 o
f 

en
cl

os
ur

e.
 

 7.
03

 
W

ith
in

 t
he

 a
re

a 
th

er
e 

ar
e 

a 
va

ri
et

y 
of

 
lig

ht
in

g 
co

lu
m

n 
de

sig
ns

.  
It 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
be

ne
fic

ia
l i

f t
he

 c
ol

um
ns

 w
er

e 
of

 a
 

co
ns

ist
en

t 
de

sig
n 

ap
pr

oa
ch

, o
f a

 h
um

an
 

sc
al

e.
  A

lso
, t

he
 li

gh
t 

em
iss

io
ns

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 s

ym
pa

th
et

ic
 t

o 
a 

ru
ra

l l
oc

at
io

n.
 

 7.
04

 
Re

gu
la

r 
tr

ee
 m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 is

 im
po

rt
an

t 
an

d 
th

er
e 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
en

co
ur

ag
em

en
t 

fo
r 

th
e 

re
in

fo
rc

em
en

t 
of

 h
ed

ge
s 

an
d 

ot
he

r 
m

at
ur

e 
pl

an
tin

g.
  I

n 
ad

di
tio

n,
 it

 is
 

re
co

m
m

en
de

d 
th

at
 t

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
re

-
su

rv
ey

 t
he

 d
es

ig
na

te
d 

ar
ea

 a
nd

 it
s 

im
m

ed
ia

te
 s

et
tin

g 
to

 e
st

ab
lis

h 
if 

an
y 

fu
rt

he
r 

Tr
ee

 P
re

se
rv

at
io

n 
O

rd
er

s 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

ap
pr

op
ri

at
e.

 
 7.

05
 

Th
e 

fo
rm

er
 s

ta
tio

n 
ya

rd
 t

o 
th

e 
no

rt
h 

of
 t

he
 r

ai
lw

ay
 li

ne
 h

as
 a

n 
op

en
 

ch
ar

ac
te

r 
w

hi
ch

 n
ee

ds
 t

o 
be

 r
et

ai
ne

d 
sh

ou
ld

 t
he

 s
ite

 b
e 

re
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

in
 t

he
 

fu
tu

re
. 

    

Page 155



L
IS

T
E

D
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N
S 

                         St
re

ns
al

l R
ai

lw
ay

 B
ui

ld
in

gs
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
 C

ha
ra

ct
er

 A
pp

ra
isa

l, 
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
10

 
A

pp
en

di
x 

A
 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 A

 
Page 156



T
H

E
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
 

(s
ou

th
 s

id
e)

 
 N

o.
 1

30
 (

St
at

io
n 

H
ou

se
) 

 G
ra

de
 I

I 
 St

at
io

n.
 N

ow
 h

ou
se

. 
C

18
48

. 
 P

ro
ba

bl
y 

by
 G

 T
 

A
nd

re
w

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
Yo

rk
 a

nd
 N

or
th

 M
id

la
nd

 R
ai

lw
ay

.  
Br

ic
k,

 s
to

ne
 d

re
ss

in
gs

 a
nd

 W
el

sh
 s

la
te

 r
oo

f. 
 M

ai
n 

ra
ng

e 
w

ith
 c

en
tr

al
 b

ay
 b

re
ak

in
g 

fo
rw

ar
d,

 a
dd

iti
on

 
to

 r
ig

ht
 a

nd
 c

ro
ss

 w
in

gs
 t

o 
re

ar
.  

2 
st

or
ey

s, 
5 

ba
ys

 
w

ith
 s

in
gl

e-
st

or
ey

 2
-b

ay
 a

dd
iti

on
 t

o 
ri

gh
t. 

 S
to

ne
 

pl
in

th
. 

 C
en

tr
al

 c
an

te
d 

ba
y 

be
ne

at
h 

w
id

e 
ea

ve
s 

fla
nk

ed
 

by
 

sa
sh

es
 

w
ith

 
gl

az
in

g 
ba

rs
 

be
ne

at
h 

ca
m

be
re

d 
br

ic
k 

ar
ch

es
. 

 R
ig

ht
 e

xt
en

sio
n:

 2
-p

an
el

 
do

or
 w

ith
 o

ve
rl

ig
ht

 b
en

ea
th

 s
eg

m
en

ta
l 

ar
ch

, 
w

ith
 

sa
sh

 w
ith

 g
la

zi
ng

 b
ar

s 
be

ne
at

h 
se

gm
en

ta
l 

ar
ch

 t
o 

le
ft.

  
Fi

rs
t 

flo
or

: c
on

tin
uo

us
 s

to
ne

 b
an

d 
at

 s
ill

 le
ve

l. 
 

Pa
ir

 o
f 

ro
un

d-
ar

ch
ed

 p
la

te
 g

la
ss

 s
as

he
s 

fla
nk

ed
 b

y 
sa

sh
es

 w
ith

 g
la

zi
ng

 b
ar

s 
be

ne
at

h 
ca

m
be

re
d 

br
ic

k 
ar

ch
es

, 
w

ith
 

w
in

do
w

 
op

en
in

g 
to

 
ex

tr
em

e 
le

ft 
bl

oc
ke

d.
 

 
En

d 
an

d 
ri

dg
e 

st
ac

ks
. 

 
Th

e 
Yo

rk
 

to
 

Sc
ar

bo
ro

ug
h 

lin
e 

w
as

 o
pe

ne
d 

in
 1

84
5.

 

St
re

ns
al

l R
ai

lw
ay

 B
ui

ld
in

gs
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
 C

ha
ra

ct
er

 A
pp

ra
isa

l, 
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
10

 

 

A
pp

en
di

x 
A

 

Page 157



Page 158

This page is intentionally left blank



T
O

W
T

H
O

R
P

E
  
C

O
N

S
E

R
V

A
T

IO
N

  
 A

R
E

A
  
 A

P
P

R
A

IS
A

L
  
 

  

In
 a

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 
w

ith
 S

tr
en

sa
ll 

w
ith

 T
ow

th
or

pe
 

Pa
ri

sh
 C

ou
nc

il 

Page 159



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 
 

 1 
In

tr
od

uc
tio

n 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  2
 

 
 2 

Lo
ca

tio
n 

an
d 

C
on

te
xt

  
 

 
 

 
 

  3
 

 
  

 
 

 
 

3 
 T

op
og

ra
ph

y 
an

d 
Se

tt
in

g 
 

 
 

 
 

  4
 

 
   

 4 
 H

ist
or

ic
al

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
 

 
 

 
 

  5
 

   
 5 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

Bo
un

da
ry

 
 

 
 

 
  6

 
 

 
6 

C
ha

ra
ct

er
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

  7
 

 
  

 
 

   
7 

Fu
tu

re
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
Su

gg
es

tio
ns

 
   

 
 

 
  9

 
  

   
 

  
A

PP
EN

D
IX

 A
 - 

Li
st

ed
 B

ui
ld

in
g 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
ns

 
 

   To
w

th
or

pe
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
C

ha
ra

ct
er

 A
pp

ra
isa

l, 
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
10

 
1 

C
O

N
T

E
N

T
S

 

Th
is 

do
cu

m
en

t 
w

as
 p

re
pa

re
d 

in
 N

ov
em

be
r 

20
10

 
by

 W
oo

dh
al

l P
la

nn
in

g 
an

d 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

on
 b

eh
al

f 
of

 t
he

 C
ity

 o
f Y

or
k 

C
ou

nc
il.

  T
he

 fo
rm

at
 a

nd
 

co
nt

en
t 

w
er

e 
ag

re
ed

 w
ith

 t
he

 D
es

ig
n,

 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

an
d 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
Se

ct
io

n 
of

 C
ity

 o
f Y

or
k 

C
ou

nc
il,

 a
nd

 t
he

 d
oc

um
en

t 
w

as
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

by
 t

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
on

 …
…

…
...

. 
    Th

e 
na

m
e 

of
 d

es
ig

na
te

d 
ar

ea
 is

 p
ro

po
se

d 
to

 a
m

en
de

d 
fro

m
 T

ow
th

or
pe

 V
illa

ge
 to

 th
e 

To
w

th
or

pe
 

Co
ns

er
va

tio
n 

Ar
ea

. 

Page 160



To
w

th
or

pe
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
C

ha
ra

ct
er

 A
pp

ra
isa

l, 
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
10

 
2 

1
 

IN
T

R
O

D
U

C
T

IO
N

 

1.
01

 A
 c

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

ar
ea

 is
 d

ef
in

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 (L

ist
ed

 B
ui

ld
in

gs
 a

nd
 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
as

) A
ct

 1
99

0 
as

 a
n 

ar
ea

 
of

 s
pe

ci
al

 a
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

al
 o

r 
hi

st
or

ic
 

in
te

re
st

, (
th

e 
ch

ar
ac

te
r 

or
 a

pp
ea

ra
nc

e 
of

 
w

hi
ch

) i
s 

de
sir

ab
le

 t
o 

pr
es

er
ve

 o
r 

en
ha

nc
e.

  S
ec

tio
n 

69
 o

f t
he

 A
ct

 r
eq

ui
re

s 
Lo

ca
l P

la
nn

in
g 

A
ut

ho
ri

tie
s 

to
 id

en
tif

y 
an

d 
de

sig
na

te
 c

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

ar
ea

s 
w

ith
in

 t
he

ir
 

ge
og

ra
ph

ic
al

 b
ou

nd
ar

ie
s 

an
d 

to
 

fo
rm

ul
at

e,
 in

 c
on

ju
nc

tio
n 

w
ith

 t
he

 p
ub

lic
, 

pr
op

os
al

s 
fo

r 
th

ei
r 

pr
es

er
va

tio
n 

an
d 

en
ha

nc
em

en
t 

(s
ec

tio
n 

71
 a

nd
 7

2 
of

 t
he

 
A

ct
). 

 T
he

 A
ct

 p
la

ce
s 

a 
du

ty
 u

po
n 

Lo
ca

l 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 A

ut
ho

ri
tie

s 
to

 r
ev

ie
w

 t
he

 e
xt

en
t 

of
 t

he
 c

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

ar
ea

s. 

1.
02

 A
lth

ou
gh

 t
he

 C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

is 
na

m
ed

 a
s 

“T
ow

th
or

pe
 V

ill
ag

e”
, 

To
w

th
or

pe
 is

 a
ct

ua
lly

 a
 s

m
al

l a
gr

ic
ul

tu
ra

l 
ha

m
le

t, 
lo

ca
te

d 
to

 t
he

 n
or

th
 o

f Y
or

k 
(s

ee
 

M
ap

 1
). 

Th
e 

To
w

th
or

pe
 V

ill
ag

e 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
w

as
 d

es
ig

na
te

d 
in

 
20

01
, w

ith
 t

he
 b

ou
nd

ar
ie

s 
as

 s
ho

w
n 

on
 

M
ap

 2
 w

ith
in

 A
pp

en
di

x 
A

.  
Th

e 
w

ho
le

 
ar

ea
 is

 le
ss

 t
ha

n 
9 

he
ct

ar
es

. 

1.
03

 T
hi

s 
do

cu
m

en
t 

se
ts

 o
ut

 t
he

 fi
nd

in
gs

 o
f a

 
ch

ar
ac

te
r 

ap
pr

ai
sa

l o
f t

he
 T

ow
th

or
pe

 
Vi

lla
ge

 C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

an
d 

ca
n 

be
 

re
ga

rd
ed

 a
s 

be
in

g 
in

 fo
ur

 p
ar

ts
. T

he
 fi

rs
t 

pa
rt

 (C
ha

pt
er

s 
1-

4)
 s

et
s 

th
e 

sc
en

e 
by

 
an

al
ys

in
g 

th
e 

hi
st

or
y 

an
d 

ba
se

lin
e 

fa
ct

or
s 

of
 t

he
 c

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

ar
ea

. T
he

 
se

co
nd

 p
ar

t (
C

ha
pt

er
 5

) r
ev

ie
w

s 
th

e 
ex

te
nt

 o
f t

he
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
as

 
or

ig
in

al
ly

 d
es

ig
na

te
d 

an
d 

ex
pl

ai
ns

 t
he

 
re

as
on

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 r

ev
isi

on
 o

f i
ts

 
bo

un
da

ri
es

. T
he

 t
hi

rd
 p

ar
t, 

(C
ha

pt
er

 6
) 

de
sc

ri
be

s 
th

e 
ge

ne
ra

l c
ha

ra
ct

er
 o

f t
he

 
ar

ea
 a

s 
re

vi
se

d.
 T

he
 fi

na
l p

ar
t 

(C
ha

pt
er

 
7)

 c
on

ta
in

s 
su

gg
es

tio
ns

 fo
r 

fu
tu

re
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t. 

1.
04

 T
he

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t 

is 
ba

se
d 

on
 fi

el
d 

w
or

k 
in

 A
ug

us
t 

an
d 

Se
pt

em
be

r 
20

10
 a

nd
 is

 
lim

ite
d 

to
 t

he
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 a
nd

 a
re

as
 v

isi
bl

e 
fr

om
 t

he
 p

ub
lic

 d
om

ai
n.

   

1.
05

 T
ow

th
or

pe
 V

ill
ag

e 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
A

pp
ra

isa
l w

as
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

as
 a

 s
up

po
rt

in
g 

do
cu

m
en

t 
to

 t
he

 c
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
po

lic
ie

s 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 t
he

 C
ity

 o
f Y

or
k'

s 
dr

af
t 

Lo
ca

l P
la

n 
(in

co
rp

or
at

in
g 

th
e 

fo
ur

th
 s

et
 

of
 c

ha
ng

es
) b

y 
th

e 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 C

om
m

itt
ee

 
of

 C
ity

 o
f Y

or
k 

C
ou

nc
il 

on
  t

o 
be

 
in

se
rt

ed
. T

he
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
A

pp
ra

isa
l w

ill
 a

lso
 b

e 
us

ed
 t

o 
in

fo
rm

 
th

e 
em

er
gi

ng
 L

oc
al

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
Fr

am
ew

or
k.

 

     

M
ap

 1
 

Page 161



To
w

th
or

pe
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
C

ha
ra

ct
er

 A
pp

ra
isa

l, 
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
10

 
3 

2
 

L
O

C
A

T
IO

N
 A

N
D

 C
O

N
T

E
X

T
 

 2
.0

1 
Th

e 
To

w
th

or
pe

 V
ill

ag
e 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

lie
s 

ap
pr

ox
im

at
el

y 
5 

ki
lo

m
et

re
s 

no
rt

h 
of

 
Yo

rk
 c

ity
 c

en
tr

e.
  T

ow
th

or
pe

  s
its

 t
o 

th
e 

ea
st

 o
f t

he
 R

iv
er

 F
os

s 
an

d 
is 

po
sit

io
ne

d 
be

tw
ee

n 
H

ax
by

, a
pp

ro
xi

m
at

el
y 

1 
ki

lo
m

et
re

 t
o 

th
e 

w
es

t, 
an

d 
St

re
ns

al
l w

hi
ch

 
is 

ap
pr

ox
im

at
el

y 
1.

5 
ki

lo
m

et
re

s 
to

 t
he

 
no

rt
h 

ea
st

 (s
ee

 M
ap

 1
). 

2.
02

  T
he

 d
es

ig
na

te
d 

ar
ea

 s
its

 o
n 

bo
th

 s
id

es
 o

f 
To

w
th

or
pe

 R
oa

d 
an

d 
is 

fo
cu

se
d 

ar
ou

nd
 a

 
sm

al
l a

gr
ic

ul
tu

ra
l h

am
le

t 
of

 lo
ng

 s
ta

nd
in

g
(s

ee
 P

la
te

 1
). 

 T
he

 d
es

ig
na

te
d 

ar
ea

 a
ro

un
d 

 
an

d 
su

rr
ou

nd
in

g 
la

nd
 fo

rm
s 

pa
rt

 o
f t

he
 

C
ity

 o
f Y

or
k 

G
re

en
 B

el
t, 

an
d 

is 
re

co
gn

iz
ed

 
in

 t
he

 e
m

er
gi

ng
 L

oc
al

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
Fr

am
ew

or
k 

as
 a

n 
ar

ea
 p

re
ve

nt
in

g 
co

al
es

ce
nc

e 
(P

ol
ic

y 
G

1)
.  

 2.
03

 I
t 

is 
es

tim
at

ed
 t

ha
t 

ap
pr

ox
im

at
el

y 
15

 
pe

op
le

 li
ve

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a.
 

   
 

  

Pl
at

e 
1 

 A
er

ia
l v

ie
w

  

Page 162



To
w

th
or

pe
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
C

ha
ra

ct
er

 A
pp

ra
isa

l, 
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
10

 
4 

3
 

T
O

P
O

G
R

A
P

H
Y

 A
N

D
 L

A
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

 S
E

T
T

IN
G

 

3.
01

 T
ow

th
or

pe
 o

cc
up

ie
s 

pa
rt

 o
f a

n 
op

en
 a

re
a 

to
 t

he
 e

as
t 

of
 t

he
 R

iv
er

 F
os

s. 
 T

he
 

bu
ild

in
gs

 a
pp

ea
r 

to
 b

e 
se

t 
on

 a
 s

lig
ht

 r
ise

 
in

 t
he

 la
nd

sc
ap

e 
w

he
n 

vi
ew

ed
 fr

om
 t

he
 

w
es

t. 
 T

hi
s 

to
po

gr
ap

hy
 h

as
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

ed
 

to
 t

he
 n

or
th

/s
ou

th
 a

lig
nm

en
t 

of
 t

he
 

se
tt

le
m

en
t 

an
d 

ca
us

ed
 t

he
 s

ha
rp

 b
en

ds
 o

f 
th

e 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 r

oa
ds

.  
Th

e 
ha

m
le

t 
its

el
f i

s 
su

rr
ou

nd
ed

 b
y 

fie
ld

s. 
Th

es
e 

ar
ea

s 
of

 o
pe

n 
gr

ou
nd

 e
na

bl
e 

lo
ng

 d
ist

an
ce

 v
ie

w
s 

to
w

ar
ds

 t
he

 v
ill

ag
e 

fr
om

 t
he

 n
or

th
, s

ou
th

 
an

d 
w

es
t. 

  
 3.

02
 T

he
 im

m
ed

ia
te

 s
et

tin
g 

of
 t

he
 d

es
ig

na
te

d 
ar

ea
 is

 d
om

in
at

ed
 b

y 
op

en
 a

gr
ic

ul
tu

ra
l 

la
nd

 (s
ee

 P
la

te
 2

). 
 T

o 
th

e 
no

rt
h 

sid
e 

of
 

To
w

th
or

pe
 R

oa
d 

th
er

e 
is 

an
 u

nu
su

al
 

m
ou

nd
ed

 fi
el

d 
w

hi
ch

 a
pp

ea
rs

 t
o 

be
 m

an
 

m
ad

e.
  T

o 
th

e 
ea

st
, a

lo
ng

 t
he

 s
ou

th
 s

id
e 

of
 T

ow
th

or
pe

 R
oa

d,
 t

he
re

 a
re

 a
 n

um
be

r 
of

 m
od

er
n 

re
sid

en
tia

l p
ro

pe
rt

ie
s 

th
at

 a
re

 
ou

ts
id

e 
th

e 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a.
  T

o 
th

e 
ea

st
 o

f T
ow

th
or

pe
 v

ill
ag

e 
is 

St
re

ns
al

l 
A

rm
y 

C
am

p.
  T

o 
th

e 
no

rt
h-

ea
st

 c
or

ne
r 

is 
 

a 
he

av
ily

 w
oo

de
d 

ar
ea

 b
ey

on
d 

Lo
w

 F
ar

m
.  

 
          

 
   

 

Pl
at

e 
2 

 V
ie

w
 to

w
ar

ds
 th

e 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

 
A

re
a 

 lo
ok

in
g 

no
rt

h 
al

on
g 

To
w

th
or

pe
 

 
Ro

ad
 

 

Page 163



To
w

th
or

pe
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
C

ha
ra

ct
er

 A
pp

ra
isa

l, 
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
10

 
5 

4
 

H
IS

T
O

R
IC

A
L

 D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 

 
 

4.
01

 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
ab

ou
t 

th
e 

ea
rl

y 
hi

st
or

y 
of

 
To

w
th

or
pe

 is
 li

m
ite

d.
  I

t 
w

as
 a

 w
el

l-
es

ta
bl

ish
ed

 s
et

tle
m

en
t 

by
 t

he
 e

le
ve

nt
h 

ce
nt

ur
y 

bu
t 

m
ay

 h
av

e 
m

uc
h 

ea
rl

ie
r 

or
ig

in
s 

as
 t

he
re

 is
 e

vi
de

nc
e 

fo
r 

pr
e-

hi
st

or
ic

 a
nd

 
Ro

m
an

 a
ct

iv
ity

 in
 t

he
 w

id
er

 a
re

a.
 

 4.
02

 
Th

e 
to

w
ns

hi
p 

of
 T

ow
th

or
pe

 w
as

 o
w

ne
d 

by
 t

he
 C

ou
nt

 o
f M

or
ta

in
 in

 1
08

6 
an

d 
at

 
th

e 
be

gi
nn

in
g 

of
 t

he
 fo

ur
te

en
th

 c
en

tu
ry

 
w

as
 h

el
d 

by
 t

he
 d

e 
M

au
le

ys
.  

Th
e 

m
oa

t 
on

 
th

e 
w

es
te

rn
 e

dg
e 

of
 t

he
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
is 

pr
ob

ab
ly

 t
he

 s
ite

 o
f t

he
 e

ar
ly

 
m

an
or

 h
ou

se
, w

hi
ch

 m
ay

 h
av

e 
m

ad
e 

us
e 

of
 t

he
 R

iv
er

 F
os

s 
fo

r 
pr

ot
ec

tio
n.

  T
he

re
 is

 
ev

id
en

ce
 o

f r
id

ge
 a

nd
 fu

rr
ow

 (i
nd

ic
at

io
ns

 
of

 m
ed

ie
va

l p
lo

ug
hi

ng
) t

o 
th

e 
no

rt
h-

w
es

t 
of

 t
he

 h
am

le
t. 

 T
he

re
 a

pp
ea

rs
 t

o 
ha

ve
 

be
en

 a
 c

ha
ng

e 
in

 la
nd

 t
en

ur
e 

by
 t

he
 e

ar
ly

 
fif

te
en

th
 c

en
tu

ry
, w

hi
ch

 m
ay

 in
di

ca
te

 a
 

sig
ni

fic
an

t 
re

du
ct

io
n 

in
 t

he
 s

iz
e 

of
 t

he
 

se
tt

le
m

en
t. 

  
 4.

03
 

Th
e 

siz
e 

of
 t

he
 h

am
le

t 
m

ay
 h

av
e 

re
m

ai
ne

d 
re

la
tiv

el
y 

un
al

te
re

d 
sin

ce
 t

hi
s 

la
te

 m
ed

ie
va

l 
pe

ri
od

, a
lth

ou
gh

 t
he

re
 w

as
 a

 s
ub

st
an

tia
l 

pe
ri

od
 o

f r
eb

ui
ld

in
g 

in
 t

he
 e

ig
ht

ee
nt

h 
ce

nt
ur

y,
 p

ro
ba

bl
y 

lin
ke

d 
to

 a
gr

ic
ul

tu
ra

l 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
.  

M
os

t 
of

 t
he

 fa
rm

 h
ou

se
s 

ap
pe

ar
 t

o 
da

te
 fr

om
 th

is 
pe

ri
od

, a
lth

ou
gh

 
th

e 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 fa
rm

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
 a

re
 g

en
er

al
ly

 
la

te
r.

   

Pl
at

e 
3 

Vi
ew

 t
ow

ar
ds

 G
ra

ng
e 

Fa
rm

 

Pl
at

e 
4 

Fa
rm

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
 a

t 
M

an
or

 F
ar

m
 

Pl
at

e 
5 

M
an

or
 fa

rm
ho

us
e 

4.
04

 
Th

e 
lo

ca
tio

n 
of

 G
ra

ng
e 

Fa
rm

, a
w

ay
 fr

om
 

th
e 

ro
ad

 a
nd

 t
he

 o
th

er
 fa

rm
s 

m
ay

 s
ug

ge
st

 
th

at
 it

 h
ad

 a
 d

iff
er

en
t 

fu
nc

tio
n 

or
 s

ta
tu

s 
(s

ee
 P

la
te

 3
). 

 T
he

 1
85

4 
O

rd
na

nc
e 

Su
rv

ey
 

M
ap

 s
ug

ge
st

s 
th

at
 it

 w
as

 a
 fo

ca
l p

oi
nt

 a
t 

th
e 

so
ut

h 
en

d 
of

 t
he

 h
am

le
t. 

  
 4.

05
 

Th
er

e 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

fe
w

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 w

ith
in

 
To

w
th

or
pe

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

tw
en

tie
th

 c
en

tu
ry

.  
Th

e 
fa

rm
 c

om
pl

ex
 n

or
th

 o
f M

an
or

 F
ar

m
 

(s
ee

 P
la

te
 4

) a
pp

ea
rs

 t
o 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
ab

so
rb

ed
 b

y 
on

e 
of

 t
he

 o
th

er
 fa

rm
s 

to
w

ar
ds

 t
he

 b
eg

in
ni

ng
 o

f t
he

 c
en

tu
ry

 a
s 

by
 

19
11

 it
s 

ho
us

e 
ha

d 
be

en
 s

ub
-d

iv
id

ed
 in

to
 

th
re

e 
co

tt
ag

es
.  

D
ur

in
g 

th
e 

la
tt

er
 h

al
f o

f 
th

e 
tw

en
tie

th
 c

en
tu

ry
 t

he
 c

ot
ta

ge
s 

ha
ve

 
be

en
 a

lte
re

d 
to

 s
to

ra
ge

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n.

  
O

ne
 b

un
ga

lo
w

 (B
ei

th
 A

cr
e 

- n
ow

 m
as

siv
el

y 
ex

te
nd

ed
) w

as
 e

re
ct

ed
 in

 t
he

 1
92

0s
 t

o 
th

e 
so

ut
h 

of
 L

ow
 F

ar
m

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 s

im
ila

r 
pr

op
er

tie
s 

w
er

e 
cr

ea
te

d 
to

 t
he

 e
as

t 
of

 
G

ra
ng

e 
Fa

rm
 (o

ut
sid

e 
th

e 
de

sig
na

te
d 

ar
ea

). 
 4.

06
 

Th
e 

fa
rm

st
ea

ds
 c

at
er

ed
 fo

r 
a 

m
ix

ed
 

ag
ri

cu
ltu

ra
l e

co
no

m
y.

  I
n 

th
e 

la
st

 fe
w

 
de

ca
de

s 
ag

ri
cu

ltu
ra

l a
ct

iv
ity

 h
as

 r
ed

uc
ed

 
w

ith
in

 t
he

 h
am

le
t 

an
d 

m
an

y 
of

 t
he

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
 

ha
ve

 b
ec

om
e 

de
re

lic
t. 

 H
ow

ev
er

, w
ith

in
 

th
e 

pa
st

 t
w

o 
ye

ar
s, 

th
e 

fa
rm

ho
us

es
 a

t 
M

an
or

 F
ar

m
 a

nd
 L

ow
 F

ar
m

 h
av

e 
be

en
 

re
st

or
ed

. (
se

e 
Pl

at
e 

5)
.  

 
 

Page 164



18
52

 O
rd

na
nc

e 
Su

rv
ey

 M
ap

 
Th

is 
m

ap
 is

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
O

rd
na

nc
e 

Su
rv

ey
 M

ap
pi

ng
 w

ith
 p

er
m

iss
io

n 
of

 t
he

 c
on

tr
ol

le
r 

of
 H

M
SO

, ©
C

ro
w

n 
C

op
yr

ig
ht

.  
 

U
na

ut
ho

ri
se

d 
re

pr
od

uc
tio

n 
in

fr
in

ge
s 

cr
ow

n 
co

py
rig

ht
 a

nd
 m

ay
 le

ad
 to

 p
ro

se
cu

tio
n 

or
 c

iv
il 

pr
oc

ee
di

ng
s 

Page 165



19
30

 O
rd

na
nc

e 
Su

rv
ey

 M
ap

 
Th

is 
m

ap
 is

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
O

rd
na

nc
e 

Su
rv

ey
 M

ap
pi

ng
 w

ith
 p

er
m

iss
io

n 
of

 t
he

 c
on

tr
ol

le
r 

of
 H

M
SO

, ©
C

ro
w

n 
C

op
yr

ig
ht

.  
 

U
na

ut
ho

ri
se

d 
re

pr
od

uc
tio

n 
in

fr
in

ge
s 

cr
ow

n 
co

py
rig

ht
 a

nd
 m

ay
 le

ad
 t

o 
pr

os
ec

ut
io

n 
or

 c
iv

il 
pr

oc
ee

di
ng

s 

Page 166



To
w

th
or

pe
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
C

ha
ra

ct
er

 A
pp

ra
isa

l, 
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
10

 
6 

5 
C

O
N

SE
R

V
A

T
IO

N
 A

R
E

A
 B

O
U

N
D

A
R

Y
 

5.
01

 
O

ne
 o

f t
he

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 o

f a
n 

ap
pr

ai
sa

l i
s 

a 
re

vi
ew

 o
f t

he
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
bo

un
da

ri
es

 to
 e

st
ab

lis
h 

w
he

th
er

 c
ha

ng
es

 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

ap
pr

op
ri

at
e 

fo
r 

th
er

e 
to

 b
e 

an
y 

ch
an

ge
s. 

 T
he

re
fo

re
 t

he
 e

xt
en

t 
of

 t
he

 
ex

ist
in

g 
de

sig
na

te
d 

ar
ea

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
re

vi
ew

ed
 

an
d 

ar
ea

s 
ar

ou
nd

 t
he

 e
xi

st
in

g 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

st
ud

ie
d 

to
 a

sc
er

ta
in

 
w

he
th

er
 a

ny
 n

ew
 a

re
as

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 in

cl
ud

ed
 

or
 e

xi
st

in
g 

ar
ea

s 
ex

cl
ud

ed
.  

 
  

E
xi

st
in

g 
bo

un
da

ry
 

5.
02

 
Th

e 
cu

rr
en

t 
bo

un
da

ry
 o

f t
he

 d
es

ig
na

te
d 

ar
ea

 is
 il

lu
st

ra
te

d 
on

 M
ap

 2
 in

 A
pp

en
di

x 
A

.  
 

Th
e 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

is 
fo

cu
se

d 
ar

ou
nd

 
fiv

e 
fa

rm
 c

om
pl

ex
es

 m
os

t 
of

 w
hi

ch
 a

re
 n

o 
lo

ng
er

 in
 a

gr
ic

ul
tu

ra
l u

se
 (s

ee
 P

la
te

 6
). 

 
G

ra
ng

e 
Fa

rm
 s

ta
nd

s 
in

 a
 r

el
at

iv
el

y 
iso

la
te

d 
lo

ca
tio

n 
to

 t
he

 s
ou

th
 o

f a
 b

en
d 

in
 

To
w

th
or

pe
 R

oa
d 

(s
ee

 P
la

te
 7

) b
ut

 t
he

 
ot

he
r 

fo
ur

 fo
rm

er
 fa

rm
 c

om
pl

ex
es

, 
to

ge
th

er
 w

ith
 o

ne
 o

th
er

 p
ro

pe
rt

y,
 fo

rm
 a

 
gr

ou
p 

on
 e

ith
er

 s
id

e 
of

 t
he

 r
oa

d 
fu

rt
he

r 
no

rt
h.

  T
he

 d
es

ig
na

te
d 

ar
ea

 a
lso

 in
cl

ud
es

 
op

en
 la

nd
 o

n 
th

e 
w

es
t 

sid
e 

of
 t

he
 r

oa
d.

   
   

  
P

os
si

bl
e 

al
te

ra
ti

on
s 

an
d 

ad
di

ti
on

s 
5.

03
 

Th
er

e 
ar

e 
no

 a
re

as
 w

hi
ch

 a
re

 c
on

sid
er

ed
 

to
 b

e 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

ap
pr

op
ri

at
el

y 
an

d 
no

 
fu

rt
he

r 
ad

di
tio

ns
 t

o 
th

e 
bo

un
da

ry
 a

re
 

re
co

m
m

en
de

d.
 

 

 
R

ec
om

m
en

da
ti

on
s 

5.
04

 
In

 v
ie

w
 o

f a
ll 

th
e 

ab
ov

e,
 it

 is
 c

on
sid

er
ed

 
th

at
 t

he
 e

xi
st

in
g 

bo
un

da
ri

es
 o

f t
he

 a
re

a 
ar

e 
ap

pr
op

ri
at

e 
an

d 
no

 a
lte

ra
tio

ns
 a

re
 

re
co

m
m

en
de

d.
 

 
  

  
 

  
 

Pl
at

e 
7 

Vi
ew

 t
ow

ar
ds

 G
ra

ng
e 

Fa
rm

 

Pl
at

e 
6 

Vi
ew

 t
ow

ar
ds

 M
an

or
 F

ar
m

 

Page 167



451

17
.4

m

C
ro

ss
w

in
ds

CF

W
ar

d 
Bd

y

18
.9

m

Be
ith

 A
cr

e

Drain

45
3

D
ai

ry
 C

ot
ta

ge

CH

17
.1

m

Th
e 

G
ra

ng
e

St
on

e
LB

Def

CF

G
ra

ng
e 

Fa
rm

Ri
ve

r 
Fo

ss

M
oa

t

D
ra

in

G
ra

ng
e 

H
ou

se

1.
52

m
 R

H

D
ra

in

Def

CR

D
ef

TOWTHORPE ROAD

M
an

or
 F

ar
m

Fa
rm

St
on

e

Und

CH

17
.1

m

Th
or

ng
ar

th

Track

Drain

To
w

th
or

pe

El
 S

ub
 S

ta

G
P

Th
e 

N
es

se
s

W
ill

ow
 F

ar
mLo

w
Und

M
ap

 2
 -

 C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

   
bo

un
da

ry

north

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a

bo
un

da
ry

T
hi

s 
m

ap
 is

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
O

rd
na

nc
e 

S
ur

ve
y 

M
ap

pi
ng

 w
ith

 th
e 

pe
rm

is
si

on
 o

f t
he

 c
on

tr
ol

le
r 

of
 H

M
S

O
, ©

 C
ro

w
n 

C
op

yr
ig

ht
.  

U
na

ut
ho

ris
ed

 r
ep

ro
du

ct
io

n 
in

fr
in

ge
s 

C
ro

w
n 

C
op

yr
ig

ht
 a

nd
 m

ay
 le

ad
 to

 p
ro

se
cu

tio
n 

or
 c

iv
il 

pr
oc

ee
di

ng
s.

  C
ity

 o
f Y

or
k 

Li
ce

nc
e 

N
um

be
r 

10
00

-2
08

18

Page 168



To
w

th
or

pe
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
C

ha
ra

ct
er

 A
pp

ra
isa

l, 
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
10

 
7 

6 
G

E
N

E
R

A
L

 C
H

A
R

A
C

T
E

R
 

6.
01

 T
hi

s 
se

ct
io

n 
co

ns
id

er
s 

th
e 

ge
ne

ra
l 

ch
ar

ac
te

r 
of

 t
he

 w
ho

le
 o

f t
he

 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a.
 

  
U

se
 

6.
02

 T
he

 p
re

do
m

in
an

t 
us

e 
of

 t
he

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
 

w
ith

in
 t

he
 a

re
a 

ar
e 

re
sid

en
tia

l a
nd

 
ag

ri
cu

ltu
ra

l (
se

e 
M

ap
 3

). 
 T

he
 a

gr
ic

ul
tu

ra
l 

an
d 

re
la

te
d 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t 

us
es

 h
av

e 
de

cl
in

ed
 a

nd
 a

s 
a 

re
su

lt 
m

an
y 

of
 t

he
 fa

rm
 

bu
ild

in
gs

 a
re

 v
ac

an
t 

an
d 

de
re

lic
t. 

 T
he

 
sm

al
l n

um
be

r 
of

 p
ro

pe
rt

ie
s 

an
d 

th
e 

lim
ite

d 
le

ve
l o

f a
ct

iv
ity

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
is 

an
 e

ss
en

tia
l a

sp
ec

t 
of

 it
s 

ch
ar

ac
te

r.
  

  
Q

ua
lit

ie
s 

of
 t

he
 B

ui
ld

in
gs

 
6.

03
 T

he
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 t
en

d 
to

 b
e 

la
rg

e 
in

 s
ca

le
 a

nd
 

gr
ou

pe
d 

to
 fo

rm
 e

nc
lo

se
d 

ya
rd

s. 
 T

he
se

 
cl

us
te

rs
 a

re
 s

ep
ar

at
ed

 b
y 

ge
ne

ro
us

 o
pe

n 
sp

ac
e 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 w

ith
 t

he
 a

gr
ic

ul
tu

ra
l u

se
.  

  
A

 n
um

be
r 

of
 t

he
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 r
et

ai
n 

ev
id

en
ce

 
of

 h
ei

gh
t 

in
cr

ea
se

 o
r 

su
b-

di
vi

sio
n 

de
m

on
st

ra
tin

g 
co

nt
in

uo
us

 a
da

pt
at

io
n 

of
 

th
e 

bu
ild

in
gs

 o
ve

r 
a 

pe
ri

od
 o

f t
im

e.
 

 6.
04

 W
ith

in
 t

he
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
th

er
e 

is 
on

ly
 o

ne
 li

st
ed

 b
ui

ld
in

g 
(s

ee
 M

ap
 4

 a
nd

 
A

pp
en

di
x 

A
). 

 T
hi

s 
is 

Lo
w

 F
ar

m
ho

us
e 

w
hi

ch
 is

 a
 m

id
 e

ig
ht

ee
nt

h 
ce

nt
ur

y 
fa

rm
ho

us
e 

co
ns

tr
uc

te
d 

of
 r

ed
 c

la
m

p 
br

ic
k 

un
de

r 
a 

pi
tc

he
d 

pa
nt

ile
 r

oo
f w

ith
 it

s 

Pl
at

e 
8 

Lo
w

 F
ar

m
ho

us
e 

Pl
at

e 
9 

Ba
rn

 a
t 

M
an

or
 F

ar
m

 
 Pl

at
e 

10
 B

ar
ns

 a
t 

Lo
w

 F
ar

m
 

 

pr
in

ci
pa

l e
le

va
tio

n 
fa

ci
ng

 s
ou

th
.  

Th
is 

is 
a 

ty
pi

ca
l f

ar
m

ho
us

e 
of

 it
s 

pe
ri

od
, 

w
ith

 a
 s

im
pl

e 
fo

rm
, s

m
al

l h
or

iz
on

ta
l 

sli
di

ng
 s

as
h 

w
in

do
w

s, 
st

ep
pe

d 
ea

ve
s 

co
ur

se
s 

an
d 

ra
ise

d 
ga

bl
es

 (s
ee

 P
la

te
 

8)
.  

Th
e 

ot
he

r 
fa

rm
ho

us
es

 d
isp

la
y 

sim
ila

r 
fo

rm
 a

nd
 d

et
ai

lin
g,

 a
lth

ou
gh

 
w

in
do

w
 t

yp
es

 h
av

e 
be

en
 c

ha
ng

ed
 t

o 
ve

rt
ic

al
 s

lid
in

g 
sa

sh
es

. T
he

 fa
rm

ho
us

e 
no

rt
h 

of
 M

an
or

 F
ar

m
 a

pp
ea

rs
 t

o 
ea

rl
ie

r 
an

d 
m

ay
 w

el
l b

e 
of

 s
pe

ci
al

 
in

te
re

st
, a

lth
ou

gh
 it

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
al

te
re

d 
an

d 
is 

cu
rr

en
tly

 d
er

el
ic

t. 
  

 6.
05

 T
he

 fa
rm

ho
us

es
 h

av
e 

di
ffe

re
nt

 
re

la
tio

ns
hi

ps
 w

ith
 t

he
 r

oa
d.

  A
t 

Lo
w

 
Fa

rm
 a

nd
 W

ill
ow

 F
ar

m
 t

he
 h

ou
se

s 
ar

e 
at

 r
ig

ht
 a

ng
le

s 
to

 t
he

 r
oa

d.
  M

an
or

 
Fa

rm
 h

as
 a

 h
ou

se
 t

ha
t 

fa
ce

s 
ea

st
 

ac
ro

ss
 t

he
 r

oa
d,

 w
hi

le
 G

ra
ng

e 
fa

rm
 is

 
lo

ca
te

d 
w

el
l a

w
ay

 fr
om

 t
he

 r
oa

d 
an

d 
is 

ac
ce

ss
ed

 b
y 

a 
lo

ng
 d

ri
ve

. 
 6.

06
 A

ll 
of

 t
he

 fa
rm

s 
ha

d 
ra

ng
es

 o
f 

ag
ri

cu
ltu

ra
l b

ui
ld

in
gs

 t
o 

ei
th

er
 h

ou
se

 
liv

es
to

ck
 o

r 
to

 s
to

re
 m

at
er

ia
ls,

 s
uc

h 
as

 h
ay

.  
So

m
e 

bu
ild

in
gs

 h
av

e 
be

en
 r

e-
us

ed
 a

s 
w

or
ks

ho
ps

.  
Th

e 
ea

rl
ie

r 
bu

ild
in

gs
 a

re
 c

on
st

ru
ct

ed
 w

ith
 b

ri
ck

 
un

de
r 

a 
pi

tc
he

d 
ro

of
 w

hi
lst

 t
he

 la
te

r 
bu

ild
in

gs
 a

re
 p

or
ta

l f
ra

m
ed

 s
tr

uc
tu

re
s 

co
ve

re
d 

w
ith

 m
et

al
 (s

ee
 P

la
te

s 
4,

 9
 

Page 169



To
w

th
or

pe
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
C

ha
ra

ct
er

 A
pp

ra
isa

l, 
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
10

 
8 

Pl
at

e 
12

 T
re

es
 a

nd
 h

ed
ge

s 
in

 t
he

  
 

 
st

re
et

sc
en

e 
 

la
yo

ut
 t

he
 a

re
a,

 m
an

y 
vi

ew
s 

ar
e 

po
ss

ib
le

 b
et

w
ee

n 
th

e 
bu

ild
in

gs
.  

  
So

ft
 L

an
ds

ca
pi

ng
 

6.
10

 T
he

 s
tr

ee
ts

ce
ne

 a
lo

ng
 T

ow
th

or
pe

 
Ro

ad
 is

 s
of

te
ne

d 
by

 m
an

y 
tr

ee
s 

an
d 

he
dg

es
  (

se
e 

Pl
at

e 
12

 a
nd

 M
ap

 5
). 

 A
s 

no
te

d 
ab

ov
e,

 g
ra

ss
 v

er
ge

s 
ex

ist
 o

n 
bo

th
 s

id
es

 o
f t

he
 n

or
th

er
n 

se
ct

io
n 

of
 

To
w

th
or

pe
 R

oa
d.

   
  

N
eu

tr
al

 a
nd

 N
eg

at
iv

e 
fa

ct
or

s 
  

6.
11

 W
ith

in
 t

he
 d

es
ig

na
te

d 
ar

ea
 t

he
re

 a
re

 
a 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 n

eu
tr

al
 fa

ct
or

s 
an

d 
ne

ga
tiv

e 
fa

ct
or

s 
(s

ee
 M

ap
 4

). 
 B

ei
th

 
A

cr
e 

ha
s 

is 
an

 u
nt

yp
ic

al
 b

un
ga

lo
w

 
w

hi
ch

 is
 m

ad
e 

m
or

e 
ob

vi
ou

s 
by

 t
he

 
co

nt
ra

st
in

g 
m

as
s 

of
 th

e 
re

ar
 

ex
te

ns
io

n.
  I

n 
ad

di
tio

n,
 t

he
 lo

ss
 o

f a
 

th
e 

fr
on

t 
bo

un
da

ry
 e

nc
lo

su
re

 a
lso

 
cr

ea
te

s 
a 

ga
p 

in
 t

he
 s

tr
ee

ts
ce

ne
. A

lso
, 

so
m

e 
of

 t
he

 m
od

er
n 

fa
rm

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
 

ar
e 

ne
ga

tiv
e 

fa
ct

or
s 

as
 a

 r
es

ul
t 

of
 

th
ei

r 
sc

al
e 

an
d 

no
n-

tr
ad

iti
on

al
 

m
at

er
ia

ls.
 

 6.
12

 T
he

 r
ec

en
t 

bo
un

da
ry

 w
al

ls 
er

ec
te

d 
at

 
M

an
or

 F
ar

m
 a

nd
 L

ow
 F

ar
m

 (s
ee

 
Pl

at
es

 5
 a

nd
 1

3)
 a

re
 in

ap
pr

op
ri

at
e 

to
 

th
e 

ar
ea

 a
s 

a 
re

su
lt 

of
 t

he
ir

 d
es

ig
n 

an
d 

de
ta

ili
ng

.  
Th

e 
cu

m
ul

at
iv

e 
im

pa
ct

 o
f 

su
ch

 s
m

al
l-s

ca
le

 c
ha

ng
es

 c
an

 q
ui

ck
ly

 
un

de
rm

in
e 

th
e 

sp
ec

ia
l q

ua
lit

ie
s 

of
 t

he
 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a.

   
  

&
10

). 
 M

os
t 

of
 t

he
 t

ra
di

tio
na

l b
ui

ld
in

gs
 

w
ith

in
 t

he
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
m

ak
e 

a 
po

sit
iv

e 
co

nt
ri

bu
tio

n 
to

 it
s 

ch
ar

ac
te

r 
an

d 
ap

pe
ar

an
ce

.  
D

ue
 t

o 
th

ei
r 

fo
rm

er
 

ag
ri

cu
ltu

ra
l u

se
 m

an
y 

of
 t

he
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 a
re

 
su

rr
ou

nd
ed

 b
y 

op
en

 y
ar

ds
 w

hi
ch

 r
es

ul
ts

 in
 

a 
lo

w
 d

en
sit

y 
of

 b
ui

lt 
fo

rm
. 

 6.
07

 B
ei

th
 A

cr
e 

w
as

 o
ri

gi
na

lly
 c

on
st

ru
ct

ed
 a

s 
a 

m
od

es
t, 

hi
pp

ed
 r

oo
f b

un
ga

lo
w

 b
ut

 a
 v

er
y 

la
rg

e 
tw

o-
st

or
ey

 e
xt

en
sio

n 
ha

s 
be

en
 

ad
de

d,
 w

hi
ch

 m
ak

es
 t

he
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

ap
pe

ar
 

in
co

ng
ru

ou
s 

(s
ee

 P
la

te
 1

1)
.  

 
   

Sp
ac

es
 a

nd
 v

ie
w

s 
6.

08
 W

ith
in

 t
he

 d
es

ig
na

te
d 

ar
ea

 t
he

 d
ef

in
ed

 
sp

ac
es

 a
re

 li
m

ite
d 

to
 t

he
 im

m
ed

ia
te

 
cu

rt
ila

ge
s 

of
 t

he
 fa

rm
ho

us
es

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 

dw
el

lin
gs

.  
Th

es
e 

sp
ac

es
 a

re
 t

yp
ic

al
ly

 
ga

rd
en

 a
re

as
 o

r 
ya

rd
s 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 w

ith
 

fo
rm

er
 a

gr
ic

ul
tu

ra
l u

se
s 

(s
ee

 P
la

te
 4

). 
 

A
lo

ng
 t

he
 s

ou
th

er
n 

se
ct

io
n 

of
 T

ow
th

or
pe

 
Ro

ad
 t

he
re

 a
re

 s
ec

tio
ns

 o
f m

od
er

n 
ta

rm
ac

 
pa

ve
m

en
ts

, b
ut

 e
lse

w
he

re
 t

he
re

 a
re

 ju
st

 
gr

as
s 

ve
rg

es
. 

 6.
09

 V
ie

w
s 

w
ith

in
 t

he
 d

es
ig

na
te

d 
ar

ea
 a

re
 

pr
ed

om
in

an
tly

 a
lo

ng
 T

ow
th

or
pe

 R
oa

d 
to

 
ei

th
er

 e
nd

 o
f t

he
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
(s

ee
 

M
ap

 5
 a

nd
 P

la
te

 1
2)

.  
Si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 v
ie

w
s 

in
to

 
th

e 
de

sig
na

te
d 

ar
ea

 a
re

 p
os

sib
le

 fr
om

 
ac

ro
ss

 t
he

 o
pe

n 
ar

ea
s 

to
 t

he
 n

or
th

, s
ou

th
 

an
d 

w
es

t. 
 A

lso
, a

s 
a 

re
su

lt 
of

 t
he

 lo
w

 
de

ns
ity

 o
f t

he
 b

ui
lt 

fo
rm

 a
nd

 t
he

 o
pe

n 

Pl
at

e 
11

 B
ei

th
 A

cr
e 

 Pl
at

e 
13

 B
ou

nd
ar

y 
w

al
l a

t L
ow

 fa
rm

ho
us

e 
 

Page 170



451

17
.4

m

C
ro

ss
w

in
ds

CF

W
ar

d 
Bd

y

18
.9

m

Be
ith

 A
cr

e

Drain

45
3

D
ai

ry
 C

ot
ta

ge

CH

17
.1

m

Th
e 

G
ra

ng
e

St
on

e
LB

Def

CF

G
ra

ng
e 

Fa
rm

Ri
ve

r 
Fo

ss

M
oa

t

D
ra

in

G
ra

ng
e 

H
ou

se

1.
52

m
 R

H

D
ra

in

Def

CR

D
ef

TOWTHORPE ROAD

M
an

or
 F

ar
m

Fa
rm

St
on

e

Und

CH

17
.1

m

Th
or

ng
ar

th

Track

Drain

To
w

th
or

pe

El
 S

ub
 S

ta

G
P

Th
e 

N
es

se
s

W
ill

ow
 F

ar
mLo

w
Und

M
ap

 3
 -

  E
xi

st
in

g 
us

es

R
es

id
en

tia
l

north

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a

bo
un

da
ry

A
gr

ic
ul

tu
ra

l

T
hi

s 
m

ap
 is

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
O

rd
na

nc
e 

S
ur

ve
y 

M
ap

pi
ng

 w
ith

 th
e 

pe
rm

is
si

on
 o

f t
he

 c
on

tr
ol

le
r 

of
 H

M
S

O
, ©

 C
ro

w
n 

C
op

yr
ig

ht
.  

U
na

ut
ho

ris
ed

 r
ep

ro
du

ct
io

n 
in

fr
in

ge
s 

C
ro

w
n 

C
op

yr
ig

ht
 a

nd
 m

ay
 le

ad
 to

 p
ro

se
cu

tio
n 

or
 c

iv
il 

pr
oc

ee
di

ng
s.

  C
ity

 o
f Y

or
k 

Li
ce

nc
e 

N
um

be
r 

10
00

-2
08

18

Page 171



451

17
.4

m

C
ro

ss
w

in
ds

CF

W
ar

d 
Bd

y

18
.9

m

Be
ith

 A
cr

e

Drain

45
3

D
ai

ry
 C

ot
ta

ge

CH

17
.1

m

Th
e 

G
ra

ng
e

St
on

e
LB

Def

CF

G
ra

ng
e 

Fa
rm

Ri
ve

r 
Fo

ss

M
oa

t

D
ra

in

G
ra

ng
e 

H
ou

se

1.
52

m
 R

H

D
ra

in

Def

CR

D
ef

TOWTHORPE ROAD

M
an

or
 F

ar
m

Fa
rm

St
on

e

Und

CH

17
.1

m

Th
or

ng
ar

th

Track

Drain

To
w

th
or

pe

El
 S

ub
 S

ta

G
P

Th
e 

N
es

se
s

W
ill

ow
 F

ar
mLo

w
Und

M
ap

 4
 -

  B
ui

ld
in

g 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t

Li
st

ed
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

B
ui

ld
in

gs
 w

hi
ch

 m
ak

e 
a

po
si

tiv
e 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n

north

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a

bo
un

da
ry

B
ui

ld
in

gs
 w

hi
ch

 m
ak

e 
a

ne
ga

tiv
e 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n

B
ui

ld
in

gs
 w

hi
ch

 m
ak

e 
a

ne
ut

ra
l c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n

T
hi

s 
m

ap
 is

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
O

rd
na

nc
e 

S
ur

ve
y 

M
ap

pi
ng

 w
ith

 th
e 

pe
rm

is
si

on
 o

f t
he

 c
on

tr
ol

le
r 

of
 H

M
S

O
, ©

 C
ro

w
n 

C
op

yr
ig

ht
.  

U
na

ut
ho

ris
ed

 r
ep

ro
du

ct
io

n 
in

fr
in

ge
s 

C
ro

w
n 

C
op

yr
ig

ht
 a

nd
 m

ay
 le

ad
 to

 p
ro

se
cu

tio
n 

or
 c

iv
il 

pr
oc

ee
di

ng
s.

  C
ity

 o
f Y

or
k 

Li
ce

nc
e 

N
um

be
r 

10
00

-2
08

18

Page 172



451

17
.4

m

C
ro

ss
w

in
ds

CF

W
ar

d 
Bd

y

18
.9

m

Be
ith

 A
cr

e

Drain

45
3

D
ai

ry
 C

ot
ta

ge

CH

17
.1

m

Th
e 

G
ra

ng
e

St
on

e
LB

Def

CF

G
ra

ng
e 

Fa
rm

Ri
ve

r 
Fo

ss

M
oa

t

D
ra

in

G
ra

ng
e 

H
ou

se

1.
52

m
 R

H

D
ra

in

Def

CR

D
ef

TOWTHORPE ROAD

M
an

or
 F

ar
m

Fa
rm

St
on

e

Und

CH

17
.1

m

Th
or

ng
ar

th

Track

Drain

To
w

th
or

pe

El
 S

ub
 S

ta

G
P

Th
e 

N
es

se
s

W
ill

ow
 F

ar
mLo

w
Und

M
ap

 5
 -

  S
pa

tia
l a

na
ly

si
s

La
nd

m
ar

ks

Lo
ng

 d
is

ta
nc

e 
vi

ew
s

north

T
re

es

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a

bo
un

da
ry

T
hi

s 
m

ap
 is

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
O

rd
na

nc
e 

S
ur

ve
y 

M
ap

pi
ng

 w
ith

 th
e 

pe
rm

is
si

on
 o

f t
he

 c
on

tr
ol

le
r 

of
 H

M
S

O
, ©

 C
ro

w
n 

C
op

yr
ig

ht
.  

U
na

ut
ho

ris
ed

 r
ep

ro
du

ct
io

n 
in

fr
in

ge
s 

C
ro

w
n 

C
op

yr
ig

ht
 a

nd
 m

ay
 le

ad
 to

 p
ro

se
cu

tio
n 

or
 c

iv
il 

pr
oc

ee
di

ng
s.

  C
ity

 o
f Y

or
k 

Li
ce

nc
e 

N
um

be
r 

10
00

-2
08

18

Page 173



To
w

th
or

pe
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
C

ha
ra

ct
er

 A
pp

ra
isa

l, 
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
10

 
9 

7 
  F

U
T

U
R

E
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
 S

U
G

G
E

ST
IO

N
S 

7.
01

 
Th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

iss
ue

s 
sh

ou
ld

 fo
rm

 t
he

 b
as

is 
fo

r 
a 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

pl
an

 fo
r 

th
e 

To
w

th
or

pe
 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a.

  H
ow

ev
er

, a
ll 

as
pe

ct
s 

of
 t

he
 a

re
a 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
in

 t
he

 a
pp

ra
isa

l 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

su
bj

ec
t 

to
 m

ea
su

re
s 

fo
r 

pr
es

er
va

tio
n 

or
 e

nh
an

ce
m

en
t, 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
ly

 
w

he
n 

co
ns

id
er

in
g 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 fo
r 

pl
an

ni
ng

 
pe

rm
iss

io
ns

 w
ith

in
 o

r 
ad

ja
ce

nt
 t

o 
th

e 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a.
 

 7.
02

 
Th

e 
m

aj
or

 is
su

e 
fo

r 
th

e 
To

w
th

or
pe

 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
is 

th
e 

fu
tu

re
 o

f t
he

 
de

re
lic

t 
bu

ild
in

gs
, p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
 t

he
 m

an
y 

tr
ad

iti
on

al
 fa

rm
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

.  
Th

is 
w

ou
ld

 le
ad

 
to

 p
re

ss
ur

e 
fo

r 
th

e 
fu

tu
re

 o
f t

he
se

 
bu

ild
in

gs
 t

o 
be

 s
ec

ur
ed

 b
y 

re
sid

en
tia

l u
se

.  
H

ow
ev

er
, t

hi
s 

is 
lik

el
y 

to
 le

ad
 t

o 
a 

su
bs

ta
nt

ia
l i

nc
re

as
e 

in
 t

he
 n

um
be

r 
of

 
dw

el
lin

gs
 w

ith
in

 t
he

 h
am

le
t, 

w
hi

ch
 w

ou
ld

 
de

st
ro

y 
its

 e
ss

en
tia

l c
ha

ra
ct

er
.  

A
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t 

us
es

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 

en
co

ur
ag

ed
 b

ec
au

se
 o

f t
he

 c
lo

se
 

pr
ox

im
ity

 o
f t

he
 Y

or
k 

ri
ng

 r
oa

d.
 A

lth
ou

gh
 

th
e 

re
la

tiv
e 

iso
la

tio
n 

of
 t

he
 h

am
le

t 
m

ay
 

m
iti

ga
te

 t
he

 v
ia

bi
lit

y 
of

 s
uc

h 
pr

op
os

al
s 

an
d 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

tr
an

sp
or

t 
iss

ue
s 

w
ou

ld
 n

ee
d 

to
 b

e 
ad

dr
es

se
d.

  O
th

er
w

ise
 s

uc
h 

us
es

 
m

ay
 le

ad
 t

o 
an

 u
na

cc
ep

ta
bl

e 
in

cr
ea

se
 in

 
tr

af
fic

 w
ith

in
 t

he
 h

am
le

t. 
 O

ne
 a

lte
rn

at
iv

e 
is 

to
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

 t
he

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
of

 a
 fe

w
 

ve
ry

 la
rg

e 
re

sid
en

tia
l u

ni
ts

 t
ha

t 
ca

n 
m

ak
e 

us
e 

of
 b

ot
h 

th
e 

tr
ad

iti
on

al
 fa

rm
ho

us
es

 a
nd

 

th
ei

r 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 fa
rm

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
. 

 7.
03

 
It 

is 
re

co
m

m
en

de
d 

th
at

 t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

su
gg

es
t 

to
 E

ng
lis

h 
H

er
ita

ge
 t

ha
t 

th
e 

fa
rm

ho
us

e 
no

rt
h 

of
 M

an
or

 F
ar

m
 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 fo
r 

in
cl

us
io

n 
on

 
th

e 
Li

st
 o

f B
ui

ld
in

gs
 o

f S
pe

ci
al

 
A

rc
hi

te
ct

ur
al

 o
r 

H
ist

or
ic

 In
te

re
st

. 
  7.

04
 

C
on

sid
er

at
io

n 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

gi
ve

n 
to

 
in

tr
od

uc
in

g 
A

rt
ic

le
 4

 (2
) d

ir
ec

tio
ns

 t
o 

th
e 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a.

  T
hi

s 
w

ou
ld

 
pr

ov
id

e 
ad

di
tio

na
l p

ro
te

ct
io

n 
to

 
un

lis
te

d 
bu

ild
in

gs
 w

ith
in

 t
he

 a
re

a 
an

d 
co

ul
d 

be
 u

se
d,

 fo
r 

ex
am

pl
e,

 t
o 

re
sis

t 
th

e 
re

pl
ac

em
en

t 
of

 t
im

be
r 

do
or

s 
an

d 
w

in
do

w
s 

in
 u

ns
ui

ta
bl

e 
m

at
er

ia
ls/

st
yl

es
.  

It 
w

ou
ld

 a
lso

 a
llo

w
 c

on
tr

ol
 o

f t
he

 
de

sig
n 

an
d 

m
at

er
ia

ls 
us

ed
 fo

r 
ne

w
 

bo
un

da
ry

 w
al

ls.
 

 7.
05

 
Re

gu
la

r 
tr

ee
 a

nd
 h

ed
ge

 m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 is
 

im
po

rt
an

t 
an

d 
th

er
e 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
en

co
ur

ag
em

en
t 

fo
r 

re
in

fo
rc

in
g 

th
e 

he
dg

es
 t

ha
t 

m
ak

e 
a 

ke
y 

co
nt

ri
bu

tio
n 

to
 

th
e 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a.

  I
n 

ad
di

tio
n,

 it
 

is 
re

co
m

m
en

de
d 

th
at

 t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

re
-

su
rv

ey
 t

he
 d

es
ig

na
te

d 
ar

ea
 a

nd
 it

s 
im

m
ed

ia
te

 s
et

tin
g 

to
 e

st
ab

lis
h 

if 
an

y 
fu

rt
he

r 
Tr

ee
 P

re
se

rv
at

io
n 

O
rd

er
s 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
ap

pr
op

ri
at

e.
   

 

     

Page 174



L
IS

T
E

D
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N
S 

                         To
w

th
or

pe
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
 C

ha
ra

ct
er

 A
pp

ra
isa

l, 
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
10

 
A

pp
en

di
x 

A
 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 A

 
Page 175



T
ow

th
or

pe
 R

oa
d 

 
 

 
 

(e
as

t 
si

de
) 

 L
ow

 F
ar

m
ho

us
e 

 G
ra

de
 I

I 
 H

ou
se

.  
M

id
 C

18
.  

Br
ic

k 
w

ith
 p

an
til

e 
ro

of
.  

D
ir

ec
t 

en
tr

y,
 3

-c
el

l p
la

n.
  

2 
st

or
ey

s, 
3 

fir
st

-fl
oo

r 
w

in
do

w
s. 

 
2-

lig
ht

 
ca

se
m

en
t 

be
ne

at
h 

fla
t 

br
ic

k 
ar

ch
es

 
th

ro
ug

ho
ut

. 
 C

20
 h

al
f-g

la
ze

d 
do

or
 t

o 
le

ft;
 w

in
do

w
 

in
 

bl
oc

ke
d 

do
or

w
ay

 
to

 
ri

gh
t. 

 
St

ep
pe

d 
ea

ve
s 

co
ur

se
. 

 R
ai

se
d 

ga
bl

e 
en

ds
. 

 E
nd

 a
nd

 r
id

ge
 s

ta
ck

s, 
th

at
 t

o 
le

ft 
re

bu
ilt

. 
 I

nt
er

io
r 

co
nt

ai
ns

 c
ha

m
fe

re
d 

sp
in

e 
be

am
s, 

C
18

 p
an

el
s 

do
or

s 
th

ro
ug

ho
ut

, a
n 

C
18

 
sp

la
t 

ba
lu

st
er

 s
ta

ir
ca

se
 a

nd
 a

 C
19

 r
an

ge
 i

n 
th

e 
ki

tc
he

n.
 

To
w

th
or

pe
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
 C

ha
ra

ct
er

 A
pp

ra
isa

l, 
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
10

 

 

A
pp

en
di

x 
A

 

Page 176



Page 177



Page 178

This page is intentionally left blank



Planning Committee, 24 March 2011 
  
Update:- 
11/00050/OUTM Erection of Student Housing at Nos 6-18 Hull Road  
 

• It is recommended that a further informative be added to cover the issue of an 
affordable housing contribution with the following wording:- “In the event that the 
premises hereby authorised should at any time cease to be used for student 
accommodation the applicant’s attention is drawn to the need for a formal grant of 
planning permission for change of use to open market housing at which point the 
need for a commuted sum financial contribution in respect of affordable housing will 
be considered.” 

 
• Concern has been raised in respect of the level of cycle parking provision on the 

site. The applicant has indicated that provision would be made using the same ratio 
of 1:2 adopted at the recent development of the University campus at Heslington 
East with 14 visitor spaces. An additional 17 spaces have also been provided in 
relation to the current scheme giving an overall total of 196 spaces. 

 
• That the recommendation be amended to include the following additional wording :- 

“alternatively, in the event of a satisfactory unilateral undertaking not being 
forthcoming that officers in consultation with the Chair and Vice Chair of this 
Committee be delegated authority to refuse the application as not making provision 
for a financial contribution towards offsite open space in line with York Development 
Control Local Plan Policy L1c.” 

Agenda AnnexPage 179



Page 180

This page is intentionally left blank



Planning Committee, 24 March 2011 
  
Committee Update 2:- 
11/00050/OUTM Erection of Student Housing at Nos 6-18 Hull 
Road 
 
 
It is recommended that an additional condition to secure the implementation 
of the submitted travel plan be added with the following wording:- “The site 
shall not be occupied until a travel plan, developed and implemented in line 
with local and national guidance has been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The site shall thereafter be occupied 
in accordance with the aims measures and outcomes of the Travel Plan. 
 
Within 12 months of occupation of the site a first year travel survey shall have 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
Results of yearly travel surveys shall thenceforth be submitted annually to the 
Local Planning Authority fro approval. 
 
Reason:- To reduce private car travel in accordance with PPG 13:Transport 
and Policy T13 a) of the City of York Deposit Draft Local Plan. 

Page 181



Page 182

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	
	2 Minutes
	4a 6 -18, Hull Road, York (11/00050/OUTM)
	11 00050 OUTM

	4b Beetle Bank Farm, Moor Lane, Murton, York YO19 5XD (11/00002/FULM)
	11 00002 FULM

	4c Hungate Development Site, Hungate, York (10/02527/OUTM)
	10 02527 OUTM

	4d Hungate Development Site, Hungate, York (10/02534/REMM)
	10 02534 REMM

	5 Three Conservation Area Appraisals for Strensall, Strensall Railway Buildings and Towthorpe Village Conservation Areas: Results of Consultation and Final Drafts for Approval.
	Annex A Consultee List
	Annex B Delivery Area
	Annex C Schedule of Responses and Amendments
	Strensall Conservation Area Appraisal -D1
	Annex D2 Strensall Railway Buildings CA Appraisal 3rd DRAFT 15 11 10
	Annex D3 Towthorpe CA Appraisal 3rd DRAFT 15 11 10
	Annex E

	Update: 11/00050/OUTM Erection of Student Housing at Nos 6-18 Hull Road, York
	Hull Road Update 3


